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Corporate Information
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Financial Highlights

IR

Year 2019 Year 2018 Changes
—E-NF —E-)\F AN LEE
(RMB’000) (RMB’000)
(AR®F ) (AR®ETT)
Revenue WA 6,204,683 5,169,369 +20.0%
Gross Profit EH 2,788,817 1,698,095 +64.2%
Gross Profit Margin ES B 44.9% 32.8%
Profit for the Year FRF)E 1,004,031 363,063 +176.5%
Core Net Profit * FRAZONEFE * 994,177 365,959 +171.7%
Profit Attributable to Owners ARaERFEA
of the Company (5 & F 637,144 286,881 +122.1%
Earnings per Share (RMB Cents) BREF(ARES)
- Basic —ER 11 5
- Diluted —#8 11 5
Total Cash¥ WIREY 4,058,864 2,140,781 +89.6%
Total Assets BEE 30,172,439 25,065,934 +20.4%
Total Equity (Net Assets) wrEss CFEE) 10,520,686 9,550,119 +10.2%
Debt to Asset Ratio BELX 65.1% 61.9%
Net Gearing Ratio FAEE 30.1% 27.5%
Current Ratio (Times) BN (15) 1.32 1.52
Equity Multiplier* ST 2.87 2.62
Cash to Capital Ratio ReBEL 13.5% 8.5%
*: Core Net Profit=net profit - fair value (loss)/gain of investment properties + tax - FRZFFNE = REEAE - REMELILBES
impact i+ IS E
¥: Total Cash = cash and cash equivalents + restricted cash ¥: BRS-HL LRSEB/Y+ZRIRS
#: Equity Multiplier = total assets / equity of owners #: R EE A& R
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10 Zhong An Group Limited

Chairman’s Statement

ERHRE

Dear shareholders,

On behalf of Zhong An Group Limited (“Zhong An” or the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”), | am pleased to present
the annual results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2019
(“2019").

REVIEW OF RESULTS

The audited consolidated revenue of the Group for 2019 was RMB6,204.7
million, representing an increase of about 20.0% from that of 2018. The
gross profit for 2019 was RMB2,788.8 million, representing an increase
of about 64.2% from that of 2018. The profit attributable to owners of the
parent for 2019 was about RMB637.1 million, representing an increase
of about 122.1% from that of 2018. The basic earnings per share was
RMBO0.11 (2018: RMBO0.05). The board of directors (the “Board”) of the
Company proposed to declare a final dividend of HK$0.02 per ordinary
share for the year 2019 (2018: nil).

2019 Annual Report
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Chairman’s Statement

MARKET AND BUSINESS REVIEW

In 2019, China’s economic growth was generally stable and the quality of
development was steadily improving. With further improvement of social
productivity, China’s economic aggregate was constantly expanding,
the comprehensive national power continued to enhance and China
successfully made a breakthrough with GDP per capita exceeding
US$10,000, which laid a solid foundation for the comprehensive
realization of a well-off society. As for the real estate industry, under the
flexible control policies adopted by the central government of upholding
the concept that “Housing is for accommodation, not for speculation”
and implementing the “One policy for one city” and “Targeted policy for
individual city”, property investment was generally stable and the industry
maintained relatively steady and rapid growth.

2019 was a year of take-off and harvest for Zhong An. Facing the
complex and volatile and highly competitive market environment, the
Group focused on its goals, made concerted efforts and efficiently
collaborated all staff to overcome difficulties, and successfully achieved
a historic leap forward with projects under operation exceeding RMB10
billion, which laid a solid foundation for leapfrog development of the
Group. During the year, the Group had total 25 existing projects in several
cities and regions of the Yangtze River Delta Region and the overall sales
performance was better than expected. For the year ended 31 December
2019, the Group recorded contracted sales of approximately RMB12.43
billion, , representing an increase of approximately 114% as compared
with that of 2018. Contracted gross floor area (“GFA”) sold was
approximately 773,393 sqg.m., representing an increase of approximately
101% as compared with that of 2018, and contracted average selling
price was approximately RMB16,075 per sg.m., representing an increase
of approximately 6.2% over the previous year.
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12 Zhong An Group Limited

Chairman’s Statement

EFERE

In the past year, the Group continued to expand southward and nothward
to reserve resources, and successively acquired five quality land parcels
in Kunming, Yunnan province, Qingdao, Shandong province, Hangzhou,
Zhejiang province (Xiaoshan district and Lin’an district) and Wenzhou,
of Zhejiang province (Longwan district) through public auction. The
acquisition of new projects provided high-quality resources for the future
development of the Group. Besides, the Group further strengthened
construction quality supervision and management and continued to
improve product competitiveness. With the improvement of both quality
and services, the products have become more competitive and won
recognition of customers. Sound financial data has been a key support
for the Group to maintain its edge in the capital market for many years. In
the past year, the Group adhered to the “stable and sustainable” guiding
principle, continuously optimized the management structure, reasonably
mitigate risks, and maintained the asset-liability ratio and cash flow at a
healthy levels, which further enhanced its risk resistance capacity.

In addition to focusing on the development of residential projects,
China New City Commercial Development Limited (“CNC”, together
with its subsidiaries, the “CNC Group”), a subsidiary listed on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) , also
promoted the development of commercial and investment properties
and hotel business to create value-generating urban complexes with
its professional team. In 2019, CNC continued to expand and develop
various industries and achieved satisfactory results not only through
improving hotel management and commercial operation and other major
businesses, but also through making breakthroughs in businesses of
film and television entertainment, health care, education and culture, and
modern agriculture, etc.

As for property sales, Jiarun Mansion, located at Parcel A3 of International
Office Centre (“lIOC”), continued to sell well and created stable sales
revenue for the Group by leveraging on the unobstacled view of the
Qiantang River and convenient transportation. The successive delivery of
the commercial residences Xixi New City, and the commercial center Xixi
Manhattan, both located at the Parcel of Xixi Wetland, provided a driving
force for the sales income growth of the Group.

As for hotel operation, the Group’s hotel Holiday Inn located at Xiaoshan,
Hangzhou, was operating smoothly and sales income increased steadlily.
In October 2019, the “Bright” hotel under the Group officially opened in
Ningbo, Zhejiang province, which will become a new driving force for
the hotel operation of the Group. Besides, the hotel Hangzhou Qiandao
Lake Bright Resort and Huaibei Bright Hotel, both successively opened in
2017, have been operating well with occupancy gradually rising and sales
income gradually increasing.

2019 Annual Report
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Chairman’s Statement

The property rental income of the Group is mainly from Highlong Plaza,
a flagship project in XiaoShan District, Hangzhou, I0C and the Zhong
An e Intime City. Among them, the upgraded and innovated Highlong
Plaza increased the proportion of children’s, catering and lifestyle service
businesses with more differentiated elements for customer experience,
and the operating efficiency was improved steadily. Zhong An e Intime
City in Yuyao has been operating well since its successful opening in
late 2017, and will continue to contribute to the Group’s property rental
income in the future.

As for new businesses, CNC launched a new business mode themed
on children’s activities, focusing on the provision of services for urban
children. Under planning of CNC, Maggie & Rose has made great
progress in the Greater China in recent years. In November 2018, the
first club of Maggie & Rose in the mainland was opened in Hangzhou,
covering an area of approximately 6,000 sg.m., which was currently the
world’s largest family members’ club under Maggie & Rose. In the future,
the Group will further adjust its business format and optimize its operating
structure based on the conventional business mode.

PRUDENT LAND ACQUISITION AND
REPLENLISHMENT OF HIGH QUALITY
LAND BANK

While maintaining a sound financial position, the Group persistently
implemented a prudent land replenishment strategy of acquiring high
quality land which meets market demand at low cost, so as to optimize
the structure of its land bank.

On 19 April 2019, the Group successfully obtained a plot in Lin’an District,
Hangzhou City, Zhejiang province, at a total consideration of RMB465
million through public auction. The land parcel, with total site area of
44,374 sq.m. and a planned GFA of 53,249 sq.m.,
purpose.

is for residential

On 27 May 2019, the Group successfully obtained a plot in Xishan
District, Kunming city, Yunnan province, at a total consideration of
RMB639 million through public auction. The land parcel, with total
site area of 37,020 sg.m. and a planned GFA of 283,785 sg.m.,
residential and commercial purposes.

is for
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14  Zhong An Group Limited

Chairman’s Statement

EFERE

On 4 June 2019, the Group obtained a plot in Hetao District area of
Hongdao Economic Zone, Qingdao city, Shandong province at a total
consideration of RMB334 million through public auction. The land parcel,
with a site area of 51,736 sg.m. and a planned GFA of 111,483 sgq.m., is
for residential and commercial purposes.

On 24 June 2019, the Group successfully obtained a plot in South
Railway Station in Xiaoshan District, Hangzhou city, Zhejiang province,
at a total consideration of RMB1.64 billion through the way of bidding,
auction and listing. The land parcel, with a site area of 45,333 sq.m. and
a planned GFA of 99,732 sqg.m., is for residential purpose.

On 21 November 2019, the Group successfully obtained a plot in South
Zhejiang Science and Technology Park, Longwan District, Wenzhou city,
Zhejiang province, at a total consideration of RMB928 million through
public auction. The parcel, with a site area of 43,630 sg.m. and a planned
GFA of 109,074 sq.m., is for residential and commercial purposes.

On 19 January 2020, the Group successfully obtained a plot in the
core area of Wenzhou city, Zhejiang province, at a total consideration
of RMB1.12 billion through public auction. The parcel, with a site area
of 30,236 sg.m. and a planned GFA of 84,963 sq.m., is for residential
purposes.

On 3 February 2020, the Group successfully obtained a plot in Fuyang
District, Hangzhou city, Zhejiang province, at a total consideration of
RMB1 billion through public auction. The parcel, with a site area of 54,493
sg.m. and a planned GFA of 130,783 sqg.m., is for residential purposes.

These projects will have a synergistic effect with the projects under
planning of the Group in the Yangtze River Delta, and will further enhance
the brand image marketing of the Group’s projects in the Yangtze River
Delta Region. As at the date of this annual report, the total GFA of the
land bank of the Group was approximately 8.08 million sg.m., which
spread over 10 different cities and regions, including the Yangtze River
Delta, Kunming in Yunnan and Qingdao in Shandong, and are expected
to be able to support the Group’s development in the coming five years.
The average land cost is only approximately RMB1,774 per sg.m..

2019 Annual Report
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Chairman’s Statement

OUTLOOK AND DEVELOPMENT
STRATEGY

In the beginning of 2020, although an epidemic outbreak disrupted the
pace of production and life to a certain extent, under the leadership and
guidance of the central government, the whole country made a concerted
effort to overcome difficulties and made initial achievements in the fight
against the coronavirus, which enabled an orderly resumption of work
and production. On 28 January 2020, the Group, together with Zhejiang
Zhongan Charity Foundation (T T RELEZE S E), set up a special fund
of RMB10 million for the prevention and control of the novel coronavirus
pneumonia, which will be used to support the prevention and control of
the novel coronavirus pneumonia in Hubei, Zhejiang and other areas with
severe epidemic situation. Based on the actual needs of the seriously
affected areas, the Group purchased medical supplies such as masks and
protective clothing to provide necessary assistance for medical staff and
other related workers fighting on the frontline. Meanwhile, the Group will
keep an eye on the progress of the epidemic situation, earnestly assume
its corporate social responsibility, and make great efforts to ensure the
health and safety of property owners, customers and employees of the
Group through various measures.

Although the epidemic will have a certain impact on China’s economy
in the short term, the basic elements underpinning the steady economic
development of the country will not change from a longer term
perspective, and the positive development trend will remain unchanged
with a favorable momentum. It is expected that enterprises in key industries
will continue to receive financial support from the Chinese government,
and will grow substantially in the year 2020.

The Group will firmly uphold its prudent and steady operation policy and
continue to focus on areas with competitive advantages. The Yangtze
River Delta city cluster as the main intersection of the “Belt and Road”
and the Yangtze River Economic Belt is expected to become a pioneering
world-class city cluster in China to face the world. The two newly acquired
land parcels in Wenzhou, Zhejiang province and Fuyang, Hangzhou city,
at the beginning of this year by the group will build a solid foundation for
the Group’s further deep development in the Yangtze River Delta region.
The Group will strengthen its cooperation with strategic partners and
gradually create an excellent brand advantage through the experience
gained over the years in the development of integrated real estate
projects in the region. Meanwhile, the Group will actively expand into
key development cities, promote the integration of industry, finance and
technology, and leverage both the domestic and foreign capital platforms
to boost its development.
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16 Zhong An Group Limited

Chairman’s Statement

EFERE

The year 2020 will be the year of completion of building a well-off
society in all aspects and the ending of “13th Five-Year Plan”, and the
economy will continue to maintain its steady and positive trend. With the
government’s proactive financial policies and sound monetary policies,
infrastructure investment will remain one of the main driving forces for
economic growth in 2020. The Group will adhere to the core concept of
“Enjoying a Better Life”, maintain a stable development attitude, break
through market restrictions, and strive to build a sustainable business
development path of creating a better life for the society and realizing
asset appreciation for customers. The Group will continue to focus on the
development plan of its various businesses, utilize its abundant reserve of
resources, and move towards its new goals through sound and scientific
management. Our new goals and mission will provide new honor to all
employees. By seizing new opportunities ahead, the management of the
Group will lead all employees to take positive action, change the way of
thinking, mobilize themselves and strive to explore new frontiers, so as to
contribute to the business objectives of the Group.

With a sound development history of over 20 years, the Group has
accumulated ample experience and resources. The Group believes that,
with Zhong An’s quality strategic resources and improved industrial chain
building, and a dedicated and proactive core management team, it will, as
always, make further brilliant achievements.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board proposed the payment of a final dividend of HK$0.02 per
ordinary share for the year (2018: nil), subject to shareholder’s approval
at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company to be held
on Thursday, 11 June 2020 (the “AGM”) to those shareholders whose
names appear on the register of members of the Company on Friday,
19 June 2020. The final dividend is expected to be paid on or around
Wednesday, 15 July 2020.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

RESULTS

The audited consolidated revenue of the Group for 2019 was
RMB6,204.7 million, representing an increase of about 20.0% from that
of 2018. The gross profit for 2019 was RMB2,788.8 million, representing
an increase of about 64.2% from that of 2018. The profit attributable to
owners of the parent for 2019 was about RMB637.1 million, representing
an increase of about 122.1% from that of 2018. The basic earnings per
share was RMBO0.11 (2018: RMBO0.05).

INDUSTRY REVIEW

According to the National Bureau of Statistics of the PRC, in 2019, the
gross domestic product (“GDP”) of China amounted to RMB99,086.5
billion, representing an increase of 6.1% as compared with that of
previous year, based on comparable prices, and matched the expected
target of 6% to 6.5%. In 2019, the supply-side structural reform achieved
remarkable results, and the economic structure continued to optimize.
Meanwhile, with the in-depth deleverage in the financial system, the
monetary policy of the central bank remained generally steady and neutral
in 2019.

In 2019, the nationwide investment in property development amounted
to RMB13,219.4 billion, representing a growth of 9.9% as compared
with that of last year. Among which, residential investment amounted
to RMB9,707.1 billion, representing a growth of 13.9%. The residential
investment accounted for a proportion of 73.4% of the investment
in property development. In 2019, the GFA of commodity properties
sold was 17,155.8 million sg.m., representing a decrease of 0.1% as
compared with that of last year. Among which, the growth of GFA of
residential properties sold was 1.5%, while the decline of GFA of office
buildings sold and commercial business properties sold were 14.7% and
15.0% respectively. The sales of commodity properties amounted to
RMB15,972.5 billion, representing a growth of 6.5%. Among which, the
growth of sales of residential properties was 10.3%, while the decline of
sales of office buildings and commercial business properties were 15.1%
and 16.5 respectively.
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18 Zhong An Group Limited

Management Discussion and Analysis

EEREFWED A

In 2019, the land area purchased by property development enterprises
was 258.22 million sg.m., representing a decline of 11.4% as compared
with that of last year; the premium of the land transaction amounted
to RMB1,470.9 billion, representing a decline of 8.7% as compared
with that of last year. The area under construction by property
development enterprises was 8,938.21 million sq.m., representing a
growth of 8.7% as compared with that of last year. Among which, the
area under construction for residential properties was 6,276.73 million
sg.m., representing a growth of 10.1%. The area of newly commenced
properties was 2,271.54 million sg.m., representing a growth of 8.5%.
Among which, the area of newly commenced residential properties was
1,674.63 million sg.m., representing a growth of 9.2%. The completed
construction area of properties was 959.42 million sq.m., representing
a growth of 2.6%. Among which, the completed construction area of
residential properties was 680.11 million sg.m., representing a growth
of 3.0%. At the end of 2019, the area of commodity properties pending
for sale was 498.21 million sg.m., representing an increase of 6.00
million sgq.m. as compared with the end of November 2019 and also
representing a decrease of 25.93 million sg.m. as compared with the
end of last year. Among which, as compared with the end of November
2019, the area of residential properties pending for sale increased by 1.92
million sg.m., the area of office buildings pending for sale increased by 1.05
million sg.m. and the area of commercial business properties pending for
sale increased by 840,000 sq.m..

BUSINESS REVIEW

The recognised revenue of properties delivered by the Group in 2019 was
about RMB5,611.6 million (2018: RMB4,663.8 million), representing an
increase of about 20.3% as compared to that of 2018 which was due to
the increase of average selling price of the properties delivered and the
increase in the GFA of the properties delivered by the Group in the year
under review.

The GFA of properties sold and delivered by the Group in 2019 was
about 397,627 sg.m. (2018: 341,756 sg.m.), representing an increase of
about 16.3% as compared to that of 2018.

The recognised average selling price per sg.m. achieved by the Group in
2019 was about RMB14,112.7, representing an increase of about 3.4%
from RMB13,646.6 in the previous year. It is due to the greater increase
in selling prices in the market and substantial increase in the portion of
sales of properties with higher selling prices in the year under review.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

During the year under review, the total recognised GFA sold for the major
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projects of the Group and the respective recognised revenue are as M EHEREERALT ¢
follows:
Percentage
of interest in
the project
attributable
Recognised Recognised to the Group
GFA revenue REE
Projects S R4 L#ZIER
BH HEEE SHEWA ERNESL
sg.m. RMB million
IR AREBEET
Zhejiang Province WIE
Hangzhou M
Landscape Bay S 183 39.0 92.6%
White Horse Palace B S 16,884 419.0 90.0%
White Horse Manor B 1,046 40.9 90.0%
|deal Bay e 38,190 526.8 45.9%
Chaoyang No. 8 5855 - 33.0 90.0%
Chaoyang Yinzuo FA5 85 1,949 44.0 57.4%
College Square B2ER 69,118 948.0 90.0%
Xixi Future Square (Royal Bay) PRARIRE (BOEE) 338 13.4 90.0%
International Office Centre (I0C) 3 EyNN((ele) 6,527 235.4 63.8%
Xixi Manhattan R = 6,531 185.2 29.3%
Xixi New City FEFT T 25,490 884.0 63.8%
Yuyao Rk
Dragon Bay 1 5eE 5,794 445.8 90.0%
Jade Mansion HREE 32,428 644.8 93.0%
Zhong An Times Square (Phase ) RERRES—H 7,461 53.2 57.4%
Zhong An Times Square (Phase I) BRI ES —H 10,708 102.2 59.3%
Cixi #ZEm
Cixi Landscape Garden R IR 43,680 264.3 90.0%
Anhui Province ZRE
Vancouver City R ETEEN 131,300 731.8 100.0%
Green Harbour rEEE - 0.8 84.2%
Total 397,627 5,611.6

The average cost of properties sold per sq.m. of the Group was about
RMB7,517 in 2019, representing a decrease of about 17.9% from
RMB9,158 in the previous year. It was due to the lower development cost

of relevant projects recognised for sale during the year.
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EEREFWED A

Progress of development on the major projects
Hangzhou, Zhejiang Province
Landscape Bay

This is a residential project located on the south bank of Qiantang River,
Xiaoshan District, Hangzhou, Zhejiang Province, which was completed in
phases in previous years, with a total GFA of about 300,012 sg.m.. The
project includes island-style townhouses, high-rise apartments with river
view, car parking lots and clubhouse. The entire project was completed in
2011. So far, it is sold out apart from a few housings.

Hidden Dragon Bay

This is an integrated commercial complex in Wenyan Town, Xiaoshan
District, Hangzhou, Zhejiang Province with a total GFA of 241,695 sqg.m..
The project includes low-rise luxurious leisure mansions for corporations,
high-rise serviced apartments (SOHO), street shops and car parking lots.
The project was completed in April 2013.

International Office Centre (I0OC)

IOC is a large-scale integrated commercial complex located in Qianjiang
Century City (8Tt 423%), Xiaoshan District, Hangzhou, comprising
serviced apartments, shopping malls and offices. The total site area of
Plot A is 92,610 sg.m. and planned total GFA is 798,795 sg.m.. The
project is constructed in three phases, consists of Plots A1, A2 and A3.
Among which, Plot A3 was completed in 2015, comprising serviced
apartments, shops and underground car parking spaces with a total
GFA of approximately 327,996 sg.m.. The construction of Plot A2 has
commenced in 2018 with a total GFA of approximately 263,555 sqg.m..
The project is expected to start the pre-sales in the fourth quarter of
2020.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

White Horse Manor

This is a residential project in Xiaoheshan, Yuhang District, Hangzhou,
Zhejiang Province with a total GFA of about 243,497 sg.m.. It consists
of high-rise residential buildings and low-density residential townhouses
situated at a hilly terrain with beautiful scenery and green vegetation. The
townhouse units are built with American architectural design and on the
terrain with spacious view. The project is in proximity to local universities
and Xixi Wetland. The entire project was completed in December 2015.
So far, it is sold out apart from some car parking lots and a few housings.

Ideal Bay

This is a residential project in Linping, Yuhang District, Hangzhou,
Zhejiang Province with a total GFA of about 538,856 sg.m.. The project
consists of townhouses in British architectural design and high-rise
apartment units, which was fully completed in June 2016. So far, it is sold
out apart from some car parking lots and a few housings.

Chaoyang No. 8 (including Chaoyang Yinzuo)

This is a project including residential units, apartments and block-type
commercial amenities in Shushan Town, Xiaoshan District, Hangzhou,
Zhejiang Province and it is at the prime location with Hangzhou Metro
Line No.2 terminal in the proximity with a total GFA of about 199,224
sg.m.. The project was completed in May 2017 and started delivery in
2017. So far, it is sold out apart from some car parking lots and a few
housings.

Hangzhou Qiandao Lake Bright Resort Hotel

This is a hotel project in Qiandaohu Town, Chunan County, Hangzhou,
Zhejiang Province with a GFA of about 46,691 sg.m.. This hotel is built at
the shore of Qiandao Lake with a beautiful lake view and natural habitat.
Blocks A, B and C are located in the hotel area and opened in April 2017.

College Square

This is a residential project located at Yuhang District, Hangzhou, Zhejiang
Province with a total GFA of about 195,293 sqg.m.. It consists of high-rise
residential apartments and shopping units. It is very close to the old city of
Yuhang District and situated at the planned hi-tech center of Hangzhou.
The project commenced in April 2016 and was completed in the fourth
quarter of 2018. So far, it is sold out apart from some car parking lots and
a few housings.
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EEREFWED A

White Horse Palace

This is a residential project located at Xiaoshan District, Hangzhou,
Zhejiang Province and its total GFA is about 68,220 sg.m.. It consists of
4 high-rise residential apartments, 3 multi-storey garden apartments and
5 townhouses. It is at the core areas of Xiaoshan District, Hangzhou. The
project commenced in August 2016 and was completed in August 2018.

So far, the properties are basically sold out.
Xixi New City

It is located in Jiangcun Unit, Xihu District, Hangzhou and is in proximity
to Xixi Wetland. The total site area of the project is 39,703 sg.m. and the
total GFA is 83,391 sg.m.. The construction of the project commenced
in May 2017, which will become an integrated commercial complex
comprising offices, serviced apartments and shops. It was completed
and delivered in 2019. So far, except for the offices are self-holding, the
remaining housings are basically sold out.

Xixi Manhattan

It is located in the Future Science and Technology City which is the
segment to be emphasized by Hangzhou Municipal Government, and
it is a high-end serviced apartment project of Xixi Financial Island in
Yuhang District, Hangzhou. The GFA of the project is 109,173 sgq.m.. It
was offered and sold in August 2017 and was delivered in late 2018. The
volume of sales of this project during the year under review was within
expectation.

Xixi Future Square (Royal Bay)

Xixi Future Square (Royal Bay) is located at Xian Lin Street, Yuhang
District, Hangzhou and consists of residential and commercial parcels,
with a total GFA of about 109,782 sg.m., among which, the GFA of
housing stock of 16,788 sg.m.. The project consists of multi-storey,
small high-rise and high-rise buildings as well as townhouses, and
is surrounded by well-developed community facilities. The project is
constructed in three phases: Plot E, Plot C and Plot F, the total GFA of
about 92,994 sg.m., and commenced construction in 2019. Plot E was
opened for sale in the fourth quarter of 2019. Plots C and F are expected
to start pre-sales in the second quarter of 2020.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Tuankou Fenghuangshan Hotspring Hotel

This is a hotel project located in Tuankou Town, Lin An District, Hangzhou
with a total GFA of approximately 63,502 sg.m..

Nan Hu Ming Yue

It is located in Yuhang District, Hangzhou and consists of high-rise
blocks, He Yuan and commercial areas with a total GFA of approximately
406,664 sq.m.. The project commenced construction in April 2019 and
the project started the pre-sale in the third quarter of 2019. The volume
of pre-sales of the project during the year under review was within
expectation.

Zhong An Palace

It is located in comprehensive transportation hub of South Railway
Station, Xiaoshan District, Hangzhou. It consists of high-rise blocks,
bungalows and commercial areas with a total floor area of approximately
45,333 sg.m., and an estimated total GFA of approximately 99,732
sqg.m.. The project is expected to commence construction in the second
quarter of 2020 and start the pre-sale in the fourth quarter of 2020.

Hangzhou Fuyang Project

It is acquired in February 2020, located in the Yinhu plot of Fuyang
District, Hangzhou, with a total floor area of approximately 54,493 sqg.m.
and an estimated total GFA of approximately 130,783 sg.m., and is for
residential use. The project is expected to commence construction in
2020.
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Yuyao, Zhejiang Province
Dragon Bay

This is a high-end low-density residential project in Yuyao, Zhejiang
Province, which was completed in 2013, with a total GFA of 196,809
sg.m.. The project consists of French, European and Spanish-style low-
density residential buildings. So far, the housings are basically sold out.

Jade Mansion

This is a low-density residential project in Yuyao, Zhejiang Province with
a total GFA of 292,807 sqg.m.. The project consists of 3 phases with
townhouses and residential apartments and it is next to the Dragon Bay.
The construction of Phase | with townhouse was completed in 2014 and
the construction of Phase Il with residential apartments was completed
in June 2016. The construction of Phase Il started at the end of 2016 and
was completed in 2019. So far, it is sold out apart from a few housings.

Zhong An Times Square

This is a large-scale integrated commercial project in Yuyao, Zhejiang
Province, with a total GFA of about 628,385 sg.m. in 2 phases. It is next
to the Dragon Bay and the Jade Mansion, which are projects spanning
along a river. The project consists of 2 phases. Phase | includes a
shopping mall (Zhong An e Intime City) (FRZe$8Z3), a boutique hotel
and two serviced apartments (SOHO) and underground office buildings
car parking spaces, while Phase Il includes a hotel, a Grade A office tower
and six high-rise serviced apartment buildings, underground car parking
spaces and shops. Phase |l of this project was completed in September
2016 and Phase | was completed and delivered in 2018. The volume of
sales of the project during the year under review was within expectation.
The Ningbo Bright Hotel (225 {BI545H/E), with a GFA of about 72,139
sg.m., was put into business in October 2019.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Cixi Zhong An Landscape Garden

This is a residential property project in Cixi, Zhejiang Province. The total
site area is about 197,655 sg.m.. The residential project includes the
commercial portion for providing supporting services to local residents,
with a total GFA of about 510,125 sqg.m., consisting of multi-storey
apartments which is constructed in six phases. The first phase was
completed in June 2016; the second phase was completed in February
2018; the third phase commenced in June 2017 and completed in
September 2019; the fourth phase commenced in May 2018 and is
expected to be completed in 2020. Commercial Phase 1, with a total
GFA of about 28,158 sg.m., commenced construction in July 2019.
Commercial Phase Il, with an estimated total GFA of about 72,000 sg.m.,
and is expected to commence in 2020.

Lishui, Zhejiang Province

Comphor Tree Bay

It is a rare modern Chinese-style real estate with quality living environment
located in Luwan Village, Lishui, Zhejiang Province. It consists of high-
rise buildings and stores with a total GFA of 286,769 sq.m.. The project
commenced in September 2018 and started the pre-sale in November
2018 while the construction is expected to be completed in October
2020. The pre-sale of the project during the year under review was within
expectation.

Yiwu, Zhejiang Province

Typha Lotus Garden

It is a residential and commercial project located in Lugang Logistics Park
in Yiwu, Zhejiang Province with a total GFA of about 282,505 sg.m.. The
project commenced construction in April 2019 and the pre-sales started
in June 2019. It is expected to be completed in December 2020. The
volume of sales of the project during the year under review was within
expectation.
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Wenzhou, Zhejiang Province
Grape Shed Project

It is acquired in January 2020, located in the core area of Wenzhou, with
a total floor area of approximately 30,236 sg.m. and an estimated total
GFA of approximately 84,963 sg.m., and is for residential use. The project
is expected to commence construction in June 2020 and is expected to
start the pre-sales in the fourth quarter of 2020.

Hefei, Anhui Province
Green Harbour

It is a low-density residential project in Guanzhen Village, Hefei, Anhui
Province, with the completion of blocks A1, C1, C2 and F1 in the previous
years. So far, it is sold out apart from some car parking lots and a few
shops.

Huaibei, Anhui Province
Vancouver City

This is a low-density residential project in Huaibei, Anhui Province, which
includes townhouses, multi-storey apartments and shopping units. The
project is developed in phases, and its sale and pre-sale during the year
under review were within expectation. The Huaibei Bright Hotel (1t1A
Il JE), with a GFA of about 67,061 sq.m., was put into business in
September 2017. The GFA of Phase Ill north project is approximately
170,000 sg.m., and the project commenced construction in 2017 and
was completed in the first quarter of 2019; the GFA of Phase IV south
project is approximately 120,000 sg.m., and the project commenced
construction in July 2018 and is expected to be completed in 2020; the
GFA of Phase V south project is approximately 180,000 sg.m., and it is
expected to commence construction in July 2020; the GFA of Phase VI
project is approximately 100,000 sg.m., and is still under planning.

Xuzhou, Jiangsu Province
Xuzhou New City
It is located in the City Commercial Plaza in Xuzhou, Jiangsu Province

with a majority of serviced apartments and stores. Its total GFA is 562,371
sg.m.. It will be constructed in three phases.
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Qingdao, Shandong Province

Qingdao New City

It is located in Hetao District, Hongdao Economic Zone, Qingdao City,
mainly consisting of high-rise residential buildings, apartments, offices and
stores with a total floor area of 51,376 sg.m. and an estimated total GFA
of approximately 111,483 sq.m.. Among which, the building plan area of
the residential plot is 53,254 sg.m. and the pre-sales started in the fourth
quarter of 2019.

Kunming, Yunnan Province

Yunxing Imperial Palace

It is located in the plot of Yongshan Street Office, Xishan District,
Kunming, and mainly consists of high-rise residential buildings,
apartments and stores with a total floor area of 37,024 sg.m. and an
estimated total GFA of approximately 283,932 sq.m. The project is
expected to commence construction in May 2020, and the pre-sales will
be started in the fourth quarter of 2020.

Overseas

Amber Rise

This project is in Vancouver, Province of British Columbia, Canada with
a total GFA of about 7,719 sg.m.. The site is located in wealthy district
with about 20 minutes drive to the downtown of Vancouver City. A total
of 12 townhouses with individual swimming pools and deluxe design will
be built in 3 phases. The construction was commenced in 2016, and the
construction of 3 independent houses has been completed.

Contracted sales in 2019

As at 31 December 2019, the contracted GFA sold by the Group was
about 773,393 sg.m. (2018: 384,763 sg.m.) with the amount of about
RMB12,432.4 million (2018: RMB5,823.5 million), representing a year-to-
year increase of approximately 113.5%. Set out below are the details of
the contracted sales from the major projects:
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Percentage of

interest in
the project
attributable
to the Group
Contracted Contracted AEE L
GFA sold amount ZIEB R
Projects HE AEEEmE EREEKRA WEDLE
(sg.m.) (RMB million)
CFAK) (AREAEET)
Zhejiang Province WIE
Hangzhou BN
Landscape Bay =8 1,189 39.2 92.6%
White Horse Manor A5 284 18.6 90.0%
Ideal Bay Bie e 33,942 513.8 45.9%
Chaoyang No. 8 P8R - 35.4 90.0%
Chaoyang Yinzuo ARG IR A 1,897 47.5 57.4%
College Square BEB 13,124 248.6 90.0%
White Horse Palace SFEi 764 44.0 90.0%
International Office Centre (IOC) BB #F A (0C) 14,999 568.1 63.8%
Xixi Manhattan TR SRE 1,666 54.6 29.3%
Xixi New City PR 2,097 90.9 63.8%
Xixi Future Square (Royal Bay) PIREARRE (P 26,456 550.7 90.0%
Nan Hu Ming Yu A A 80,355 2,032.6 59.9%
Highlong Plaza BEES 2,689 41.4 57.4%
Majestic Mansion KRB 104,035 1,315.2 18.0%
Lin Qi Yun Fu PTG 2 1,413 25.1 22.5%
Xinnongdu R 14,436 184.8 24.4%
Yuyao Rk
Dragon Bay 1 aEE 14,839 413.2 90.0%
Jade Mansion BBt 25,176 551.1 93.0%
Zhong An Times Square Phase | R RES—H 7,557 57.1 57.4%
Zhong An Times Square Phase |l R ES 5 10,166 118.3 59.3%
Cixi ZEM
Cixi Zhong An Landscape Garden REBLIIKE 26,500 192.5 90.0%
Binhai Commercial Plaza BBEEES 4,999 62.8 57.4%
Lishui Bk
Comphor Tree Bay BiE 115,785 1,726.9 90.0%
Yiwu E3-11
Typha Lotus Garden SETRIIESE 97,615 1,749.7 58.5%
Yiwu Baolong House EEEEER 50,055 852.2 31.5%
Anhui Province ZRE
Green Harbour e - 0.9 84.2%
Vancouver City BTN 116,653 804.1 100.0%
Shandong Province IWERE
Qingdao New City BEEFHM 2,902 30.1 100.0%
Yunnan Province E@EE
Yunxing Imperial Palace EEEAT 1,800 63.0 49.5%
773,393 12,432.4

28 Zhong An Group Limited 2019 Annual Report



Management Discussion and Analysis

Land bank

As at 31 December 2019, the total GFA of the Group’s land bank was
about 8,081,160 sqg.m., out of which the total unsold or undelivered GFA
of the completed properties projects was about 1,926,886 sg.m.. As at
31 December 2019, the average acquisition cost of the Group’s overall
land bank was about RMB1,774 per sg.m..

During the year under review, the GFA of the properties of which the
construction was newly commenced by the Group was about 1,130,327
sQg.m..

OTHER BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT

The businesses of the Group are diversifying which provide the basis for
securing more stable income in the future and diversification of investment
risks. The Group will steadily promote an asset-light business model
and gradually broaden the scope of property services and business
operation which includes hotel operation, commercial leasing, office
building management and property services, and will continue to adopt
new business models and types such as the promotion of development
of new agricultural and healthcare industries at the same time, so as to
enhance the upstream and downstream business linkage and synergetic
development of our property business and to maintain a trend of
sustainable development.

Hotel operation

There are four hotels currently under operation, Holiday Inn Hangzhou
Xiaoshan, Hangzhou Qiandao Lake Bright Resort Hotel, Huaibei Bright
Hotel and the Ningbo Bright Hotel. Among them, Ningbo Bright Hotel
officially commenced business in October 2019, and its operation
performance is good. The hotel operation of the Group recorded a
revenue of approximately RMB141.3 million (2018: approximately
RMB111.3 million), representing an increase of approximately 26.9%,
during the year under review and the overall hotel occupancy rate was
approximately 51% (2018: approximately 58%).
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Commercial leasing

The leasing revenue for 2019 was about RMB205.9 million, representing
an increase of about 14.7% as compared to RMB179.5 million in 2018.
The main reason of the increase was because the Intime City project
located in Yuyao Zhong An Times Square was operating well.

Currently, Highlong Plaza, International Office Centre (I0C), Intime City
and the shopping units of Hidden Dragon Bay provide the main source of
leasing income of the Group. Highlong Plaza consists of office buildings,
a shopping centre, a hotel, serviced apartments and underground car
parking lots. The serviced apartments at Highlong Plaza were sublet
to and managed by independent operators, Ningbo Sanbi Hotel and
Hangzhou Youbang Hotel. The performance of the operation was
satisfactory. The overall leasing rate was 93% (2018: 96%).

Property management services

The property management revenue for 2019 was about RMB245.9
million, representing an increase of about 14.5% as compared to
RMB214.7 million in 2018. The Group provides quality property
management services to the communities located in properties developed
by the Group and other developers. The services are further enhanced by
the provision of travel tours, housekeeping and nanny services, etc.. The
provision of customer-oriented services and the wide variety of services
offered have strengthened the Group’s corporate brand management.

Other services

The businesses of the Group are diversifying which provide the basis for
securing more stable income in the future and diversification of investment
risks. The Group will steadily promote an asset-light business model
and gradually broaden the scope of property services and business
operation which includes hotel operation, commercial leasing, office
building management and property services, and will continue to adopt
new business models and types such as the promotion of development
of modern agriculture, education and culture, film and television
entertainment, leisure tourism, and health care industries, at the same
time, so as to enhance the upstream and downstream business linkage
and synergetic development of our property business and to maintain a
trend of sustainable development.
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AWARDS AND RECOGNITIONS

The Group had received the following awards and accolades from the

EEENWED T

RIAREE

R [ 70 (o] R 4 R P B KOS A AR AT AR AR 3

PRC government and recognised authorities during the year under review: T~ #8778 7 852

Awarded by Awards Awarded parties/projects
BEEE =32 By, &R
Enterprise Research Institute of Development Star of 2019 Top 100 China Real Estate Zhong An Group Limited
Research Center of State Council, Real Estate Developers RLEEBRRAA
Research Institute of Tsinghua University and China 2019 BB EFRME - BB 2 E

Index Academy

Bk R O EMFT - FE

REFHEWEL - PEIEEHAR

China Financial Market, a financial magazine in Listed Companies with the Most Growth Potential ~ Zhong An Group Limited
Hong Kong in 2019, RLEEBRAF
BRI (P ERE) 20195 A& AR

The Second New Age Agricultural Entrepreneur The Most Influential Company in the Agricultural Zhong An Group Limited
Development Conference & Rural Industry Industry in 2019 REEBEBRAF

Revitalization Summit
FIEFBRRELERERASE
BN EZRERERE

Enterprise Research Institute of Development
Research Center of State Council, Real Estate

Research Institute of Tsinghua University and China

Index Academy

Bt B R R O R - 5%
REFHMEWEL - PEIEEHRR
Judging Committee of the Best Hotel
KEBETERES

Judging Committee of the Best Hotel
KEBETERES

019FREEEGAFE
DAL

2019 China’s Top 100 Property Management
Service Providers

2019 BB R S Bk b %

2019 Best Business Hotel in China
FEI20195F E R EREE

2019 Best Resort Hotel for Parents and Children
20195 = FEBRAIS
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Zhejiang Zhong An Property
Management Co., Ltd.
IR NERBAERA A

Huaibei Bright Hotel
eI B R IR

Qiandao Lake Bright Resort Hotel
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EEHRNA]

—z—hEFEn 31



32 Zhong An Group Limited

Management Discussion and Analysis

EEREFWED A

HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2019, the Group employed a total of 3,603 staff (2017:
3,244 staff). In 2019, the staff cost of the Group was about RMB314.5
million (2018: about RMB254.6 million), representing an increase of about
23.5% (2018: 15.2%). The increase was mainly due to the increase in
quality staff recruited during the year under review following the continuous
development of the business. The employees’ remuneration policy was
determined by reference to factors such as remuneration information
in respect of the local market, the overall remuneration standard in the
industry, inflation level, corporate operating efficiency and performance
of the employees. The Group conducts performance appraisal on a
yearly basis for its employees, the results of which are taken into account
of the annual salary review and promotion assessment. The Group’s
employees are considered for the entitlement of annual discretionary
bonus according to certain performance conditions and appraisal results.
To attract high calibre people and solidify the management of the Group,
eligible participants (including employee of the Group) may be granted
options to subscribe for shares in the Company (the “Shares”) pursuant
to the share option scheme adopted by the Company. The Group also
provides continuous learning and training programs to its employees to
enhance their skills and knowledge, so as to maintain the attraction of the
Company for talents and their competitiveness in the market.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company may distribute dividends by way of cash or by other means
that the Board considers appropriate. Any proposed distribution of
dividends is subject to the discretion of the Board and, where applicable,
the approval of the shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”).
The Board will consider various factors before declaring or recommending
any payment of dividends. These factors include the results of operation
of the business of the Group, the retained earnings and distributable
reserves of the Company and each of the members of the Group,
the Group’s actual and expected financial performance, the general
business conditions and strategies, the Group’s expected working
capital requirements and future expansion plans, the general economic
conditions and business cycle of the Group’s business, the future
prospects of the business of the Group, Shareholders’ interests, statutory
and regulatory restrictions on the payment of dividend and other internal
or external factors that the Board deems appropriate.
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FINANCIAL ANALYSIS
Revenue

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group recorded total
revenue of approximately RMB6,204.7 million, representing an increase
of approximately 20.0% compared with that of RMB5,169.4 million in
2018. Among which, the revenue arising from the sale of properties had
constituted and is expected to constitute continually the vast majority of
the Group’s total revenue, accounting for approximately 90.4% of the
total income amount for the year.

Cost of sales

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group’s cost of sales
was approximately RMB3,415.9 million, representing a decrease of
approximately 1.6% as compared with that of RMB3,471.3 million in
2018.

Gross profit

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group recorded gross profit
of about RMB2,788.8 million, representing an increase of about 64.2% as
compared to that of about RMB1,698.1 million in the previous year. The
increase in gross profit was primarily due to the increase in recognised
revenue from the properties delivered with higher selling price and
increase in GFA of properties delivered.

Other income and gains

The other income and gains of the Group amounted to approximately
RMB98.7 million for the year ended 31 December 2019, representing an
increase of 86.2% as compared with that of RMB53.0 million in 2018.
The increase was primarily due to the increase in bank interest income
and changes in fair value of financial assets at fair value though profit or
loss.
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Selling and distribution expenses

The selling and distribution expenses increased by about 5.2% to about
RMB272.6 million in 2019 from about RMB259.2 million in 2018. Mainly
due to the increase in sales commission with the growth of the revenue.

Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses were increased by about 7.0% to about
RMB459.4 million in 2019 from about RMB429.2 million in 2018. Primarily
attributable to increased headcounts for the development of the Group.

Other expenses

Other expenses decreased by about 10.7% to about RMB64.2 million in
2019 from about RMB58.0 million in 2018.

Finance costs

Finance costs increased by about 66.0% to about RMB190.4 million in
2019 from about RMB114.7 million in 2018. This increase was mainly due
to the balances of the loans and borrowings have increased compared to
2018.

Income tax expenses
Income tax expenses increased by about 76.1% to about RMB916.5
million in 2019 from about RMB520.5 million in 2018. Primarily due to an

increase in provision of LAT and CIT as the total GFA delivered from sales
of properties increased in 2019.
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Capital structure

As at 31 December 2019, 5,718,638,800 Shares in the Company were in
issue (31 December 2018: 5,810,390,800 Shares).

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had total assets of approximately
RMB30,172.4 million (2018: approximately RMB25,065.9 million) which
were financed by current liabilities of approximately RMB13,603.2 million
(2018: approximately RMB9,881.3 million), non-current liabilities of
approximately RMB6,048.6 million (2018: approximately RMB5,634.5
million) and shareholders’ equity of approximately RMB10,520.7 million
(2018: approximately RMB9,550.1 million).

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had aggregate cash and cash
equivalents and restricted cash of about RMB4,058.9 million (2018:
RMB2,140.8 million).

As at 31 December 2019, the Group’s interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings amounted to approximately RMB7,220.8 million (2018:

approximately RMB4,768.1 million).

The maturity profile of the borrowings was as follows:
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As at As at

31 December 31 December

2019 2018

R 2019 & 7 2018 4F

12 A 31 H 12 H31H

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBFT ARETT

Within 1 year or on demand —FANIEER 2,489,530 1,384,960
Over 1 year but within 2 years ZR—FEIRME 987,298 488,000
Over 2 years but within 5 years ZIMEELRAE 2,653,642 2,735,000
Over 5 years HEFEA 1,090,305 160,125
7,220,775 4,768,085
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Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings bear interest at fixed rates
and floating rates. As at 31 December 2019, the Group’s interest-
bearing bank and other borrowings bore effective interest rates ranging
from 4.65% to 10% per annum (2018: 0.90% to 8.2% per annum). The
average interest rate of the interest-bearing bank and other borrowings is
6.31% (2018: 6.27%).

The denominated amounts of the borrowings were as follows:

B B R 1T R H i R E E F R KT B F E 5
B - 20196 12A31 8 » AEEMMBERITRE
&R BB FFIENT4.65%E10% 2 (2018
F FEFEEF0.90%ES.2%) ° 201 9F AN E B HY
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For the year under review, the total cost of borrowings of the Group was
approximately RMB375.5 million (2018: approximately RMB287.6 million),
and, among which, interests with an amount of approximately RMB202.1
million (2018: approximately RMB172.9 million) were capitalized.

The Group maintained a healthy liquidity position. The current ratio, being
a ratio of total current assets to total current liabilities, was approximately
1.36 (2018: approximately 1.52). The ratio of interest-bearing bank and
other borrowings to total assets was 0.24 (2018: 0.19). The net gearing
ratio of the Group (defined as net debt divided by total equity) was 0.30
(2018: 0.28) (net debt is defined as total interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings less cash and cash equivalent and total restricted cash).
The Group always adopts a prudent financial policy in its operation and
business development.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Capital commitments

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had capital commitments of about
RMB2,245.6 million (2018: approximately RMB820.0 million) in respect
of property development expenditure. It is expected that the Group wiill
finance such commitments from its own funds, cash proceeds from sales
and external financing (such as bank loans).

Contingent liabilities

As at 31 December 2019, the contingent liabilities of the Group was
about RMB3,488.0 million (2018: approximately RMB2,891.2 million),
which were guarantees provided by the Group in favour of certain banks
for the grant of mortgage loans to buyers of the Group’s properties.

Pledge of assets

As at 31 December 2019, investment properties of the Group with
carrying value of about RMB1,317.5 million (2018: approximately
RMB1,238.2 million), properties under development of about RMB4,029.7
million (2018: approximately RMB2,630.0 million), completed properties
held for sale of about RMB942.5 million (2018: approximately
RMB1,899.9 million), property and equipment of about RMB624.6
million (2018: approximately RMB498.2 million), restricted cash of about
RMB14.0 million (2018: approximately RMB5.0 million), 100% equity
interest in a subsidiary of the Group of about RMB40.0 million (2018:
RMB40.0 million) were pledged to secure the banking facilities and other
borrowings for the Group.

Foreign exchange risk

As the sales, purchase and external financing of the Group in 2019
and 2018 were made mainly in Renminbi, the foreign exchange risk
exposed to the Group was relatively minor. The Group did not use foreign
exchange hedging instruments to hedge foreign exchange risks in 2019
and 2018.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEREFWED A

Interest rate risk

The interest rates for certain portion of the Group’s loans were floating.
Upward fluctuations in interest rates will increase the interest cost of new
loans and existing loans. Given that certain portion of loans are RMB
loans and the stable domestic economic situation of the PRC, the Group
currently does not use derivative instruments to hedge its interest rate
risks.

Events after the reporting period

There was no matter occurred that bears significant effect to the Group
between the year end date and the date of this report.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE ASPECTS

The Group is always committed to maintaining the highest environmental
and social standards to ensure sustainable development of its business.
A report on the environmental, social and governance aspects is being
prepared with reference to Appendix 27 (Environmental, Social and
Governance Reporting Guide) to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on the Stock Exchange and will be
published respectively on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange in due course.

PROSPECTS

Looking forward into 2020, the impact of the breakout of COVID-19 on
economy will be short-term, and the long-term favourable fundamentals
of China’s economy remain unchanged. Increasing domestic demand
is a favorable guarantee for China’s economy to weather the storm of
COVID-19 outbreak, investment in infrastructure construction is the main
driving force for economic growth. The stimulation of new formats and
models will also open up space for high-quality economic development.
The real estate industry, as one of the pillar industries of China’s
economy, market will continue to focus on “stability” under the main tone
“housing is for accommodation, not for speculation”, to stabilize real estate
market, especially stabilizing real estate investment, which will have an
important role to stabilize economic development.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

During the outbreak of COVID-19 epidemic, the Group actively responded
to challenges, adjusted its marketing model, explored online marketing
methods, and quickly launched small programs to help customers
understand real estate information online. With the smooth progress of
the resumption of work and production in various places and the gradual
opening of sales offices, management believes that sales of real estate will
gradually resume. As an established real estate company in the Yangtze
River Delta region with strong economic foundation, the Group has high-
quality land bank with low-cost, since the Group’s establishment for over
20 years, it has been striving for steady development instead of pursuing
radical expansion, and it maintained a healthy corporation operational
philosophy to achieve gradually development and expansion.

In the past year, the Group fulfilled its mission and surpassed our annual
performance goal for the past year. This is a new starting point and a
reward for efforts we put in the past. In the coming year, the Group will
formulate a more precise plan and higher goals to achieve a breakthrough
in annual performance. The Group will further accelerate the sale of
property inventory, develop more quick-sale products targeting end
users and high value-added, low-density residential units, and accelerate
asset turnover. The Group will continue to fully leverage on the strong
brand name and optimize marketing strategy with active marketing as
the dominant mode for more rapid growth of sales. Meanwhile, we will
expand the business in first- and second-tier cities as well as third-
and fourth-tier cities with healthy market development by means of
cooperation and acquisition, study deeply the regional economic markets
and real estate policies, and explore valuable low-lying land, further
deepen our development in the Yangtze River Delta. The Group will also
carefully analyze consumers’ demands and preferences to enhance its
ability to innovate and improve existing products, so as to progressively
build up a more sophisticated and competitive product lines. In addition,
the Group will maintain active expansion in the Yangtze River Delta Region
with its unique business model and advanced operational philosophy to
develop into a professional business management company and hotel
management company focusing on commercial real estate operations
and forge an urban high-quality integrated commercial complex and an
influential hotel management company.
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Corporate Governance Report

CREARE

The Board is committed to maintaining good corporate governance
in safeguarding the interests of the Shareholders and enhancing
Shareholders’ value.

(A) CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
PRACTICES

The Company has adopted, in so far as they are applicable,
the code provisions (the “code provisions”) of the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14 to
the Listing Rules.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Board had applied
the principles of the code provisions contained in, and complied
with, the CG Code.

The Board will review the management structure of the Group
from time to time and will adopt appropriate measures as may
be desirable for future development of the operating activities or
business of the Group.

(B) DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by Directors on terms no less exacting than the
required standard set out in the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers set out in Appendix 10
to the Listing Rules (the “Model Code”).

Following specific enquiries by the Company, all Directors
confirmed with the Company that they had complied with the
required standard set out in the Model Code and the Company’s
code of conduct regarding Directors’ securities transactions during
2019.
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Corporate Governance Report

(C) BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Directors during 2019 were as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr Shi Kancheng (alias Shi Zhongan)
(Chairman)

Ms Wang Shuiyun (Vice Chairman)

Mr Zhang Jiangang (Chief Executive Officer)

Ms Shen Tiaojuan

Mr Jin Jianrong (resigned on 3 April 2020)

Non-executive Director
Ms Shen Li (resigned on 3 April 2020)

Independent non-executive Directors

Professor Pei Ker Wei

Dr Loke Yu (alias Loke Hoi Lam) (with professional qualification
in accordance with Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules)

Mr Zhang Huagiao

During 2019, the Board had at all times met the requirements
of Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules relating to the
appointment of at least three independent non-executive Directors
with at least one independent non-executive Director possessing
appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting or related
financial management expertise.
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EREREBE

The three independent non-executive Directors represent more
than one-third of the Board, the proportion of which is higher than
what is required by Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules. The Board
believes there is sufficient independence element in the Board to
safeguard the interests of Shareholders.

The Board meets regularly throughout 2019 to discuss the overall
strategy, the operational and financial performance of the Group.
The Directors can attend meetings in person or through other
electronic means of communication in accordance with the articles
of association of the Company (the “Articles”).

A total of 8 Board meetings were held during 2019. The individual
attendance of each Director was as follows:
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Number of attendance

HE R B
Mr Shi Kancheng MEARAK P A& 8
Ms Wang Shuiyun ARELZ L 8
Mr Zhang Jiangang ok B2 8 e A 8
Ms Shen Tiaojuan LGB 2T £ 8
Mr Jin Jianrong (resigned on 3 April 2020) £ i248 %4 (R20209F4 AR B#T) 8
Ms Shen Li (resigned on 3 April 2020) St + (73202044 A3 B BHT) 8
Professor Pei Ker Wei BREHE 8
Dr Loke Yu P e Mg+ 8
Mr Zhang Huagjiao IR EE 8

All Directors at that time had attended the annual general meeting
of the Company held on 6 June 2019.

The Board operates and exercises its power in accordance with the
Articles. In addition, the Board has also specifically resolved that all
transactions/contracts/other matters of the Group that are subject
to the disclosure requirement in accordance with the Listing Rules
should be approved by the Board in advance.

The Company has received from each of its independent non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Board considers
that all the independent non-executive Directors are independent
in accordance with the guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules.
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Corporate Governance Report

All Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge
and skills. During 2019, each of Mr Shi Kancheng, Ms Wang
Shuiyun, Mr Zhang Jiangang, Ms Shen Tiaojuan, Mr Jin Jianrong
(resigned on 3 April 2020), Ms Shen Li (resigned on 3 April 2020),
Professor Pei Ker Wei, Dr Loke Yu and Mr Zhang Huagiao had
attended seminars and/or training sessions, and had read materials
and updates relating to the latest development of the Listing
Rules and other applicable regulatory requirements. The Board
considered the continuous professional development participated
and undertaken by the Directors are sufficient to discharge their
duties.

The Company had arranged liability insurance for Directors and
senior management officers of the Company with appropriate
coverage in respect of legal action against them arising from their
duties performed.

Save as disclosed in the section of “Biographical Details of
Directors and Senior Management” in this annual report, there
are no relationships (including financial, business, family or other
material/relevant relationships) among members of the Board.

Functions of the Board and the Senior
Management

The Board is responsible for providing effective and responsible
leadership for the Group. The Board is responsible for formulating
the Group’s overall objectives and strategies, monitoring and
evaluating its operating and financial performance and reviewing
the corporate governance standard of the Group. It also decides
on matters such as annual and interim results, accounting
policies, proposal of declaration of dividends, major transactions,
appointment or re-appointment of Directors after considering,
when necessary and appropriate, the recommendations from the
committees established by the Board.

Senior management is delegated by the Board with the
responsibility for the execution of the business plans and strategies
adopted by the Board, assisting the Board in the preparation of the
financial statements for approval by the Board, the implementation
of adequate procedures put forward by the Board and/or the
committees established by the Board and reporting regularly to and
seeking approval from the Board on important matters from time to
time.
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EREREBE

Appointment, re-election and removal of
Directors

The Articles provide that any Director appointed by the Board to fill
a casual vacancy in the Board or as an additional member of the
Board shall hold office only until the next following general meeting
of the members of the Company and shall then be eligible for re-
election at such meeting.

In accordance with the Articles, at each annual general meeting,
one third of the Directors for the time being, shall retire from office
by rotation provided that every Director (including those appointed
for a specific term) shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least
once every three years and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
election. The Shareholders may, at any general meetings convened
and held in accordance with the Articles, remove a Director by
ordinary resolution at any time before the expiration of his/her
period of office notwithstanding anything contrary in the Articles or
in any agreement between the Company and such Director and
may by ordinary resolution elect another person in his/her stead.

Board Committees

The Board has established four committees and has delegated
various responsibilities to the committees, including the
remuneration committee (the “Remuneration Committee”),
the nomination committee (the “Nomination Committee”), the
audit committee (the “Audit Committee”) and the governance
committee (the “Governance Committee”). All the Board
committees perform their distinct roles in accordance with their
respective terms of reference which are available for inspection by
Shareholders on the Company’s website. The Board committees
are provided with sufficient resources to discharge their duties and,
upon reasonable request, are able to seek independent professional
advice in appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s expense.
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(D) CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

OFFICER

Code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code stipulates that the roles of
chairman and chief executive should be separate and should not
be performed by the same individual. The division of responsibilities
between the chairman and chief executive should be clearly
established and set out in writing.

As at the date of this annual report, the positions of chairman and
chief executive officer are held by Mr Shi Kancheng and Mr Zhang
Jiangang respectively. Mr Shi Kancheng, is our chairman and
executive Director. He is primarily responsible for the strategic and
development planning of the Group. He also supervises project
planning and the overall business operation. Mr Zhang Jiangang
is our chief executive officer and executive Director. He focuses
on the Company’s business development and daily management
and operations generally. The respective responsibilities of Mr Shi
Kancheng and Mr Zhang Jiangang are clearly defined and set out
in writing.

The Company has established a general division of responsibilities
between the chairman and chief executive officer in writing. Further,
the roles of chairman and chief executive officer are separated and
performed by different individuals. In this connection, the Board
is of the opinion that the Company has complied with the code
provision A.2.1 sets out in the CG Code as at 31 December 2019.

The Board believes that the balance of power and authority is
sufficiently maintained by the operation of the Board, comprising
the executive Directors and independent non-executive Directors.

The Chairman had held a meeting with all independent non-
executive Directors in the absence of executive Directors. No
specific or other issues had been raised or discussed as it had
been concluded that all issues which would be discussed had been
properly dealt with in the meetings of the Board.
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EEERRE

(E) INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE

(F)

48 “hong An Group Limited

DIRECTORS

The independent non-executive Directors have been appointed for
a specific term of office of two years.

All independent non-executive Directors possess extensive
academic, professional and industry expertise and management
experience and have provided their professional advice to the
Board.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The chairman of the Remuneration Committee is Professor Pei Ker
Wei (an independent non-executive Director) and the members are
Ms Shen Tiaojuan (an executive Director), Mr Jin Jianrong (resigned
on 3 April 2020), Ms Jin Ni (an executive Director) (appointed on 3
April 2020), Dr Loke Yu (an independent non-executive Director)
and Mr Zhang Huagiao (an independent non-executive Director)
(appointed on 3 April 2020).

The Company has adopted written terms of reference for
the Remuneration Committee. The role and function of the
Remuneration Committee include the following:

(@  to make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
policy and structure for all remuneration of Directors and
senior management and on the establishment of a formal and
transparent procedure for developing remuneration policy;

(b)  to have the delegated responsibility to determine the
specific remuneration packages of all executive Directors
and senior management, including benefits in kind,
pension rights and compensation payments, including any
compensation payable for loss or termination of their office
or appointment, and make recommendations to the Board of
the remuneration of non-executive Directors;

(c)  to review and approve performance-based remuneration by
reference to corporate goals and objectives resolved by the
Board from time to time;

(d) to review and approve the compensation payable to
executive Directors and senior management in connection
with any loss or termination of their office or appointment to
ensure that such compensation is determined in accordance
with relevant contractual terms and that such compensation is
otherwise fair and not excessive for the Company;
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(e)  to review and approve compensation arrangements relating
to dismissal or removal of Directors for misconduct to ensure
that such arrangements are determined in accordance
with relevant contractual terms and that any compensation
payment is otherwise reasonable and appropriate;

f) to ensure that no Director or any of his/her associates is
involved in deciding his/her own remuneration; and

(@  to review and approve the remuneration report of the Group,
if any.

The basis of the emolument payable to the Directors (including
independent non-executive Directors) is determined with reference
to the range of prevailing directors’ fee for director of listed
companies in Hong Kong and is subject to the approval of the
Remuneration Committee. The Remuneration Committee will
consider factors such as salaries paid by comparable companies,
time commitment, experience and responsibilities of the Directors,
employment conditions elsewhere in the Group and desirability of
performance-based remuneration.

One meeting of the Remuneration Committee was held
during 2019. The Remuneration Committee had reviewed the
remuneration policy of the Group, assessed the performance of
all Directors and their terms of employment under their respective
service contracts and (if applicable) their renewal. In fulfilling its roles
and functions, the Remuneration Committee had ensured that no
Director or any of his/her associates was involved in deciding his/
her own remuneration. The individual attendance of each member
was as follows:
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Number of attendance

HERE
Professor Pei Ker Wei BREHR 1
Ms Shen Tiaojuan ML S Rt 1
Mr Jin Jianrong (resigned on 3 April 2020) &% %4 (72020454 A3H BHT) 1
Dr Loke Yu P e IE L 1
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EREREBE

(G) NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The chairman of the Nomination Committee is Mr Shi Kancheng

(an executive Director and the chairman of the Company) and the

members are Ms Wang Shuiyun (an executive Director), Professor

Pei Ker Wei (an independent non-executive Director), Dr Loke Yu

(an independent non-executive Director) and Mr Zhang Huagiao (an

independent non-executive Director).

The Company has adopted written terms of reference for the

Nomination Committee. The role and function of the Nomination

Committee are as follows:

(@)
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to review the structure, size and composition (including
the skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board at least
annually;

to identify individuals suitably qualified to become members
of the Board and may select individuals nominated for
directorship;

to review the board diversity policy of the Company (the
“Diversity Policy”) and the progress on achieving the
objectives set for implementing the Diversity Policy, and
to make disclosure of its review results in the corporate
governance report of the Company’s annual report;

to assess the independence of the independent non-
executive Directors;

to make recommendations to the Board on relevant matters
relating to, among others, the appointment or re-appointment
of Directors and succession planning for Directors (in
particular, the chairman and the chief executive officer of the
Company);

to give full consideration to, among others, the skills and
expertise required from members of the Board and the
relevant requirements of the Listing Rules with regard to
Directors and such like in the discharge of the Nomination
Committee’s duties;
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(@ inrespect of any proposed service contracts to be entered
into by any members of the Group with its director or
proposed director, which require the prior approval of the
Shareholders at general meeting under Rule 13.68 of the
Listing Rules, to review and provide recommendations to the
Shareholders (other than Shareholders who are Directors
with a material interest in the relevant service contracts and
their respective associates) as to whether the terms of the
service contracts are fair and reasonable and whether such
service contracts are in the interests of the Company and the
Shareholders as a whole, and to advise Shareholders on how
to vote;

(h)  to ensure that on appointment to the Board, non-executive
Directors (including independent non-executive Directors)
receive a formal letter of appointment setting out what is
expected of them in terms of time commitment, committee
service and involvement outside meetings of the Board;

(i) to conduct exit interviews with any Director upon his/her
resignation in order to ascertain the reasons for his/her
departure; and

() to consider other matters, as defined or assigned by the
Board from time to time.

The determination and review by the Board during 2019 of the
Diversity Policy involved the consideration of various elements
including gender, age, culture, qualification, ability, work experience,
leadership and professional ethics of the candidates and against
the objective criteria set out by the Board. The Board recognizes
the importance of having a diverse Board and considers the above
essential elements (which have been taken into account when
determining the existing composition of the Board) in maintaining
a competitive advantage and achieving sustainable growth for the
Group.

To ensure the composition of the Board has a balance of skills,
experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate to the
requirements of the Company’s business, the Company has, with
the recommendation of the Nomination Committee, adopted a
formal, considered and transparent procedures for the selection,
appointment and re-appointment of Directors.
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EREREBE

The nomination procedures are as follows: candidates for
directorship are selected by the Nomination Committee subject
to the review and approval of the Board in accordance with the
Articles. The criteria adopted by the Nomination Committee in
selecting and approving candidates for directorship are based
on the Diversity Policy including whether the candidates are
appropriate in terms of experience and the potential contribution
to the Group and with reference to the candidates’ professional
knowledge, industry experience, personal ethics, integrity and skills,
as well as the ability of the candidates to devote sufficient time to
the Board and/or various committees established by the Board
on which they serve so as to allow them to benefit from the skills,
expertise, and varied backgrounds and diversity of the candidates
through their participation in the meetings of the Board and/or
committees established by the Board.

If a candidate is proposed to be appointed as an independent
non-executive Director (INED), his or her independence shall be
assessed in accordance with, among other things, the factors
(including independence criteria) as set out in Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules, subject to any amendments as may be made by the
Stock Exchange from time to time. Where applicable, the totality
of the candidate’s education, qualifications and experience shall
also be evaluated to consider whether he/she has the appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise for filling the office of an INED with such
qualifications or expertise as required under Rule 3.10(2) of the
Listing Rules.

If a candidate is a member of the Nomination Committee, he/she
will abstain from voting at the meeting of the Nomination Committee
when his/her own nomination is being considered.

One meeting of the Nomination Committee was held during
2019. The Nomination Committee nominated and the Board
recommended the re-election of Directors at the 2019 annual
general meeting, and reviewed the structure, size and composition
of the Board.
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EEEREE

The individual attendance of each member of the Nomination FIRZLEENENEBLHEERNT ¢
Committee was as follows:

Number of attendance

HERE
Mr Shi Kancheng MEARAK P A& 1
Ms Wang Shuiyun AKRELZ L 1
Professor Pei Ker Wei BREHR 1
Dr Loke Yu 7y uN 1
Mr Zhang Huagiao RS AE 1
(H) AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION (H) 1B EHEN &
During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group was charged BHE2019F12A31HILFEA - KARE
RMB2,520,000 for the services provided by the Company’s SAZBE KGR ESAT - ERAEE
independent auditor, Ernst & Young. Details of the services and RHERBWEA R 2,520,0007T © ERH
their relevant fees are as follows: MLBFBWOT -
For audit of annual results for the RMB2,100,000 BRAEE20195F AEH2,100,0007T
year ended 31 December 2019 12831 A ILEE
SFEREIEZ
For review of interim results for the RMB420,000 BEEZE2019%F AR#420,0007T
six months ended 30 June 2019 643017716 A
PHERES 2B

BrEEARAE < —T—heEFH B3
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EREREBE

() AUDIT COMMITTEE

The chairman of the Audit Committee is Dr Loke Yu and the

members are Professor Pei Ker Wei and Mr Zhang Huagiao. All

members of the Audit Committee are independent non-executive

Directors.

The role and functions of the Audit Committee include the following:

(@)

54  7hong An Group Limited

to be primarily responsible for making recommendations to
the Board on the appointment, reappointment and removal
of the external auditor, and to approve the remuneration and
other terms of engagement of the external auditor, and any
questions of resignation or dismissal of the external auditor;

to review and monitor the external auditor’s independence
and objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in
accordance with applicable standards;

to discuss before the audit commences, with the external
auditor the nature and scope of the audit and reporting
obligations and ensure co-ordination where more than one
audit firm is involved;

to develop and implement policy on engaging an
external auditor to supply non-audit services. The Audit
Committee should report to the Board, identify and make
recommendations any matters where action or improvement
is needed. The Audit Committee should also review the non-
audit services provided by the external auditor on an annual
basis, to ensure that the independence of such external
auditor will not be affected;

to monitor integrity, accuracy and fairness of the Company’s
financial statements and annual report and accounts, half-
year report and, if prepared for publication, quarterly reports,
and to review significant financial reporting judgments
contained in them;
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() EZXZRF

BEREEETRREEMEL KERAR
BERLEBRL - BERLZEEN 2K
B RENIFTES -

BZLE

&

il

HAE REEET

IEAARIINERBEINERE - B
RERRRAEFTSRMEZ - Uit
JESNEE A B A R BN B B R 4GSR - DA
BRI AL A R I N R BN BHE K
BURZI MR BN A RIS -

RIE A IR R AT N B BRSNS AZ SR A
EERBIEBRECEFREAM

FEINEZBEN I Z B TIE2 AT >
H T im iz 2R 1 E AN 005 A B A B FR
WEME - MBER—RIMNEZ AR B
DENZETIE - REGHERE

FRAMNIEAZ B4 AD 4 (H FF A BAR TS Il FE B
| WTLARIT - BREBSEHIE
AARBITHRAENEEANESS
WEWRDER - ERZEGREF
T & SIS A BUED P AR £ 0 FEAX BUR
% DR EBI TS REIRE

ERARBNMBHRRARFERS
KRR - FFERERERTEF
EmENTTEMN - EEERAEN
WEMRRMREMBBEVHERS
MEAER



Corporate Governance Report

to review, in draft form and before submission to the Board,
the Company’s annual report and accounts, half-year report
and, if prepared for publication, quarterly report, focus
particularly on:

i. any changes in accounting policies and practices;

ii. major judgmental areas;

. significant adjustments resulting from the audit;

iv. the going concern assumptions and any qualifications;

V. compliance with accounting standards;

vi.  compliance with the Listing Rules and other legal
requirements in relation to financial reporting;

vii.  the fairness and reasonableness of any connected
transaction and the impact of such transaction
on the profitability of the Group and whether such
connected transactions (if any) have been carried out in
accordance with the terms of the agreement governing
such transactions;

vii.  whether all relevant items have been adequately
disclosed in the Group’s financial statements and
whether the disclosures give a fair view of the Group’s
financial conditions;

iX. any significant or unusual items that are, or may need
to be, reflected in such reports and accounts; and

X. the cashflow position of the Group;

and to provide advice and comments thereon to the Board;

in regard to (e) and (f) above:

(i) members of the Audit Committee should liaise with the
Board and the senior management of the Group and
the Audit Committee must meet, at least twice a year,
with the Company’s auditors; and

(i) the Audit Committee should consider any significant
or unusual items that are, or may need to be, reflected
in such reports and accounts. It should give due
consideration to any matters that have been raised by
the Company’s staff responsible for the accounting,
the financial reporting and internal audit functions,
compliance officer or auditors;
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EREREBE

56 znhong An Group Limited

to discuss problems and reservations arising from the interim
and final audits, and any matters the auditors may wish to
discuss (in the absence of management where necessary);

to review the Company’s financial controls and, unless
expressly addressed by a separate board risk committee, or
by the Board itself, to review the Company’s internal control
and risk management systems;

to discuss the internal control and risk management
systems with management to ensure that management has
performed its duty to have effective systems. This discussion
should include the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications
and experience, training programmes and budget of the
Company’s accounting and financial reporting function;

to review the Company’s statement on internal control
systems (where one is included in the annual report) prior to
endorsement by the Board;

to consider major investigations findings on internal control
matters as delegated by the Board or on its own initiative and
management’s response to these findings;

where an internal audit function exists, to review the internal
audit programmes, to ensure co-ordination between the
internal and external auditors, and to ensure that the internal
audit function is adequately resourced and has appropriate
standing within the Company and to review and monitor the
effectiveness;

to review the Group’s financial and accounting policies and
practices;

to conduct exit interviews with any Director, general
manager, financial controller or internal audit manager upon
his/her resignation in order to ascertain the reasons for his/
her departure;

to prepare work reports for presentation to the Board and to

prepare summary of work reports for inclusion in the Group’s
interim and annual reports;
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to consider the appointment of any person to be an Audit
Committee member, a secretary, auditors and accounting
staff either to fill a casual vacancy or as an additional Audit
Committee member, secretary, auditors and accounting staff
or dismissal of any of them;

to consider the major findings of internal investigations and
management’s response;

to review the external auditor’s management letter, any
material queries raised by the auditor to management about
the accounting records, financial accounts or systems of
control and management’s response;

to ensure that the Board will provide a timely response to the
issues raised in the external auditor’'s management letter;

to report to the Board on the matters in the code provisions
contained in the CG Code set out in Appendix 14 to the
Listing Rules (as amended from time to time) and/or any of
the matters set out above as well as the Audit Committee’s
decisions or recommendations, unless there are legal or
regulatory restrictions on their abilities to do so (such as
restriction on disclosure due to regulatory requirements);

to review arrangements employees of the Company can use,
in confidence, to raise concerns about possible improprieties
in financial reporting, internal control or other matters. The
Audit Committee should ensure that proper arrangements
are in place for fair and independent investigation of these
matters and for appropriate follow-up action;

to act as the key representative body for overseeing the
Company’s relations with the external auditor; and

to consider other matters, as defined or assigned by the
Board from time to time.
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EREREBE

A total of four meetings of the Audit Committee were held during MN20195F - EREZEEHIIT4RGH - &
2019. The work performed by the Audit Committee during 2019 REEEN2019FETH TIEREATE
included the following: 18

reviewed the annual report and results announcement of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2018;

reviewed the interim report and interim results announcement
of the Company for the six months ended 30 June 2019;

reviewed the accounting principles and practices adopted by
the Group and other financial reporting matters;

reviewed the results of external audit and had discussion with
external auditors on any significant findings and audit issues;

reviewed the results of internal audit and had discussion
with internal auditors on any significant findings and internal
control issues;

discussed with the external auditors before the audit
commenced, the nature and scope of the audit and the
respective relevant issues; and

considered and approved the service contract of the external
auditors for the year ended 31 December 2019.
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The individual attendance of each member of the Audit Committee EBEZZEGZNEMNERHEENT

was as follows:

Number of attendance

HERE
Dr Loke Yu =y uN 4
Professor Pei Ker Wei BREHHE 4
Mr Zhang Huagiao RRE AL 4
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(J) GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

The Company has set up the Governance Committee and the
terms of reference adopted complied with the requirement of the
Listing Rules.

The chairman of the Governance Committee is Mr Shi Kancheng (an
executive Director). The remaining members are Ms Wang Shuiyun
(an executive Director), Mr Zhang Jiangang (an executive Director),
Ms Shen Tiaojuan (an executive Director), Professor Pei Ker Wei
(an independent non-executive Director) and Mr Zhang Huagiao (an
independent non-executive Director).

The role and functions of the Governance Committee include the
following:

(@)  to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance and make recommendations to the
Board;

(b) to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior
management of the Company;

(c)  to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements of the
Company;

(d)  to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
Directors; and

(e) to review the Company’s compliance with the code
provisions under the CG Code and the disclosure in the
Corporate Governance Report.

One meeting of the Governance Committee was held during 2019.
The Governance Committee had reviewed the effectiveness of the
policies and practices on corporate governance for the Group,
discussed and reviewed the Board’s and the Group’s compliance
with the code provisions under the CG Code and the prevailing
Listing Rules during 2019.
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EEERRE

The individual attendance of each member of the Governance
Committee was as follows:

ERRBEEEREBNERHFERMT

Number of attendance

HERE
Mr Shi Kancheng MERAK 5 A& 1
Ms Wang Shuiyun ARELZ L 1
Mr Zhang Jiangang ok BR 8 e A 1
Ms Shen Tiaojuan PMES Shegnn 1
Professor Pei Ker Wei BREHE 1
Mr Zhang Huagiao RRE L 1

The terms of reference of the Governance Committee are available
on the Company’s website.

(K) DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES IN

(L)

60 Zznong An Group Limited

PREPARING THE ACCOUNTS

The Directors acknowledge that they are responsible for the
preparation of accounts which give a true and fair view of the
Company and the Group.

The statement of the auditor of the Company about its reporting
responsibilities on the accounts of the Group is set out in the
section headed “Independent Auditor’s Report” in this annual
report.

INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK
MANAGEMENT

The Board is responsible for maintaining sound and effective
internal control and risk management systems over the Group’s
asset and shareholders’ interests, as well as for reviewing such
systems’ effectiveness on an annual basis. Such systems are
designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance
against misstatement or loss, and to manage risks of failure in
the Group’s operational systems. The systems include a well-
established organisational structure with clearly defined lines of
responsibility and authority, which is designed to safeguard assets
from inappropriate use, maintain proper accounts and ensure
compliance with applicable laws and regulations. Regular reviews
and internal audits are carried out to monitor compliance with
internal control procedures focusing on those areas of the Group’s
activities with the greatest perceived risk.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Board along with the
Audit Committee have reviewed the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control and risk management systems and was of the view
that the Group’s internal control and risk management systems
were effective and adequate. Such review had covered all material
controls including financial, operational and compliance controls
and risk management functions.

The Board and the Audit Committee have also reviewed the
adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience, training
programmes and budget of its accounting, internal audit and
financial reporting functions for 2019 and are satisfied with the
results.

The Group also adopts procedures to manage the handling and
dissemination of inside information, so as to ensure that inside
information remains confidential until the disclosure of such
information is appropriately approved, and the dissemination of
such information is efficiently and consistently made.

(M) COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms Wong Sau Ping was the company secretary of the Company
and has remained to hold the position since the date of such
appointment on 21 March 2018. The biography of Ms Wong is set
out in the section headed “Biographical Details of Directors and
Senior Management” of this annual report. Ms Wong is currently an
associate director of the Listing Services Department of TMF Hong
Kong Limited (a global corporate services provider). The primary
contact of Ms Wong in the Company is Mr You Defeng, the chief
financial officer of the Group.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, Ms Wong had taken no
less than 15 hours of relevant professional training.
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(N) SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (N) BB s F

Convening extraordinary general meeting and putting
forward proposals at Shareholders’ meetings

Pursuant to article 64 of the Articles, an extraordinary general
meeting shall be convened on the written requisition of one or
more Shareholders made to Directors or the Company Secretary
specifying the objects of the meeting, provided that such
requisitionists held as at the date of deposit of the requisition not
less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company which
carries the right of voting at general meetings of the Company.
Such meeting shall be held within 2 months after the deposit of
such requisition. If the Board does not within 21 days from the date
of deposit of the requisition proceed duly to convene the meeting,
the requisitionist(s) themselves may convene the extraordinary
general meeting in the same manner and all reasonable expenses
incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board
shall be reimbursed to them by the Company.

Pursuant to article 113 of the Articles, if a Shareholder, who is
entitled to attend and vote at the relevant general meeting, wishes
to nominate a person (not being the nominating Shareholder) to
stand for election as a Director, he or she should lodge to the
Company Secretary notice in writing of the intention to propose a
person for election as a Director and notice in writing by that person
of his/her willingness to be so elected at least 7 clear days before
the date of such general meeting and the period for lodgement
of such notices shall commence no earlier than the day after the
despatch of the notice of such general meeting appointed for such
election and shall be at least 7 clear days in length.

Detailed procedures for Shareholders to propose a person for
election as a Director are available on the Company’s website.

The Company welcomes enquiries from its Shareholders. The
Board or designated senior management or the Company
Secretary will review Shareholders’ enquiries on a regular basis.
Specific enquiries and suggestions by Shareholders can be sent in
writing to the Board or the Company Secretary by e-mail at ir@zafc.
com or at the address of the Company’s head office in the PRC or
principal place of business in Hong Kong.
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(O) CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

(P)

Save as the amendment to reflect the change of company name,
during 2019, no amendments were made to the constitutional
documents of the Company.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company attaches great importance to communication
with the Shareholders. A number of means are used to promote
greater understanding and dialogue with the Shareholders. The
means of access includes the release by the Company of the
various corporate communication of the Company via the website
of the Stock Exchange and the website of the Company (http://
www.zhongangrouphk.com). Shareholders are encouraged by
the Company to attend general meetings of the Company where
the chairman of the Company and other members of the Board
and (if appropriate) the auditors of the Company are available to
answer questions. Shareholders are encouraged to communicate
with the Company for any enquiries in relation to the affairs of the
Group. Shareholders may contact the Company in writing to the
Company’s head office in the PRC or principal place of business in
Hong Kong or by e-mail at ir@zafc.com.

(@  General meetings

It is important that the Shareholders have access to
clear and meaningful data which enables them to have a
constructive dialogue with the Company. Shareholders can
raise any questions and comments on the performance
or future business directions of the Company and on any
resolutions to be considered at the annual general meeting
and extraordinary general meeting. The Audit Committee’s
chairman was present and available to answer questions
raised at the annual general meeting during the year.

(b)  Annual Results Presentation

Due to the coronavirus pandemic, the results presentation
could not be held this year. However, the Group has
communicated with investors through various ways, e.g.
emails, newsletters and so forth.
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64 ~nhong An Group Limited

Investor conferences

The Company treasures every opportunity to communicate
with and explain its strategies to investors and Shareholders
through active participation in investors’ conferences hosted
by reputable investment banks, securities houses and
research institutes.

Ongoing communication with the investor community

Face-to-face meetings on irregular basis and an ongoing
schedule of teleconferencing calls with institutional investors
and research analysts were held throughout the year.
Questions and comments on the Company raised at the
meetings were summarized and reported to the senior
management team after the meetings. Regular meetings with
research analysts were organized which provided a different
channel for the analysts to communicate with the members of
the Board. All these serve the multi-purposes of maintaining
market surveillance and close contact with investors as well as
gathering constructive suggestions from the capital market.

Arrange site visits and reverse roadshows

The Group from time to time arranged site visits to
the Group’s major property buildings for investors and
analysts during the year, which provided them not only the
opportunities to better understand the Group’s businesses,
but also the daily operations, and independent market
surveillance.

Electronic communication through the Company’s website
and professional investor relations webpage

The Company’s website is www.zhongangrouphk.com
which contains important corporate data, Directors’
resume, organizational structure, company news and other
information. The website contains a professional investor
relations page, which publishes information on interim and
annual reports, announcements and circulars, so that the
Shareholders and investment communities of the Company
can obtain the latest information about the Company in a
timely manner.
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TEERBRE
For and on behalf of the Board REESY
Zhong An Group Limited BREEBERAA
Shi Kancheng FE
Chairman HEAR EL
The People’s Republic of China, 31 March 2020 REE ARKEME - 2020F3731H
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EENSREEAERE

DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Mr Shi Kancheng (alias Shi Zhongan), aged 57, is the chairman of
the Company and an executive Director. He also serves as the chairman
of the Nomination Committee and the Governance Committee. Mr Shi is
also the chairman and the non-executive director of CNC, a subsidiary
of the Company, whose shares are listed on the Stock Exchange. Mr
Shi also holds directorships in certain of the Company’s subsidiaries. Mr
Shi is primarily responsible for the strategic and development planning of
the Group. He also supervises project planning and the overall business
operation. Mr Shi joined the Group since the establishment of the first
member of the Group, Zhong An Group Co., Ltd. (formerly known
as Zhejiang Zhong’an Property Development Co., Ltd.) (“Zhong An
Group”). Mr Shi served as a tax officer in the finance and revenue bureau
of Xiaoshan District of Hangzhou (formerly known as Xiaoshan City)
and the general manager of Hangzhou Xiaoshan Milkyway Real Estate
Development Co., Ltd. (“Milkyway Real Estate”). Mr Shi graduated from
an Executive Master of Business Administration program co-organized by
the State University of Arizona and Shanghai National Accounting College
in June 2007. From 2005 to 2006, Mr Shi completed a program for
executive officers, focusing on globalization and real estate developers,
co-organized by Harvard University, Tsinghua University, The University of
Hong Kong and the United States Military Academy. In the same period,
Mr Shi completed a program for presidents of real estate companies
organized by Zhejiang University. Mr Shi obtained a doctorate degree in
business administration jointly offered by Shanghai Advanced Institute
of Finance (SAIF) and the W. P. Carey School of Business of Arizona
State University (ASU), United States of America in May 2017. Mr Shi
has over 27 years of experience in property development and property
investment. Mr Shi is the sole director and the sole shareholder of Whole
Good Management Limited, which is the controlling shareholder of the
Company. Mr. Shi is the father of Ms. Shi Jinfan, an executive Director.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

Ms Wang Shuiyun, aged 54, an executive Director, was appointed as
vice chairman of the Company, members of the Nomination Committee
and Governance Committee, and resigned as the chief executive officer of
the Company with effect from 23 August 2018. She is also the chairman
and chief executive officer of Zhong An Capital Investment Limited
(“Zhong An Capital”) (a subsidiary of the Company). She graduated
from the Zhejiang Agricultural University (41T & 3% K2 (now known as
the Zhejiang University (41T XZ2)), with a master degree in agriculture in
1989. She holds a certificate of senior economist (%= 2 AL BM). Ms Wang
started working at the Zhejiang Province branch of the Agricultural Bank
of China (“ABC”) (1 Bl &= % RITHIE £77) (“Zhejiang Branch”) in
November 1989. She had served successively as a deputy director of the
General Office (##/2ZE&IZ1E), a deputy director of the General Office of
the Community Party Committee (¥ Z #if A Z&|ZEf), a deputy director
(in charge) of the international business department (BRI E(T
(E#TI1E)) and a director of the international business department (EIX
#7558 1) at the Zhejiang Branch, and as a secretary of the Communist
Party Committee (#Z £ ) and the Chief Executive (f71%) at the Taizhou
City branch of the ABC in the Zhejiang Province (B EZBITHIE A
JNT4377) since September 1998. Ms Wang had worked successively
as an assistant to the Chief Executive (TKB)E), a member of the
Communist Party Committee (2% Z &) and the Alternate Chief Executive
(BI77F) at the Shanghai City branch of the ABC (B E £5R1T HiETH o
77), and as a member of the Communist Party Committee (2% % &) and
the Alternate Chief Executive (&I17T71K) at the Zhejiang Branch since July
2007. She was the head (#8) of the preparatory group (Z##H) of the
Vancouver branch of the ABC (Bl & ZRBITRETZED1T) from January
2015 to June 2017.

Mr Zhang Jiangang, aged 50, an executive Director, was appointed
as the chief executive officer of the Company with effect from 23 August
2018, and is a member of the Governance Committee. He also holds
directorship in a subsidiary of the Company. He is primarily in charge of
strategy implementation and operation management. Mr Zhang joined
the Group in March 2003. He served as the general manager and vice
president of Zhong An Group and the general manager and assistant to
the chairman of Anhui Zhong An Real Estate Co., Ltd. (a subsidiary of the
Company). From 1995 to 2003, Mr Zhang served as the office manager,
assistant to general manager and vice general manager of Milkkyway Real
Estate. Mr Zhang has 25 years of experience in construction and property
development.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EEREREEAEEE

Ms Shen Tiaojuan, aged 57, is an executive Director and the vice
president of the Company and also holds directorships in certain of its
subsidiaries. Ms Shen also serves as members of the Remuneration
Committee and the Governance Committee. She is primarily responsible for
the financial operation and financial management of the Group. She joined
the Group in December 1997. Prior to joining the Group, Ms Shen was the
chief accountant of White Swan Industry Co., Ltd. from 1995 to 1997, the
chief accountant of Hangzhou Hualing Electrics Co., Ltd. in 1994, and the
chief accountant and finance manager of Hangzhou Guanghua Chemical
Fibres Factory from 1980 to 1993. Ms Shen has 38 years of experience in
the financial operation of property development.

Ms Jin Ni, aged 44, has been appointed as an executive Director
responsible for human resources management, administrative
management and marketing operation with effect from 3 April 2020. She
has over 19 years of experience in sales, operations and management
of commercial projects. She was the deputy general manager, office
manager and deputy sales manager from August 1999 to October
2010 of Zhong An Group (an indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary of
the Company), the general manager of Hangzhou Zhong An Highlong
Commercial Buildings Co., Ltd. (an indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary
of the Company), from March 2006 to January 2010, the assistant to the
president of the Company from January 2010 to November 2010, the vice
president of the Company from July 2011 to May 2014, and the executive
director and vice chairlady of the board of directors of CNC from 9 July
2014 to 2 April 2020. Ms Jin graduated from the Zhejiang University of
Technology with a bachelor’s degree in administrative management.

Ms Shi Jinfan, aged 27, joined the Company since 2015 and has
been appointed as an executive Director responsible for capital market
operation with effect from 3 April 2020. She has been the assistant to
the president of the Company since March 2018 and the vice president
of Zhong An Capital (a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company) since
December 2018, responsible for equity investment business and assisting
in the management of asset management business of Zhong An Capital.
Ms Shi served as the assistant to the president of CNC and the assistant
to the president and general manager of Zhong An Movie and TV Culture
Development Co., Ltd. (an indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company) successively. Ms Shi graduated from Queen Mary University
of London with a bachelor’s degree in engineering. Mr. Shi, an executive
Director, is the father of Ms. Shi Jinfan.
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Independent non-executive directors

Professor Pei Ker Wei (“Professor Pei”) (PhD), aged 63, has been
an independent non-executive Director since 17 October 2007. He also
serves as the chairman of the Remuneration Committee and members
of the Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Governance
Committee. Professor Pei worked as assistant professor, associate
professor and professor at Arizona State University, chairman of North
America Chinese Accounting Professors Academy and chairman of the
global commission of American Accounting Academy. He is currently a
member of the American Accounting Academy, he was the Executive
Dean of Chinese Programmes at the W.P. Carey School of Business
of Arizona State University, U.S. (2013-2018) and Associate Dean of
the same School between 2003-2013. Professor Pei is also serving as
an independent non-executive director of Want Want China Holdings
Limited and Zhejiang Expressway Co., Ltd., all companies whose
shares are listed on the Stock Exchange, and he had served as an
independent non-executive director of MMG Limited (a company listed on
the Stock Exchange) between 2016-2019 and an independent director
of Baoshan Iron & Steel Co., Ltd., (a company listed on the Shanghai
Stock Exchange, between 2006-2019). Professor Pei received his MBA
from the Southern lllinois University, the U.S. in 1981 and PhD from the
University of North Texas, the U.S. in 1986. Professor Pei has served as a
consultant for a number of multi-national companies, including Motorola
Inc., Intel Corporation, Bank of America Corporation, Dial Corporation,
Raytheon Company, Cisco Systems Inc. and Honeywell International Inc.
Professor Pei is also an external director of China Merchants Group.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EEREREEAEEE

Dr Loke Yu (alias Loke Hoi Lam), aged 70, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 30 June 2009. He also serves as
the chairman of the Audit Committee and members of the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee. He has over 41 years of
experience in accounting and auditing for private and public companies,
financial consultancy and corporate management. He holds a Master
of Business Administration degree from University Teknologi Malaysia
and a Doctor of Business Administration degree from University of
South Australia. Dr Loke is a fellow member of The Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales, Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants, and the The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered
Secretaries. He is also a member of the Hong Kong Independent Non-
Executive Director Association. Currently, he serves as an independent
non-executive director of Chiho Environmental Group Limited (formerly
known as Chiho-Tiande Group Limited), CIMC-TianDa Holdings
Company Limited, Forebase International Holdings Limited, Hang Sang
(Siu Po) International Holding Company Limited, Hong Kong Resources
Holdings Company Limited, Matrix Holdings Limited, TC Orient Lighting
Holdings Limited, Tianhe Chemicals Group Limited, Tianjin Development
Holdings Limited, TradeGo FinTech Limited, V1 Group Limited and
Zhenro Properties Group Limited, all are companies listed on the Stock
Exchange, and he has resigned from Lamtex Holdings Limited (a
company listed on the Stock Exchange) as an independent non-executive
director with effect from 23 March 2020.

Mr Zhang Huagiao, aged 57, was appointed an independent non-
executive Director on 1 January 2013. He also serves as a member of the
Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee, the Governance Committee
and the Remuneration Committee. Mr Zhang graduated from the
Graduate School of the People’s Bank of China with a master’s degree
in economics in 1986 and from the Australian National University with a
master’s degree in economics in January 1991. Mr Zhang has about 29
years of experience in the financial sector. He is currently an independent
non-executive director of China Huirong Financial Holdings Limited, Fosun
International Limited, Logan Property Holdings Company Limited, and
Luye Pharma Group Ltd., the shares of which companies are all listed on
the Stock Exchange. On 28 March 2019, He resigned from China Rapid
Finance Limited (CRFL) (its American Depositary Shares are listed on the
New York Stock Exchange). And on 6 May 2019, he resigned as a non-
executive director of Boer Power Holdings Limited (a company listed on
the Stock Exchange) and on 20 January 2020, he resigned as chairman
and non-executive director of China Smartpay Group Holdings Limited,
whose shares are listed on the Stock Exchange.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr You Defeng, aged 44, was appointed as the chief financial officer of
the Group on 28 March 2018. He has about 21 years of experience in the
real estate and construction industry, and is historically responsible for the
matters relating to capital markets of listed companies and accumulates
extensive experience of financial management and operation of capital
markets in the industry. Mr You worked at the headquarters in Central
China of the China Poly Group from August 1998 to March 2001. He
worked at Greenland Hong Kong Holdings Limited (a company listed on
the Stock Exchange, stock code: 337, formerly known as SPG Land)
from March 2001 to June 2017, he held the positions of the finance
manager and finance director of the subsidiaries of such company and
financial controller, chief financial officer and executive director of such
group. Mr You graduated from Shanghai University of Finance and
Economics and obtained a master’s degree in business administration
from China Europe International Business School. He is a fellow member
of the Institute of Financial Accountants, United Kingdom (FFA), a fellow
member of Australia Institute of Public Accountants (FIPA) and a qualified
accountant in the PRC.

Mr Shi Haibin, aged 46, is the vice president of the company, and
responsible for engineering management and cost management of the
company. Mr Shi joined the Group in September 2019. Prior to this,
he served as the deputy general manager of east China region and the
deputy general manager of Shanghai business division of C&D Real Estate
Corporation Limited from October 2015 to March 2019. Mr Shi obtained
a master’s degree in MBA from Xiamen university in 2003. He has 24
years of experience in real estate management.

Mr Hu Bobo, aged 39, is the assistant of the chief executive officer of the
Company and the general manager of the marketing management center,
responsible for the Company’s marketing management. Mr Hu joined the
Group in September 2014. Prior to this, he served as deputy marketing
director and marketing director of Cosmos Group Co., Ltd. (@ company
listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange) from December 2006 to August
2014. Mr Hu obtained a master’s degree in land resource management
from Zhejiang University in 2007. He has 17 years of experience in real
estate sales.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management
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Mr Sun Zhihua, aged 41, is the assistant of the chief executive officer
and the general manager of the engineering operation center of the
Company. He is in charge of the operation management of the Company.
Mr Sun joined the Group in July 2001 and had held various administrative
posts of various subsidiaries of the Company. Mr Sun received a bachelor
degree in technological economy from College of Business Administration
of Zhejiang University of Technology in 2001. He has 18 years of
experience in property administration and management, and is proficient
in the whole process of project management and the establishment of
structure, authority, systems and procedure at company level as well as
the planning of strategies, proposals and incentive system.

Mr Shi Nanlu, aged 37, has been appointed as an executive director
and chief executive officer of CNC with effect from 3 April 2020. He
is responsible for the daily operation and management, strategic
investments and new business exploration of CNC. He joined the Group
in June 2010. He has served as the manager of the capital management
department, manager of the fund management department and deputy
director of the Group. He has been a vice president of CNC since June
2015. He has many years of experience in financial management. Mr Shi
received his undergraduate degree in finance and accounting from The
University of Manitoba in Canada in June 2007.

Mr Liu Bo, aged 32, has been appointed as the executive director and
vice president of CNC with effect from 3 April 2020. He is responsible
for overall daily operations and management of CNC. He joined CNC
in July 2016. Prior to this, he worked in the investment department of
He Jun Capital from December 2012 to July 2013, and in the business
development department of Wan Xiang Trust from August 2013 to June
2016. He has many years of experience in financial investment and fund
management. Mr Liu holds a Master’s Degree in Actuarial Science from
the Boston University in December 2012.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms Wong Sau Ping is the company secretary of the Company. She is a
fellow member of The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
The Chartered Governance Institute in the United Kingdom. She has over
17 years of experience in company secretarial field. Ms. Wong is currently
an associate director of the Listing Services Department of TMF Hong
Kong Limited (a global corporate services provider).
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Directors’ Report

The Directors are pleased to present their annual report to Shareholders
and the audited financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2019 (the “year under review”).

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company’s principal activity is investment holding. The principal
activities of the Group are property development, leasing and hotel
operation. The nature of the principal activities has not changed during
the year under review.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group’s profit for the year ended 31 December 2019 and the state
of affairs of the Company and the Group at that date are set out in the
financial statements on pages 114 to 120.

The Board recommended the payment of final dividend of HK$0.02 per
ordinary Share for the year ended 31 December 2019 (2018: nil).

SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL
INFORMATION

A summary of the published results and assets, liabilities and non-
controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial years, as
extracted from the audited financial statements and restated/reclassified
as appropriate, is set out on page 320. This summary does not form part
of the audited financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW, FINANCIAL KEY
PERFORMANCE INDICATORS AND
FUTURE DEVELOPMENT

A discussion on the business review of the Group and an analysis of the
performance of the Group based on certain financial key performance
indicators for the year under review are set out in the section headed
“Management Discussion and Analysis” of this annual report.
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PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT AND
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of movements in the property and equipment and investment
properties of the Group and the Company during the year under review
are set out in notes 12 and 13 to the financial statements respectively.
Further details of the Group’s investment properties are set out on pages
224 to 239.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

Details of the movements in the ordinary Shares and share options of the
Company during the year under review are set out respectively in notes
34 and 35 to the financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company
during the year under review are set out in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and note 36 to the financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2019, the Company’s accumulated losses amounted
to RMB230,539,000 and the Company’s share premium amounted to
RMB2,999,320,000. By passing an ordinary resolution of the Company,
dividends may also be declared and paid out of share premium account
or any other fund or account which can be authorized for this purpose in
accordance with the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company may distribute dividends by way of cash or by other means
that the Board considers appropriate. Any proposed distribution of
dividends is subject to the discretion of the Board and, where applicable,
the approval of the Shareholders. The Board will consider various factors
before declaring or recommending any payment of dividends. These
factors include the results of operation of the business of the Group, the
retained earnings and distributable reserves of the Company and each
of the members of the Group, the Group’s actual and expected financial
performance, the general business conditions and strategies, the Group’s
expected working capital requirements and future expansion plans, the
general economic conditions and business cycle of the Group’s business,
the future prospects of the business of the Group, Shareholders’
interests, statutory and regulatory restrictions on the payment of dividend
and other internal or external factors that the Board deems appropriate.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES
(A) Zhong An Group Limited - the Scheme

On 15 May 2009, the Shareholders approved the adoption of a
share option scheme (the “Scheme”) of the Company pursuant
to and in compliance with the requirements of Chapter 17 of the
Listing Rules. The salient terms of the rules of the Scheme are set
out below:

1. Purpose of the Scheme:

As incentives or rewards to the eligible participants under the
Scheme for their contribution to the Group.

2. Participants of the Scheme:

(@  any employee (whether full time or part time, including
any executive Director but excluding any non-executive
Director) of the Company or any of its subsidiaries or
any equity entity (the “Invested Entity”) in which any
members of the Group holds an equity interest;

(b)  any non-executive Directors (including independent
non-executive Directors) of the Company or any of its
subsidiaries or any Invested Entity;

(c) any supplier of goods or services to any member of the
Group or any Invested Entity;

(d) any customer of any member of the Group or any
Invested Entity;

(e) any person or entity that provides research,
development or other technological support to any
member of the Group or any Invested Entity;

® any Shareholder of any member of the Group or any
Invested Entity or any holder of any securities issued
by any member of the Group or any Invested Entity;
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EEERE

(@  any adviser (professional or otherwise) or consultant to
any area of business or business development of any
member of the Group or any Invested Entity; and

(h)  any other group or classes of participants who have
contributed or may contribute by way of joint venture,
business alliance or other business arrangement to the
development and growth of the Group.

Maximum number of Shares available for subscription:

The maximum number of Shares which may be allotted and
issued upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and
yet to be exercised under the Scheme and any other share
option schemes adopted by the Group shall not exceed 30
per cent. of the share capital of the Company in issue from
time to time.

Subject to the rules of the Scheme, the Company may seek
approval of its Shareholders in general meeting to refresh the
General Scheme Limit (as referred to in paragraph 4 below)
provided that the total number of Shares which may be
allotted and issued upon exercise of all options to be granted
under the Scheme and any other share option scheme(s) of
the Group must not exceed 10% of the Shares in issue as at
the date of approval of the refreshed limit. For the purpose of
calculating the refreshed limit, such options (including those
outstanding, cancelled, lapsed or exercised in accordance
with the Scheme and any other share option scheme(s) of the
Group) previously granted under the Scheme and any other
share option scheme(s) of the Group will not be counted.

Total number of Shares available for issue under the Scheme:

The total number of Shares which may be allotted and issued
upon the exercise of all options (excluding such options
which have lapsed in accordance with the terms of the
Scheme and any other share option scheme(s) of the Group)
to be granted under the Scheme and any other share option
scheme(s) of the Group must not in aggregate exceed 10%
of the Shares in issue on the date of approval of the Scheme
(the “General Scheme Limit”) or upon the date of approval
of the refreshment of the General Scheme Limit (and, in the
case of the Company, not exceeding 236,763,540 Shares
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(the “Refreshed General Scheme Limit”), representing
10% of the total issued share capital of the Company as at
23 September 2013).

As disclosed in the announcement dated 12 October 2017,
the Bonus Issue (details of which are contained in the
Company'’s circular dated 8 September 2017) was made on
the basis of one Bonus Share for every one existing Share
held by qualifying Shareholders whose names are on the
register of members of the Company on the record date (that
is, 4 October 2017). As at the record date, the Company
had 2,918,298,400 Shares in issue and, accordingly, an
aggregate of 2,918,298,400 bonus Shares were issued
under the bonus issue on 12 October 2017 on the above
basis. As a result of the bonus issue, the exercise price of
such outstanding options and the number of Shares to be
allotted and issued upon full exercise of the subscription
rights attaching thereto were adjusted pursuant to the terms
of the Scheme. On 12 October 2017, the adjusted number
of Shares that can be subscribed for upon exercise of the
outstanding options in full immediately after the bonus issue
was 360,933,322 Shares.

Maximum entitliement of each participant under the Scheme:

The total number of Shares issued and which may fall to be
issued upon the exercise of the options granted under the
Scheme and other share option scheme(s) of the Group (if
any) (including both exercised or outstanding options) to each
participant in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1 per cent
of the issued share capital of the Company for the time being (the
“Individual Limit"). Any further grant of options, which would
result in the Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of all
options granted and to be granted to such participant (including
exercised, cancelled and outstanding options) under the
Scheme and other share option scheme(s) of the Group (if any),
in any 12-month period up to and including the date of such
further grant in excess of the Individual Limit shall be subject to
Shareholders’ approval in general meeting of the Company with
such participant and his associates abstaining from voting.

Amount payable on acceptance of option:

A nominal amount of HK$1 is payable upon acceptance of
the grant of an option.

EEERE

KRANR2013F9H28H 2 B 31742
AR 2 10%) °

WAN2017F 10 12B R ERE -
Nk B (B120174F10848) &
FARRIRREMOEERKRRES
FE—RIRERGOATERE—RAR
(FFIBER AR RIN2017F9A8H
BBEK) - N8B H - ARAH
52,918,298,400/% 2 TR 17 -
b R R EER2017F 10812
IRIREATALR MBI THALIREE & 3%
£2,918,298,4000% » HRIEFHE] 2 1%
o RERRITEBRENITEER
HATM R S i BB TR I 18 T B &
RETZRNHEE EEABITARM
EITHE - R2017F10A128 @ &
BERITALR B BB W RTT(E R AR i I
TEEA TREZEHAERGER B
360,933,3225% °

REZEER2RBENRSECHE -

FR2EERTENMEM12(EA RN
IRET 8 R AR BT E b AR 8
(B ERZERE(BFECTREX
W ARATIE 2 B ) M BT R A
BEEBITZ M AR T SBAERAR
RABBETRE1% (AALER]) -
HWBROERERERAR2RER
TEREZEREEFERBRERER
1E1218 A AR 8 R A S BT H
bR AAERT 8 (E) B B RS R
ZFERERE(BERETE  FER
W RATIE 2 BB i) T 2 31T e o
EEITZROBEEA LR - BIE
REERAE LESBRALE - A
SEEREBEATB2ERE -

AT IR R FE A 5R0R

REMEHBRERAN1IETS
L -

BREBERAE —T-hEFH TT



Directors’ Report

EEERE

10.

78 Zhong An Group Limited

Minimum period for which an option must be held before it
can be exercised and the exercise period of the option:

Unless otherwise determined by the Directors and stated
in the offer to a grantee, there is no minimum period under
the Scheme for the holding of an option before it can be
exercised. An option may be exercised in accordance with
the terms of the Scheme at any time during a period to be
determined and notified by the Directors to the relevant
grantee, which period may commence on a day after the
date upon which the offer for the grant of options is made
but shall end in any event not later than 10 years from the
date of grant of the option subject to the provisions of early
termination thereof.

Basis of determining the exercise price of an option:

The exercise price shall be determined by the Directors but
shall not be less than the highest of the nominal value of
the Shares; the closing price of the Shares on the Stock
Exchange on the date of grant; and the average closing price
of the Shares on the Stock Exchange for the five business
days immediately preceding the date of the offer for the
grant.

Performance targets:

Unless the Directors otherwise determined and stated in the
offer for the grant of the options to a grantee, a grantee is
not required to achieve any performance targets before any
options granted under the Scheme can be exercised.

Life of the Scheme:

The Scheme was expired on 14 May 2019.
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OUTSTANDING OPTIONS UNDER THE

SCHEME

Details of options (the “Options”) granted under the Scheme and
outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year under review are as
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follows:
Number of Numberof  Outstanding at Exercise price
Outstanding at Options Options 31 December Date of Exercise of Option
Name of participants 1 January 2019 exercised lapsed 2019  Options granted period  HKS per Share
R20195 R2019%
1318 BiTf BAM 12A31H BRETRE
SRERS HR{TE BREHA EREHA HAITR RitiAH il BRiER
Category 1: Directors
B ER
Shi Kancheng 5,767,440 - (5,767,440) - 9 July 2009 1.29
HEARAK 20097 A9H
4,600,000 - - 4,600,000 22 January 2011 22 January 2014 to 093
2011E1 7228 21 January 2021
201451228 %
202151 A21H
(Note 1)
(1)
10,367,440 - (5,767,440) 4,600,000
Shen Tiaojuan 2,883,720 - (2,883,720) - 9 July 2009 1.29
R 2000F7A98
2,400,000 - - 2,400,000 22 January 2011 22 January 2014 to 0.93
20111 A228 21 January 2021
2014F17228%
2021414218
(Note 1)
(Hst1)
5,283,720 - (2,883,720) 2,400,000
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Number of Numberof  Outstanding at Exercise price
Outstanding at Options Options 31 December Date of Exercise of Option
Name of participants 1 January 2019 exercised lapsed 2019  Options granted period  HKS per Share
20195 20195
1A18 B BAM 12A318 BREGEE
SRENS R BREHA BREHE I RAT 6 RiLBH iyl BRET
Zhang Jiangang 2,643,410 - (2,643,410) - 9 July 2009 1.29
REHH 200957 A9R
2,200,000 - - 2,200,000 22 January 2011 22 January 2014 to 093
201151 A228 21 January 2021
2014F1A28%
202151 A21A
Note 1)
(Hrt)
4,843,410 - (2,643,410) 2,200,000
JinNi 1,922,480 - (1,922,480) - 9 July 2009 1.29
21f 200957A98
1,800,000 - - 1,800,000 22 January 2011 22 January 2014 to 093
201114228 21 January 2021
2014F1728F
2021517218
(Note 1)
(Htt)
3,722,480 - (1,922,480) 1,800,000
Professor Pei Ker Wei 720,930 - (720,930) - 9 July 2009 1.29
ARBHR 200057 A9H
600,000 - - 600,000 22 January2011 22 January 2014 to 0.93
20111 A228 21 January 2021
2014F1A20ZE
202151A21A
(Note 1)
(t1)
1,320,930 - (720,930) 600,000
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Number of Numberof  Outstanding at Exercise price
Outstanding at Options Options 31 December Date of Exercise of Option
Name of participants 1 January 2019 exercised lapsed 2019  Options granted period  HKS per Share
#2019% 12019%
1A18 BT BAH 12A31R BRETEE
SRENE KT BREHA EREHA CER N RLiAH il sRER
DrLoke Yu 720,930 - (720,930) - 9 July 2009 1.29
BEmEL 2009%7 A9H
600,000 - - 600,000 22 January 2011 22 January 2014 to 093
2011F1 7228 21 January 2021
20145172282
2021%1A218
(Note 1)
His)
1,320,930 - (720,930) 600,000
26,858,910 - (14,658,910) 12,200,000
Category 2: Employees 14,658,910 - (14,658,910) - 9 July 2009 1.29
EV ] 200947 A9H
13,000,000 - - 13,000,000 22 January 2011 22 January 2014 to 093
2011F1 7228 21 January 2021
20145172282
2021%1R218
(Note 1)
. (Hizt1)
27,658,910 - (14,658,910) 13,000,000
Category 3: Suppliers of 2,403,100 - (2,403,100) - 9 July 2009 1.29
goods or services 200957 A9H
F3E  ERIRBREE 67,000,000 - = 67,000,000 22 January 2011 22 January 2014 to 093
2011514228 21 January 2021
2014F17228%
2021%1R218
(Note 1)
(Hst1)
69,403,100 - (2,403,100) 67,000,000
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EERHE
Number of Numberof  Outstanding at Exercise price
Outstanding at Options Options 31 December Date of Exercise of Option
Name of participants 1 January 2019 exercised lapsed 2019  Options granted period  HKS per Share
#2019% 1#2019%
1A18 BiTE BAM 128318 BRETRE
SRENE R ATHE BREHA BREHA AT Rit B8 il BRiER
Category 4: Others 35,806,202 - (35,806,202) - 9 July 2009 1.29
B8 Hip 200967 A9H
29,200,000 - - 29,200,000 22 January 2011 22 January 2014 to 0.93
201151 228 21 January 2021
20145172282
202151 A21H
Note 1)
(1)
51,000,000 - - 51,000,000 10 July 2013 10 July 2013 to 078
20137 A10A 9 July 2023
2013%7A10HZ
202357198
(Note 2)
(H:t2)
116,006,202 - (35,806,202) 80,200,000
Total 239,927,122 - (67,527,122) 172,400,000
L5
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Notes:

1. On 22 January 2011, the Company had granted 80,000,000 Options which
may be exercisable after three years from the date of grant (the “Lock-in
Period”) provided that the Grantee has achieved the prescribed performance
target during the Lock-in Period and has passed the Company’s assessment,
and be exercisable before the expiry of the Option Period on 21 January
2021. The closing price of the Share immediately before the date of granting
the Options was HK$1.85 per share.

2. On 10 July 2018, the Company had granted 78,000,000 Options which
may be exercisable between 10 July 2013 and 9 July 2023. The closing
price of the Share immediately before the date of granting the Options was
HK$1.43 per share.

Other details of the Scheme are set out in the section “Directors’ and
Chief Executives’ interests in securities of the Company” and note 35 to
the financial statements.

(B) Zhong An Group Limited - the New Share
Option Scheme

On 6 June 2019, the Shareholders approved the adoption of a new
share option scheme (the “New Share Option Scheme”) of the
Company pursuant to and in compliance with the requirements
of Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules. No share option was granted,
lapsed, exercised or cancelled by the Company under the New
Share Option Scheme during the year ended 31 December 2019.

The salient terms of the rules of the New Share Option Scheme are
set out below:

1. Purpose of the New Share Option Scheme:

The purpose of the New Share Option Scheme is to enable
the Group to grant options to the Eligible Participants referred
to in paragraph (2) below to recognize and reward their
contributions and as incentives for retaining them for their
contribution or potential contribution to the Group for the
long-term growth and development of the Group.
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EEERE

2. Participants of the New Share Option Scheme:

The Directors may, at their absolute discretion, invite
any person belonging to any of the following classes of
participants (the “Eligible Participants”) to take up options
to subscribe for Shares:

(@  any employee (whether full time or part time, including
any executive director but excluding any non-executive
director) of the Company, any of its subsidiaries, or any
entity (the “Invested Entity”) in which any member of
the Group holds any equity interest;

(b)  any non-executive directors (including independent
non-executive directors) of the Company, any of its
subsidiaries or any Invested Entity;

(c)  any supplier of goods or services to any member of the
Group or any Invested Entity;

(d)  any customer of the Group or any Invested Entity;

(e) any person or entity that provides research,
development or other technological support to the
Group or any Invested Entity;

® any shareholder of any member of the Group or any
Invested Entity or any holder of any securities issued
by any member of the Group or any Invested Entity;

(@  any adviser (professional or otherwise) or consultant to
any area of business or business development of any
member of the Group or any Invested Entity; and

(h)  any person or entity who has contributed or may
contribute as a party to any joint venture, business
alliance or other business arrangement with the Group
to the overall development and growth of the Group.
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Maximum number of Shares available for subscription:

The maximum number of Shares which may be allotted and
issued upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and
yet to be exercised under the New Share Option Scheme and
any other share option schemes adopted by the Group shall
not exceed 30 per cent. of the relevant class of securities of
the Company in issue from time to time.

Subject to the rules of the New Share Option Scheme, the
Company may seek approval of its Shareholders in general
meeting to refresh the New General Scheme Limit (as referred
to in paragraph 4 below) provided that the total number of
Shares which may be allotted and issued upon exercise of all
options to be granted under the New Share Option Scheme
and any other share option scheme(s) of the Group must not
exceed 10% of the Shares in issue as at the date of approval
of the refreshed limit. For the purpose of calculating the
refreshed limit, such options (including those outstanding,
cancelled, lapsed or exercised in accordance with the New
Share Option Scheme and any other share option scheme(s)
of the Group) previously granted under the New Share Option
Scheme and any other share option scheme(s) of the Group
will not be counted.

Total number of Shares available for issue under the
New Share Option Scheme:

The total number of Shares which may be allotted and issued
upon the exercise of all options (excluding such options
which have lapsed in accordance with the terms of the New
Share Option Scheme and any other share option scheme(s)
of the Group) to be granted under the New Share Option
Scheme and any other share option scheme(s) of the Group
must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the Shares in issue on
the date of approval of the New Share Option Scheme (the
“New General Scheme Limit”) or upon the date of approval
of the refreshment of the New General Scheme Limit (and,
in the case of the Company, not exceeding 581,039,080
Shares (the “Refreshed New General Scheme Limit”),
representing 10% of the total issued share capital of the
Company as at 6 June 2019). As at 31 December 2019, the
number of Shares that remained available for issue under the
Refreshed New General Scheme Limit was 581,039,080.

EEERE

AHRBROBE LR

REFEAEA B R ARERAZE
MEMBEE SR B ZMAD %17
BRTTIE 2 FERE - TATTERS A] AL 3%
KRBT 2 D BT S R IB AR A R
BERTERBRES 2B 230% °

B BIROZRRT AR
A REREERAE LSRRI EE
ERETE LR (R T XE4RAR) -
HEAR AR R R R AT 8 S AN SR BT &
R RT 81X 2 PR B T T
(SRR A] AL 3% e BT 2 D BT 1SR
BHESELREACHTRNDZ
10% - St EEE LRME - £RIR
BR8N S B EMEARE
Bereat &I 2 R (B3R IEH
R B AN R BT K o BB i
SHEIRTTRE - FE8H - (EBEITE 2B
fttE) MEHEAERA o

RIB MBI AR 81 AT AT AV R 0 4R L

EATERR AR T 8 R AN E
M E MRS TRENMERE
i (B IER IR T B ARS8 R
BT E BB IR S B IR E K
R B AR A ) T AT AR AR B IR BT A AR
MBS LT EBIBRENERET
ZIE HE BTN 210% ([F—KREt
Bl LR ) sk BT T — AT &l =
RAMBEEEITRMDZ210% (AR
AlME * T#Bi#A581,039,0808% # 1
([EEFF— MBI LR]) - BIAR
AR2019F6 A6 H 2 B BITHAKRA
10%) ° FA2019F 12 A31H « RIEL
BT — MBI LR - DRI HEITH
%158 B A&581,039,080% °

mre@ERAE —E—hEERE 85



Directors’ Report

EEEHRS

Maximum entitlement of each participant under the
New Share Option Scheme:

The total number of Shares issued and which may fall to be
issued upon the exercise of the options granted under the
New Share Option Scheme and any other schemes of the
Group (including both exercised or outstanding Options) to
each grantee in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of
the relevant class of securities of the Company in issue (the
“Individual Limit”). Any further grant of options in excess
of the Individual Limit in any 12-month period up to and
including the date of such further grant must be separately
approved by the Shareholders in general meeting of the
Company with such grantee and his close associates (or
his associates if such grantee is a connected person of the
Company) abstaining from voting.

Amount payable on acceptance of option:

A nominal consideration of HK$1 is payable on acceptance
of the grant of an option.

Minimum period for which an option must be held
before it can be exercised and the exercise period of
the option:

An option may be accepted by a participant within 21 days
from the date of the offer for grant of the option.

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of
the New Share Option Scheme at any time during a period to
be determined and notified by the Directors to each grantee,
which period may commence from the date of acceptance
of the offer for the grant of options but shall end in any event
not later than 10 years from the date of grant of the option
subject to the provisions for early termination thereof. Unless
otherwise determined by the Directors and stated in the offer
for the grant of options to a grantee, there is no minimum
period required under the New Share Option Scheme for the
holding of an option before it can be exercised.
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10.

Basis of determining the exercise price of an option:

The subscription price for Shares under the New Share
Option Scheme shall be a price determined by the Directors
but shall not be less than the highest of (i) the closing price
of Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations
sheet on the date of the offer for grant, which must be a
business day; (ii) the average closing price of Shares as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet for
the five business days immediately preceding the date of the
offer for the grant; and (jii) the nominal value of a Share.

Performance targets:

Unless the Directors otherwise determined and stated in
the offer of the grant of options to a grantee, a grantee is
not required to achieve any performance targets before any
options granted under the New Share Option Scheme can be
exercised. No performance targets are specifically stipulated
under the New Share Option Scheme.

Life of the New Share Option Scheme:

The New Share Option Scheme will remain in force for a
period of 10 years commencing on the date on which the
New Share Option Scheme is adopted and will therefore
expire on 5 June 2029.

10.
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EEERE

(C) China New City Commercial Development
Limited — the CNC Scheme

On 20 May 2015, the shareholders of the Company approved the
adoption of a share option scheme (the “CNC Scheme”) of CNC,
a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company incorporated in
the Cayman Islands whose issued shares are listed on the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 1321). The adoption of the CNC Scheme was
also approved by the shareholders of CNC on 20 May 2015. The
salient terms of the rules of the CNC Scheme are set out below:

1. Purpose of the CNC Scheme

As incentives or rewards to the eligible participants under the
CNC Scheme for their contribution to the CNC Group.

2. Participants of the CNC Scheme

(@  any employee (whether full-time or part-time, including
any executive director but excluding any non-executive
director) of CNC, any of CNC’s subsidiaries or any
entity (the “CNC Invested Entity”) in which any
member of the CNC Group holds an equity interest (the
“CNC Eligible Employees”);

(b)  any non-executive directors (including independent
non-executive directors) of CNC, any of the CNC’s
subsidiaries or any CNC Invested Entity;

(c) any supplier of goods or services to any member of the
CNC Group or any CNC Invested Entity;

(d)  any customer of any member of the CNC Group or any
CNC Invested Entity;

(e) any person or entity that provides research,
development or other technological support to any
member of the CNC Group or any CNC Invested
Entity;
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] any adviser (professional or otherwise) or consultant
to any area of business or business development of
any member of the CNC Group or any CNC Invested
Entity;

(@  any other group or classes of participants who have
contributed or may contribute by way of joint venture,
business alliance or other business arrangement to the
development and growth of the CNC Group;

and, for the purposes of the CNC Scheme, the offer for the
grant of CNC option may be made to any company wholly
owned by one or more persons belonging to any of the
above classes of participants.

Maximum number of shares of CNC (the “CNC Shares”)
available for subscription

The maximum number of CNC Shares which may be issued
upon the exercise of all outstanding CNC options granted
and yet to be exercised under the CNC Scheme and any
other share option scheme(s) adopted by the CNC Group
must not in aggregate exceed 30% of the share capital of
CNC in issue from time to time.

Subject to the rules of the CNC Scheme, CNC may seek
approval of its shareholders in general meeting to refresh the
CNC General Scheme Limit (as referred to in paragraph 4
below) provided that the total number of CNC Shares which
may be allotted and issued upon exercise of all CNC options
to be granted under the CNC Scheme and any other share
option scheme(s) of the CNC Group must not exceed 10%
of the CNC Shares in issue as at the date of approval of the
refreshed limit. For the purpose of calculating the refreshed
limit, such CNC options (including those outstanding,
cancelled, lapsed or exercised in accordance with the CNC
Scheme and any other share option scheme(s) of the CNC
Group) previously granted under the CNC Scheme and any
other share option scheme(s) of the CNC Group will not be
counted.
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EEERE

Total number of CNC Shares available for issue under the
CNC Scheme

The total number of CNC Shares which may be allotted
and issued upon the exercise of all CNC options (excluding
such CNC options which have lapsed in accordance with
the terms of the CNC Scheme and any other share option
scheme(s) of the CNC Group) to be granted under the CNC
Scheme and any other share option scheme(s) of the CNC
Group must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the CNC Shares
in issue on the date of approval of the CNC Scheme on 20
May 2015 (that is, not exceeding 173,800,000 CNC Shares,
representing 10% of the total issued share capital of CNC as
at that date) (the “CNC General Scheme Limit”). As at 31
December 2019, the number of CNC Shares that remained
available for issue under the CNC Scheme was 173,800,000.

Maximum entitlement of each participant under the CNC
Scheme

The total number of CNC Shares issued and which may fall
to be issued upon the exercise of the options granted under
the CNC Scheme and any other share option scheme(s) of
the CNC Group (including both exercised or outstanding
options) to each grantee in any 12-month period shall not
exceed 1% of the issued share capital of CNC for the time
being (the “CNC Individual Limit”). Any further grant of
CNC options in excess of the CNC Individual Limit in any
12-month period up to and including the date of such further
grant must be separately approved by the CNC shareholders
in general meeting with such grantee and his associates
abstaining from voting.

Amount payable on acceptance of CNC option

A nominal consideration of HK$1 is payable on acceptance
of the grant of a CNC option.
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7.

10.

11.

Minimum period for which a CNC option must be held before
it can be exercised and the exercise period of a CNC option

Unless otherwise determined by the CNC directors and
stated in the offer to a grantee, there is no minimum period
under the CNC Scheme for the holding of a CNC option
before it can be exercised. A CNC option may be exercised
in accordance with the terms of the CNC Scheme at any
time during a period to be determined and notified by the
CNC directors to the relevant grantee, which period may
commence on a day after the date upon which the offer for
the grant of CNC options is made but shall end in any event
not later than 10 years from the date of grant of the CNC
option subject to the provisions of early termination thereof.

Performance targets

Unless the CNC directors otherwise determined and stated in
the offer for the grant of CNC options to a grantee, a grantee
is not required to achieve any performance targets before
any CNC options granted under the CNC Scheme can be
exercised.

Basis of determining the exercise price of a CNC option

The exercise price shall be a price determined by the CNC
directors but shall not be less than the highest of the nominal
value of a CNC Share; the closing price of the CNC Shares
on the Stock Exchange; and the average closing price of
CNC Shares on the Stock Exchange for the five business
days immediately preceding the date of the offer for the
grant.

Life of the CNC Scheme

The CNC Scheme will expire on 19 May 2025.

Outstanding Options under the CNC Scheme

CNC had not granted any options under the CNC Scheme
during the year under review.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles or the
Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, which would oblige the Company
to offer new Shares on a pro rata basis to existing Shareholders.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

Aggregate sales attributable to the five largest customers of the Group
accounted for less than 30% of the Group’s total revenue for the year
under review.

Aggregate purchases from to the five largest suppliers of the Group
accounted for less than 30% of the Group’s total purchases for the year
under review.

DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE
CONTRACTS

The Directors during the year under review and up to the date of this
report were as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr Shi Kancheng (alias Shi Zhongan)

Ms Wang Shuiyun

Mr Zhang Jiangang

Ms Shen Tiaojuan

Mr Jin Jianrong (resigned on 3 April 2020)
Ms Jin Ni (appointed on 3 April 2020)

Ms Shi Jinfan (appointed on 3 April 2020)

Non-executive Director
Ms Shen Li (resigned on 3 April 2020)

Independent non-executive Directors
Professor Pei Ker Wei

Dr Loke Yu (alias Loke Hoi Lam)

Mr Zhang Huagiao
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In accordance with article 108(A) of the Articles, Mr Shi Kancheng, Ms
Wang Shuiyun and Dr Loke Yu will retire by rotation at the forthcoming
AGM, and being eligible will offer themselves for re-election at the
forthcoming AGM. In accordance with article 112 of the Articles, Ms Jin Ni
and Ms Shi Jinfan will be subject to re-election at the forthcoming AGM.

No Director (including the Directors proposed to be re-elected at the
AGM) has a service contract with the Company which is not determinable
by the Company within one year without payment of compensation, other
than statutory compensation.

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-executive
Directors, an annual confirmation of his/hen independence pursuant to
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and the Company still considers all of the
independent non-executive Directors to be independent.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS
AND CONTRACTS

There was no transaction, arrangement or contract of significance
subsisting during or at the end of the year under review in which a
Director (or an entity connected with a Director) either directly or indirectly,
is or was materially interested.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT’S BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors and senior management of the Group
are set out in the section headed “Biographical Details of Directors and
Senior Management” of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

Details of the Directors’ emoluments on a named basis are set out in note
8 to the financial statements.

Remuneration for each of the Directors are determined based on, among
others, emoluments paid by comparable companies, his/her time of
commitment and responsibilities towards the Company and whether
the remuneration package is competitively attractive to retain him/her as
director.
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The Company and CNC has each maintained a share option scheme
for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to the eligible
participants for their contributions to the Group.

There were no compensation paid during the financial year or receivable
by directors or past directors for the loss of office as a director of any
member of the Group or of any other office in connection with the
management of the affairs of any member of the Group distinguishing
between contractual and other payments.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS IN SECURITIES OF THE
COMPANY

As at 31 December 2019, to the best knowledge of the Company, the
interests and short positions of the Directors and chief executives of
the Company in the Shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company or any associated corporation (within the meaning of Part XV
of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”)) as recorded in the
register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules, were as follows:

(1) Long positions in Shares of the Company

Number of Shares held and nature of interest in the Company:

ARBRPBEFWTE B R —RBRETE
NRaER2EERRSHAEE 2 BREHE

KA RFE - BRETHREMRIN - BB A
SEEMKE AR CEEMBRRETMEMLE
MERAEETAIKE RBEBE 2B
ENERRAIES Z EMHEE -

EEREETHRARRELF
EFHER

M2019F12A31H ARG - EERAR
AlEBITBA BRAR R REAREEZE (REAFK
BB GO ([# 5 REE RG] EXVEFTE 2 &)
2 W&y - MBEARGD REEEEE AL AREES
KEAE GG 53521617 B 2 B i it 2 (E e 2%
B KB E AR AR T EIT AE ST
BHERGZRETAAESITHEARRE KRBT
Z (RS FOR BT

(1) REQTRDVER

RARRFHBEORM A REmIEE

Number and  Approximate

Capacity and class of percentage Long/Short

Name of Director nature of interest securities held of interest (Note?) position
BExpg B RERME R 58 A REH BEBMOE DL W77 %,/ %R
Mr Shi Kancheng Interest of controlled 3,262,411,200 Shares of HK$0.1 57.05% Long
TEIAK S corporation (Note') each in the capital of the [55)
REGEREER W) ARRRAFEREECABTZ Company

3,262,411,2000% B 5
Note: (1) These shares are held by Whole Good Management Limited, the KiaF - (1) SR BEWhole Good Management

entire issued share capital of which is solely and beneficially owned
by Mr Shi Kancheng. Mr Shi Kancheng is the sole director of Whole
Good Management Limited.

(2) The calculation is based on the total number of 5,718,638,800
Shares in issue as at 31 December 2019.
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(2) Long positions in underlying shares of the
Company:

EEERE

(2 RAEXTHEBEROGHEFE :

Approximate

Number of percentage of

Capacity and underlying the Company’s

Name of Director nature of interest Shares held issued share capital
(Note') (Note®?)

iR O E HARATEBITRA

EERE SO RESENE (Hiz#") BB 2 (01512)
Mr Shi Kancheng Beneficial owner 4,600,000 0.08%
MeARAK 5t A E=mEBA
Ms Shen Tiaojuan Beneficial owner 2,400,000 0.04%
LRI £ EmBEAA
Mr Zhang Jiangang Beneficial owner 2,200,000 0.04%
R ERH S A EmBAA
Professor Pei Ker Wei Beneficial owner 600,000 0.01%
BREHE E=EBA
Dr Loke Yu Beneficial owner 600,000 0.01%
R/ e iE + BB A
Note: (1) These represent the number of Shares which will be allotted and KiaE - (1) WAREBEAQFR2009F5 8158 %

M B Bl RS E R R M ERE
BITEMERASESERE RETHR
HEE - ZrTEIER2019F5 8140 &

issued to the respective Directors upon the exercise of the share
options granted to each of them pursuant to the share option scheme
adopted by the Company on 15 May 2009. The Scheme was expired

on 14 May 2019. i e
(2) The calculation is based on the total number of 5,718,638,800 2 ZEDHLHIBENR2019F12A31H4
Shares in issue as at 31 December 2019. £5,718,638,800/% B BT (D METH 15

Yo

bR EXXFr#EEE SN - 2019512 A31H -
RATEMEEREBITRABBERER
A R EARESAE (R ES R EE G EXVED
Fitg 2 dz&) < B’y « ARG & EEZE
BETBARBES RAEEOIEI2GEFE
2B A AEETSORE - SURIRIZAEST

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2019, none of
the Directors and chief executives of the Company had or were
deemed under the SFO to have any interests or short positions in
the Shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or
any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
SFO) as recorded in the register required to be kept under Section

352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the AIZEBITAIE AR ) R R B 2 AR (] 2 Bk
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code. KE e
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EEERE

(3) Long positions in shares of the associated

corporation

Number of shares held and nature of interest in CNC, a non-wholly

owned subsidiary of the Company, whose shares are listed on the

(3) REELATARGHNEFRE

KRB FERE M B~ 7] BT T (HLBR
MRBERFT L) Pris i 8B RSt

Stock Exchange: £

Number and Approximate

Capacity and class of percentage Long/Short

Name of Director nature of interest securities held of interest position

RS
BEgE S REENE HE RER ERMABEIE %A
Mr Shi Kancheng Interest of controlled 31,303,594 shares of HK$0.1 1.55% Long
MR ST corporation (Note) each in the capital of CNC e

RyEHhaMgs (W) R mRAT SREE
0.177T,231,303,594% i {7

Note: These shares are held by Whole Good Management Limited, the entire

issued share capital of which is solely and beneficially owned by Mr

Shi Kancheng. Mr Shi Kancheng is the sole director of Whole Good
Management Limited.

CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

No contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s business in which

the Company, any of its subsidiaries, fellow subsidiaries or its parent

company was a party and in which a Director had a material interest,

whether directly or indirectly, subsisted during or at the end of the year

under review.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’
INTEREST IN THE SECURITIES OF THE
COMPANY

As at 31 December 2019, to the best knowledge of the Company, the
following parties (other than Directors or chief executives of the Company)
were recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under
Section 336 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company, as
being directly or indirectly interested or deemed to be interested in 5% or

EEERE

FERRRELFESFHED

BAARIFTA - R20195F12A31H + REFHA
RRAEBITHABI - RRAFRIREZES KAEK
PIEE336IKF B 2 B FTacss - SASITAE AR
DR BERUMEREE ISR ARBEAARD
FTIRARE% A 2 ATIAT

more of the issued share capital of the Company:

Approximate
percentage of the

Number of Company’s issued Long/Short
Name Capacity Shares held share capital (Note 2) Position
AATEBHITRA

=18 g4 iR EE BABED Wit2) %A
Whole Good Management Limited Beneficial owner 3,262,411,200 57.05% Long
(“Whole Good”) (Note 1) (H15%1) EnEFA e
Fountain | Limited Person having a 3,025,052,960 52.90% Long
security interest e

in Shares

HEEMREE AL
Unlisted derivations 517,636,364 9.05% Long
FEEMTET A R
Citigroup Inc. Person having a 387,495,271 6.78% Long
security interest S~

in Shares

BEEAERALT
Interest of controlled 2,651,439 0.05% Long
corporation e

Ry EE R
Interest of controlled 2,651,439 0.05% Short
corporation KB

Ry E
Approved lending agent 53,539,485 0.94% Long
AT E H AR iR
ICBC International Asset Investment manager 402,801,000 7.04% Long
Management Limited REKE S~y
BLEBFERAE] ZFE—NFFH
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Notes:

(1) Whole Good is wholly and beneficially owned by Mr Shi Kancheng, its
sole director. Mr Shi is the the chairman, an executive Director and the
chief executive officer of the Company. Mr Shi is deemed or taken to be
interested in the 3,262,411,200 Shares held by Whole Good by virtue of
Part XV of the SFO.

) The calculation is based on the total number of 5,718,638,800 Shares in
issue as at 31 December 2019.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2019 and the date of
this report, no person, other than a Director or chief executive of the
Company, had interests or short positions in the Shares and underlying
shares of the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company under Section 336 of the SFO.

RELATED PARTY AND CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

Details of significant related party transactions of the Group are set out in
note 39 to the financial statements.

None of the related party transactions constituted non-exempt connected
transactions or non-exempt continuing connected transactions in
accordance with the Listing Rules during the year ended 31 December
2019.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, as at the latest practicable date
prior to the issue of this annual report, the Company has maintained the
prescribed public float under the Listing Rules.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
LISTED SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Company repurchased
a total of 91,752,000 Shares on the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
general mandates granted by the shareholders at the annual general
meeting held on 5 June 2018 and 6 June 2019, details of which were as

EEERE

§ #H_‘.EEE.EIE*’A?JH"JJ:
REE2019F12A31BILFERN » AR RIRE
R2018F6 A5H M 2019F6 A6H BT 2 IE A
FRD ERERTH—RITE - REERATHEER
91,752,000/ %15 - BREEFFIESHANOT ¢

Fué A

follows:
Highest price Lowest price Aggregate
Month/year Shares purchased paid paid Considerations
R/ &4 BEROHE BRER(&ES) BRER (REK) RERE
HKD HKD HKD
BT T BT
May 2019 15,636,000 0.2700 0.2470 4,063,588.31
58/ 20194
June 2019 20,584,000 0.3150 0.2600 6,016,752.21
68/ 20194
July 2019 4,811,000 0.2800 0.2700 1,318,155.00
7R/ 20194
August 2019 6,616,000 0.2600 0.2390 1,659,845.00
8H/ 20194
September 2019 4,444,000 0.2500 0.2440 1,107,126.00
9A/ 20194
October 2019 23,887,000 0.2550 0.2400 5,906,828.00
10A/ 20195
November 2019 7,900,000 0.2450 0.2350 1,894,418.00
118/ 20194
December 2019 7,874,000 0.2390 0.2320 1,871,060.00
128/ 20195
91,752,000 23,837,772.52

All Shares repurchased were cancelled. The repurchases were effected
for the benefit of the Company and its Shareholders as a whole by
enhancing the value of the net assets and earnings per share of the
Company.

Saved as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
securities during the year ended 31 December 2019.
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DIRECTORS’ INDEMNITIES

The Company has arranged liability insurance for Directors and senior
management officers of the Company with appropriate coverage to
indemnify them from and against any legal actions arising from the
execution of their duties, and such insurance and indemnity was in force
during the year ended 31 December 2019 and remain effective as at the
date of this annual report.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

During the year under review, the Group made charitable donations
amounting to approximately RMB58,029,000 (2018: RMB9,324,000).

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND
UNCERTAINTIES

The Group’s principal risks and uncertainties are set out in the paragraphs
under “Principal Risks and Uncertainties” in the section headed
“Management Discussion and Analysis” of this annual report.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

The Company strives to balance business growth with environmental
protection.

As the major businesses of the Group are property development, leasing
and hotel operation in China, we evaluate, manage and mitigate from
time to time environmental issues within the context of the Group’s
business activities and objectives for the conservation of energy and
other natural resources; (i) devise environmental policies and measures
for the Group so as to keep them in line with the standards required
under the applicable laws, rules and regulations to the extent practicable;
and (i) apply our philosophy on environment protection to our supply
chain and operations. These include but not limited to the scrutiny in the
selection of our business partners or services providers and award the
bids of construction and other projects of which the Group is involved
to reputable and environmentally-conscientious corporations and
contractors with good compliant and environmental records.
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Several hotels as operated by the Group have been promoting
environmental protection policies for energy management, water
management and waste management to minimize the ecological
footprint of the hotel operation for years. To name a few, all lightings
and appliances will be replaced in phases by energy saving ones. Guest
rooms have room card insert energy saving switches and reduction in
paper usage in the office and promote storage of files in electronic forms
instead of in paper files. On the front of our leasing business, we are
careful in the selection of our lessees and implemented environmental
policies and measures in the operation of leasing business, including the
management of the properties leased by the Group.

The Group has also implemented energy saving practices in the
workplace through (i) appropriately designing, constructing, maintaining
and, if required, modifying facilities wherever applicable; (i) using or
to replacing gradually existing appliances with more energy efficient
appliances for lighting, heating and ventilation systems to reduce energy
consumption and (i) raising awareness of environmental protection at
workplace.

During the year under review, there had been no record of material
breach or violation by the Group of applicable environmental laws, rules
or regulations.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

The Group has kept itself abreast with the development of laws, rules and
regulations which have or may have an impact on, and has been abiding
the laws, rules and regulations applicable to, the operation of its business.

The Group has implemented procedures and policies, employed
suitable personnel and engaged professional advisers to ensure that (i)
such approvals, permits and licences necessary for the operation of its
businesses are obtained; and (ji) its operations are being run in line with
the applicable laws, rules and regulations. During the year under review,
there had been no material violation of the applicable laws, rules and
regulations by the Group.
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RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES,
CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Company is committed to maintaining, and has maintained good
relationships with, its employees, customers and suppliers with a view
to fostering better mutual understanding and/or a sense of belonging
towards the Company. This is conducive to implementing the Group’s
strategies and business objectives, as well as the Group’s business
development and sustainability in the long run.

The Group believes that our people are critical success factors to the
Group’s competitiveness in the market. To attract high calibre people
and solidify the management of the Group, eligible participants (including
employees of the Group) may be granted options to subscribe for Shares
pursuant to the share option scheme adopted by the Company. The
Group also provides continuous learning and training programs to its
employees to enhance their skills and knowledge, so as to maintain their
competitiveness.

Customer satisfaction with our services and products has a profound
effects on our profitability. Our dedicated team of sales people are in
constant communication with our customers and potential customers to
uncover and create customer needs and help customers make informed
decisions. To grasp the market trend is critical for the Group to timely
adjust our operating strategies to fit the market requirement.

Collaborative and mutual beneficial business relationship with our
strategic suppliers and contractors is of important to achieve higher
levels of efficiency and competitive advantage. The Group evaluates the
capabilities of our supplier and contractors to determine if they are able to
meet the requirement and needs of the Group from time to time.

Developing and maintaining good relationship with various commercial
banks and financial institutions always are our main tasks because our
capital-intensive projects require on-going funding to maintain continuous
growth.
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ISSUE OF EQUITY SECURITIES

The Company did not carry out any fund raising activities by way of issue
of equity securities for the year ended 31 December 2019.

CHANGE IN DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B of the Listing Rules, the changes in Directors’
information are set out below:

1. Professor Pei Ker Wei, an independent non-executive Director,
resigned as an independent non-executive director of MMG Limited
(a company listed on Main Board of the Stock Exchange), with
effect from 4 December 2019.

2. Mr Zhang Huagiao, an independent non-executive Director,
resigned as a non-executive director of China Smartpay Group
Holdings Limited (a company listed on GEM of the Stock
Exchange), with effect from 20 January 2020.

3. Dr Loke Yu (alias Loke Hoi Lam), an independent non-executive
Director, resigned as an independent non-executive director of
Lamtex Holdings Limited (a company listed on Main Board of the
Stock Exchange), with effect from 23 March 2020.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Details of the matters that occurred and bore significant effect to the
Group between the year end date and the date of this report are set out
in the section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” of this
annual report.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed from Monday,
8 June 2020 to Thursday, 11 June 2020 (both days inclusive), during
which period no transfer of shares can be registered. In order to qualify
for attending and voting at the AGM, all transfers accompanied by the
relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s Hong
Kong branch share registrar and transfer office, Tricor Investor Services
Limited at Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong
Kong, not later than 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 5 June 2020.
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EEEHRS

In order to determine the identity of the Shareholders who are qualified
to receive the proposed final dividend, the register of members of the
Company will be closed from Wednesday, 17 June 2020 to Friday,
19 June 2020 (both days inclusive), during which period no transfer of
Shares will be effected. To qualify for the proposed final dividend, all
duly completed transfer documents accompanied by the relevant share
certificates must be lodged with the Company’s Hong Kong branch share
registrar and transfer office, Tricor Investor Services Limited at Level 54,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong, not later than
4:30 p.m. on Tuesday, 16 June 2020.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company was entered into
or existed during the year.

DISCLOSURE UNDER RULE 13.20 OF
THE LISTING RULES

The Directors were not aware of any circumstances resulting in the
responsibility of disclosure under Rule 13.20 of the Listing Rules regarding
the provision of advances by the Company to an entity.

AUDITOR

Ermnst & Young will retire and a resolution for its re-appointment as auditor
of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Zhong An Group Limited

Shi Kancheng

Chairman

The People’s Republic of China, 31 March 2020
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Independent Auditor’s Report

EY =i«

To the shareholders of Zhong An Group Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an exempted company with
limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of ZHONG AN
GROUP LIMITED (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set
out on pages 114 to 309, which comprise the consolidated statement
of financial position as at 31 December 2019, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2019, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board (the “IASB”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”). Our responsibilities under those standards
are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of
the consolidated financial statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

B ZBETRE

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our description of how
our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly,
our audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond to
our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements. The results of our audit procedures, including the
procedures performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for
our audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

2019 Annual Report
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Independent Auditor’s Report

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

Key audit matter

Valuation of investment properties

As at 31 December 2019, the Group’s
investment properties amounted to
RMB5,679 million, which represented
19% of the Group’s total assets. Investment
properties were stated at fair value.
Management is required to exercise
significant judgement in determining the
fair value of investment properties as
disclosed in note 3 to the consolidated
financial statements.

The Group engaged an external valuation
expert to perform the valuation of investment
properties. The valuation methods applied
included the direct comparison approach
and income approach which involved
various assumptions, such as estimated
rental revenues, discount rates, occupancy
rates, historical transactions and market
knowledge.

The related disclosures are included in
notes 2.4, 3 and 13 to the consolidated
financial statements.

How our audit addressed the key audit
matter

We evaluated the competence and
independence of the external valuation
expert engaged by the Group. We
performed audit procedures including
checking those signed rental contracts,
comparing the unit price of adjacent
similar properties that were benchmarked
in the valuation process, and assessing
assumptions related to future market
rents, the discount rates and future
maintenance costs applied based on
historical experiences with the involvement
of our internal valuation specialists, who
focused on the term yield, reversionary yield
and market unit rent. We also assessed
the adequacy of the disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements.
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B ZBETRE

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit
matter

Net realisable value of completed properties held for sale and properties under

development

As at 31 December 2019, the Group’s
properties under development and
completed properties held for sale
amounted to RMB13,317 million, which
represented 44% of the Group’s total
assets. These properties were stated at
the lower of cost and net realisable value.
The net realisable value was estimated by
management based on expected selling
prices, the cost of completion of properties
under development, and the costs to be
incurred in selling the properties based on
prevailing market conditions. The estimation
of the net realisable value involved significant
judgement.

The related disclosures are included in
notes 2.4, 3, 14 and 25 to the consolidated
financial statements.

We reviewed the Group’s net realisable
value estimation and checked the expected
selling prices to prices of similar properties
presold by the Group recently or adjacent
properties sold. For the cost of completion
of properties under development and the
costs to be incurred in selling the properties,
we evaluated management’s estimation
methodology, which has been updated to
reflect the latest historical information and
the refined construction and selling costs
budget process.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

Key audit matter

Impairment assessment of goodwill

The carrying values of goodwill
and intangible assets amounted to
approximately RMB99 million and RMB34
million as at 31 December 2019. Under
IFRSs, the Group is required to perform an
impairment test for goodwill annually and
the other intangible assets with definite
useful lives are reviewed whether there
is any indication of impairment at each
reporting period end. An impairment test
itself for other intangible assets with definite
useful lives only has to be carried out if
there are such indications. The impairment
test is based on the recoverable value of the
cash-generating units (‘CGU") to which the
goodwill is assigned to.

Management’s assessment process was
complex and significant judgement was
involved, including the degree of subjectivity
of expected future cash flow forecasts,
associated growth rates and the discount
rate applied.

The related disclosures are included in
notes 2.4, 16 and 17 to the consolidated
financial statements.

How our audit addressed the key audit
matter

We have involved our internal valuation
specialists to assist us in evaluating the
models and certain assumptions used by
the Group in the impairment test of goodwill
and other intangible assets. We paid
attention to the forecasts used with respect
to future revenues and operating results by
comparing the forecasts with the historical
performance of the group of CGU. We have
also reviewed the Group’s assessment of
whether there had been any indicators of
impairment of the other intangible assets
with definite useful lives for the year. We
also checked the related disclosures.
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B ZBETRE

OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN
THE ANNUAL REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the Annual
Report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with IFRSs issued by the IASB and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors of the Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in

discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.

2019 Annual Report
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Independent Auditor’s Report

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as a
body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

B ZBETRE

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We
are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of
the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B AR E

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR BREMEBEZSHMEERERNE
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED £ (#8)

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(CONTINUED)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we IRIEEBEZEZESEENEE KR AEHSE
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the BRI BEZAHREAHPKBERMN s REENE
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore 18 © FIL BN = BEIXEFIE - HAEZBMBRE
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report ~ FiFiBAZ S EE © BIBEARBEEZ I ARHEE
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or %2 =8 @ sk ((EB L EHISH T) AR ETHERE
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should 3% 8 E % iR i /A B3 3 B8 P s 2R M9 & HE 125+ F P
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences R/ EIB T EERMIHME IR E -

of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest

benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent  #HREARNB L ZHAHRENEFEZNEZABMK

auditor’s report is Siu Fung Terence Ho. # o

Yours faithfully, IR

Ernst & Young BKETHERE AR
Certified Public Accountants HEBIAD

Hong Kong B

31 March 2020 202093 A31H
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

X 1l N2
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Year ended 31 December 2019 #Z2019F 12 A31 HILFE

2019 2018
20194 20184
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
KiaE AR¥TT ARET T
Revenue WA %) 6,204,683 5,169,369
Cost of sales SHEKAR (3,415,866) (3,471,274)
Gross profit EF 2,788,817 1,698,095
Other income and gains E U A KUz 5 98,663 53,030
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHERAS (272,593) (259,158)
Administrative expenses TR (459,351) (429,205)
Other expenses Hpas (64,184) (58,007)
Finance costs Y58 A 7 (190,382) (114,693)
Fair value gain/(loss) upon transfer to EREREMEN LA EERK
investment properties %/ (E518) 13 50,642 (25,030)
Changes in fair value of investment BEMEN DN EEE
properties & (37,503) 21,169
Share of profits and losses of: DMEATRBINEF],E5E
Joint ventures BEPE 20 9,950 (2,629)
Associates R l/NG] (3,500) =
Profit before tax BR%: AT A 6 1,920,559 883,572
Income tax expense FrS R 10 (916,528) (520,509)
Profit for the year FRFE 1,004,031 363,063
Attributable to: LA A -
Owners of the parent SARHER A 637,144 286,881
Non-controlling interests JEPE AR i A 366,887 76,182
1,004,031 363,063
Earnings per share attributable to BAREBREEA
ordinary equity holders of the parent EEERER 11
Basic R RMB11 cents RMBS cents
AR¥N1S AR5
Diluted e RMB11 cents RMBS5 cents
AR®11S AR#ESS
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

FEE W@ R

Year ended 31 December 2019 #Z2019F 12 A31 HIEFE

2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T ARETFIT
Profit for the year FRFE 1,004,031 363,063
Other comprehensive income Hib2mEk=
Other comprehensive income that REZBEEHRSES
may be reclassified to profit or BmhEM 2l
loss in subsequent periods:
Exchange differences: b =58
Exchange differences on translation of MEBINETSE M N 58
foreign operations 22,450 23,868
Net other comprehensive income REZHBEEFT S EZIEEN
that may be reclassified to profit or loss HivzmEk e F58
in subsequent periods 22,450 23,868
Other comprehensive income that will REZBEBTIEENHBEEER
not be reclassified to profit or loss K EAtb 2 A ¢
in subsequent periods:
Equity investments designated at fair value 5 EAZ AR EBEFEHAEEH)tA
through other comprehensive income: Hh 2 E 1R E W
Changes in fair value R BEZE) - 9,000
Income tax effect FriStis & - (2,250)
Net other comprehensive income that REZHEBTEENSEE
will not be reclassified to profit or loss BmAEtm ks F58
in subsequent periods - 6,750
Total comprehensive income FRAZHEWHAE
for the year 1,026,481 393,681
Attributable to: LA A -
Owners of the parent NEEA A 655,706 318,763
Non-controlling interests FEPERR M A 370,775 74,918
1,026,481 393,681
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

BOHFIFINR R

31 December 2019 2019412 A31 H

2019 2018
2019 20184
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
(0fz3 ARETR AREFT
Non-current assets *RBEE
Property and equipment E B 12 2,578,146 2,116,482
Investment properties KEE 13 5,358,640 5,502,607
Properties under development FERYE 14 1,376,933 1,157,623
Right-of-use assets FREEE 15 354,339 =
Goodwill EE 16 98,995 -
Other intangible assets HEp EE 17 34,257 =
Restricted cash XRER S 29 44,513 49,558
Equity investments designated at fair value BAREBEFAEMEERE
through other comprehensive income MR E 18 476,729 423,605
Long term prepayments REFTER X 19 1,194,773 706,929
Investments in joint ventures REELENETE 20 50,994 =
Investments in associates REE A RIRIRE 22 - =
Deferred tax assets RERIEE E 23 69,418 52,745
Total non-current assets BIFRBEE 11,637,737 10,009,549
Current assets RBEE
Completed properties held for sale BHEHED ZR M 25 3,167,154 4,231,066
Properties under development PR 14 8,772,994 7,352,963
Inventories et 34,747 29,731
Trade receivables FEE SRR 27 80,065 56,029
Prepayments, other receivables and other assets  F8{43% « E b EUGEIE R A& E 28 1,880,931 950,141
Financial assets at fair value through AR BEFEAEZHA
profit or loss EHERNEREE 26 57,268 76,635
Loans to joint ventures ERTARELE 21 90,508 67,304
Loans to associates =G Gk /NE] 22 116,184 175,300
Restricted cash ZRHIRE 29 881,774 551,461
Cash and cash equivalents ReKREFEY 29 3,132,577 1,539,762
Investment properties classified as held for sale D EAREHERIREME 13 320,500 25,993
Total current assets BREEE 18,534,702 15,056,385
Current liabilities RBERE
Advance from a joint venture AEDETRBGR 156,519 228,293
Trade payables FEfHE SR 30 1,315,415 1,700,198
Other payables and accruals Hofth eI K e+ B A 31 1,007,909 916,793
Contract liabilities aHaE 32 6,904,246 4,452,309
Lease liabilities HESRE 15 34,109 =
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings SERTERREMER 33 2,489,530 1,384,960
Tax payable FERTIR 10 1,605,443 1,198,762
Total current liabilities BrREas 13,603,171 9,881,315
Net current assets RBEETFE 4,931,531 5,175,070
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBEE 16,569,268 15,184,619
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

B BRR R

31 December 2019 20194 12 A31H

2019 2018
20195 20184
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Kzt ARETT ARETIT
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings STRIRITER R EMBER 33 4,731,245 3,383,125
Deferred tax liabilities RLERIEAR 23 980,843 995,486
Lease liabilities HEAE 15 336,494 =
Other non-current liabilities HipIEReasE - 1,255,889
Total non-current liabilities BIERBEE 6,048,582 5,634,500
Net assets FEE 10,520,686 9,550,119
Equity Ex
Equity attributable to owners of the parent RARHEA AELER
Share capital AR A 34 506,181 514,342
Reserves [ 36 7,930,112 7,240,868
8,436,293 7,755,210
Non-controlling interests IR R 2,084,393 1,794,909
Total equity MR 10,520,686 9,550,119
Shi Kancheng Shen Tiaojuan 2 2
Director Director B BX R3]
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
SRR EEE

Year ended 31 December 2019 #Z2019F 12 A31 HILFE

Attibutabl to owners of the parent

BiAREARR
Fairvale
teserve of
financial assets
atfar value
Share Statutory throughother ~~ Exchange Non-
premium  Contibuted Gapial  Share option sups  Statutory comprehensive  fuctuation  Retained controling
Share capital aocount suplus resene Tesene resene  resenvefund income resene profts Tolal  inferests  Totalequity
gﬁjﬁf{%ﬁﬁ
Br BREEE  EARM  Ba%ge mm %Eﬁ%ﬁﬁ Hesge %WMEZ Eibazes  RaRd g feREE A
RBO  RB0  RBOD  RIBOO RUBON RUBO0  RVBOD  RWBODD  RWBON  RWBOD

ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETR AE%’L F%{ ARETT M%ﬁ MRETT ARMfR ARETT ARETR ARETR
Mot Noediy  Note8p) Noe%‘[c) Nota 35 Note%[d) Note 3
TIN5 JO  J =2

At January 2018 WiEIAIR 56409 302508 B3 wan 11849 1340 829 - (oo 33602 T40%8  TME 908916
Poft o theyear Eie - - - - - - - - - 286881 Pl 16,182 33068
Otercompetensie oo eyea: EREHRELE:

Cranges i v of ety esnents Csipreted -~ % BRDAEEBAZED
s trough obercompetersieoome re e PARRENERERRE

1833 ; . . : - - - W - - W - W
Bictengs dfeencs e o orein opetons R - - - - - - - - hR - B T
Tt oompreesie oo eyar ﬁ%ﬁ%% - - - - - - - 675 PR/ . TR Y ) T8 e
Addtionofnon-contoling eess REHERES - - - - - - - - - - - 1o 12851
Repuchase o shares iﬂh i 2370 (115 - 7y - - - - - - (16682 (10469 1149
Berisof aeapions IR py 148 - - g - - - - - i - i\
Streopon e EhEnn - - - - 840 - - - - 840 - - -
Sty supls esene i - - - - - (il - - - &) -
At 31 Decamber 2018 DEENAYA 43R 304 038 285,166° 110,109° 2410 82 650" % SEN TR0 TS 950119
Puot o te e L - - - - - - - - ST R ATV 1
(thercomprehensisPoomefor e e ERApaing:
Bcteng dfeencs e o orein opetons R - - - - - - - - 18362 - 18562 W e
Tt oompreesie oo eyear Ll - - - - - - - - 1% MM GEN6 TS 10
tionofrncioling eests TEHRER - - - - - - - - - - - 350 350
Aoistion of a sty W-FhENE - - - - - - - - - - - 268 208
yitionof on-contolig st JEsehER - - - 5780 - - - - - - 5780 o5 (f06m)
Renuchese f haes i) 8 I 1] - - - - - - - - R - p®
S ptimeiy EheER - - - - @ - - - - .
Sttutorysuplsreseng FrBRNEL - - - - - (18,740) - - - 18740 - - -
Dicendspid o ool e BiARRRRS - - - - - - - - - - O X/ X
Ceptal ot peid bk o anoncorolig haehoder - EREIGREERTR - - - - - - - - - - B I )
Liicaonof a sty -HEAARE - - - - - - - - - - - %) 0
Diion e 0 sance e shaes Al

byasbstay . . Y, . . . . . -um DM e
At 31 Decamber 2019 DOENAYA St 200950 318 wpr 50.331* 196530 8200 6,750t ey 4%6f 84620 200433 105206%
* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of * ZEHREREREAMNUBRRIERE O

RMB7,930,112,000 (2018: RMB7,240,868,000) in the consolidated statement of B ARY7,930,112,0007T (20184 : AR
financial position. 7,240,868,0007T) ©
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Bt RERER

Year ended 31 December 2019 #HZE 20194 12 31 BIEFE

2019 2018
2019%F 2018%F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Vir23 ARETR ARETFT
Cash flows from operating activities RELENHASRE
Profit before tax BRT A 1,920,559 883,572
Adjustments for: R
Depreciation of property and equipment RERSENE 12 83,383 59,811
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEENE 15 53,615 =
Amortisation of other intangible assets Hib @ A 17 433 =
Fair value (gain)/loss upon transfer to BRERENENALEE
investment properties (Wez) /B8 13 (50,642) 25,030
Changes in fair value of investment properties BEMENDABEED 13 37,503 (21,169)
Changes in fair value of financial assets at fair value BAREEFEAEFEHALES
through profit or loss BaNeMEERALBEY 6 (31,561) 2,070
(Realise & recognise)/write down of completed properties (23 RHER) /M 2k FE
held for sale to net realisable value MEZAERFE 25 (27,664) 28,235
Loss on disposal of investment properties HERBYENER/ (k&) 6 1,427 28,576
Finance costs HHER 7 190,382 114,693
Share of profits and losses of: AMEATRFERESE
Joint ventures REME (9,950) 2,629
Associates i YN 3,500 =
Gain on fair value re-measurement of existing equity in ER—ZH T EEAHHREERN
business combination not under common control NhBEEF 2R 6 (451) =
2,170,534 1,123,447
Increase in properties under development (RS ES (2,836,384) (248,507)
Increase in investment properties BEMFEEM - (24,924)
Decrease/(increase) in completed properties held for sale BIEEEREMERD /(&) 1,032,035 (810,501)
(Increase)/decrease in trade receivables FEWE SRR R 0 m) /Hd (22,864) 8,210
(Increase)/decrease in deposits and other receivables e R EMREKEIE M) Hd (44,712) 5,731
Increase in prepayments and other assets BNFEEMEEEMN (714,400) (191,852)
Increase in long term prepayments REB{IFEM (494,245) (470,264)
Increase in inventories FEEM (4,289) (12,300)
(Increase)/decrease in restricted cash for pre-sale proceeds  FBEFIEFERRFIE S (L), Hd (321,369) 99,435
Decrease in trade payables ENESRFTRD (392,201) (47,706)
Increase/(decrease) in other payables and accruals HthErE R e EAE M/ (R 119,391 (131,996)
Increase/(decrease) in contract liabilties BHBREEM/ (RD) 2,183,431 (91,709)
Cash generated from/(used in) operations BEERELE )/ (BR)HEE 674,921 (792,936)
Interest paid BAFIE (391,362) (302,514)
Income tax and land appreciation tax paid BB R HIEER (457,060) (192,945)
Net cash used in operating activities RELBRANRSRETE (173,501) (1,288,395)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

EHEERER

Year ended 31 December 2019 &ZE 2019412 A31 BIEFE

2019 2018
2019% 20184
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
M ARETR ARETT
Cash flows from investing activities REXBHWRERE
Acquisition of subsidiaries WOER R 2 ] (267,254) -
Acquisition of joint ventures WEagtx (41,044) (2,000)
Loans to joint ventures AREMEER (23,204) (67,304)
Repayment from/(loans to) associates BANAER/ (ABHLRAER) 59,116 (175,300)
Purchase of investment on financial assets at fair value BERARBEEAEEHFALH
through profit or loss BaneREERE (104,710) (124,126)
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets at fair value HERAREETZAEEHHAZH
through profit or loss BafemEEMSHE 155,638 117,719
Increase in investment properties BEMELEM (131,218) (107,731)
Proceeds from disposal of investment properties HEREMERETE 320,437 301,428
Purchases of items of property and equipment BARERZIEERE (189,389) (130,848)
(Prepayment to)/advance from a joint venture (MEERFEEN /AERERNK (71,774) 119,773
Investment on equity investments designated at fair value ~ 1EE AR AL EEFTEREEEH:TA
through other comprehensive income Hi2ARENERRE (95,487) (46,952)
Proceeds from disposal of items of property and equipment L EREE KA #EE R TS 50E 593 14,367
(Increase)/decrease in restricted cash SRERE (B, HD (3,899) 230,206
Capital refund to a non-controlling shareholder BRRETIEREE (200) =
Investment on an associate RE—FRBE R (3,500) =
Net cash (used in)/generated from investing activities RE%£%# (R)  ELNREFEFE (395,895) 129,232
Cash flows from financing activities BETHELENRSRE
Dividend paid to non-controlling shareholders ST IEERARR AR B (168,397) -
Capital reduction paid back to a non-controlling shareholder 1 [ 3FHERRAS 3R #) & AR B R (46,550) =
New interest-bearing bank and other borrowings et BRITER R EMER 6,067,000 2,955,216
Repurchase of shares BRERH (21,252) (27,148)
Repayment of interest-bearing bank and other borrowings Bt BB TE R L E M E T (3,614,310) (2,746,550)
Acquisition of non-controling interests hGERuie 2 3,500 122,651
Exercise of share options il e - 1,771
Principal portion of lease payments HEMFHASED (30,950) =
Acquisition of non-controling interests W FE R (10,675) -
Decrease in an amount due to a non-controlling shareholder & sf3E% AR A R FuE > 31 (22,653) (120,950)
Net cash generated from financing activities METHELNRERETFE 2,155,713 184,990
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents BE&REEZEYEM/ (RL) B8 1,586,317 (974,173)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year FReLREEEY 1,539,762 2,502,367
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net EXEHNTE  FH 6,498 11,568
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year EXRRSRESEEY 3,132,577 1,539,762
Analysis of balances of cash and cash equivalents BERBSEBNESRINT
Cash and bank balances Be RFITHEH 29 3,132,577 1,539,762
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Notes to Financial Statements

1.

CORPORATE AND GROUP
INFORMATION

Zhong An Group Limited (formerly as Zhong An Real Estate
Limited) (the “Company”) is a limited liability company incorporated
as an exempted company in the Cayman Islands on 13 March
2007 under the Companies Law (revised) of the Cayman Islands.
The registered office address of the Company is Cricket Square,
Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman
Islands.

The Company and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) are
principally engaged in property development, property leasing
and hotel operations. The Group’s property development projects
during the year were almost located in Zhejiang, Anhui, Jiangsu,
Shandong and Yunnan provinces, the People’s Republic of China
(the “PRC”). There were no significant changes in the nature of the
Group’s principal activities during the year.

The Company was listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “HKSE”) with the stock code “00672”
on 13 November 2007 and raised capital amounting to HK$ 3,621
million from the market.

In the opinion of the Company’s directors (the “Directors”),
the holding company and the ultimate holding company of the
Company is Whole Good Management Limited, a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands on 3 May 2007. Whole
Good Management Limited is wholly owned by Mr. Shi Kancheng,
the Chairman of the Company.

BAFE R AR MY RE

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

LT REETH

BREEEERAR (AIBARTEEARA
7)) ([AAR)) 200743 13BRIEM2
HERARDAE@E]) ERERSTMA A
BEHRREMRAT o ARAIREMPF SRt
#Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box
2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman
Islands °

ARABREMBEAR (G AEE]) T2/
EYERE  MEREREELE - FA -
AEBEMMEREIRB LN EARKA
B(HhEDAT - 2% T#  ILRKER
g FRAAKENTEXBHEYBELE

AARR2007F11 A13AREEBH AR S
FTERR AR ([EABRZAT]) ER T - B&D
Rt AI00672] - BB EARAES, 621
BEET -

EKARREERE(EFRA  ARFH
2R N Bl R AR R A Bl B Whole Good
Management Limited © —Z 200745 H3
BEEBHERHSTMK BRG] - XA
RIEZRIEIMK L EZ2E R A Whole Good

Management Limited °
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Notes to Financial Statements

PSRRI RE

31 December 2019 20194 12 431 H

— == ==
1. CORPORATE AND GROUP 1. AFIREEFEH ()
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
Information about subsidiaries EBRHEARNER
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows: M AEFERT
Issued ordinary shares/ Percentage of equity
Place and date of registered capital as attributable to the Group
incorporation/registration at 31 December 2019 as at at 31 December
and place of business 2019512731 FEERERER DL
Name of company FMAL/ BIR BRITLERSD/ 2019 2018 Principal activities
DRER EHtERAE FRER 2019% 018F IEBEH
MIRZEHERLREERAR PRC/Mainland China RMB2,000,000 51.7% 56.1%  Property development
Zhejiang Zhong An Property Development 3 April 1997 AR#2,000,0007T MERE
Xiaoshan Co,, Ltd. e/ hER
19974 A3R
RREBER AT PRC/Mainland China RMB500,000,000 90.0% 90.0%  Property development and
Zhong An Group Co., Ltd. © 26 December 1997 AR%500,000,0007 leasing
E/HER MERERES
1997412 A26H
L RENERBERAT PRC/Mainland China RMB26,000,000 90.0% 90.0%  Property service
Zhejiang Zhong An Property Co., Ltd. ® 18 November 1998 AR%26,000,00070 nERS
E/ HER
199811 A 18H
CYREEHEREARAF PRC/Mainland China 1US$5,000,000 100.0% 100.0%  Property development
Anhui Zhong An Real Estate Development 9 August 2001 5,000,000%7 VEEE S
Co., Ltd. e/ REN
200148A9H
CHRZEZARAR PRC/Mainland China RMB57,000,000 84.2% 84.2%  Property development
Anhui Zhong An Real Estate Co., Ltd.® 17 January 2003 AR%57,000,0007 mERE
E/HER
2003F1A178
e N PRC/Mainland China RMB50,000,000 92.6% 92.6%  Property development
Hangzhou Danube Real Estate Co., Ltd. ® 7 March 2003 AR%50,000,00070 MERE
E/RER,
2003%3A7H
ERREREESERAR PRC/Mainland China RMBS6,000,000 63.8% 69.2%  Property development
Chunan Minfu Property Co., Ltd. © 24 Qctober 2003 AE#6,000,0007C mERE
E/HER
2003F10A248
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Notes to Financial Statements

1.

AR AR M

31 December 2019 20194F 12 A31 H

CORPORATE AND GROUP 1. 2FIREEFE (18)

INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
FENRBARNER (&)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows: (continued) MEBARFBWT : (8)

Issued ordinary shares/ Percentage of equity
Place and date of registered capital as attributable to the Group
incorporation/registration at 31 December 2019 as at at 31 December
and place of business 20195124318 REBEGRER AL
Name of company SR/ BRI K CRTLERD/ 2019 2018 Principal activities
NRER EBtERAE SRER 20195 018F FEEE
ZRRTYEERERAR PRC/Mainland China RMB3,000,000 90.0% 90.0%  Property management
Anhui Zhong An Property Management 24 November 2003 AR#3,000,0007 NEER
Co., Ltd. ® i/ hER
2003411 A24H
HEREEHEREERAR PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000,000 57.4% 62.3%  Property leasing
Shanghai Zhong An Property 19 January 2004 AE%10,000,00070 NEME
Development Co., Ltd. ¥ E/FER
200451A198
HLESEZERAR PRC/Mainland China US$77,600,000 63.6% 69.0%  Property development
Zhejiang Huijun Real Estate Co., Ltd. @ 1 April 2005 77,600,000 7 L
FE/RER
2005F4A1R
MR EEEEERAR PRC/Mainland China RMB2,000,000 57.4% 62.3%  Property management
Hangzhou Zhong An Highlong 20 September 2005 AR%2,000,0007 NEER
Commercial Buldings Co., Ltd. HE/RER
2005459 A20H
MNEIEHEREERAR PRC/Mainland China RMB50,000,000 59.0% 64.0%  Property development
Hangzhou Zheng Jiang Real Estate 16 March 2006 AR%50,000,0007 VEE
Development Co., Ltd. E /R
200637 16H
BHMEEER M) BRAR PRC/Meainland China US$149,061,280 63.8% 69.2%  Property development
Henlly Enterprise Management 4 December 2006 149,061,280% 7T mERE
(Hangzhou) Co., Ltd. BB/ HERH
2006512 348
MNBILRZERBEERAR PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000,000 57.4% 62.3%  Hotel management
Hangzhou Xiaoshan Zhong'an Holiday Inn 28 May 2007 K 10,000,007 BEER
Co., Ltd. @ hE/hER
20075 28R
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Notes to Financial Statements

PSRRI RE

31 December 2019 20194 12 A31 H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP 1. 2AFIREEFE (8)
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
ERHBATNEE (@)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows: (continued) MEBARFBNT : (8

Issued ordinary shares/ Percentage of equity
Place and date of registered capital as attributable to the Group
incorporation/registration at 31 December 2019 as at at 31 December
and place of business 2019512A31H REBEGRER AL
Name of company SR/ BIK BRTLERD/ 2019 2018 Principal activities
NEER EBHERAH AfEx 2019% 0185 FEEH
ARG EBENEERERAR PRC/Mainland China RMB500,000 90.0% 90.0%  Property management
Hefei Green Bay Property Management Co., 1 August 2007 ARE500,0007 NEER
Ltd, ® i/ Rk
200748A1H
AERZRABEERAH PRC/Mainland China RMB350,000,000 63.8% 69.2%  Hotel management
Hefei Zhong'an Holiday Inn Co., Ltd. ® 18 March 2008 AE%350,000,0007 BEER
i/ PERD
2008537 18H
MIRRRZHEERAT PRC/Meainland China RMB10,000,000 90.0% 90.0%  Agriculture development
Zhejiang Anyuan Agriculture Development 11 June 2009 AR#10,000,0007C RERE
Co., Ltd. /R,
2009F6A11H
MNRREZERAF PRC/Mainland China RMB200,000,000 90.0% 90.0%  Property development
Hangzhou Zhong An Property Co., Ltd. @ 1 February 2010 AE%200,000,0007 mERE
i/ PER
201062A1H
RARLEHEREERAT PRC/Meainland China RMB100,000,000 90.0% 90.0%  Property development
Yuyao Zhong An Property Development 5 March 2010 AK#100,000,0007T S
Co., Ltd. # /R
2010F3A5H
MNERESEREERAR PRC/Mainland China RMB100,000,000 45.9% 459%  Property development
Hangzhou Anyuan Property Development 14 September 2010 AE%100,000,0007C mERE
Co,, Ltd. /B
2010697 14H
RRREZBRAF PRC/Mainland China US$15,000,000 93.0% 93.0%  Property development
Yuyao Zhong An Property Co., Ltd.® 10 December 2010 15,000,000% 7 MERE
e/ HEN
20106125108
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AR AR M

31 December 2019 20194F 12 A31 H

CORPORATE AND GROUP 1. 2FIREEFE (18)

INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
FENRBARNER (&)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

MBARFENT : (8

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows: (continued)

Issued ordinary shares/ Percentage of equity
Place and date of registered capital as attributable to the Group
incorporation/registration at 31 December 2019 as at at 31 December
and place of business 20195124318 REBEGRER AL
Name of company SR/ BRI K CRTLERD/ 2019 2018 Principal activities
NRER EBtERAE SRER 2019% 20185 TEEH
HIRZEHEREERAR PRC/Mainland China RMB20,000,000 90.0% 90.0%  Property development
Zhejiang Zhong An Property Development 4 August 2011 AK#20,000,00070 MERE
Co., Ltd. ® i/ hER
20118 4R
FUFRZHNESAEEEERAR  PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000,000 57.4% 62.3%  Property management
Yuyao Zhong An Times Square 6 December 2011 AR 10,000,000 NEER
Commercial Management Co., Ltd. @ S /shE R
2011512768
BERREHEREERAR PRC/Mainland China RMB100,000,000 90.0% 90.0%  Property management
Cixi Zhong An Real Estate Development 28 February 2013 AR%100,000,0007C MEER
Co., Ltd. ® i/ hER,
2013F2A28H
AFRERRESREERAR PRC/Mainland China RMB100,000,000 57.4% 62.3%  Property development
Yuyao Zhong An Times Square 5 August 2013 AK#4100,000,0007T I
Development Co., Ltd. ¥ RE/RERL
2013E8A5A
AARRBRBSESXER AT PRC/Mainland China US$16,000,000 59.3% 64.4%  Property development
Yuyao Zhong An Times Square Property 13 August 2013 16,000,000 7T MERE
Co., Ltd. @ /R,
201387130
IR LR EREERAR PRC/Mainland China RMB50,000,000 57.4% 62.3%  Property management
Zhejiang Zhong An Sheng Long 9 September 2013 AR%50,000,00070 NEER
Commercial Co., Ltd. E/FER
20139 A9A
BERRERBRAA PRC/Mainland China RMB50,000,000 57.4% 62.3%  Property development
Cixi Zhong An Property Co., Ltd. 6 December 2013 AR%50,000,0007 MERE
e/ RER
2018512161
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PSRRI RE

31 December 2019 20194 12 A31 H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP 1.
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows: (continued)

AT REKERH (])

BEKEQRNER (8)

MBARFENT : (8

Issued ordinary shares/ Percentage of equity
Place and date of registered capital as attributable to the Group
incorporation/registration at 31 December 2019 as at at 31 December
and place of business 2019512A31H REBEGRER AL
Name of company SR/ BIK BRTLERD/ 2019 2018 Principal activities
NRER EMtERAH SRER 20195 018F FEEH
MNBZEHEREERAR PRC/Mainland China RMB200,000,000 90.0% 90.0%  Property development
Hangzhou Zhong An Property Co., Ltd. © 18 April 2014 K 200,000,000 MERE
i/ Rk
2014548188
MNRREEREMEXER AR PRC/Mainland China RMB20,000,000 57.4% 62.3%  Property development
Hangzhou Zhong An Sheng Long Liyumen 21 April 2014 AE%20,000,00070 mERE
Property Co., Ltd. @ e/ Bt
2014548218
MNEREEEXERAF PRC/Mainland China US$50,000,000 63.8% 69.2%  Property development
Hangzhou Xixi Huiin Property Co., Ltd.® 18 November 2015 50,000,000 7 L
PE/REN
201511 7188
iR B ENERNEEERAE British Virgin Islands US$1 63.8% 69.2%  Investment holding
Bright Hotels & Resorts Management 8 July 2014 E RAER
Limited @ ABRRRAS
2014€7A8A
HEFH T EEEEERAR Cayman Islands HK$173,800,000 63.8% 69.2% Investment holding
China New City Commercial Development 2 July 2013 173,800,00057C REER
Limited © FEHS
2013%7A2R
MNEREZBRAR PRC/Mainland China RMB100,000,000 90.0% 90.0%  Property management
Hangzhou Run'an Property Co., Ltd. © 27 July 2015 AE%100,000,0007C NEER
i/ PER
20155 7R278
AR CEERARAR PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000,000 57.4% 62.3%  Theater management
Zhejiang New Screen Theater 29 November 2016 AK%10,000,00070 FhER
Management Co., Ltd, €9 e/ RER
20165115298
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1.

PSRRI

31 December 2019 2019412 A 31 H

CORPORATE AND GROUP 1. 2FIREEFE (18)

INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
FENRBARNER (&)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows: (continued) MEBARFBWT : (8)

Issued ordinary shares/ Percentage of equity
Place and date of registered capital as attributable to the Group
incorporation/registration at 31 December 2019 as at at 31 December
and place of business 2019F12A31A rERERERER DL
Name of company SR/ BRI K CRTLERD/ 2019 2018 Principal activities
NAER EBHERAH g 20195 018F  EEHK
MM KRR ERERA] PRG/Mainland China RMB50,000,000 45.9% 49.8%  Hospital management
Hangzhou Qiu Eye Hospital Co., Ltd. #¢ 12 August 2016 AR%50,000,0007 BRER
/PR
201687 12H
HMIEREXERAA PRC/Mainland China RMB50,000,000 20.3% 31.8%  Property development
Zhejiang Hengfa Real Estate Co., Ltd. €84 6 June 2014 AE%50,000,00070 nERE
i/ PERD
201456 H6H
LR EEERAR PRC/Mainland China RMBS6,900,000 63.8% 69.2%  Hotel management
Hualbei Brillant Hotel Co., Ltd, 9 16 October 2013 AER#6,900,0007 BEEE
FE/RER
20131074168
IR L ERER AR PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000 57.4% 62.3%  Theater management
Laizhou New Screen Theater Management 2 May 2017 ARH1,000,0007T ThER
Co,, Ltd. ¥ /B
2017E542R
ER (A ARAER AT Hong Kong HK$100,000 63.8% 69.2%  Investment holding
Huijun (International) Holdings Limited ® 4 March 2005 100,000/ 7T REER
Bl
20053 4R
BB REXHARAR Hong Kong HK$1 100.0% 100.0%  Construction design
Hong Kong Bo Kai Construction Design 26 February 2008 1T RESG
Limited @@ i
2008524268
BEERMEERLA Hong Kong HK$1 100.0% 100.0%  Property development
Hong Kong Hui Yuan Real Estate 26 February 2008 18T MERE
Limited ¢ &b
2008E2A26H
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Notes to Financial Statements

PSRRI RE

31 December 2019 20194 12 431 H

1.

CORPORATE AND GROUP 1.
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows: (continued)

AT REKERH (])

BEKEQRNER (8)

MBARFENT : (8

Issued ordinary shares/ Percentage of equity
Place and date of registered capital as attributable to the Group
incorporation/registration at 31 December 2019 as at at 31 December
and place of business 2019F12831H rRERERER DL
Name of company SR/ BIK BRTLERD/ 2019 2018 Principal activities
PES EBHERAN SRER 2019% 018F FEEH
REERHE (B8) ERAR Hong Kong HK$387,683 63.8% 69.2%  Shipping
Zhong An International Shipping 11 October 2011 387,683/ 7T e
(Hong Kong) Limited B
2011107118
ERMERRAR Hong Kong HK$1 100.0% 100.0%  Investment holding
Hengyuan Properties Limited © 1 27 December 2013 18T RAER
A
2013F12 3278
EEERERAT Hong Kong HK$1 100.0% 100.0%  Investment holding
Zerun Management Limited © @ 31 December 2013 18T REER
A
2013F12A4318
REERERAH Hong Kong HK$1 100.0% 100.0%  Investment holding
Shengze Management Limited © ! 19 February 2014 18T RERK
A
2014%52R19H
HEEBRARDA Hong Kong HK$1 100.0% 100.0%  Investment holding
Glorious Days Management Limited © 23 June 2014 18T RAER
A
20146230
EMEBRE S (B8 R AR Hong Kong US$1 63.8% 69.2%  Investment holding
Grand Sail International Trading Limited ©¢ 15 September 2014 E RERR
BA
2014%59R15H
BN R CEEEARAR PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000 57.4% 62.3%  Theater management
Kunming New Screen Theater 27 April 2017 AR#1,000,0007 FhER
Management Co., Ltd. @ e /R E R
2017547278
2019 Annual Report
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Notes to Financial Statements

AR AR M

31 December 2019 20194F 12 A31 H

— == ==
1. CORPORATE AND GROUP 1. AFIREEFEH F)
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
Information about subsidiaries (continued) EBEMBATRNER (&)
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows: (continued) MEBARFBWT : (8)
Issued ordinary shares/ Percentage of equity
Place and date of registered capital as attributable to the Group
incorporation/registration at 31 December 2019 as at at 31 December
and place of business 20195124318 REBEGRER AL
Name of company SR/ BRI K CRTLERD/ 2019 2018 Principal activities
DRER EBHERAN ZRER 20195 018F TEEH
RFREE R CEEEARAR PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000 57.4% 62.3%  Theater management
Yuyao New Screen Theater Management 26 September 2017 AE#1,000,00070 FhER
Co., Ltd. # /B
2017459268
MNTERLEFERNAZEEBRAR  PRC/Mainland China RMB20,000,000 90.0% 90.0%  Property development
Hangzhou Qiaodao Lake Beverly Resort 26 September 2003 A #20,000,0007 I
Development Co., Ltd. ¥ HE/RER
2003F9A26H
HMNRHESEREERAT PRC/Mainland China RMB20,000,000 90.0% 90.0%  Property development
Hangzhou Xinxin Real Estate Development 29 May 2001 AK#20,000,00070 L
Co., Ltd. # /B
2001458298
EREREHEREERAR PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000,000 49.5% 34.3%  Property development
Yunnan Pujin Real Estate Development 6 September 2017 AE%10,000,00070 mERE
Co,, Ltd. e mE/RE N
201789 R6A
BT B S EERERDT PRG/Mainland China RMB5,000,000 57.4% 62.3%  Theater management
Foshan Xinmu Cinema Management 11 October 2017 AR#5,000,0007 FhER
Co., Ltd. 9® /B
2017F10R118
FHERE S (B8 R AR Hong Kong US$1 63.8% 69.2%  Investment holding
Chaoyang International Trading Limited® 15 September 2014 e RARK
&
2014%9R15H
BEREHEFRAA Hong Kong US$1 63.8% 69.2%  Investment holding
Hong Kong Time Honour Property 15 September 2014 E RAER
Limited A
201459158
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Notes to Financial Statements

PSRRI RE

31 December 2019 20194 12 431 H

1.

CORPORATE AND GROUP

1.

INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows: (continued)

AT REKERH (])

BEKEQRNER (8)

MBARFENT : (8

Issued ordinary shares/ Percentage of equity
Place and date of registered capital as attributable to the Group
incorporation/registration at 31 December 2019 as at at 31 December
and place of business 2019F12831H rRERERER DL
Name of company SR/ BIK BRTLERD/ 2019 2018 Principal activities
NEER EBHERAH AfEx 2019% 0185 FEEH
EREE (BB BRAR Hong Kong Us$t 63.8% 69.2%  Investment holding
Pannix Industrial (Hong Kong) Limited®® 15 September 2014 E REER
Bl
201459R15R
(i (B8) BREBARLF Hong Kong US$1 63.8% 69.2% Investment holding
Bright (Hong Kong) Hotels Management 15 September 2014 E RAER
Limited @@ &R
2014595158
Ideal World Investments Limited © British Virgin Islands USS$1 100.0% 100.0%  Investment holding
6 November 2003 1ET REER
EREBRES
2003E11A6H
China Bright Management Limited © British Virgin Islands US$1 100.0% 100.0%  Investment holding
13 November 2007 = RERR
EREARES
2007411 A138
Esteem High Enterprises Limited © British Virgin Islands US$1 100.0% 100.0%  Investment holding
13 November 2007 e RAER
ABRARES
200711 A13H
Everplus Management Limited © British Virgin Islands US$1 100.0% 100.0%  Investment holding
18 November 2007 = RERR
EREARES
2007411 A138
Gain Large Enterprises Limited © British Virgin Islands US§1 100.0% 100.0%  Investment holding
13 November 2007 e RAER
EERARES
200711 A138
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Notes to Financial Statements

PSRRI

31 December 2019 2019412 A 31 H

— == ==
CORPORATE AND GROUP 1. AFRSKEEH (8
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
Information about subsidiaries (continued) EBEMBATRNER (&)
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows: (continued) MEBARFBWT : (8)
Issued ordinary shares/ Percentage of equity
Place and date of registered capital as attributable to the Group
incorporation/registration at 31 December 2019 as at at 31 December
and place of business 2019F12A31A rERERERER DL
Name of company SR/ BRI K CRTLERD/ 2019 2018 Principal activities
NAER EBHERAN g 2019% 018F  EEHK
LHRERBRAT British Virgin Islands USS$1 100.0% 100.0%  Investment holding
Plenty Management Limited 13 November 2007 1ET REER
EEEBRES
2007411 A138
RRER(PE)BRAR British Virgin Islands US$1 100.0% 100.0%  Property management
Zhong An Properties (China) Ltd. @) 20 June 2013 E NEER
ERERRHE
2013%6A20H
Greenfield Investment Limited © " British Virgin Islands USS$1 100.0% 100.0%  Investment holding
19 May 2014 e REER
EEEBRES
2014E519H
ERBRERAH British Virgin Islands US$1 63.8% 69.2%  Investment holding
Hui Sheng Global Limited® ¢! 11 July 2014 1% REERK
EEERRES
201457R118
BERKERAT British Virgin Islands USS$1 63.8% 69.2%  Investment holding
Time Honour Global Limited 9 11 July 2014 e REER
SEEARNE
2014577118
RERRERAR British Virgin Islands US$1 63.8% 69.2%  Investment holding
Shengda Developments Limited ¢ 31 July 2014 e RERR
EEEBRES
2014%7R318
BERRER AT British Virgin Islands USS$1 63.8% 69.2%  Investment holding
First Achiever Holdings Limited @ 13 August 2014 E RAER
EEAAREE
201487130
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Notes to Financial Statements

PSRRI RE

31 December 2019 20194 12 431 H

1.

CORPORATE AND GROUP 1.
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows: (continued)

AT REKERH (])

BEKEQRNER (8)

MBARFENT : (8

Issued ordinary shares/ Percentage of equity
Place and date of registered capital as attributable to the Group
incorporation/registration at 31 December 2019 as at at 31 December
and place of business 2019F12831H rRERERER DL
Name of company SR/ BIK BRTLERD/ 2019 2018 Principal activities
NRER EBHERAN SRER 2019% 018F FEEH
Zhong An Real Estate Development Canada CA$100 100.0% 100.0%  Property management
(Canada) Ltd. 15 January 2014 100907 NEER
mex
2014518158
FREBRAREH Japan JPY5,010,000 63.8% 69.2%  Tourism management
Zhongjiale Tourism Co., Ltd., @1 21 December 2015 5,010,008 7 REER
BA
2015F12A218
JREBEBR AT Hong Kong HK$1 63.8% 69.2%  Investment holding
Easy Rich Corporation Limited € 1 April 2016 BT REER
A
2016F4A1R
KCJER R git Japan JPY10,000,000 57.4% 62.3%  Property development
KCJ International Co., Ltd. 1 9 May 2016 10,000,0008 7 VI
=
2016E5A9A
MERRBRAR British Virgin Isiands US$1 63.8% 69.2%  Investment holding
Capital Yield Global Limited® 1 April 2016 e RAER
SEEARNE
201664718
SBEREERAR British Virgin Isiands US$1 63.8% 69.2%  Investment holding
Easy Success Investments Limited @@ 11 April 2016 ko REER
EEEBRES
2016%F4A 118
REERBRAR Hong Kong HK$1 63.8% 69.2%  Investment holding
Ultra Nice International Limited 7 October 2016 18T RAER
E
2016510A7H
2019 Annual Report
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Notes to Financial Statements

PSRRI

31 December 2019 2019412 A 31 H

— == ==
CORPORATE AND GROUP 1. AFRSKEEH (8
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
Information about subsidiaries (continued) EBEMBATRNER (&)
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows: (continued) WEBARFBWT « (8)
Issued ordinary shares/ Percentage of equity
Place and date of registered capital as attributable to the Group
incorporation/registration at 31 December 2019 as at at 31 December
and place of business 2019F12A31A rERERERER DL
Name of company SR/ BRI K CRTLERD/ 2019 2018 Principal activities
DRER EBHERAN g 2019% 018F  EEHK
Verdania Properties Limited Canada CA$100 100.0% 100.0%  Property development
Partnership. (1) 29 July 2016 100/07C xR
mex
2016%7A29H
RRERERERAT British Virgin Islands US$1 100.0% 100.0%  Investment holding
Zhong An Financial Holdings Ltd. 23 February 2017 E RAER
ERERRHE
201742230
REEEERERAR Hong Kong HKS2,000,000 100.0% 100.0%  Asset management
Zhong An Asset Management Limited. 9 March 2017 2,000,000 BEER
A
201743A98
FERMERRAH British Virgin Islands HK$2,000,000 100.0% 100.0%  Corporate finance
Zhong An Corporate Finance Limited. 9 March 2017 2,000,007 PERE
EEERRES
201743R9A
RRABERAH Hong Kong HK$2,000,000 100.0% 100.0%  Finance management
Zhong An Finance Limited 9 March 2017 2,000,007 HEER
Y
201743A98
RERFBRAT Hong Kong HK$2,000,000 100.0% 100.0%  Securities management
Zhong An Securities Co. Limited. @ 10 March 2017 2,000,000% 7T AFER
BE
201743R108
MEARZHRIRELF Canada CAD100 100.0% 100.0%  Energy investment
Canada Zhong An Energy Investment 23 January 2017 100107 BRIRE
Co,, Ltd. @0 JIIEYN
2017517230
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Notes to Financial Statements

PSRRI RE

31 December 2019 20194 12 431 H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP 1. 2AFIREEFE (8)

INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
FENRBARNER (&)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows: (continued) MEBARFBNT : (8

Issued ordinary shares/ Percentage of equity
Place and date of registered capital as attributable to the Group
incorporation/registration at 31 December 2019 as at at 31 December
and place of business 2019F12831H rRERERER DL
Name of company SR/ BIK BRTLERD/ 2019 2018 Principal activities
PES EBHERAN SRER 2019% 018F FEEH
2BAEERAA British Virgin Islands USS$1 63.8% 69.2%  Investment management
Complete Victory Enterprise Limited @ 29 September 2017 ES REER
EEEBRES
2017F9A29H
Maggie & Rose (Great China) Group Hong Kong HKS$1 32.0% 34.7%  Education development
Limited @4 23 Qctober 2017 1371 BRER
A
2017107238
Bl (E#) ARAR Hong Kong HK$1 100.0% 100.0%  Investment holding
Million Vast (Hong Kong) Ltd. ©¢ 26 March 2017 18T REER
A
201783 A26H
ARERERAR British Virgin Isiands US$1 100.0% 100.0%  Investment holding
Allied Power Ventures Ltd, ©¢ 28 November 2016 E RAER
EEEBRES
2016114288
EKERAR British Virgin Isiands US$1 100.0% 100.0%  Investment holding
Rosy Omen Ltd, € 2 August 2017 e REBK
SEEARNE
201748A28
ERERAR British Virgin Isiands US$1 100.0% 100.0%  Investment holding
Fine Multitude Ltd. © 6 July 2015 E BAER
EEEBRES
2015€7 R6A
EEREBRAR British Virgin Isiands USS$1 100.0% 100.0%  Investment holding
Acme Dragon Investments Ltd. € 22 January 2016 e RAER
EREBRES
2016517228
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CORPORATE AND GROUP 1.
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows: (continued)

PSRRI

31 December 2019 2019412 A 31 H

AT REETH (&)

BEKEQRANER (8)

MBARFENT : (8

Issued ordinary shares/ Percentage of equity

Place and date of registered capital as attributable to the Group

incorporation/registration at 31 December 2019 as at at 31 December

and place of business 2019F12A31A rERERERER DL
Name of company SR/ BRI K CRTLERD/ 2019 2018 Principal activities
NAER EBHERAN g 2019% 018F  EEHK
A ERERAR Hong Kong HK$100 100.0% 100.0%  Property management
Rui Kai Management Ltd, ¢ 20 November 2015 10037 NEER

A

201511 A208
FRETREBRAR British Virgin Islands US$1 100.0% 100.0%  Investment holding
Zhong An Capital Investment Ltd.© 28 August 2018 E RAER

ERERRHE

2018%8A28H
FRRENER AT Hong Kong HK$1 100.0% 100.0%  Investment holding
Zhong An Capital Ltd., @ 14 September 2018 18T REER

A

201897 14H
FRER(PE) BRAR Hong Kong HK$1 100.0% 100.0%  Investment holding
Zhong An Capital (China) Ltd. @ 19 November 2018 18T RAaER

Bh

2018114198
FHRERRAT British Virgin Islands US$1 63.8% 69.2%  Investment management
Beyond Horizon Investment Limited @ 3 September 2018 E RAER

SEEARNE

2018F9A3A
WERRERAR British Virgin Islands US$1 63.8% 69.2%  Investment management
Alpha Talent Golbal Limited € 3 September 2018 iE REERE

EEEBRES

2018F9A3A
BEERESERAR Hong Kong HK$1 63.8% 69.2%  Investment management
Union Win International Traging Limited © 8 August 2018 18T RAER

A

2018E8A8H
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PSRRI RE

31 December 2019 20194 12 A31 H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP 1. 2AFIREEFE (8)

INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
FENRBARNER (&)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows: (continued) MEBARFBNT : (8

Issued ordinary shares/ Percentage of equity
Place and date of registered capital as attributable to the Group
incorporation/registration at 31 December 2019 as at at 31 December
and place of business 2019512A31H REBEGRER AL
Name of company SR/ BIK BRTLERD/ 2019 2018 Principal activities
NRER EBHERAN SRER 20195 018F FEEH
EERRESERAT Hong Kong HK$1 63.8% 69.2% Investment management
Full Moon International Trading Limited ©¢ 5 June 2018 18T REER
&k
2018F6A5A
REHERELERERAR British Virgin Isiands US$1 63.8% 69.2%  Education development
Zhong An Education Investments 8 May 2018 e HELE
Holdings Limited ¢ REERARE
2018%5A8H
FEREBRAA Samoa Us$10 63.8% 69.2%  Investment holding
Perfect Honour Investments Limited 9 28 March 2018 10T REER
BEED
20183 A28H
Tiptop Global Group Limited @© Samoa US$4 47.9% 51.9%  Investment holding
8 January 2018 4x7 RERR
BED
2018%1A8H
AEFEYRERERAT PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000 57.4% 62.3%  Theater management
Hefei Xinmu Cinema Management 19 March 2018 AR%1,000,0007 FhER
Co., Lt hE/hER
2018E3719H
BIZREXERARAR PRC/Mainland China RMB200,000,000 57.4% 62.3%  Agricultural development
Zhenjiang Anyuan Agricultural 7 February 2018 ARE200,000,0007 BEER
Development Co., Ltd. @ e/ hER
201852A7H
BINTERE£RRERAA PRC/Mainland China RMB258,000,000 29.3% 31.8%  Property development
Xuzhou Wanxiang Real Estate 28 September 2018 AR%258,000,0007 MERE
Development Co., Ltd. € e/ RER
20189 A28H
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AR AR M

31 December 2019 20194F 12 A31 H

— == ==
CORPORATE AND GROUP 1. AFRSKEEH (8
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
Information about subsidiaries (continued) EBEMBATRNER (&)
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows: (continued) MEBARFBWT : (8)
Issued ordinary shares/ Percentage of equity
Place and date of registered capital as attributable to the Group
incorporation/registration at 31 December 2019 as at at 31 December
and place of business 20195124318 REBEGRER AL
Name of company SR/ BRI K CRTLERD/ 2019 2018 Principal activities
NRER EBtERAE SRER 2019% 20185 TEEH
HMNBLEHRGULBR AR PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000 32.0% 34.7%  Education development
Hangzhou Xiaoshan Maggie & Rose 20 September 2018 AR%1,000,0007 HEER
Culture Co., Ltd, @@® mE /e R
20189720
MNRZRHREER AR PRC/Mainland China RMB50,000,000 57.4% 62.3%  Investment management
Hangzhou Zhongan Jinyun Investment 7 December 2018 AE%50,000,00070 RAER
Co., Ltd. @ E/FER
2018512778
B RYRERER AT PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000 57.4% 69.2%  Theater management
Ningbo Xinmu Cinema Management 10 May 2018 AR%1,000,0007 FhER
Co, Ltd. ¥ FE/RER
2018F5A10H
FMFRTRERERAR PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000 57.4% 69.2%  Theater management
Taizhou Xinmu Cinema Management 31 October 2018 AK%1,000,0007C FhER
Co., Ltd. @ HE/RER
2018104318
MR CEEBARAR PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000 28.7% 31.1%  Theater management
Hangzhou Xinhuan Cinema Management 25 April 2018 AR%1,000,00075 FhER
Co., Ltd. @€® FE/RE R
20185473250
MNBEERERERRAR PRC/Mainland China RMB493,542,500 59.9% 59.9%  Property development
Hangzhou Xinhua Garden Real Fstate 5 March 2009 AR#493,542,5007T NERE
Development Co., Ltd. ¥ E/FER
20003 A5A
R%(EHEHEREERAR PRC/Mainland China RMB100,000,000 90.0% 90.0%  Property development
Zhongan (Yunnan) Real Estate 20 June 2018 AK%100,000,0007 MERE
Development Co., Ltd. ¥ FE/HERH
2018E6420H
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PSRRI RE

31 December 2019 20194 12 A31 H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP 1. 2AFIREEFE (8)

INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
FENRBARNER (&)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows: (continued) MEBARFBNT : (8

Issued ordinary shares/ Percentage of equity
Place and date of registered capital as attributable to the Group
incorporation/registration at 31 December 2019 as at at 31 December
and place of business 2019512A31H REBEGRER AL
Name of company SR/ BIK BRTLERD/ 2019 2018 Principal activities
NEER EBHERAH AfEx 2019% 0185 FEEH
BARLEHEREBRAT PRC/Meainland China RMB100,000,000 90.0% 90.0%  Property development
Lishui Zhongan Real Estate Development 11 May 2018 AK#100,000,0007T MERE
Co., Ltd. i/ Rk
2018F5R11R
EETRBHEREERAR PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000,000 58.5% 58.5%  Property development
Yiwu Zhongyao Real Estate Development 21 November 2018 AE%10,000,00070 mERE
Co,, Ltd. ¥ /R
20185114218
MR HEEREERAT PRC/Meainland China RMB1,400,000,000 100.0% N/A Property development
Hangzhou Ruixie Real Estate Development 25 December 2019 AK%1,400,000,0007 TER DERE
Co,, Ltd. @4 PE/REN
20194128258
MNRHCEERERAR PRC/Mainland China RMB100,000 90.0% N/A  Development
Hangzhou Zhonghe Enterprise 7 August 2019 ARE100,0007 T@EE  management
Management Co., Ltd, @ /B BUAEE
2019%8A7H
RN 2 ERERAT PRC/Mainland China RMB100,000 90% N/A Investment management
Hangzhou Yixin Enterprise Management 7 August 2019 AR¥100,0007 TER RAER
Co., Ltd. @@ e/ HEN
2019%8A7H
FREFSENEERAT PRC/Mainland China RMB100,000,000 100% NA  Technology development
Beiing Xingwang Junrun Science and 11 June 2019 ARE100,000,0007 TER BT
Trade Co., Ltd. @@ e/ hER
201956/11H
MNRERRERER AR PRC/Mainland China RMBS5,000,000 57.4% N/A  Health management
Hangzhou Zhongan Health Management 8 January 2019 AR#5,000,0007 TER RERER
Co., Ltd. #® /R
20195178H
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PSRRI

31 December 2019 2019412 A 31 H

CORPORATE AND GROUP 1. 2FIREEFE (18)

INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
FENRBARNER (&)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows: (continued) MEBARFBWT : (8)

Issued ordinary shares/ Percentage of equity
Place and date of registered capital as attributable to the Group
incorporation/registration at 31 December 2019 as at at 31 December
and place of business 2019F12A31A rERERERER DL
Name of company SR/ BRI K CRTLERD/ 2019 2018 Principal activities
NEER EBHEREE AfEx 20195 018  TEEH
KRR EBARAR PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000 57.4% N/A  Theater management
Chendu Xinhuan Cinema Management 4 April 2019 AR%1,000,0007 TER  #hel
Co., Ltd.#® i/ hER
201964 A48
LR ENERARAR PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000,000 57.4% N/A  Technology development
Zhejiang Zhongsu Technology Co., Ltd. @4 5 March 2019 AR#10,000,0007 TER  RiTHE
i/ PERD
2019F3A5H
Maggie and Rose Limited @) England GBP1 29.7% N/A~ Education development
11 December 2007 TER HEER
L
20174128118
FR(LR)HAMREREERARA PRC/Mainland China 1S$30,000,000 100% N/A  Investment development
Zhongan (Shandong) Urban Development 25 October 2019 30,000,000% 7 TER  RAER
Investment Co., Ltd. @ e/ thER
2019410A25H
FR(LRHTERARAR PRC/Mainland China RMB100,000,000 100% N/A Property development
Zhongan (Shandong) Urban Development 20 June 2019 AR%100,000,0007 TER DERE
Co, Ltd. ¥ FE/RE R
2019F6A208
FZ (R EEERAR AR PRC/Mainland China RMB100,000,000 100% N/A Property development
Zhongan (Shandong) Business 20 June 2019 AR#100,000,0007 TER  DERE
Development Co., Ltd. ¢ BB/ HERH
2019564208
GRERAR Hong Kong HK$1 100% N/A  Investment holding
Fine Eam Limited ¢ 1 November 2019 18T TER  REZR
201951171
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PSRRI RE

31 December 2019 20194 12 A31 H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP 1.
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows: (continued)

AT REKERH (])

BEKEQRNER (8)

MBARFENT : (8

Issued ordinary shares/ Percentage of equity

Place and date of registered capital as attributable to the Group

incorporation/registration at 31 December 2019 as at at 31 December

and place of business 2019512A31H REBEGRER AL
Name of company SR/ BIK BRTLERD/ 2019 2018 Principal activities
NEER EBBERAH AfEx 2019% 0185 FEEH
FHERAR Hong Kong HK$1 100% N/A  Investment holding
Fund Huge Limited @ 8 November 2019 1871 TER  REER

Bl

2019F11A8H

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in
the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for the
year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group.
To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the
directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

Notes:
N/A  Not yet incorporated/established/acquired or liquidated by the Group
(a) These subsidiaries were established by the Group in 2019.

(b) Types of legal entities:

1) Wholly-foreign-owned enterprise
2) Sino-foreign equity joint venture
©)) Limited liability company invested by foreign-invested enterprises

4) Limited liability company
(c) The capital of these subsidiaries has not been fully injected in 2019.

(d) The subsidiary was acquired by the Group through un-wholly owned
subsidiaries as at 31 December 2019.

(e) These subsidiaries are subsidiaries of a non-wholly owned subsidiary of

the Group and, accordingly, are accounted for as subsidiaries by virture of
the Group’s control over subsidiaries.
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Notes to Financial Statements
B &R R M EE

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND 2. REEERSIBE

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

2.1 Basis of preparation 21 REEE
These financial statements have been prepared in 7N BA 75 R 5%t RR B R B 1 R 2 A
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (BB B rg s 22 R ) AR & - i BB
(“IFRSs”), which comprise standards and interpretations RS R B R A B R &R
approved by the International Accounting Standards Board g ((ERerEREEe]) RERK
(the “IASB”), and International Accounting Standards and G EARREBEBZEGHERR
Standing Interpretations Committee interpretations approved ERRER - EREREN 2 ST
by the International Accounting Standards Committee that AR ZERARE BRI A B ER
remain in effect, accounting principles generally accepted E o BRIEEME TTESBTERE
in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the Hong =HIRE N T BRI AR E
Kong Companies Ordinance. They have been prepared BT 25N - R FIHREK TIIRBRE LK
under the historical cost convention, except for investment KNRARE - BREFFRIFERIN + B
properties, derivative financial instruments and equity BWMEAARE(TARED 3K - I
investments which have been measured at fair value as AREHAMTITEN

explained in the accounting policies set out below. These
financial statements are presented in Renminbi (“RMB”) and
all values are rounded to the nearest thousand except when
otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation EOtEE

The consolidated financial statements include the financial EHMBREBERNARIREME A
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year AIEE2019F 12 A31 A IEFE R EF
ended 31 December 2019. A subsidiary is an entity (including BHE - B AR TIRAR G EEK
a structured entity), directly or indirectly, controlled by the FAEEHNEE(BEAREEE) -
Company. Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, EAEBERSHAREHREZ AR
or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the BEREZEMEEAMNZEORAEBFEN
investee and has the ability to affect those returns through FRHHKREHROE N EZEMD
its power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that give the W T ASBERBENIEGRE
Group the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the HRFEEEBRRBER) R - B
investee). RAREEZGIRELR -

wEBERAR —T-nsew 141

38



Notes to Financial Statements
b EL

31 December 2019 20194 12 A 31 H

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION 2. WEEERSHREEK (8
AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

2.1 REEE(8)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a
majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the
Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in
assessing whether it has power over an investee, including:

(@ the contractual arrangement with the other vote
holders of the investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

(c)  the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared
for the same reporting period as the Company, using
consistent accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries
are consolidated from the date on which the Group obtains
control, and continue to be consolidated until the date that
such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the parent of the
Group and to the non-controlling interests even if this results
in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. All
intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes
to one or more of the three elements of control described
above. A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary,
without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity
transaction.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION
AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.1

2.2

Basis of preparation (continued)
Basis of consolidation (continued)

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i)
the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary,
(i) the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii)
the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity; and
recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received, (ii)
the fair value of any investment retained and (jii) any resulting
surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s share of
components previously recognised in other comprehensive
income is reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as
appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if the
Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

Changes in accounting policies and
disclosures

The Group has adopted the following new and revised IFRSs
for the first time for the current year’s financial statements.

Amendments to IFRS 9 Prepayment Features with Negative

Compensation

IFRS 16 Leases

Amendments to IAS 19

Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement

Amendments to IAS 28 Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint

Ventures
|FRIC-Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments
Annual Improvements to Amendments to IFRS 3, IFRS 11, IAS 12 and
IFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle IAS 23
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2.2
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Notes to Financial Statements

PSRRI RE

31 December 2019 20194 12 A 31 H

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION
AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies and
disclosures (continued)

Except for the amendments to IFRS 9 and IAS 19, and
Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle, which
are not relevant to the preparation of the Group’s financial

statements, the nature and the impact of the new and revised

IFRSs are described below:

IFRS 16 replaces IAS 17 Leases, IFRIC-Int 4
Determining whether an Arrangement contains a
Lease, SIC-Int 15 Operating Leases-Incentives and
SIC-Int 27 Evaluating the Substance of Transactions
Involving the Legal Form of a Lease. The standard sets
out the principles for the recognition, measurement,
presentation and disclosure of leases and requires
lessees to account for all leases under a single on-
balance sheet model to recognise and measure right-
of-use assets and lease liabilities, except for certain
recognition exemptions. Lessor accounting under IFRS
16 is substantially unchanged from IAS 17. Lessors
continue to classify leases as either operating or
finance leases using similar principles as in IAS 17.

IFRS 16 did not have significant impact on leases
where the Group is the lessor.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION
AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies and
disclosures (continued)

@)

(continued)

The Group adopted IFRS 16 using the modified
retrospective method with the date of initial application
of 1 January 2019. Under this method, the standard
has been applied retrospectively with the cumulative
effect of initial adoption recognised as an adjustment
to the opening balance of retained profits at 1 January
2019, and the comparative information for 2018 was
not restated and continued to be reported under IAS
17 and related interpretations.

New definition of a lease

Under IFRS 16, a contract is, or contains, a lease if
the contract conveys a right to control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration. Control is conveyed where the customer
has both the right to obtain substantially all of the
economic benefits from use of the identified asset and
the right to direct the use of the identified asset. The
Group elected to use the transition practical expedient
allowing the standard to be applied only to contracts
that were previously identified as leases applying IAS
17 and IFRIC-Int 4 at the date of initial application.
Contracts that were not identified as leases under IAS
17 and IFRIC-Int 4 were not reassessed. Therefore, the
definition of a lease under IFRS 16 has been applied
only to contracts entered into or changed on or after 1
January 2019.
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Notes to Financial Statements

PSRRI RE

31 December 2019 20194 12 A 31 H

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION
AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies and

disclosures (continued)

(@  (continued)

As a lessee - Leases previously classified as

operating leases

Nature of the effect of adoption of IFRS 16

The Group has lease contracts for items of buildings.
As a lessee, the Group previously classified leases
as either finance leases or operating leases based
on the assessment of whether the lease transferred
substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership of
assets to the Group. Under IFRS 16, the Group applies
a single approach to recognise and measure right-of-
use assets and lease liabilities for all leases, except for
two elective exemptions for leases of low-value assets
(elected on a lease-by-lease basis) and leases with a
lease term of 12 months or less (“short-term leases”)
(elected by class of underlying asset). Instead of
recognising rental expenses under operating leases on
a straight-line basis over the lease term commencing
from 1 January 2019, the Group recognises
depreciation (and impairment, if any) of the right-of-use
assets and interest accrued on the outstanding lease

liabilities (as finance costs).
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Notes to Financial Statements

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION
AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies and
disclosures (continued)

(@)

(continued)

As a lessee - Leases previously classified as
operating leases (continued)

Impacts on transition

Lease liabilities at 1 January 2019 were recognised
based on the present value of the remaining lease
payments, discounted using the incremental borrowing
rate at 1 January 2019. The right-of-use assets
were measured at the amount of the lease liability,
adjusted by the amount of any prepaid or accrued
lease payments relating to the lease recognised in the
statement of financial position immediately before 1
January 2019.

All these assets were assessed for any impairment
based on IAS 36 on that date. The Group elected
to present the right-of-use assets separately in the
statement of financial position. The Group has no lease
assets that were recognised previously under finance
leases and needed to be reclassified from property and
equipment.

For the leasehold land and buildings (that were held
to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation)
previously included in investment properties and
measured at fair value, the Group has continued to
include them as investment properties at 1 January
2019. They continue to be measured at fair value
applying IAS 40.
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Notes to Financial Statements

PSRRI RE

31 December 2019 20194 12 A 31 H

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION
AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies and
disclosures (continued)

(@  (continued)

As a lessee - Leases previously classified as
operating leases (continued)

Impacts on transition (continued)

The Group has used the following elective practical
expedients when applying IFRS 16 at 1 January 2019:

° Applying the short-term lease exemptions to
leases with a lease term that ends within 12
months from the date of initial application

° Using hindsight in determining the lease term
where the contract contains options to extend/

terminate the lease

o Applying a single discount rate to a portfolio of
leases with reasonably similar characteristics

148 Zhong An Group Limited 2019 Annual Report

2. WRBBER SRR ()

2.2 SRR RKE (B

(&)

EREBN - KD BRRE
HENAE @)

BRZE (E)

#2019%1 A1 B EABERI
HwEEAFE165E - AEED
FAATIHEENERER
FE

o HHEHNERERAHE
FH12EARNERNES
EREHEERR

s  WAKNBIER HKILHE
BrER - AIFERETHE
H

HEBEEMBUSHZHE
EHEERAE —AIRE

°
VikE

i



Notes to Financial Statements

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION
AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies and
disclosures (continued)

(@  (continued)
Financial impact at 1 January 2019

The impact arising from the adoption of IFRS 16 at 1
January 2019 was as follows:

PSRRI

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

2. WRBBER SRR ()

2.2 SRR RIKE (B

@ &

A201951 51BN E &

R20194F1 A1 B AR ER 81 7%
AR FE16RELEN T EN

T
Increase/
(decrease)
#m, R
RMB’000
AR¥T
Assets EE
Increase in right-of-use assets fFAREEEEM 326,782
Decrease in prepayments, other receivables and TEMTER - M ERGRIE R EME
other assets ER A (6,401)
Increase in total assets 4B EE N 320,381
Liabilities aE
Increase in lease liabilities HESEILN 320,381

The lease liabilities as at 1 January 2019 reconciled to
the operating lease commitments as at 31 December
2018 are as follows:

20191 A1 ERA ER
MN20185F12 A1 BMRLTHE
EEMEERAT

RMB’000
AR¥T T
Operating lease commitments as at MR2018F12A31 WA HEE
31 December 2018 A&IE 440,383
Weighted average incremental borrowing rate 201951 A1 BT =
as at 1 January 2019 CEES 4.83%
Discounted operating lease commitments 20191 A1 BMBIREERE
as at 1 January 2019 HAHE 320,381
Lease liabilities as at 1 January 2019 A2019F1B1HNHEEER 320,381
BLEBERAG] —F—NFFHR
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Notes to Financial Statements

PSRRI RE

31 December 2019 20194 12 A 31 H

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION
AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies and
disclosures (continued)

(0)

150 Znhong An Group Limited

Amendments to IAS 28 clarify that the scope exclusion
of IFRS 9 only includes interests in an associate or
joint venture to which the equity method is applied and
does not include long-term interests that in substance
form part of the net investment in the associate or joint
venture, to which the equity method has not been
applied. Therefore, an entity applies IFRS 9, rather than
IAS 28, including the impairment requirements under
IFRS 9, in accounting for such long-term interests.
IAS 28 is then applied to the net investment, which
includes the long-term interests, only in the context
of recognising losses of an associate or joint venture
and impairment of the net investment in the associate
or joint venture. The Group assessed its business
model for its long-term interests in associates and
joint ventures upon adoption of the amendments on
1 January 2019 and concluded that the long-term
interests in associates and joint ventures continue to
be measured at amortised cost in accordance with
IFRS 9. Accordingly, the amendments did not have any
impact on the financial position or performance of the
Group.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION
AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies and
disclosures (continued)

(©

IFRIC-Int 23 addresses the accounting for income
taxes (current and deferred) when tax treatments
involve uncertainty that affects the application of IAS
12 (often referred to as “uncertain tax positions”).
The interpretation does not apply to taxes or levies
outside the scope of IAS 12, nor does it specifically
include requirements relating to interest and penalties
associated with uncertain tax treatments. The
interpretation specifically addresses (i) whether an entity
considers uncertain tax treatments separately; (ii) the
assumptions an entity makes about the examination of
tax treatments by taxation authorities; (i) how an entity
determines taxable profits or tax losses, tax bases,
unused tax losses, unused tax credits and tax rates;
and (iv) how an entity considers changes in facts and
circumstances. Upon adoption of the interpretation,
the Group considered whether it has any uncertain
tax positions arising from the transfer pricing on its
intergroup sales. Based on the Group’s tax compliance
and transfer pricing study, the Group determined
that it is probable that its transfer pricing policy will
be accepted by the tax authorities. Accordingly, the
interpretation did not have any impact on the financial
position or performance of the Group.
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Notes to Financial Statements

PSRRI RE

31 December 2019 20194 12 A 31 H

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION
AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.3 Issued but not yet effective
International Financial Reporting
Standards
The Group has not applied the following new and revised
IFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective, in

these financial statements.

Amendments to IFRS 3 Definition of a Business’

Amendments to IFRS 9,
IAS 39 and IFRS 7 Interest Rate Benchmark Reform’

Amendments to IFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets between an
and IAS 28 Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture’

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts®

Amendments to IAS 1

and IAS 8 Definition of Material’
Amendments to IAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-
current’

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022
No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for
adoption

ENEE S SO
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Notes to Financial Statements
B &R R M EE

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION 2. IREBEERSBE (H)
AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

2.3 B FEME M R4 M B

2.3 Issued but not yet effective

International Financial Reporting
Standards (continued)

Further information about those IFRSs that are expected to
be applicable to the Group is as follows:

Amendments to IFRS 3 clarify and provide additional
guidance on the definition of a business. The amendments
clarify that for an integrated set of activities and assets to be
considered a business, it must include, at a minimum, an
input and a substantive process that together significantly
contribute to the ability to create output. A business can exist
without including all of the inputs and processes needed to
create outputs. The amendments remove the assessment
of whether market participants are capable of acquiring the
business and continue to produce outputs. Instead, the
focus is on whether acquired inputs and acquired substantive
processes together significantly contribute to the ability
to create outputs. The amendments have also narrowed
the definition of outputs to focus on goods or services
provided to customers, investment income or other income
from ordinary activities. Furthermore, the amendments
provide guidance to assess whether an acquired process is
substantive and introduce an optional fair value concentration
test to permit a simplified assessment of whether an acquired
set of activities and assets is not a business. The Group
expects to adopt the amendments prospectively from 1
January 2020. Since the amendments apply prospectively to
transactions or other events that occur on or after the date
of first application, the Group will not be affected by these
amendments on the date of transition.
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Notes to Financial Statements
b EL

31 December 2019 20194 12 A 31 H

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION 2. {REEBEERSBEE)
AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

2.3 CFEME M R4 R BB

2.3 Issued but not yet effective

International Financial Reporting
Standards (continued)

Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39 and IFRS 7 address
the effects of interbank offered rate reform on financial
reporting. The amendments provide temporary reliefs which
enable hedge accounting to continue during the period of
uncertainty before the replacement of an existing interest
rate benchmark. In addition, the amendments require
companies to provide additional information to investors
about their hedging relationships which are directly affected
by these uncertainties. The amendments are effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020. Early
application is permitted. The amendments are not expected
to have any significant impact on the Group’s financial
statements.

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 address an
inconsistency between the requirements in IFRS 10 and
in IAS 28 in dealing with the sale or contribution of assets
between an investor and its associate or joint venture. The
amendments require a full recognition of a gain or loss when
the sale or contribution of assets between an investor and
its associate or joint venture constitutes a business. For a
transaction involving assets that do not constitute a business,
a gain or loss resulting from the transaction is recognised in
the investor’s profit or loss only to the extent of the unrelated
investor’s interest in that associate or joint venture. The
amendments are to be applied prospectively. The previous
mandatory effective date of amendments to IFRS 10 and
IAS 28 was removed by the IASB in December 2015 and a
new mandatory effective date will be determined after the
completion of a broader review of accounting for associates
and joint ventures. However, the amendments are available
for adoption now.
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Notes to Financial Statements
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31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION 2. IREBEERSBE (H)
AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.3 Issued but not yet effective 2.3 B EME N RERERER

International Financial Reporting
Standards (continued)

Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8 provide a new definition of
material. The new definition states that information is material
if omitting, misstating or obscuring it could reasonably be
expected to influence decisions that the primary users of
general purpose financial statements make on the basis
of those financial statements. The amendments clarify
that materiality will depend on the nature or magnitude of
information. A misstatement of information is material if it could
reasonably be expected to influence decisions made by the
primary users. The Group expects to adopt the amendments
prospectively from 1 January 2020. The amendments are
not expected to have any significant impact on the Group’s
financial statements.
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Notes to Financial Statements
b EL

31 December 2019 20194 12 A 31 H

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION
AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2. WMEEER TR ()

2.4 TESTTBERBE

2.4 Summary of significant accounting

policies
Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a long term
interest of generally not less than 20% of the equity voting
rights and over which it is in a position to exercise significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in
the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee,
but is not control or joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the
parties that have joint control of the arrangement have rights
to the net assets of the joint venture. Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement,
which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities
require the unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

The Group’s investments in associates and joint ventures are
stated in the consolidated statement of financial position at
the Group’s share of net assets under the equity method of
accounting, less any impairment losses.

The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results and other
comprehensive income of associates and joint ventures is
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
consolidated other comprehensive income, respectively. In
addition, when there has been a change recognised directly
in the equity of the associate and joint venture, the Group
recognises its share of any changes, when applicable, in
the consolidated statement of changes in equity. Unrealised
gains and losses resulting from transactions between the
Group and its joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of
the Group’s investments in the joint ventures, except where
unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment of the
assets transferred. Goodwill arising from the acquisition of
associates or joint ventures is included as part of the Group’s
investments in associates or joint ventures.
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Notes to Financial Statements
B &R R M EE

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION
AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2. WMEEERERRK ()

2.4 TEETBEREE (8)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting

policies (continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures
(continued)

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment
in a joint venture or vice versa, the retained interest is
not remeasured. Instead, the investment continues to be
accounted for under the equity method. In all other cases,
upon loss of significant influence over the associate or joint
control over the joint venture, the Group measures and
recognises any retained investment at its fair value. Any
difference between the carrying amount of the associate or
joint venture upon loss of significant influence or joint control
and the fair value of the retained investment and proceeds
from disposal is recognised in profit or loss.

When an investment in a joint venture is classified as held
for sale, it is accounted for in accordance with IFRS 5 Non-
current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations.

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred is
measured at the acquisition date fair value which is the sum
of the acquisition date fair values of assets transferred by
the Group, liabilities assumed by the Group to the former
owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued
by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree. For
each business combination, the Group elects whether to
measure the non-controlling interests in the acquiree that
are present ownership interests and entitle their holders to a
proportionate share of net assets in the event of liquidation
at fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. All other components of non-
controlling interests are measured at fair value. Acquisition-
related costs are expensed as incurred.
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Notes to Financial Statements
b EL

31 December 2019 20194 12 A 31 H

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION 2. WEEERSHREEK (8
AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

2.4 FESHBEHME (&)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting

policies (continued)
Business combinations and goodwill (continued)

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial
assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification
and designation in accordance with the contractual terms,
economic circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the
acquisition date. This includes the separation of embedded
derivatives in host contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition
date fair value and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in
profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date.
Contingent consideration classified as an asset or liability is
measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised
in profit or loss. Contingent consideration that is classified
as equity is not remeasured and subsequent settlement is
accounted for within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of
the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount
recognised for non-controlling interests and any fair value of
the Group’s previously held equity interests in the acquiree
over the identifiable net assets acquired and liabilities
assumed. If the sum of this consideration and other items
is lower than the fair value of the net assets acquired, the
difference is, after reassessment, recognised in profit or loss
as a gain on bargain purchase.
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Notes to Financial Statements
B &R R M EE

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION
AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2. WMEEERERRK ()

2.4 TEETBEREE (8)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting

policies (continued)
Business combinations and goodwill (continued)

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less
any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for
impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be
impaired. The Group performs its annual impairment test of
goodwill as at 31 December. For the purpose of impairment
testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from
the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group’s cash-
generating units, or groups of cash-generating units, that are
expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination,
irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the Group
are assigned to those units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating
units) to which the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating
units) is less than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is
recognised. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not
reversed in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit
(or group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation
within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with
the operation disposed of is included in the carrying amount
of the operation when determining the gain or loss on the
disposal. Goodwill disposed of in these circumstances
is measured based on the relative value of the operation
disposed of and the portion of the cash-generating unit
retained.
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Notes to Financial Statements
b EL

31 December 2019 20194 12 A 31 H

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION
AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2. WMEEER TR ()

2.4 Summary of significant accounting

2.4 TEEBEREE ()

policies (continued)
Fair value measurement

The Group measures its investment properties and equity
investments at fair value at the end of each reporting period.
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The
fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the
transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place
either in the principal market for the asset or liability, or in the
absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous
market for the asset or liability. The principal or the most
advantageous market must be accessible by the Group.
The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the
assumptions that market participants would use when pricing
the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in
their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the
asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate
in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant
observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable
inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured
or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based
on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole:
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Notes to Financial Statements
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31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION 2. WEEERSHEEK (I8
AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

2.4 TESHBEHME ()

2.4 Summary of significant accounting

policies (continued)
Fair value measurement (continued)

Level 1 —based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 —based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is observable, either directly or
indirectly

Level 3 —based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the
hierarchy by reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as
a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories, deferred tax assets, financial assets, completed
properties held for sale, properties under development,
investment properties and non-current assets), the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable
amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s
value in use and its fair value less costs of disposal, and is
determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not
generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those
from other assets or groups of assets, in which case the
recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating
unit to which the asset belongs.
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Notes to Financial Statements
b EL

31 December 2019 20194 12 A 31 H

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION
AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2. WMEEER TR ()

2.4 Summary of significant accounting

2.4 TEEBEREE ()

policies (continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount
of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset. An impairment
loss is charged to the statement of profit or loss in the period
in which it arises, unless the asset is carried at a revalued
amount, in which case the impairment loss is accounted for
in accordance with the relevant accounting policy for that
revalued asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is any indication that previously
recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or may
have decreased. If such an indication exists, the recoverable
amount is estimated. A previously recognised impairment
loss of an asset other than goodwill is reversed only if there
has been a change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an amount
higher than the carrying amount that would have been
determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years.
A reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to the
statement of profit or loss in the period in which it arises,
unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which
case the reversal of the impairment loss is accounted for
in accordance with the relevant accounting policy for that
revalued asset.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION 2,
AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@ the party is a person or a close member of that
person’s family and that person

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel
of the Group or of a parent of the Group;

or

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of the
same group;

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow
subsidiary of the other entity);

(i) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the
same third party;

(iv)  one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third entity;

(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group;
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Notes to Financial Statements
b EL

31 December 2019 20194 12 A 31 H

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION 2. WEEERSHREEK (8
AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

2.4 FESHBEHME (&)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)
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Related parties (continued) B (5
() the party is an entity where any of the following () WEUATERANER: (B
conditions applies: (continued)
(vi)  the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a (Vi) FZEEEH( )Eﬁﬁié’]}\i
person identified in (a); PRl sk R
(viil a person identified in (a)(i) has significant (Vi) (@()EFFRERBABZE
influence over the entity or is a member of the B MEMENTE - ok
key management personnel of the entity (or of a FZATABZEEIZE
parent of the entity); and BHNARIMNEEETEA
B Rk
(viii)  the entity, or any member of a group of which it (vii) ZEBIHMMBEENT
is a part, provides key management personnel ﬁﬁk%’&ﬂ%$‘$l‘ﬁz$
services to the Group or to the parent of the EEMNTRFREEE
Group. 2 A BBRTE ©
Property and equipment and depreciation EERRERITE

Property and equipment, other than construction in progress,
are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any
impairment losses. The cost of an item of property and
equipment comprises its purchase price and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working
condition and location for its intended use. Cost may also
include transfers from equity of any gains or losses on
qualifying cash flow hedges of foreign currency purchases of
property and equipment.

Expenditure incurred after items of property and equipment
have been put into operation, such as repairs and
maintenance, is normally charged to the statement of profit
or loss in the period in which it is incurred. In situations where
the recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a
major inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of the
asset as a replacement. Where significant parts of property
and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals,
the Group recognises such parts as individual assets with
specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.
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Notes to Financial Statements
B &R R M EE

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION 2. WEEERSHEEK (I8
AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

24 FTESTHBEREE (&)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting

policies (continued)
Property and equipment and depreciation (continued)

Valuations are performed frequently enough to ensure that
the fair value of a revalued asset does not differ materially
from its carrying amount. Changes in the values of property,
plant and equipment are dealt with as movements in the asset
revaluation reserve. If the total of this reserve is insufficient
to cover a deficit, on an individual asset basis, the excess of
the deficit is charged to the statement of profit or loss. Any
subsequent revaluation surplus is credited to the statement
of profit or loss to the extent of the deficit previously charged.
An annual transfer from the asset revaluation reserve to
retained profits is made for the difference between the
depreciation based on the revalued carrying amount of an
asset and the depreciation based on the asset’s original
cost. On disposal of a revalued asset, the relevant portion of
the asset revaluation reserve realised in respect of previous
valuations is transferred to retained profits as a movement in
reserves.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write
off the cost of each item of property and equipment to its
residual value over its estimated useful life. The estimated
residual values and useful lives for this purpose are as

follows:

Useful lives
Properties 20 years
Machinery 10 years
Office equipment 5 years
Motor vehicles 5 years

Leasehold improvements Shorter of the lease terms and 5 years
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Notes to Financial Statements
b EL

31 December 2019 20194 12 A 31 H

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION 2. REEBEERDEIIEK (18)
AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting 2.4 FESTBERBIE ()
policies (continued)

Property and equipment and depreciation (continued) EERRERITE (B

iwEb o BE R EHE B A N A E
FFHE - BIZZIEE AT LG EE
EEZID DRSO D BIFHRIT
E BE- —Hiﬁﬁiﬂﬁ&?ﬁéﬁ/iﬂ
REVBREREEEALCERZNEEH

appropriate, at least at each financial year end. o

Where parts of an item of property and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated
on a reasonable basis among the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Residual values, useful lives and
the depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if

WIBFHEASSHE R E KR EIER
part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or TR KA ARRLERN = - B
when no future economic benefits are expected from its FHERNE ERZERIFAEXNIED

use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or retirement AR IETER - MA B ER LR F
B HESREEZ A EREAE

An item of property and equipment including any significant

recognised in the statement of profit or loss in the year the

asset is derecognised is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents a building under
construction, which is stated at cost less any impairment
losses, and is not depreciated. Cost comprises the direct
costs of construction and capitalised borrowing costs on
related borrowed funds during the period of construction.

B REEEEHEMERIERE
HEBEEERAEMEHNEZENE
TR o

FRTEEEAZRNOET KA
AR ERBBARM TAHRINE -
FXAR BRI R IR RN B RN A K
HEEABE SN ERMEERRE - &
B TIRREAK A AR A R R EH
DEREWME - BELRE -

Construction in progress is reclassified to the appropriate
category of property, plant and equipment when completed
and ready for use.
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31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION 2. WEEERSHEEK (I8
AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

2.4 TESHBEHME ()

2.4 Summary of significant accounting

policies (continued)
Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings
(including the leasehold property held as a right-of-use
asset (2018: leasehold property under an operating lease)
which would otherwise meet the definition of an investment
property) held to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation, rather than for use in the production or supply
of goods or services or for administrative purposes; or for
sale in the ordinary course of business. Investment properties
comprise completed investment properties and investment
properties under construction. Such properties are measured
initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to
initial recognition, investment properties are stated at fair
value, which reflects market conditions at the end of the
reporting period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of
investment properties are included in the statement of profit
or loss in the year in which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an
investment property are recognised in the statement of profit
or loss in the year of the retirement or disposal.
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Notes to Financial Statements
b EL

31 December 2019 20194 12 A 31 H

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION 2. FREERTHEE 8
AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting

2.4 TEEBEREE ()

policies (continued)
Investment properties (continued)

The Group determines whether completed properties held for
sale and properties under development would be transferred
to investment properties when, only when, there is a change
in use, evidenced by the following criteria: (a) the Group
has prepared a business plan that reflects the future rental
income generated by the property and this is supported
with evidence that there is demand for rental space; (b) the
Group can demonstrate that it has the resources, including
the necessary financing or capital, to hold and manage
an investment property; (c) the change in use is legally
permissible; (d) if the property must be further developed for
the change in use, the development has commenced and (e)
change in use is approved by the board.

168 Zhong An Group Limited 2019 Annual Report

REME ()

AEBEEHFHEDERDERMA
BRYERLDBREREME 8
EEREEREE B AN TRMAEINNA
EREE  @AEED T RBRYER
BHESBANEKBTE - YEHER
SKEBIRIES R + () AR RIBLEAEA
ER(BRUEREXENFARE
BREME  VEEAFEERRE
(B — T ERYMEANEYER
@ AIDFRERER  ReQEFE
RERE A& o



Notes to Financial Statements
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31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION 2. WEEERSHEEK (I8
AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

2.4 TESHBEHME ()

2.4 Summary of significant accounting

policies (continued)
Properties under development

Properties under development are stated at the lower of
cost and net realisable value and comprise land costs,
construction costs, borrowing costs, professional fees and
other costs directly attributable to such properties incurred
during the development period.

Properties under development which are already under
construction or expected to be under construction within
twelve months or have explicit business plan for construction
are classified as current assets. The rest of properties are
classified as non-current assets.

Completed properties held for sale

Completed properties held for sale are stated at the lower
of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined by
an apportionment of the total costs of land and buildings
attributable to the unsold properties. Net realisable value
takes into account the selling price, less estimated costs
to be incurred in selling the properties based on prevailing
market conditions.

Other intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Other intangible assets acquired separately are measured on
initial recognition at cost. The cost of other intangible assets
acquired in a business combination is the fair value at the
date of the acquisition. The useful lives of other intangible
assets are assessed to be finite. Other intangible assets
with finite lives are subsequently amortised over the useful
economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there is
an indication that the other intangible asset may be impaired.
The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an
intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at
each reporting period.
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Notes to Financial Statements

PSRRI RE

31 December 2019 20194 12 A 31 H

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION
AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

Other intangible assets (other than goodwiill)
(continued)

The principal estimated useful lives of other intangible assets
are as follows:

Category Estimated useful life
Brandname 20 years
Leases (applicable from 1 January 2019)

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a
contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains,
a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use
of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement
approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and
leases of low-value assets. The Group recognises lease
liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets
representing the right to use the underlying assets.
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31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION
AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2. WRBBER SRR ()

2.4 TEETBEREE (8)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

Leases (applicable from 1 January 2019) (continued)

HE (8201951 A1 HBER) (&)

Group as a lessee (continued) FEFERFEN (1B)
(@  Right-of-use assets @ FREEE

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the
commencement date of the lease (that is the date
the underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use
assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses, and adjusted
for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost
of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease
liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and
lease payments made at or before the commencement
date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-use
assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over
the shorter of the lease terms and the estimated useful
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lives of the assets as follows: HEETEMT :
Buildings 5-18 years EE 5-18 F

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the
Group by the end of the lease term or the cost reflects
the exercise of a purchase option, depreciation is
calculated using the estimated useful life of the asset.
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Notes to Financial Statements

PSRRI RE

31 December 2019 20194 12 A 31 H

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION
AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

Leases (applicable from 1 January 2019) (continued)

Group as a lessee (continued)

(0)

172 Zhong An Group Limited

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement
date of the lease at the present value of lease
payments to be made over the lease term. The
lease payments include fixed payments (including in-
substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives
receivable, variable lease payments that depend on
an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid
under residual value guarantees. The lease payments
also include the exercise price of a purchase option
reasonably certain to be exercised by the Group and
payments of penalties for termination of a lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising the option to
terminate. The variable lease payments that do not
depend on an index or a rate are recognised as an
expense in the period in which the event or condition
that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments,
the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at the
lease commencement date because the interest rate
implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After
the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities
is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and
reduced for the lease payments made. In addition,
the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured
if there is a modification, a change in the lease term,
a change in lease payments (e.g., a change to future
lease payments resulting from a change in an index
or rate) or a change in assessment of an option to
purchase the underlying asset.

2019 Annual Report
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Notes to Financial Statements
B &R R M EE

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION 2. IREBEERSBE (H)
AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

24 TESHBEERE (@)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting

policies (continued)

Leases (applicable from 1 January 2019) (continued)
Group as a lessee (continued)

(c)  Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to its short-term leases of machinery and
equipment (that is those leases that have a lease term
of 12 months or less from the commencement date
and do not contain a purchase option). It also applies
the recognition exemption for leases of low-value assets
to leases of office equipment and laptop computers
that are considered to be of low value.

Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of
low-value assets are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease
inception (or when there is a lease modification) each of its
leases as either an operating lease or a finance lease.

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially
all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset
are classified as operating leases. When a contract contains
lease and non-lease components, the Group allocates the
consideration in the contract to each component on a relative
stand-alone selling price basis. Rental income is accounted
for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms and is
included in revenue in the statement of profit or loss due to
its operating nature. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating
and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying
amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease
term on the same basis as rental income. Contingent rents
are recognised as revenue in the period in which they are
earned.
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Notes to Financial Statements
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31 December 2019 20194 12 A 31 H

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION 2. {REEBEERSBEE)
AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting

2.4 TEEBEREE ()

policies (continued)
Leases (applicable before 1 January 2019)

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets remain with the lessor are accounted for
as operating leases. Where the Group is the lessor, assets
leased by the Group under operating leases are included
in non-current assets, and rentals receivable under the
operating leases are credited to the statement of profit or
loss on the straight-line basis over the lease terms. Where the
Group is the lessee, rentals payable under operating leases
net of any incentives received from the lessor are charged to
the statement of profit or loss on the straight-line basis over
the lease terms.

Investments and other financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through
other comprehensive income, and fair value through profit or
loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Group’s business model for managing
them. With the exception of trade receivables that do not
contain a significant financing component or for which the
Group has applied the practical expedient of not adjusting
the effect of a significant financing component, the Group
initially measures a financial asset at its fair value, plus in the
case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit or
loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables that do not contain
a significant financing component or for which the Group
has applied the practical expedient are measured at the
transaction price determined under IFRS 15 in accordance
with the policies set out for “Revenue recognition” below.
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Notes to Financial Statements
B &R R M EE

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION
AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2. WMEEERERRK ()

2.4 Summary of significant accounting

2.4 TEETBEREE (8)

policies (continued)
Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Initial recognition and measurement (continued)

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured
at amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive
income, it needs to give rise to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest (“SPPI”) on the principal
amount outstanding. Financial assets with cash flows that are
not SPPI are classified and measured at fair value through
profit or loss, irrespective of the business model.

The Group’s business model for managing financial assets
refers to how it manages its financial assets in order to
generate cash flows. The business model determines whether
cash flows will result from collecting contractual cash flows,
selling the financial assets, or both. Financial assets classified
and measured at amortised cost are held within a business
model with the objective to hold financial assets in order to
collect contractual cash flows, while financial assets classified
and measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income are held within a business model with the objective
of both holding to collect contractual cash flows and selling.
Financial assets which are not held within the aforementioned
business models are classified and measured at fair value
through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the
Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way
purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets
that require delivery of assets within the period generally
established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.
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Notes to Financial Statements

PSRRI RE

31 December 2019 20194 12 A 31 H

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION 2. IRBEERSIBEE (]

AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends
on their classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently
measured using the effective interest method and are subject
to impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in the
statement of profit or loss when the asset is derecognised,
modified or impaired.

Financial assets designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income (equity investments)

Upon initial recognition, the Group can elect to classify
irrevocably its equity investments as equity investments
designated at fair value through other comprehensive income
when they meet the definition of equity under IAS 32 Financial
Instruments: Presentation and are not held for trading. The
classification is determined on an instrument-by-instrument
basis.

176 Zhong An Group Limited 2019 Annual Report

2.4 TEEBEREE ()

RERAEMEREE (B)

R BNERAERIATHH

A B2 HEE (EFL
A)

REHR AT ENSREEERER
BEBREAMEEGFE - WAIRERBER
£ -ZEERLER EIIRE
B - Woa R IEN B R AR o

HEERIEAA BEGI AR M E Kz
2 HEE (BnKE)

RYFHERE > AKEAEER R
RENACER SR E325F Rt

TR 2FATHRANER BIAIFHF
FREER - HEEDSRE T HE M
DEREERAABEFARLBEE
WarEmRE - DRIRERN T A
EEEF °



Notes to Financial Statements
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31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION 2. RUBERE
AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

& 46 )

2.4 TEETBEREE (8)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting

policies (continued)
Investments and other financial assets (continued)

Financial assets designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income (equity investments) (continueq)

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never recycled
to the statement of profit or loss. Dividends are recognised
as other income in the statement of profit or loss when the
right of payment has been established, it is probable that the
economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to
the Group and the amount of the dividend can be measured
reliably, except when the Group benefits from such proceeds
as a recovery of part of the cost of the financial asset, in
which case such gains are recorded in other comprehensive
income. Equity investments designated at fair value through
other comprehensive income are not subject to impairment
assessment.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried
in the statement of financial position at fair value with net
changes in fair value recognised in the statement of profit or
loss.

This category includes derivative instruments and equity
investments which the Group had not irrevocably elected to
classify at fair value through other comprehensive income.
Dividends on equity investments classified as financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss are also recognised as
other income in the statement of profit or loss when the right
of payment has been established, it is probable that the
economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to
the Group and the amount of the dividend can be measured
reliably.
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2. BASIS OF PREPARATION
AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting

policies (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily
derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group’s consolidated
statement of financial position) when:

. the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have

expired; or

° the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation
to pay the received cash flows in full without material
delay to a third party under a “pass-through”
arrangement; and either (a) the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,
or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but
has transferred control of the asset.
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Notes to Financial Statements
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31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION 2. WEEERSHEEK (I8
AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

2.4 TESHBEHME ()

2.4 Summary of significant accounting

policies (continued)
Derecognition of financial assets (continued)

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has
retained the risk and rewards of ownership of the asset.
When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all
the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of
the ass et, the Group continues to recognise the transferred
asset to the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement.
In that case, the Group also recognises an associated
liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are
measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations
that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee
over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the
original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum
amount of consideration that the Group could be required to
repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit
losses (“ECLs”) for all debt instruments not held at fair value
through profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference
between the contractual cash flows due in accordance with
the contract and all the cash flows that the Group expects
to receive, discounted at an approximation of the original
effective interest rate. The expected cash flows will include
cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit
enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms.
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31 December 2019 20194 12 A 31 H

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION
AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2. WMEEER TR ()

2.4 Summary of significant accounting

2.4 TEEBEREE ()

policies (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)
General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures
for which there has not been a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit
losses that result from default events that are possible within
the next 12 months (a 12-month ECL). For those credit
exposures for which there has been a significant increase
in credit risk since initial recognition, a loss allowance is
required for credit losses expected over the remaining life
of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the default (a
lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the
credit risk on a financial instrument has increased significantly
since initial recognition. When making the assessment,
the Group compares the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a
default occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of
initial recognition and considers reasonable and supportable
information that is available without undue cost or effort,
including historical and forward-looking information.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when
contractual payments are 90 days past due. However,
in certain cases, the Group may also consider a financial
asset to be in default when internal or external information
indicates that the Group is unlikely to receive the outstanding
contractual amounts in full before taking into account any
credit enhancements held by the Group. A financial asset
is written off when there is no reasonable expectation of
recovering the contractual cash flows.
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Notes to Financial Statements
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31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION 2. FREERTHEE 8
AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting 24 TEGHBERBE (&)
policies (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued) SRMEENRE (&
General approach (continued) —HEE (E)
Financial assets at amortised cost are subject to impairment MR EUE SRR ER T CFTaFall 2 i
under the general approach and they are classified within the LRI - BB AT EZ S RE
following stages for measurement of ECLs except for trade ERE R RETRE - R T
receivables and contract assets which apply the simplified FrEEAEAER ZEERETOE -

approach as detailed below.

Stage 1 - Financial instruments for which credit risk has not FMER-—RERRR B VIRER
increased significantly since initial recognition and BARBEILI - RBIEE
for which the loss allowance is measured at an RARR12{8 AFBEAEAE
amount equal to 12-month ECLs KMEBrERBERE

T

Stage 2 — Financial instruments for which credit risk has FMEE - RERARR B VAR
increased significantly since initial recognition but BEREILINEMAREE
that are not credit-impaired financial assets and ERBERN  RBEERN
for which the loss allowance is measured at an BEFESRAERHER
amount equal to lifetime ECLs Bk o

Stage 3 - Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the F=ER-REEEARKA SR
reporting date (but that are not purchased or BEZEEFERABEN (T
originated credit-impaired) and for which the loss BREBHXRBE AR
allowance is measured at an amount equal to BEE)  RBREENE
lifetime ECLs EFERFTEREERE
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31 December 2019 20194 12 A 31 H

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION
AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting

policies (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Simplified approach

For trade receivables that do not contain a significant

2. WMEEER TR ()

2.4 TEEBEREE ()

TRIEERNRE (&)

BHEIA

A TNBEEARERDHAEED
HULERTNHEERBERDFER

financing component or when the Group applies the practical

AT ENE SEKKEMS

REERFERMEEBREERGE
£737% - REBEBIETTE - AEELE
EPEERRES  MERESHRE

expedient of not adjusting the effect of a significant financing
component, the Group applies the simplified approach in
calculating ECLs. Under the simplified approach, the Group

does not track changes in credit risk, but instead recognises A M2 e E S 1B R 18
a loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting o NEED SR IBIE LB CEE
date. The Group has established a provision matrix that IBRER L E N BB E - WIREIEA
is based on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted NS TEREEREZREEIREELH
for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the o

economic environment.

For trade receivables that contain a significant financing REEBEARMAKRSDKE S EYGIR
component and lease receivables, the Group chooses as AR EMAEESIRM S - ARERE

HEMEEBIER - $ETFJ:XFfr L
REMECTEERE SRR

its accounting policy to adopt the simplified approach in
calculating ECLs with policies as described above.

Financial liabilities

EREE

Initial recognition and measurement , o)
g SRR

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as

%vaEE1fEA%)J*Fﬁ€€uZJHT%)§/‘*EEM

financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and /Lﬁﬁﬁ+ ERFEHH ARSI STE

borrowings, or payables, as appropriate. & B REZREMNDE BB
5Rﬁﬁ£ g

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, NEERSHEER - RAREBER

% R E R AR FRIA B AT 3R
RAIAHNREERGRBZZSER -

in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of
directly attributable transaction costs.

$’§lﬁ’3§mﬁﬁﬁ REANE T/
RN R - BRERE Q/ATE’\JMIE
HERE - mi%ﬂlﬁ%&%ﬁ%%
R -

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other
payables, an amount due to the ultimate holding company,
lease liabilities derivative financial instruments and interest-
bearing bank and other borrowings.
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2. BASIS OF PREPARATION
AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2. WMEEERERRK ()

2.4 TEETBEREE (8)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting

policies (continued)
Financial liabilities (continued)
Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends
on their classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and borrowings)

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest rate method unless the effect of discounting
would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.
Gains and losses are recognised in the statement of profit or
loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through
the effective interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that
are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective
interest rate amortisation is included in finance costs in the
statement of profit or loss.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are those
contracts that require a payment to be made to reimburse
the holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor
fails to make a payment when due in accordance with the
terms of a debt instrument. A financial guarantee contract is
recognised initially as a liability at its fair value, adjusted for
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issuance
of the guarantee. Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group
measures the financial guarantee contracts at the higher of:
(i) the ECL allowance determined in accordance with the
policy as set out in “Impairment of financial assets”; and {ii)
the amount initially recognised less, when appropriate, the
cumulative amount of income recognised.
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31 December 2019 20194 12 A 31 H

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION 2. IRBEERSIBEE (]
AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

2.4 TESHBEHME (F)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting

policies (continued)
Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under
the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the
terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such
an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of
the original liability and a recognition of a new liability, and
the difference between the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the
net amount is reported in the statement of financial position
if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on
a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined on the weighted average basis.
Net realisable value is based on estimated selling prices less
any estimated costs to be incurred to completion and on
disposal.
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2. BASIS OF PREPARATION
AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2. WMEEERERRK ()

2.4 TEETBEREE (8)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting

policies (continued)
Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
demand deposits, and short term highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash,
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value,
and have a short maturity of generally within three months
when acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable
on demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash
management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial
position, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and at banks, including term deposits, and assets similar in
nature to cash, which are not restricted as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end
of the reporting period of the future expenditures expected
to be required to settle the obligation. The increase in the
discounted present value amount arising from the passage of
time is included in finance costs in the statement of profit or
loss.
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2. BASIS OF PREPARATION 2. {REEBEERSBEE)
AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting

2.4 TEEBEREE ()

policies (continued)
Employee retirement benefits

Pursuant to the relevant regulations of the PRC government,
the companies comprising the Group operating in Mainland
China (the “PRC group companies”) have participated in
a local municipal government retirement benefit scheme
(the “Scheme”), whereby the PRC group companies are
required to contribute a certain percentage of the salaries
of their employees to the Scheme to fund their retirement
benefits. The only obligation of the Group with respect to
the Scheme is to pay the ongoing contributions under the
Scheme. Contributions under the Scheme are charged to the
statement of profit of loss as incurred.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax and land
appreciation tax. Income tax relating to items recognised
outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss,
either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period, taking into consideration interpretations and practices
prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

186 Zhong An Group Limited 2019 Annual Report

BRIAER

ERPBRANAREASR  £TEA
LB AR ([FEREERQF])
ER2MT EHHBANRAKE
2| ([%&T8))) - At 8 ERkPEKE
REMRAREITEARTE—FHHIm
ZATEIH AR - BB T RRIEMRH
ﬁi o REBEZT B ME—REE
Fra R B 5T BV BUNFT AR TE RO LR o
ZATEIA TR HRAERERTABRR
% o

W

8%

PSR B A A BB AE R IR A K £ 3
HER - BEBRRNIMERNIERE
R PSR AR 18 25 DAY B At 2 T UR
HAERREENERARER o

EMTREEMBENERTREE
RREHAES N EBTRGE
ERAREXBREMERRERA
T2 BRREENE D - 1ZIRE MM AR
SHMRAEREERNT B R (R
TR B) SRHERE

BB RERRAEERAE
O B E VR TS s AR O BREI (B
Z BT ZRRAREEEY
B -



Notes to Financial Statements
B &R R M EE

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION
AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2. WMEEERERRK ()

2.4 TEETBEREE (8)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

Fris®t (%)

Income tax (continued)

BERIAREREEHERTERZE
BRERALR - BUATERRI :

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and
associates, when the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences can be controlled and it is
probable that the temporary differences will not reverse
in the foreseeable future.
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Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, and the carryforward of unused tax
credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit
will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences, the carryforward of unused tax credits and
unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not
a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss; and

in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries, joint
ventures and associates, deferred tax assets are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that the
temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable
future and taxable profit will be available against which
the temporary differences can be utilised.
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2. BASIS OF PREPARATION 2. {REEBEERSBEE)
AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)
24 FESTBERME (B)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting

policies (continued)
Income tax (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed the
at end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will
be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to
be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed
at the end of each reporting period and are recognised to
the extent that it has become probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset
is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and
tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a
legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to
the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where
there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received
and all attaching conditions will be complied with. When the
grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income
on a systematic basis over the periods that the costs, which
it is intended to compensate, are expensed.

Where the grant relates to an asset, the fair value is credited
to a deferred income account and is released to the
statement of profit or loss over the expected useful life of
the relevant asset by equal annual instalments or deducted
from the carrying amount of the asset and released to the
statement of profit or loss by way of a reduced depreciation
charge.
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2. BASIS OF PREPARATION
AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2. WMEEERERRK ()

2.4 Summary of significant accounting

2.4 TEETBEREE (8)

policies (continued)
Revenue recognition
Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when
control of goods or services is transferred to the customers
at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the
Group expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or
services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable
amount, the amount of consideration is estimated to which
the Group will be entitled in exchange for transferring the
goods or services to the customer. The variable consideration
is estimated at contract inception and constrained until it
is highly probable that a significant revenue reversal in the
amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur when
the associated uncertainty with the variable consideration is
subsequently resolved.

When the contract contains a financing component which
provides the customer with a significant benefit of financing
the transfer of goods or services to the customer for more
than one year, revenue is measured at the present value of
the amount receivable, discounted using the discount rate
that would be reflected in a separate financing transaction
between the Group and the customer at contract inception.
When the contract contains a financing component which
provides the Group a significant financial benefit for more
than one year, revenue recognised under the contract
includes the interest expense accreted on the contract
liability under the effective interest method. For a contract
where the period between the payment by the customer and
the transfer of the promised goods or services is one year or
less, the transaction price is not adjusted for the effects of a
significant financing component, using the practical expedient
in IFRS 15.
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Notes to Financial Statements

PSRRI RE

31 December 2019 20194 12 A 31 H

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION 2.
AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

(@)

Revenue from the sales of properties

For property development and sales contract for which
the control of the property is transferred at a point
in time, revenue is recognised when the purchasers
obtain the physical possession or the legal title of the
completed properties and the Group has present right
to payment from the purchasers.

Revenue from hotel operation

Revenue from hotel operation is derived from room
rental, food and beverage sales and income from the
provision of other ancillary services, and is recognised
when the services are rendered.

Revenue from property management

Revenue from property management services is
recognised over the scheduled period on a straight-line
basis because the customer simultaneously receives
and consumes the benefits provided by the Group.

Revenue from other sources

Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis

over the lease terms. Variable lease payments that do not

depend on an index or a rate are recognised as income in

the accounting period in which they are incurred.
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Notes to Financial Statements
gy S e

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION 2. IRBEERSEBEE (])
AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

2.4 TESHBEHME ()

2.4 Summary of significant accounting

policies (continued)
Revenue recognition (continued)
Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by applying the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the
expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period,
when appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial
asset.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’ right
to receive payment has been established, it is probable
that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will
flow to the Group and the amount of the dividend can be
measured reliably.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is received
or a payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer
before the Group transfers the related goods or services.
Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Group
performs under the contract (i.e., transfers control of the
related goods or services to the customer).
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Notes to Financial Statements
b EL

31 December 2019 20194 12 A 31 H

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION 2. {REEBEERSBEE)
AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting

2.4 TEEBEREE ()

policies (continued)
Share-based payments

The Company operates a share option scheme for the
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the Group’s
operations. Employees (including directors) of the Group
receive remuneration in the form of share-based payments,
whereby employees render services as consideration for
equity instruments (“equity-settled transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees for
grants after 7 November 2002 is measured by reference to
the fair value at the date at which they are granted. The fair
value is determined by an external valuer using a binomial
model, further details of which are given in note 35 to the
financial statements.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised in
employee benefit expense, together with a corresponding
increase in equity, over the period in which the performance
and/or service conditions are fulfilled. The cumulative
expense recognised for equity-settled transactions at the
end of each reporting period until the vesting date reflects
the extent to which the vesting period has expired and the
Group’s best estimate of the number of equity instruments
that will ultimately vest. The charge or credit to the statement
of profit or loss for a period represents the movement in the
cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning and end
of that period.
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Notes to Financial Statements
B &R R M EE

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION
AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2. WMEEERERRK ()

2.4 TEETBEREE (8)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting

policies (continued)
Share-based payments (continued)

Service and non-market performance conditions are not
taken into account when determining the grant date fair
value of awards, but the likelihood of the conditions being
met is assessed as part of the Group’s best estimate of the
number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. Market
performance conditions are reflected within the grant date fair
value. Any other conditions attached to an award, but without
an associated service requirement, are considered to be non-
vesting conditions. Non-vesting conditions are reflected in the
fair value of an award and lead to an immediate expensing of
an award unless there are also service and/or performance
conditions.

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market
performance and/or service conditions have not been met,
no expense is recognised. Where awards include a market or
non-vesting condition, the transactions are treated as vesting
irrespective of whether the market or non-vesting condition is
satisfied, provided that all other performance and/or service
conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as
a minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had not
been modified, if the original terms of the award are met. In
addition, an expense is recognised for any modification that
increases the total fair value of the share-based payments, or
is otherwise beneficial to the employee as measured at the
date of modification.
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Notes to Financial Statements
b EL

31 December 2019 20194 12 A 31 H

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION
AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2. WMEEER TR ()

2.4 TEEBEREE ()

2.4 Summary of significant accounting

policies (continued)
Share-based payments (continued)

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if
it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense
not yet recognised for the award is recognised immediately.
This includes any award where non-vesting conditions within
the control of either the Group or the employee are not met.
However, if a new award is substituted for the cancelled
award, and is designated as a replacement award on the
date that it is granted, the cancelled and new awards are
treated as if they were a maodification of the original award, as
described in the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as
additional share dilution in the computation of earnings per
share.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready
for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the
cost of those assets. The capitalisation of such borrowing
costs ceases when the assets are substantially ready for
their intended use or sale. Investment income earned on
the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs are
expensed in the period in which they are incurred. Borrowing
costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs
in connection with the borrowing of funds.

Where funds have been borrowed generally and used for the
purpose of obtaining qualifying assets, a capitalisation rate of
5.64% (2018: 5.93%) has been applied to the expenditure on
the individual assets.
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Notes to Financial Statements
B &R R M EE

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION 2. WEEERSHEEK (I8
AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

24 FESHBEHME (&)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting

policies (continued)
Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are
approved by the shareholders in a general meeting.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared.
Consequently, interim dividends are recognised immediately
as a liability when they are proposed and declared.

Foreign currencies

The Company and certain subsidiaries incorporated outside
Mainland China use the Hong Kong dollar (‘HK$”), the United
States dollar (“US$”) and the Great Britain Pound (“GBP”)
as their functional currencies, respectively. The functional
currency of Mainland China subsidiaries is the RMB. As
the Group mainly operates in Mainland China, the RMB is
used as the presentation currency of the Group. Each entity
in the Group determines its own functional currency and
items included in the financial statements of each entity are
measured using that functional currency. Foreign currency
transactions recorded by the entities in the Group are initially
recorded using their respective functional currency rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated
at the functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the end
of the reporting period. Differences arising on settlement or
translation of monetary items are recognised in the statement
of profit or loss.
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Notes to Financial Statements
b EL

31 December 2019 20194 12 A 31 H

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION 2. {REEBEERSBEE)
AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting

2.4 TEEBEREE ()

policies (continued)
Foreign currencies (continued)

Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary
items are recognised in the statement of profit or loss with
the exception of monetary items that are designated as
part of the hedge of the Group’s net investment of a foreign
operation. These are recognised in other comprehensive
income until the net investment is disposed of, at which
time the cumulative amount is reclassified to the statement
of profit or loss. Tax charges and credits attributable to
exchange differences on those monetary items are also
recorded in other comprehensive income.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-
monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency
are translated using the exchange rates at the date when
the fair value was measured. The gain or loss arising on
translation of a non-monetary item measured at fair value
is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on
change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation difference on
the item whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in other
comprehensive income or profit or loss is also recognised in
other comprehensive income or profit or loss, respectively).

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of the
related asset, expense or income on the derecognition of a
non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability relating to an
advance consideration, the date of initial transaction is the
date on which the Group initially recognises the non-monetary
asset or non-monetary liability arising from the advance
consideration. If there are multiple payments or receipts in
advance, the Group determines the transaction date for each
payment or receipt of the advance consideration.
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Notes to Financial Statements
B &R R M EE

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION
AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2. WMEEERERRK ()

2.4 TEETBEREE (8)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting

policies (continued)
Foreign currencies (continued)

The functional currencies of non-PRC established subsidiaries
are currencies other than the RMB. As at the end of the
reporting period, the assets and liabilities of these entities
are translated into RMB at the exchange rates prevailing at
the end of the reporting period and their statements of profit
or loss are translated into RMB at the weighted average
exchange rates for the year.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange
fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the
component of other comprehensive income relating to that
particular foreign operation is recognised in the statement of
profit or loss.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation
and any fair value adjustments to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities arising on acquisition are treated as
assets and liabilities of the foreign operation and translated at
the closing rate.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
the cash flows of non-PRC established subsidiaries are
translated into RMB at the exchange rates ruling at the dates
of the cash flows. Frequently recurring cash flows of non-
PRC established companies which arise throughout the year
are translated into RMB at the weighted average exchange
rates for the year.
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Notes to Financial Statements
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31 December 2019 20194 12 A 31 H

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. EXErHHIERR &5t

JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and
liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure
of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and
estimates could result in outcomes that could require a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities
affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart from those
involving estimations, which have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognised in the financial statements:

(i) Property lease classification - Group as a lessor

The Group has entered into commercial property leases on
its investment property portfolio. The Group has determined,
based on an evaluation of the terms and conditions of the
arrangements, such as the lease term not constituting a
major part of the economic life of the commercial property
and the present value of the minimum lease payments not
amounting to substantially all the fair value of the commercial
property, that it retains substantially all the significant risks
and rewards incidental to ownership of these properties
which are leased out and accounts for the contracts as
operating leases.

(ii) Classification between investment properties,
completed properties held for sale and owner-occupied

properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an
investment property, and has developed criteria in making
that judgement. Investment property is a property held to
earn rentals or for capital appreciation or both. Therefore, the
Group considers whether a property generates cash flows
largely independently of the other assets held by the Group.

198 Zhong An Group Limited 2019 Annual Report

REANEBNMBSHRKE - EREAELH
B - AR RRER - MR SHE - et RR&R
SYEME/BA - X - BERAEBEHN
RESBRLEBHIREARS A BT
- AN ARRRMEFOTEERER - 7
BYEREARARIFENEENBER
EERIEHERAE -

2l

EERAASEEHARFART - BEEFD
TIHAHPBERRAMERSBAREAN
FENHIE - S RAETERI

() REHERE-FLEEEREHEA

AEERERENEESTEAREY
EHEH - NEERBEHA BLHEK
RAGHEE - BEERAL LR
HENMEREREEEERBHN
BEXRRERREE -

(i) REWF - FHEHSCERDERE
FEMEMENDE

AEEBRE-ENEECRERER
BEME - WESEEHZAENE
% - WENERRIRE S REAIE
EXMERSMEANYE - Bt -
REBERR  ZMEETELRSR
B RABENTRAKEFANEM
BEVE -



Notes to Financial Statements

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(CONTINUED)

Judgements (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Classification between investment properties,
completed properties held for sale and owner-occupied
properties (continued)

Some properties comprise a portion that is held to earn
rentals or for capital appreciation and another portion that is
held for use in the production or supply of goods or services
or for administrative purposes. If these portions could be sold
separately, the Group accounts for the portions separately. If
the portions could not be sold separately, the property is an
investment property only if an insignificant portion is held for
use in the production or supply of goods or services or for
administrative purposes. Judgement is made on an individual
property basis to determine whether ancillary services are so
significant that a property does not qualify as an investment

property.

Classification of current and non-current properties
under development

The Group classifies properties under development according
to the construction progress and estimated commencement
date of pre-sale. Properties under development are classified
as current assets after the construction commences.
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Notes to Financial Statements

PSRRI RE

31 December 2019 20194 12 A 31 H

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(CONTINUED)

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources

of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that

have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the

carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial

year, are described below:

0]

200 Zhong An Group Limited

Fair value of investment properties

Investment properties were revalued based on the appraised
market value by independent professional valuers. Such
valuations were based on certain assumptions, which are
subject to uncertainty and might materially differ from the
actual results. In making the estimate, the Group considers
information from current prices in an active market for similar
properties and uses assumptions that are mainly based on
market conditions existing at the end of the reporting period.

In the absence of current prices in an active market for similar
properties, the Group considers information from a variety of
sources, including:

(@  current prices in an active market for properties of a
different nature, condition or location or subject to
different leases or other contracts, adjusted to reflect
those differences;

(b)  recent prices of similar properties on less active
markets, with adjustments to reflect any changes
in economic conditions since the dates of the
transactions that occurred at those prices; and

(c) discounted cash flow projections based on reliable
estimates of future cash flows, supported by the terms
of any existing lease and other contracts and (when
possible) by external evidence such as current market
rents for similar properties in the same location and
condition, and using discount rates that reflect current
market assessments of the uncertainty in the amount
and timing of the cash flows.
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Notes to Financial Statements

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(CONTINUED)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

(i)

(ii)

Fair value of investment properties (continued)

The principal assumptions for the Group’s estimation of
the fair value include those related to current market rents
for similar properties in the same location and condition,
appropriate discount rates, expected future market rents and
future maintenance costs. The carrying amount of investment
properties at 31 December 2019 was RMB5,679,140,000
(2018: RMB5,528,600,000). Further details, including the
key assumptions used for fair value measurement and a
sensitivity analysis, are given in note 13 to the financial
statements.

Net realisable value of properties under development
and completed properties held for sale

The Group’s properties under development and completed
properties held for sale are stated at the lower of cost
and net realisable value. Based on the Group’s historical
experience and the nature of the subject properties, the
Group makes estimates of the selling prices, the costs of
completion of properties under development, and the costs
to be incurred in selling the properties based on prevailing
market conditions.

If there is an increase in costs to completion or a decrease in
net sales value, the net realisable value will decrease and this
may result in a provision for properties under development
and completed properties held for sale. Such provision
requires the use of judgements and estimates. Where the
expectation is different from the original estimate, the carrying
value and provision for properties in the period in which the
estimate is changed will be adjusted accordingly.
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31 December 2019 20194 12 A 31 H

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(CONTINUED)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

(iii)

(iv)

202 Zhong An Group Limited

PRC land appreciation tax (“LAT”)

LAT in the PRC is levied at progressive rates ranging from
30% to 60% on the appreciation of land value, being
the proceeds from the sale of properties less deductible
expenditures including land costs, borrowing costs and other
property development expenditures.

The subsidiaries of the Group engaging in the property
development business in Mainland China are subject to
LAT. However, the implementation of these taxes varies
amongst various cities in Mainland China and the Group
has not finalised its LAT returns with various tax authorities.
Accordingly, significant judgement is required in determining
the amount of land appreciation and its related taxes. The
ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary
course of business. The Group recognises these liabilities
based on management’s best estimates. Where the final
tax outcome of these matters is different from the amounts
that were initially recorded, such differences will impact the
statement of profit or loss and the provision for LAT in the
period in which such determination is made.

Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at least
on an annual basis. This requires an estimation of the value
in use of the cash-generating units to which the goodwill is
allocated. Estimating the value in use requires the Group to
make an estimate of the expected future cash flows from the
cash-generating units and also to choose a suitable discount
rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash
flows. The carrying amount of goodwill at 31 December 2019
was RMB98,995,000 (2018: Nil). Further details are given in
note 16 to the financial statements.

2019 Annual Report

3. EXEaHFIER (&5t (&)

fhEr YRR = (&)

(iii)

(iv)

Rt IR E B

B Y B IR E T R L I (B B 3
EW TS RIBRE AR (B
THARA - (EERA R AR
B 32 T 1R 30 % ZE 60 % B HE 3 T K
Bl

AEEB T ETEEENEAEES
M B AR AR EER - A
- ERERARMT - ZEHRE
NERSEEZR  AAKE AR
R HEREEER T IRERE
MK - Bt - EEE T HIZESER
HAARB AR AEHEAAE - A
FRBGERTHRRNTIBREE DT
E o AEBEIRRBERENREMTE
RZFAE - WRFEROKEHIA
BREARVCERNSENR - RIFH
ZEFEFERGER  UZETY
A LB ERRAE B -

BERE

AEEE O EFEEHEEERE—
R BARPFFEHESERENR
SEEBNNFEREBELMGR - M
B EREERMEERASEEHR
PEABUNBEHRKRERNENE
s THREEESENNEX
LEAERESRERE - R20194F
12A31H  BENEKAERARK
08,995,0007C(20184F : 4&) o #E—2
BN R MIEE16 o



Notes to Financial Statements

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(CONTINUED)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

(v)

(vi)

Leases - Estimating the incremental borrowing rate

The Group cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit
in a lease, and therefore, it uses an incremental borrowing
rate (“IBR”) to measure lease liabilities. The IBR is the rate of
interest that the Group would have to pay to borrow over a
similar term, and with a similar security, the funds necessary
to obtain an asset of a similar value to the right-of-use
asset in a similar economic environment. The IBR therefore
reflects what the Group “would have to pay”, which requires
estimation when no observable rates are available (such as
for subsidiaries that do not enter into financing transactions)
or when it needs to be adjusted to reflect the terms and
conditions of the lease (for example, when leases are not in
the subsidiary’s functional currency). The Group estimates
the IBR using observable inputs (such as market interest
rates) when available and is required to make certain entity-
specific estimates (such as the subsidiary’s stand-alone
credit rating).

Impairment of non-financial assets (other than
goodwill)

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of
impairment for all non-financial assets (including the right-of-
use assets) at the end of each reporting period. Other non-
financial assets are tested for impairment when there are
indicators that the carrying amounts may not be recoverable.
An impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or a
cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which is
the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value
in use. The calculation of the fair value less costs of disposal
is based on available data from binding sales transactions in
an arm’s length transaction of similar assets or observable
market prices less incremental costs for disposing of the
asset. When value in use calculations are undertaken,
management must estimate the expected future cash flows
from the asset or cash-generating unit and choose a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate the present value of those
cash flows.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(CONTINUED)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

(vii)

(viii)

204 Zzhong An Group Limited

Fair value of unlisted equity investment

The unlisted equity investments have been valued based
on a market-based valuation technique as detailed in note
43 to the financial statements. The valuation requires the
Group to determine the comparable public companies
(peers) and select the price multiple. In addition, the Group
makes estimates about the discount for illiquidity and size
differences. The Group classifies the fair value of these
investments as Level 3. The fair value of the unlisted equity
investments at 31 December 2019 was RMB476,729,000
(2018: RMB423,605,000). Further details are included in note
18 to the financial statements

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences and unused tax losses to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences and losses can
be utilised. Significant management judgement is required
to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can
be recognised, based upon the likely timing and level of
future taxable profits together with future tax planning
strategies. The carrying value of deferred tax assets
relating to recognised deductible temporary differences
and tax losses at 31 December 2019 was RMB69,418,000
(2018: RMB52,745,000). The amount of unrecognised
tax losses during the year ended 31 December 2019 was
RMB350,112,000 (2018: RMB133,260,000). Further details
are contained in note 23 to the financial statements.
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Notes to Financial Statements

OPERATING SEGMENT
INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into business
units based on income derived from business and has two
reportable operating segments as follows:

(@ the residential segment develops and sells residential
properties, and provides management and security services
to residential properties in Mainland China and Canada;

(b)  the commercial segment develops and sells commercial
properties, leases investment properties, owns and operates
hotels and provides management and security services to
commercial properties in Mainland China.

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating
segments separately for the purpose of making decisions about
resource allocation and performance assessment. Segment
performance is evaluated based on reportable segment profit/
loss, which is a measure of profit/loss before tax from continuing
operations. Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with
reference to the selling prices used for sales made to third parties
at the then prevailing market prices.
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PSRRI RE

31 December 2019 20194 12 A 31 H

4. OPERATING SEGMENT

INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

4. EESBEH )

Residential Commercial Total
F= [SES st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
Year ended 31 December 2019 #EHZ2019F12831HILFE AR¥T T ARBTT AR®T T
Segment revenue DEWA :
Sales to external customers HINBRPIHE
Property development A=A B
— Residential —F=E 3,578,036 - 3,578,036
— Office and Commercial e VNSESES 125,925 1,499,092 1,625,017
— Carpark —{ZE5 373,096 35,460 408,556
4,077,057 1,534,552 5,611,609
Property management and VB R E M ABRE AR
other related services 141,253 104,619 245,872
Hotel operations BIREE - 141,270 141,270
4,218,310 1,780,441 5,008,751
Property leasing income MEHREWRA 30,520 175,412 205,932
4,248,830 1,955,853 6,204,683
Intersegment sales D EBEHE 11,833 - 11,833
Sales to external customers HINBRFIHE 4,260,663 1,955,853 6,216,516
Reconciliation: SEED
Elimination of intersegment sales 3 2B F& 1~ FUE %1 6 (11,833)
Revenue from continuing REFECEEBRBRA
operations 6,204,683
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31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

4. OPERATING SEGMENT

INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

4. EEHBEH )

Residential Commercial Total
x= [HES et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

Year ended 31 December 2019 #EHZ2019F12831HILFE AR¥T T AR®T T ARET T
Segment results DEBELE 1,540,431 380,128 1,920,559
Segment assets DEEE 16,375,424 14,508,724 30,884,148
Reconciliation: SEAED
Elimination of intersegment 53 B FH] FE I SR IE 1 48

receivables (711,709)
Total assets BEE 15,683,715 14,508,724 30,172,439
Segment liabilities DEEE 12,344,839 8,367,189 20,712,028
Reconciliation: SEED
Elimination of intersegment 53 B T A< SRIE T 48

payables (1,060,275)
Total liabilities BEE 11,284,564 8,367,189 19,651,753
Other segment information: HittpEER
Share of profits and losses of: SMEFERERE

Associates SN 3,500 - 3,500

Joint ventures BEDEHE (9,950) - (9,950)
Impairment losses recognised in A B R IERRIERE 1B

the statement of profit or loss (27,664) - (27,664)
Investments in joint ventures REEREMNIRE 50,994 - 50,994
Depreciation and amortisation Hres M SE 17,179 120,252 137,431
Capital expenditure BARFX 78,154 111,235 189,389
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31 December 2019 20194 12 A 31 H

4. OPERATING SEGMENT 4. BESTWBEHEE)

INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Residential Commercial Total
*= EES 4aET
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
Year ended 31 December 2018  EZ£2018F 12 A31H IFF[E ARETFT AREFT AREBT T
Segment revenue DEBWA
Sales to external customers HINBRPIHE
Property development A=A B
— Residential —F= 2,557,565 - 2,557,565
- Office and Commercial o VNSTEES 111,751 1,565,637 1,677,388
— Carpark — (=85 416,072 12,810 428,882
3,085,388 1,578,447 4,663,835
Property management and other  #)2%E 1% K E b iR R R
related services 140,240 74,475 214,715
Hotel operations B A E - 111,328 111,328
3,225,628 1,764,250 4,989,878
Property leasing income MEHREWRA 19,122 160,369 179,491
3,244,750 1,924,619 5,169,369
Intersegment sales 7 EBfEI S & 800 - 800
Sales to external customers HINEEFHE 3,245,550 1,924,619 5,170,169
Reconciliation: SEED
Elimination of intersegment sales 3 2B F& 1~ FUE %1 6 (800)
Revenue from continuing REFECEEBRBRA
operations 5,169,369
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT

INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

PSRRI

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

4. EESBEH R

Residential Commercial Total
F=E (EES 4aET
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
Year ended 31 December 2018 B E2018F12A31HILFE AREFT ARETT ARET T
Segment results PEFEE 1,014,386 (130,814) 883,572
Segment assets DEEE 12,821,255 13,231,588 26,052,843
Reconciliation: SEAED
Elimination of intersegment 53 B [ FE B R T 3 8
receivables (986,909)
Total assets BEE 11,834,346 13,231,588 25,065,934
Segment liabilities PHBAE 8,206,811 7,333,545 15,540,356
Reconciliation: SEED
Elimination of intersegment 53 B T A< SRIE T 48
payables (24,541)
Total liabilities wafs 8,182,270 7,333,545 15,515,815
Other segment information: HittpEER
Share of losses of: HEEE
Joint ventures BEDE 2,629 - 2,629
Impairment losses recognised in K825 K MR AR EET B
the statement of profit or loss 28,235 - 28,235
Depreciation weE 10,140 49,671 59,811
Capital expenditure BRI 4,072 126,776 130,848
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PSR M

31 December 2019 20194 12 A 31 H

4. OPERATING SEGMENT
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Geographical information

(@) Revenue from external customers

4.

EESBEA )

& & R

(@) REIIBEFHBA

2019 2018

20194 20184

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETRT ARET T

Mainland China FR B K B 6,194,740 5,169,369
Others EHoh 9,943 =
6,204,683 5,169,369

The revenue information above is based on the locations of
the customers.

(b) Non-current assets

EAAER TR E R P P it &

5 .

(b) FRBEE

2019 2018

20194 20184

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT AREBT T

Mainland China 2 lETp N7 10,770,796 9,454,020
Japan AR 91,057 78,705
Others Eith 178,743 474
11,040,596 9,533,199

The non-current assets information above are based on
the locations of the assets and excludes equity investments
designated at fair value through other comprehensive income
and deferred tax assets.
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Notes to Financial Statements

4.

OPERATING SEGMENT 4,
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Information about major customers
No sales to a single customer or a group of customers under

common control accounted for 10% or more of the Group’s
revenue for the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018.

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND 5.
GAINS

An analysis of revenue is as follows:

PSRRI

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

EESBEHA )

EREEFEFNER

WESEE —RFHEREREN THE
PRI HERBANEBENEZE20184F
201912 A31 B IEFE R A 10%k A
J: °

WA - il A B i

WA DT
2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT ARET T

Revenue from contracts with customers P& #THA
Revenue from other sources E b FIF A
Gross rental income from investment X&YKL ST E U A 4858

property operating leases

5,998,751 4,989,878
205,932 179,491
6,204,683 5,169,369
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31 December 2019 20194 12 A 31 H

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND
GAINS (CONTINUED)

Revenue from contracts with customers

(i) Disaggregated revenue information

For the year ended 31 December 2019

5. g - Rttt A Rl iz (#7)

EFEHBA
i) DHFBAER
HZE2019512A31HLLEE
Property
management
and other
Property related Hotel
development services operations Total
NEER
REf Vi)
NERR RS gaxi st

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

Segments 23 ARBTT ARBTR ARBTT AR®TR
Type of goods or services EnBRBES
Sale of properties HEME 5,611,609 - - 5,611,609
Hotel operating income BIREBRA - - 141,270 141,270
Property management fee income MEEEEKA - 245,872 - 245,872
Total revenue from contracts REANMNEE

with customers 5,611,609 245,872 141,270 5,998,751
Timing of revenue recognition el
At a point in time RE-FHEZ 5,611,609 - 141,270 5,752,879
Over time [l - 245,872 - 245,872
Total revenue from contracts REANMNESE

with customers 5,611,609 245,872 141,270 5,998,751
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5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND

PSRRI

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

5. IgA - Rl A Rl iz (#7)

GAINS (CONTINUED)
Revenue from contracts with customers EEESHWA (8
(continued)
() Disaggregated revenue information (continued) (i) DFBAERGE)
For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZE2018F12A31HILEE
Property
management
and other
Property related Hotel
development services operations Total
NEER
REM
MEER ERRE  RECEER @5t
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
Segments 28 ARETT ARETT AEETT ARETT
Type of goods or services ERBRBESR
Sale of properties HEMZ 4,663,835 - = 4,663,835
Hotel operating income BEZERA - - 111,328 111,328
Property management fee income MEEBBYA = 214,715 = 214,715
Total revenue from contracts RPEHWAERE
with customers 4,663,835 214,715 111,328 4,989,878
Timing of revenue recognition BEnEIRE
At apoint n time IR 4,663,835 - 111,328 4,775,163
Over time BERS - 214,715 - 214,715
Total revenue from contrats RPN EE
with customers 4,663,835 214,715 111,328 4,989,878

Revenue from sales of properties recognised that was
included in contract liabilities at the beginning of the reporting
period was amounted to RMB3,037,761,000 (2018:

RMB2,500,481,000).

RAREMBPUVBEEANERE
PHERAVHEERRRARE
3,037,761,0007T (20184 : AR¥E
2,500,481,0007T) °
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PSRRI RE

31 December 2019 20194 12 A 31 H

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND

GAINS (CONTINUED)

Revenue from contracts with customers

(continued)

(i) Disaggregated revenue information (continued)

5. g - Rttt A Rl iz (#7)

BEFEHWKA (#)

i) ZHFBAERGE)

2019 2018
20194 2018%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREFIT
Other income H A
Bank interest income SRITHRBULA 50,647 32,857
Subsidy income* GE N 1,727 3,005
Others HAh 13,739 17,168
66,113 53,030
Gains Uz
Foreign exchange gain B e 538 =
Changes in fair value of financial assets AR BEFABRZHNSREE
at fair value through profit or loss AR BEEZES) 31,561 =
Gain on fair value re-measurement JER—IEHI T ¥ AR IRGE
of existing equity in business =R AR BEENTERE
combination not under common
control 451 -
98,663 53,030
* There are no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies relating to B A B R TR MO R Sk BB B S 4 ©

these grants.
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PROFIT BEFORE TAX

The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

AR AR M

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

6. FRIRAIFIE

AEBERBAFBEE MR GEA) FoI%

18 :
2019 2018
20195 20184
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Mz ARBTT ARBFIT
Cost of properties sold B EMERAR 25 2,988,483 3,101,029
Depreciation of property and equipment /= MRETE 12 83,383 59,811
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEENE 15 53,615 =
Amortisation of other intangible assets ~ E 4 AU & 7 8 4 17 433 =
Minimum lease payments under BRELCEHENRE
operating leases e HIE - 56,243
Lease payments not included in the TRETEHEAEDN
measurement of lease liabilities HERK 15 34,311 =
Auditor’s remuneration IZ SR NS 4,120 4,120
Staff costs including directors’ and BINRA(BIEEER
chief executive’s remuneration: FETHRAEMS) 8
— Salaries and other staff costs —TEREMETKA 281,722 224,745
— Pension scheme contributions —RIREE B 32,827 29,848
Foreign exchange differences, net FEN =% - FE (538) 968
Direct operating expenses (including HELERY (RREEEY
repairs and maintenance arising on EEENEEREE)
investment properties) 5,345 3,514
Loss on disposal of investment HEREMEESE
properties 1,427 28,576
Gains on fair value re-measurement R — 2 H T REE O
of existing equity in business FIREERNAREER
combination not under common BEHEIENRE
control 37 (451) -
Fair value (gains)/losses, net: AREEUS EE
JREE
Changes upon transfer to investment BRI EYEN QA BE
properties b= 13 (50,642) 25,030
Changes in fair value of investment WEMEND N BEEZE)
properties 13 37,503 (21,169)
Changes in fair value of financial BAREEEBEEEE
assets at fair value through profit or ABHEZENEREEN
loss REEES) (31,561) 2,070
(Reversal & realise)/write-down of RS EIHE B a3
completed properties held for sale (BE RER) MAE
to net realisable value A& IR RE 25 (27,664) 28,235
FrEmERAE —E-rFgHk 215
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PSRRI RE

31 December 2019 20194 12 A 31 H

7. FINANCE COSTS

An analysis of the Group’s finance costs is as follows:

7. UKEH

AEENPHEBERIMDT

2019 2018
20194 2018%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AREBT T
Interest on bank and other borrowings 877 K E b & ZF & 375,528 287,623
Interest on lease liabilities HEAEFE 16,984 =
Total interest expense on financial WIHRARBEFAERNEHE
liabilities not at fair value through profit B &M B 4858
or loss 392,512 287,623
Less: Interest capitalised in properties W FRERYENEREFE
under development (202,130) (172,930)
190,382 114,693

8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF 8.

EXECUTIVE’S REMUNERATION

Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year, disclosed

EFREERTHARME

BRI ETRE - BFQBEHIZE383(1)@)

pursuant to the Listing Rules, section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of the (0) * RMEAR AT (HEEEFZER)
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies HMOIE2E  FRNEERETETHAENS
(Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is WERIT :
as follows:
2019 2018
20195 2018%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARETT
Fees e 1,008 1,008
Other emoluments: HAbFH -
Salaries, bonuses and allowances e~ Te4L RoERY 11,954 8,450
Pension scheme contributions RRSEHEIHR 54 38
12,008 8,488
13,016 9,496
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31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF 8. EERFEITHARME
EXECUTIVE’S REMUNERATION (#8)
(CONTINUED)
(@) Independent non-executive directors (@) BIUFHITES

FRAENBILFATESENEES N

The fees paid to independent non-executive directors during

the year were as follows: DS
2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000
Fees we ARETT AREET T
Mr. Pei Ker Wei BRERE 336 336
Mr. Zhang Huagiao SRALB S 336 336
Mr. Loke Yu BEEMIE A 336 336
1,008 1,008
(b) Executive directors and the chief (b) MITEERETEITHAE
executive
Pension
Salaries and scheme
allowances Bonuses  contributions Total
Bike
HeREM A FTEIHR FH
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARETR AR®TT ARBTL
2019 20195
Executive directors HiTEE
Mr. Shi Kancheng HEARAK 7T 1,801 144 5 1,950
Ms. Wang Shuiyun TKEZL 3,577 2,745 21 6,343
Mr. Jin Jianrong SRERE 1,043 144 7 1,194
Ms. Shen Tiaojuan TRt 1,043 144 - 1,187

Chief executive and executive director TETRASRHTEE

Mr. Zhang Jiangang RSO 969 144 21 1,134

Non-executive director FHTEE

Ms. Shen Li hEZt 200 - - 200
8,633 3,321 54 12,008
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8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVE’S REMUNERATION
(CONTINUED)

(b) Executive directors and the chief

8. EERIETHARMS

(&

(b) MTEERFETHAE

executive (continued) (%)
Pension
Salaries and scheme
allowances Bonuses contributions Total
RikE
e e BE a5t
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
NS S ARETT AEETT ARETT
2018 2018
Executive directors HiTEE
Mr. Shi Kancheng HEARAY 55 A 1,801 405 5 2211
Ms. Wang Shuiyun EKERL 2,770 840 19 3,629
Mr. Jin Jianrong SRRLE 480 119 7 606
Ms. Shen Tiaojuan hgiEZ L 721 162 = 883
Chief executive and executive director FTEZTBASRBTEE
Mr. Zhang Jiangang REH A 772 180 7 959
Non-executive director HHTEE
Ms. Shen Li B L 200 - - 200
6,744 1,706 38 8,488
1) Zhang Jiangang was appointed as the chief executive on 23 (1) R ERE L £ R20184F8 A23 A EZR T
August 2018. RITES -

There was no arrangement under which a director waived or
agreed to waive any remuneration during the year (2018: Nil).
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31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

9. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 9. AvEmMAL

The five highest paid employees during the year included four (2018: FAREERHATABENE (20185 -

two) directors, details of whose remuneration are set out in note MB)ES A FBEH N EXWFE

8 above. Detalils of the remuneration of the remaining one (2018: 8- FAHB TN —H(2018%F : —R)IFEERK
three) non-director, highest paid employees for the year are as BT ALTHBESEFIBAT

follows:

2019 2018

20195 2018%F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT AREET T

Salaries, bonuses and allowances e A ROERL 3,911 4,211
Pension scheme contributions RIS EEIHR 30 19

3,941 4,230
The number of non-director, highest paid employees whose HEERRTNEE ZMESE T IEEHE
remuneration fell within the following bands is as follows: NZ NBHNT :

Number of employees

EEAZ

2019 2018

20194 20184

Nil to RMB1,000,000 Tz AR#1,000,0007T - 1
RMB1,000,000 to RMB2,000,000 AER#1,000,0007CE

A R#2 000,0007T - 1

Over RMB2,000,000 1B A R #2,000,0007T 1 1

1 3
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10. INCOME TAX 10. FR1§ 1R

The Group’s subsidiaries incorporated in Hong Kong and Canada
are not liable for income tax as they did not have any assessable
profits arising in Hong Kong and Canada during the year (2018: Nil).

The provision for the PRC income tax has been provided at the
applicable income tax rate of 25% (2018: 25%) on the assessable
profits of the Group’s subsidiaries in Mainland China.

LAT is levied at progressive rates ranging from 30% to 60% on
the appreciation of land value, being the proceeds from the sale
of properties less deductible expenditures including land costs,
borrowing costs and other property development expenditures. The
Group has estimated, made and included in taxation a provision for
LAT according to the requirements set forth in the relevant PRC tax
laws and regulations. Prior to the actual cash settlement of the LAT
liabilities, the LAT liabilities are subject to the final review/approval
by the tax authorities.

HRAREBRER RINEARK KK E AT
ARG ERE S RIS A 5 A B R A A
B MW EEREERNEANEHEE
(2018%F : £E) °

FRFSHE ASEEFR KB A&
JERIA A E25%(20184F : 25%)H)iE A P15
T E

B IR (E N Bl IR E BN SHE Y 5
PSRRI AT R R S (B AR H A AN -~ {8
ERAREMYEREFR)ZNNI0%E
BO%HRAEN K& - AEBEREBEHNEA
BBARER © et - (Eh REB ARG
AT HIREHER - EARSERGEE LI
BEHREBZA - DHIEEREERHRTR
BRREER T -

2019 2018

20194 2018%F

Note RMB’000 RMB’000

Kzt AR¥T T ARET T

Current — PRC corporate income  BNEATHIE — F AR B> ZEATERT 477,063 267,860
tax for the year

Current — PRC LAT for the year ~ BNEAF{IE — F A B L 1@ EF 476,678 346,835

Deferred FEIEFIIA 23 (37,213) (94,186)

Total tax charge for the year FAHIBREE 916,528 520,509
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10. INCOME TAX (CONTINUED)

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before tax
using the statutory rate for the jurisdiction in which the Company
and the majority of its subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax expense

AR AR M

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

10. FRr 1R (#8)

RIBAR B REARS BB R B PIERNERE
B B E B R ET B R AT A A A BB X
BB RV R F OB SR T

at the effective tax rate is as follows:

2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARET T
Profit before tax BB AR 1,920,559 883,572
Tax at the statutory tax rate of 25% 125%(20184F : 25%)
(2018: 25%) EEB R EMNTIE 480,139 220,893
Lower tax rate for specific provinces or FFEA (St R B e
enacted by local authority ZBIEF R 1,422 8,730
Effect of withholding tax at 10% on the LA ER B rp BB B 2 B AT it
distributable profits of the Group’s PRC 7K AR 1 0% TE 05
subsidiaries S0} 8,731 3,503
Utilised tax losses not recognised in ) AR B IR
previous periods TiIaEE (28,331) (16,871)
Income not subject to tax BAERB 2 WA (114) =
Expenses not deductible for tax It 9,644 10,814
Tax losses not recognised RERTIEEIE 87,528 33,314
Provision for LAT T b IRERT BB 476,678 346,835
Tax effect on LAT TR ER B R R (119,169) (86,709)
Tax charge at the Group’s effective rate~ ANEB BB RO IEF X 916,528 520,509
Tax payable in the consolidated statement  FA & G BT TS AR L3R O FE (SRR 1B 3
of financial position represents:
PRC corporate income tax R ST 679,604 440,315
PRC LAT Bt b3 (E R 1,015,839 758,447
1,695,443 1,198,762
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11. EARNINGS PER SHARE 11.

ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the
earnings for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of the
parent of RMB637,144,000 (2018: RMB286,881,000) and the
weighted average number of ordinary shares of 5,777,812,348
(2018: 5,819,122,482) in the issue of shares and the exercise of
share options during the year, as adjusted to reflect the shares
repurchased and exercised during the year.

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on:

AT BRSHE AES
wBikRF

BREXRBNZBREDQE EHRKE
B ABEFEAFEARK637,144,000
JL(20184F : AR #286,881,0007T) * bA
RENBEITRORITEBREN LB
REDNREF 15 815,777,812,348% (20184 -
5,819,122,482/) 5t & - B THEARME
RH BB KBTI ©

AHEEBRERRNTHER

2019 2018
20195 2018%F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TT ARETTT

Earnings &F|
Profit attributable to ordinary equity B REEBRRERE ARGTE

holders of the parent

637,144 286,881

Number of shares

REHEE
2019 2018
20195 2018%F

Shares &y
Weighted average number of ordinary FAEEITE BN TI9E
shares in issue during the year

No adjustment has been made to the basic profit per share
amounts and basic loss per share amounts presented for the years
ended 31 December 2019 and 2018 in respect of a dilution at
no consideration on the deemed exercise of all dilutive potential
ordinary shares with no dilutive effect, during the year ended 31
December 2019 (2018: Nil).
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31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

12. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT 12. EER & W
Office Motor Leasehold  Construction
Properties Machinery equipment vehicles  improvements in progress Total
S BE WOERE RE BELE EREIE Azt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARMTR  ARETT  ARBTR  ARETR  ARETR ARETR
At1 January 2018: 018F1A18 :
Cost A 1,140925 5549 61,953 62,223 36,464 964,309 2,211,423
Accumulated depreciation ZiriE (112,782) (1,418 (42,220) 48,778) (6,413 = (211,611)
Net carrying amount FEE 1,028,143 4131 19,733 13,445 30,051 964,309 2,069,812
Addtions Em 9,106 24508 10419 2,900 23,000 60915 130,848
Construction in progress completed AR TEEM 352,848 = = = = (352,848) =
Disposals & (6,855 = (174 (47 (6,866) = (14,367)
Depreciation provided during the year  ERHTE (36,387) (1,361) (8,397) (3678) (9,938 - (69,811)
At 31 December 2018, net of 018E12A318 1k
accumulated depreciation Zithe 1,346,855 21218 21,581 12,19 36,197 672,376 2,116,482
At 1 January 2019 201951818
Cost AAfE 1,496,024 30,067 72,198 64,651 52,598 672,376 2,387,904
Accumulated depreciation ZitinE (149,169 (2779 (50,617) (52,456) (16,401) - (271,422)
Net carying amount KEE 1,346,855 27,278 21,581 12,1% 36,197 672,376 2,116,482
Addltions Em 73,223 28,238 14,958 5,082 - 67,888 189,389
Acquisifon of a subsiciary (note 37)  RE—RIHBAR (3
37) - - 2410 - 9,755 - 12,165
Transfer fom properties under aRaRanE
development - - - - - 344,086 344,086
Construction in progress completed AR TE%H 985,849 - - - 106,967 (1,092,816) -
Disposals & - - (170) (429) - - (593)
Depreciation provided during the year ~ F/#TE (58,915) (6,036) (5,140) (3,266) (10,006) - (83,383)
At 31 December 2019, net of 019512A318 1k
accumulated depreciation ESEiE 2,341,012 49,480 33,639 13,568 142,913 (8,466) 2,518,146
At 31 December 2019: 20195124318 :
Cost AR 2,555,096 58,295 89,396 69,310 169,320 (8,466) 2,932,951
Accumulated depreciation ZitinE (208,084) (8,815) (55,757) (55,742) (26,407) - (354,805)
Net carrying amount BETE 2,347,012 49,480 33,639 13,568 142,913 (8,466) 2,578,146

Although the Group had obtained the land use rights certificates of
construction in progress, building ownership certificates may be not
obtained before the completion of construction work.

At 31 December 2019, certain items of the Group’s property
and equipment with a net carrying amount of approximately
RMB624,560,000 (2018: RMB498,179,000) were pledged to
secure interest-bearing bank and other borrowings granted to the
Group as disclosed in note 33.

BEAKRERBERTRY LAl
& - BERRTRRRATREMENEEE
P -

M2019F 124318 « NEBE TWHE KK
%18 B BRI FEX A R%624,560,0007T
(20184 : AR¥498,179,0007T) * 2Bt
B3FTIETE - EVEAR TARE BRITHE
M H AR -
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13. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 13. EWYE

224  Zhong An Group Limited

Investment
Completed properties Investment
investment under properties
properties construction held for sale Total
BELERE
BERRENE HERENE nE @t
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
AREFT ARBTT ARBTT ARETT
At 31 December 2017 and 1 January 2018 201712531 B 20185
1A1H 5,475,911 = 202,389 5,678,800
Transfers from properties under development EafEnE = 24,924 - 24,924
Transfer to investment properties EARANE 24,924 (24.924) S -
Transfers from completed properties held for sale BB {EHER &M% 80,006 = = 80,006
Fair value loss upon transfer BRENALBEKS (25,030) - - (25,030)
Increase in investment properties REMELEM 107,731 - - 107,731
Transfers to investment properties held for sale EABERERENE (180,405) - 180,405 -
Disposal e - = (359,000 (359,000)
Changes in fair value of investment properties RENELAEER 19,470 - 1,699 21,169
At 31 December 2018 and 1 January 2019 20185128310 K2019F
1A1R 5,502,607 - 25,993 5,528,600
Transfers from completed properties held for sale BB E{ELENT ZRNE 59,541 - - 59,541
Fair value gain upon transfer BRENAABEKES 50,642 = = 50,642
Increase in investment properties REMEEM 131,218 - - 131,218
Transfers to investment properties held for sale EaREnnE (346,047) S 346,047 -
Disposal it = = (63,358) (53,358)
Changes in fair value of investment properties RENZLABEED (39,321) - 1818 (37,503)
At 31 December 2019 2019F12A318 5,358,640 - 320,500 5,679,140

2019 Annual Report




Notes to Financial Statements

13. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

AR AR M

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

13. REWM=E (1)

(CONTINUED)
2019 2018
20194 2018%F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Hiat AR¥T T ARBFIT
Non-current assets FEMBENEE 5,358,640 5,502,607
Current assets MENEE (e) 320,500 25,993
5,679,140 5,528,600
(@  All investment properties of the Group were revalued at the @ AEBEEPEREVERFTREBILE

end of the year by an independent professionally qualified
valuer, CBRE Limited, at fair value. CBRE Limited is an
industry specialist in investment property valuation. The fair
value represents the amount at which the assets could be
exchanged between a knowledgeable and willing buyer and
a seller in an arm’s length transaction at the date of valuation,
in accordance with International Valuation Standards.

The following table gives information about how the fair values
of these investment properties are determined (in particular,
the valuation techniques and inputs used), as well as the fair
value hierarchy into which the fair value measurements are
categorised (Levels 1 to 3) based on the degree to which the
inputs to the fair value measurements are observable.

Investment properties held by the Group in the consolidated
statement of financial position were valued into fair value
hierarchy level 3 listed below. During the year, there were no
transfers of fair value measurements between Level 1 and
Level 2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3 (2018: Nil). The
valuation techniques are the direct comparison approach and
the income approach (term and reversion approach), and key
inputs are:

(1)  Term yield: the higher the term yield, the lower the fair
value;

(2)  Reversionary yield: the higher the reversionary yield,
the lower the fair value;

(8)  Market unit rent: the higher the market unit rent, the
higher the fair value; and

(4)  Price per square metre: the higher the price, the higher
the fair value.

EEABMEMEBREECARRD
ARAREEEMR - EHRETAR
’Aﬂ%%?ﬂ%&ﬁ%%ﬁ@ﬁ@ﬁ%i
c AR BEREENRABERE
%&E RNEE R BREBERGEER
ERENFRGIIBEENEER °

NG

TREFIMAEEREREVENR
REECCER - A M[ERI R
BR)WERARRBEBEAABENE
BWAREBEEZE D AR BER
ENARBEREF EE=H) -

REBRE GBI KR P REB R
BMED TIXAIINE=RAAEE
FHE o FR - FREE R ZEH
RNFEEAELEEE  TESE=H
A (20184 : ) - fAERN
REERLEERKRAE AR RES
%) ERBABER

(1) MHKZE: HERKZEW
5 AR EEYE

2 ERUWZX:ERKZXW
5 AAEEYE

@) Bufe : mBEEMEAS

ik
He - AREEES R

@ SFHRERE: SFIKER
W AR EELS -

RLEEEFRAA]
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13. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 13. R EYE (]
(CONTINUED)
(a) (continued) (@ (&
The significant unobservable inputs BEATEEEABE

Investment properties

held by the Group

AEEFRBERENE

Property 1 — Property in Hangzhou

(Guomao Building)

LA UE St IVAEE S
(RBRE)

226 Zhong An Group Limited
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Significant unobservable inputs

EATTBRGARE

Term yield, taking into account yield of 4% for office portion and 5.5% for
retail portion, generated from comparable properties and adjustment to reflect
the certainty of term income secured and to be received.

e AR EE RS (PRI R4% KT EE7D 75.5%) RIRBLFTE
R R R HCER AR BRI 9 HE S M ) F R 15 HH A FE B M e o

Reversionary yield of 5.5% for office portion and 6% for retail portion, taking
into account annual unit market rental income and unit market value of the
comparable properties.

KA ABLTISFREES WA RRENENELTE - FAEBOESEREE
735.5% K TEED 6% e

Market unit rent of RMB1.7/sg.m./day for office portion and RMB4.9/sq.m./
day for retail portion, using direct market comparables and taking into
account location and other individual factors such as road frontage, size of
property and facilities.

EREETISLBR AT R EREEER - WERNRREEHAEIE
HE @ mSELESRET I RERARE7TGRED) RE T T REX
AR¥4.97T (BERH) -

Price of RMB9,800/sqg.m. for office portion and RMB23,800/sg.m. for retail
portion, using market direct comparables and taking into account location
and other individual factors such as road frontage and size of property.
EREEMSLLBUET A RO B HRERE  MERESHMENRE 8
BT AKARM,B007T (i AEFD) KEFF I KR AR 23,8007 (ZEH
7) -
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13. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 13. REYE (])
(CONTINUED)
(@) (continued) (@ (&)
The significant unobservable inputs BEARF A EREASE (&
(continued)

Investment properties

held by the Group Significant unobservable inputs
TEEFMSEREME ERTUEREABE

Property 2 — Property in Shanghai (La Vie) Term yield, taking into account yield of 5%, generated from comparable

25N — LB properties and adjustment to reflect the certainty of term income secured and
(RELET) to be received.

R ET AN RIIRY) SR A 95 %,2 W ah e SR R T HE AR B s AR AR HRUR A OB RE 1
MRS R X -

Reversionary yield of 5.5%, taking into account annual unit market rental
income and unit market value of the comparable properties.
B ABATISFERASBARRENENELTE  BHEKEERE.5% °

Market unit rent of RMB7.8/sg.m./day, using direct market comparables
and taking into account location and other individual factors such as road
frontage, size of property and facilities.
EREEMSEB AT R ERBEBRE MEX DN RZEEE(SIE
HE  mBEREe /T T REBRARKT.8TT -

Price of RMB50,500/sg.m., using market direct comparables and taking into
account location and other individual factors such as road frontage and size

of property.

EREEMSLBOAT G KB EEERE WERESHMENREZ B
B REF 7K ARKS0,5007T
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13. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 13. R EYE (]
(CONTINUED)
(a) (continued) (@ (&
The significant unobservable inputs BEARF A EREASE (&

(continued)

Investment properties
held by the Group
AEBFFEEREYE

Property 3 — Property in Hangzhou
(Integrated Service Center)

SFME - MM E
(BREaRBEH L)
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Significant unobservable inputs

EXTABERAME

Term yield, taking into account yield of 5.5%, generated from comparable
properties and adjustment to reflect the certainty of term income secured and
to be received.

Gt ARIRY) R EE A 195.5% 2 Wi Ko S R P #E AR Ko i W BR AR BR M A O BEE 1
B S B R K -

Reversionary yield of 6%, taking into account annual unit market rental
income and unit market value of the comparable properties.
K ABUTMSFERSBARBEMENENLTE - ERKEERE%

Market unit rent of RMB3.8/sqg.m./day, using direct market comparables
and taking into account location and other individual factors such as road
frontage, size of property and facilities.
EREEMISLBIAT R B RBEBR  MERNDNRREEHEIE
HE @ MHENEE /T T RERAREI8T °

Price of RMB20,600/sg.m., using market direct comparables and taking into
account location and other individual factors such as road frontage and size
of property.

ERABEETISHBUAT T R E REREIRE - MERBESEMERNEE - B
BEEF I AARE20,6007T °
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31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

13. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 13. REYE (])
(CONTINUED)
(@) (continued) (@ (&)
The significant unobservable inputs BEARF A EREASE (&
(continued)

Investment properties

held by the Group Significant unobservable inputs
TEEFMSEREME ERTUEREABE

Property 4 — Property in Hangzhou (Retail  Term yield, taking into account yield of 5.5%, generated from comparable

portion of Highlong Plaza) properties and adjustment to reflect the certainty of term income secured and
AR —HINEE to be received.
(Bf2E% ) REET N R SR 2R E A 95.5% 2 Wit B S BR P& AR B2 5 UCER AR BR U A B R SE 1

MRS LRk -

Reversionary yield of 6%, taking into account annual unit market rental
income and unit market value of the comparable properties.
B ABATISFERSBARFREDENELTE @ BHEREER6% °

Market unit rent of RMB6.3/sg.m./day, using direct market comparables
and taking into account location and other individual factors such as road
frontage, size of property and facilities.
EREEMSLB AT R E RBEBERE  WEXDNRZREEESIE
FE mBEREe /T T REBRARKELITT

Price of RMB32,000/sg.m., using market direct comparables and taking into
account location and other individual factors such as road frontage and size

of property.

EREEMSLBOAT G KB EEAEE MERESHMENRE B
RREF I AKARKES2,0007T ©
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13. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 13. R EYE (]
(CONTINUED)
(a) (continued) (@ (&
The significant unobservable inputs BEARF A EREASE (&

(continued)

Investment properties

held by the Group

REERBERENE

Property 5 — Property in Hangzhou

(Landscape Garden)

LRy S IALYES
(1Li7K38)
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Significant unobservable inputs

EXTABERAHE

Term yield, taking into account yield of 5.75%, generated from comparable
properties and adjustment to reflect the certainty of term income secured and
to be received.

K ARV B 195.75% 2 e K [ B P #E AR K U BR AR B A B9 ETE
MR FRAT O HR R 2 o

Reversionary yield of 6.25%, taking into account annual unit market rental
income and unit market value of the comparable properties.

B ABATISFEESBARFEDENECTE  BERREES
6.25% °

Market unit rent of RMB2.4/sq.m./day, using direct market comparables
and taking into account location and other individual factors such as road
frontage, size of property and facilities.
ERAEETISH B AL RS MEREER - WERNRRESEE SR
HE @ MHEUESRE LI RERARK2.47T -

Price of RMB14,000/sg.m., using market direct comparables and taking into
account location and other individual factors such as road frontage and size

of property.

EREEMSLBUET A RO B HRERE MERESHMENRE B
BT ARARE14,0007T °
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31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

13. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 13. REYE (])
(CONTINUED)
(@) (continued) (@ (&)
The significant unobservable inputs BEARF A EREASE (&
(continued)

Investment properties

held by the Group Significant unobservable inputs
rEBAEEREYHE EXRTAHRERARE
Property 6 — Property in Hangzhou Term yield, taking into account yield of 5%, generated from comparable
(Hidden Dragon Bay) properties and adjustment to reflect the certainty of term income secured and
BRI —HINIEE to be received.
(BreE) AEET N R AR 2R E H 05 % 2 W am B2 S R P 4R B U A B M A RO i RE 1

MRS LRk -

Reversionary yield of 6%, taking into account annual unit market rental
income and unit market value of the comparable properties.
B ABATISFERSBARFREDENELTE @ BHEREER6% °

Market unit rent of RMB4.4/sg.m./day, using direct market comparables
and taking into account location and other individual factors such as road
frontage, size of property and facilities.
EREEMSLB AT R E RBEBERE  WEXDNRZREEESIE
HE mBEREe /T T REBRARKLL4T -

Price of RMB21,000/sg.m., using market direct comparables and taking into
account location and other individual factors such as road frontage and size

of property.

EREEMSLBOAT G KB EEAEE MERESHMENRE B
RREFFIAARKE21,0007T ©
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13. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 13. R EYE (]
(CONTINUED)
(a) (continued) (@ (&
The significant unobservable inputs BEARF A EREASE (&

(continued)

Investment properties

held by the Group

REERBERENE

Property 7 — Property in Yuyao (Intime

City)
TIRYE — R
(ERZ=I)
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Significant unobservable inputs

EXTABERAHE

Term yield, taking into account yield of 5.75%, generated from comparable
properties and adjustment to reflect the certainty of term income secured and
to be received.

K ARV B 195.75% 2 e K [ B P #E AR K U BR AR B A B9 ETE
MR FRAT O HR R 2 o

Reversionary yield of 6.25%, taking into account annual unit market rental
income and unit market value of the comparable properties.

B ABATISFEESBARFEDENECTE  BERREES
6.25% °

Market unit rent of RMB4.1/sg.m./day, using direct market comparables
and taking into account location and other individual factors such as road
frontage, size of property and facilities.
ERAEETISH B AL RS MEREER - WERNRRESEE SR
HE @ MHEUESREF LI RERARBELIAT -

Price of RMB16,500/sg.m., using market direct comparables and taking into
account location and other individual factors such as road frontage and size

of property.

EREEMSLBUET A RO B HRERE MERESHMENRE B
BEFFHARARE16,5007T °
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31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

13. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 13. REYE (])
(CONTINUED)
(@) (continued) (@ (&)
The significant unobservable inputs BEARF A EREASE (&
(continued)

Investment properties

held by the Group Significant unobservable inputs
REBFFEREWH EXRTAHRRHARIE
Property 8 — Property in Yuyao (Retail Term yield, taking into account yield of 5.75%, generated from comparable
portion of Times Square ) properties and adjustment to reflect the certainty of term income secured and
8 — Rk to be received.
(R RS —HiRa s E0) KEET N RSB 22 H 95.75% 2 Wi B [ B P42 AR K M ERAE BRI A RO T 52

MR RIS RO B R X o

Reversionary yield of 6.25%, taking into account annual unit market rental
income and unit market value of the comparable properties.

Kt ABUMSFERSBARBEMENELTE  ERlaER
6.25% °

Market unit rent of RMB3.0/sg.m./day, using direct market comparables
and taking into account location and other individual factors such as road
frontage, size of property and facilities.

Rz mSEVEES AT FIIARERARESIOT -

Price of RMB15,200/sg.m., using market direct comparables and taking into
account location and other individual factors such as road frontage and size

of property.

EREETSLBUET A RO E HREEEE MERESHMENRER B
BT HIARARE15,2007T °
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13. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
(CONTINUED)

13. | BWWE (1])

(a) (continued) (@ (&
Reconciliation of fair value measurements categorised within PEERABESRHE=ZFHAA
Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy: BEFTELE
Commercial
properties
[SEX/ES
RMB’000
ARBFIT
Carrying amount at 1 January 2018 201841 A1 BHEREE 2,985,800
Net loss from a fair value adjustment recognised ~ PIREWE A1 BEZHHER
in changes in fair value of investment HARBEARE
properties B85 58 (109,500)
Carrying amount at 31 December 2018 and 1 R2018F12H31H K&
January 2019 20191 A1 HAERHEE 2,876,300
Net gain from a fair value adjustment recognised PR EWE A1 BEZBHER
in changes in fair value of investment AR BEAE
properties UrGayeit! 44,000
Carrying amount at 31 December 2019 R2019F12 A31 HWEREE 2,920,300

BEFTRBEERE - A FEDRAE
BESmRRBEZBE RN TR
liabilities of ownership over the asset’s life including an exit BEMNREZ(BRERLEBENLILE
or terminal value. This method involves the projection of a B) EIThET © R RS RE Y HERE
series of cash flows on a property interest. A market-derived =R —E RS RMTEA - TIHITE
4T ER = 0 e R PR TERIER & 7 LA (B 7
establish the present value of the income stream associated VEEERBONETAERME  RE
with the asset. The exit yield is normally separately WHRBEEEBREAETRRITIR
determined and differs from the discount rate. o

Under the discounted cash flow method, fair value is
estimated using assumptions regarding the benefits and

discount rate is applied to the projected cash flow in order to
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13. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
(CONTINUED)

(a)

(continued)

The duration of the cash flows and the specific timing of
inflows and outflows are determined by events such as rent
reviews, lease renewal and related reletting, redevelopment or
refurbishment. The appropriate duration is driven by market
behaviour that is a characteristic of the class of property.
The periodic cash flow is estimated as gross income less
vacancy, non-recoverable expenses, collection losses, lease
incentives, maintenance costs, agent and commission costs
and other operating and management expenses. The series
of periodic net operating income, along with an estimate of
the terminal value anticipated at the end of the projection
period, is then discounted.

A significant increase (decrease) in the estimated rental value
and the market rent growth rate per annum in isolation would
result in a significant increase (decrease) in the fair value of
the investment properties. A significant increase (decrease) in
the long term vacancy rate and the discount rate in isolation
would result in a significant decrease (increase) in the fair
value of the investment properties. Generally, a change
in the assumption made for the estimated rental value is
accompanied by a directionally similar change in the rent
growth per annum and the discount rate and an opposite
change in the long term vacancy rate.

There are six properties — the International Office Center,
the Office portion of Highlong Plaza, the Serviced apartment
portion of Highlong Plaza and the Retail portion of Xixi New
City, four properties in Hangzhou, Vancouver City, a property
in Huaibei, Anhui and the Retail and Office portion of Times
Square Il, a property in Yuyao are valued and categorized into
Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy. The valuation technique
adopted is the direct comparison approach, and the key
input is the price per square metre. The higher the price, the
higher the fair value.

AR AR M

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

13. REWM=E (1)

(a)

()

B MA AR 8 RO AR #E
MARBKRIHBENESEZ M
WEMNERETE  ERIBTEE
HRE - BENFERRZTISTR
(ROEERN— AR FE - TH
RERRBREMGREE - TR
B WRIEK  HEER  #EE
A RENBEERREMEENE
BER - 2 EREHLERAF
7 SRR IR IR AR L
EBEMGF2E  FRERE-

At BEERMSHSFIERERE
AL I OB L) B EEIRE Y EN
RNFEREEMORD) - RBEEX
Ko 8% 3 B 05 AR 12 00 ORi ) 8 3
BEMENRFHERBRD (BN
—mE - A EEEEELNR
ROZHEEUHSFERELTE
FHRBULTAEPREHRAEE
FHIRRAEE -

NEME-BERAD L - BEES
Moy ~ BRESREAAZEN
NIRRT EERD - MIBERM
% - RLRBEIL TR YR FTE
Yk DA R B AR B 55 — B (R A ARk ey —
BEME)NEEERAZERN - RE
“RRABEFERDE - FRAK
BERMAERLEE  MEEHA
BIBERETIRER - AEFIIKE
®E - AR EELES -

ZEEHRNA]
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13. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
(CONTINUED)

(a)

236 Zhong An Group Limited

(continued)

The significant unobservable input for the International Office
Center is the price which ranges from RMB36,500/sg.m.
using market direct comparables and taking into account
location and other individual factors such as road frontage
and size of property. As at 31 December 2019, the
investment property part of the International Office Center is
valued and categorized into Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy
with a carrying amount of RMB2,614,000,000 (2018:
RMB2,485,000,000).

The significant unobservable input for the Office portion of
Highlong Plaza is the price which ranges from RMB12,700/
sg.m., using market direct comparables and taking into
account location and other individual factors such as road
frontage and size of property. As at 31 December 2019, the
investment property part of the Office portion of Highlong
Plaza is valued and categorized into Level 2 of the fair value
hierarchy with a carrying amount of RMB40,400,000 (2018:
RMB68,000,000).

The significant unobservable input for the Serviced apartment
portion of Highlong Plaza is the price which ranges from
RMB15,800/sg.m., using market direct comparables and
taking into account location and other individual factors such
as road frontage and size of property. As at 31 December
2019, the investment property part of the Serviced apartment
portion of Highlong Plaza is valued and categorized into
Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy with a carrying amount of
RMB22,600,000 (2018: RMB39,000,000).

2019 Annual Report

13. REWM=E (1)

(a)

()

YR N AR D) ) BB KT AT B AR A 2K
BANFEFHAKARK36,0007TH)
B1% - DHIEAEEMSB LR AW
BB REGHERRMERNEEAM
ERIEZ - K2019F 128318 -
RPN ORIREYEI D AE R
ARBEENEERSE  FEHEAAR
#2,614,000,0007T (20184 : ARKE
2,485,000,0007T) °

1BRE EI5 I AEMD M E AN A B &)
ABEANTEF A RKARKE12,700
TTHIER - DIEREETISLEERAE
Wit R E R ERAERE R ERN
SHMEREZ - 2019612 431
B - ERESHABHOREMESD
MAFE_RARBEIHERS
BRMEE & A R#40,400,0007T (2018
& AR¥68,000,0007T) °

BEESRBENAZIMD A EARA]
BRABE AN TEFETRARE
15,8007CHI(EE - IHfEAEE TS
BAEWE RO E REGE B R
KNEEMEREZE - H2019F12 7
318 - BERESRENAEBHAIL
BYMERBRE _BARLBEIER
S¥ - BREEAARE22,600,0007T
(20184 : AR#39,000,0007T) °
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13. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
(CONTINUED)

(a)

(continued)

The significant unobservable input for Vancouver City is the
price which ranges of RMB4,000/sg.m. to RMB4,300/sg.m.,
using market direct comparables and taking into account
location and other individual factors such as road frontage
and size of property. As at 31 December 2019, the
investment property part of Vancouver City is valued and
categorized into Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy with a
carrying amount of RMB3,540,000 (2018: RMB4,300,000).

The significant unobservable input for the investment
property part of the Retail portion of Xixi New City is the price
of RMB47,200/sg.m., using market direct comparables and
taking into account location and other individual factors such
as road frontage and size of property. As at 31 December
2019, the investment property part of the Retail portion of
Xixi New City is valued and categorised into Level 2 fair value
hierarchy with a carrying amount of RMB28,300,000 (2018:
Nil).

By the end of 2017, the Retail and Office portion of Times
Square |l was originally designed for sale. In October 2018,
Management decided to change the usage of the Retail
and Office portion of Times Square Il from sale to lease out.
Significant unobservable input for the Retail portion of Times
Square |l is the price of RMB7,800/sg.m. and for the Office
portion of Times Square Il is the price of RMB6,850/sg.m.,
using market direct comparables and taking into account
location and other individual factors such as road frontage
and size of property. As at 31 December 2019, the
investment property part of the Retail and Office portion of
Times Square Il is valued and categorised into Level 2 fair
value hierarchy with a carrying amount of RMB50,000,000
(2018: RMB56,000,000).

AR AR M

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

13. REWM=E (1)

()

BEERNEATERGARE S
NFFFFHAKAREL000TEEF
FKARMEA,300THER » THEH
BEEMSLE A AW R E KRG
BREEDERNNEEMEREE - B
2019 12A318 ' BEFEMMNIKE
MELNDAE B AALBEIER
S¥E - BREEAARKES540,0007T
(20184 : AR#4,300,0007T) °

FAEFTHTIREMERBHSNERD
ABRBAEBRARETEARARKE
47,2007 B - DEREEMISL
BREE RO E M ERETE R
ANNFEHAMERIERZE - 2019512
A318 MMM IR EMETE
BOARE_BAREBEMERSE
BRmEE A ARY28,300,0007T(2018
F Mmoo

HZE2017FK - BRRES _HNT
ERPABDVLRETEHE R -
M20185F10H - BIEEREHRKK
BES—HNTERRASD ZAKH
HERALHE - RRES _HTES
DOBEBRTAIBREGASERETH
KARBE7,800THIER - MFMRE
BN ATDATEATRKAR
#6,850 L RIEE + A EETS
LB AL R E RBABE R
MERNEEMERE xR - %K2019
F12A818 - KRES ARk
MABAOOREMESNDRE =R
ARBEFHERDE  FEEAA
R ¥50,000,0007T (20184 : AR
56,000,0007T) °
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13. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 13. B E (8)
(CONTINUED)
(a) (continued) (@ (&
Fair value hierarchy AREERE
The following table illustrates the fair value measurement TRIAPREEREMEN DA BE
hierarchy of the Group’s investment properties: FrEER

Fair value measurement as at 31 December 2019 using
2019512 A1 BN A AEEERA
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
SERT S EXRTEHE EARTITHE
HERE BAME AR
(B—%) (B=H (B=4) st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT

Recurring fair value
measurement for:
Commercial properties

BEMER

EES

&

[EES7ES - 2,758,840 2,920,300 5,679,140

Fair value measurement as at 31 December 2018 using
2018512 A31 AR A BEA 25

Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total

R EAAEE EATHER
HR(E BARE A BUE

(F—A) (FE=R) (F=4) st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T ARETTT ARETTT ARETTT

Recurring fair value
measurement for:
Commercial properties

[EE7ES = 2,652,300 2,876,300 5,528,600
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13. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
(CONTINUED)

()

The Group’s investment properties situated on the leasehold
land in Mainland China are leased between 30 and 50 years.

Investment properties leased out under operating leases

The Group leases out investment properties under operating
lease arrangements. All leases run for a period of one to
fifteen years, with an option to renew the leases after the
expiry dates, at which time all terms will be renegotiated.
The Group’s total future minimum lease receivables under
non-cancellable operating leases arising from investment
properties are as follows:

AR AR M

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

13. REWM=E (1)

b) AEBMPFBEABHEE TR
EYEHEHR30F 50 -

© RIELLHEECHONREYNE

AEBRBCEHERYALIKREY
X -MAHERH—E1+H%F XA
RN B REE LR 2 B IER
THEITHE - AEERBETAIIUHKL
LHERKREMEMSHRARRER

EFEMATEMNT
2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT AREETTT

Within one year —FR 81,870 76,745
In the second to fifth years, inclusive F_E2FRT (HEMEREEN) 157,919 179,780
After five years RFE 48,289 62,875

288,078 319,400

At 31 December 2019, certain of the Group’s investment
properties with a carrying amount of RMB1,317,502,000
(2018: RMB1,238,247,000) were pledged to secure interest-
bearing bank and other borrowings granted to the Group as
disclosed in note 33.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had entered into certain
sale and purchase agreements to sell certain investment
properties with a carrying amount of RMB320,500,000
(2018: RMB25,993,000). The Group had received deposits
of approximately RMB268,506,000 (2018: RMB10,425,000),
which was recognised as contract liabilities as at 31
December 2019.

(d M2019F12A31H ' RIFM 33
s ASEREEAARKE
1,317,502,0007T (20184F : ARHKE
1,238,247,0007T) K& TIREWHEE
EREEEST BIRITIER R E LG
IR o

) M2019F12A31BAEEFI A
TEEWZ HEREMEBEAARE
320,500,0007T (20184 : AR
25,993,0007T) K& THREWZE » K
£ EHE WA AR #268,506,0007T
(20184 : AR¥10,425,0007T) Hi%
& FTRERR SRIBRER AR 20194 12
A31REEFPHEHNARE -
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31 December 2019 20194 12 A 31 H

14. PROPERTIES UNDER

14. AR %

DEVELOPMENT

2019 2018
20194 20184
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
KiaE AR¥TT AREBT T
Carrying amount at 1 January 1A1HEREE 8,510,586 6,273,260
Additions 0 3,968,110 6,173,780
Transfer to investment properties EREIREYE 13 - (24,924)
Transfer to construction in progress ~EEE/EE T2 12 (344,086) =

Transfer to completed properties HRERHIEHE
held for sale BEEKE 25 (1,984,683) (3,911,530)
Carrying amount at 31 December 12 A31 HEREE 10,149,927 8,510,586
Current assets MENEE 8,772,994 7,352,963
Non-current assets ERBEE 1,376,933 1,157,623
10,149,927 8,510,586

Except for one property located in Canada and one property

located in Japan, the Group’s properties under development are all

located in Mainland China.

BR—EYRLRMERNR—BYELR A
K REBEKRABEDYMESURHER

ih

2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T

Canada mnEX
Freehold KA 299,794 264,186

Japan HZ

Freehold KA 80,037 77,291

240 Znhong An Group Limited
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31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

14. PROPERTIES UNDER 14. AR PYE (&)
DEVELOPMENT (CONTINUED)
The carrying amounts of the properties under development situated 7R B E T AR B R 3 2 BREE R
on the leasehold land in Mainland China are as follows: A5 E
Mainland China B Ay it
2019 2018
20194 2018%F
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT AREET T

Leases of over 50 years FHHARB50F 8,417,298 6,399,331
Leases between 30 and 50 years FAEAS0F £=50F 1,352,798 1,769,778
9,770,096 8,169,109
At 31 December 2019, certain of the Group’s properties under 7201912 A318 + IRIEMHHI3ATIHTE -
development with a carrying amount of RMB4,029,674,000 (2018: REBREERARK4,029,674,0007T
RMB2,630,028,000) were pledged to secure interest-bearing bank (20184 : AR¥2,630,028,0007T) K& F
and other borrowings granted to the Group as disclosed in note 33. AR MECEREBREFFSRITERKR
E A ERREVELR o
At 31 December 2019, the ownership rights of some of the Group’s 2019512431 H - AEELHHAEHY
properties under development may be declared limited. E¥MFAENEEWSHABR
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31 December 2019 20194 12 A 31 H

4=
15. LEASES 15. 8
The Group as a lessee AEBEAEEA
The Group has lease contracts for buildings used in its operations. AEEBERECEMAETFREHEESY -
Leases of buildings generally have lease terms between 5 and BFHENHBH RN F5E18F - —ikm
18 years. Generally, the Group is restricted from assigning and T RIEARSEEASE AN RS
subleasing the leased assets outside the Group. EEE -
(@) Right-of-use assets (a) FEHAEEE
The carrying amounts of the Group’s right-of-use assets and AEBGRAEEENEERERFAZ
the movements during the year are as follows: B -
Buildings
BF
RMB’000
ARETR
As at 1 January 2019 20191 81H 326,782
Additions NE 67,321
Additions as a result of acquisition of a subsidiary FEUE—FEHEBATAE 13,851
Depreciation charge ERX (53,615)

As at 31 December 2019 A2019F12H31H 354,339
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15. LEASES (CONTINUED)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

(b)

(c)

Lease liabilities

AR AR M

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

15. 18 (&)
AEBIEREEA (8)

(b)

The carrying amount of lease liabilities and the movements

during the year are as follows:

HESE

HERENEREERFAZEIHMNT

Lease liabilities

HEaE

RMB’000

AR¥T T

As at 1 January 2019 20191 A1H 320,381
New leases e 67,321
Additions as a result of acquisition of a subsidiary FHUEE—FEHEATRE 13,851
Accretion of interest recognised during the year  “E RNHERHIF EIE 0 16,984
Payments (NE=S (47,934)
Carrying amount at 31 December 2019 #A2019512 831 B W ERMEE 370,603

Analysed into kP

Current portion BN 34,109
Non-current portion ERBE D 336,494

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in note 44

to the financial statements.

The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to leases (c)

are as follows:

HERBENIRERD M RER M
HRMITEA4

HRHENBSERNSRMOT

2019

20194

RMB’000

ARET T

Interest on lease liabilities HESENE 16,984

Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets FRAEEENERX 53,615
Expense relating to short-term leases and leases  £252 Hif & MK EEEEREH K

of low-value assets (included in administrative A GFATTHRFAS)
expenses) 34,311
Total amount recognised in profit or loss RIBRERNB ST 104,910
BRLEHERNE —T-AEFER 243
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31 December 2019 20194 12 A 31 H

15. LEASES (CONTINUED) 15. 8 (&)

The Group as a lessee (continued)
(d) Extension and termination options:

The Group has no lease contracts that include extension and
termination options.

(e) Variable lease payments:

The Group has no lease contracts that contains variable
payments.

(f)  The total cash outflow for leases and future cash outflows
relating to leases that have not yet commenced are disclosed
in note 38(c) and 40, respectively, to the financial statements.

The Group as a lessor

The Group leases its investment properties (note 13) consisting
of one commercial properties in Yuyao and two commercial
properties in Hangzhou under operating lease arrangements. The
terms of the leases generally require the tenants to pay security
deposits and provide for periodic rent adjustments according to
the then prevailing market conditions. Rental income recognised
by the Group during the year was RMB205,932,000 (2018:
RMB179,491,000), details of which are included in note 5 to the
financial statements.

At 31 December 2019, the undiscounted lease payments receivable
by the Group in future periods under non-cancellable operating
leases with its tenants are as follows:

REBEREEA R
(d) MBRALEEE

AEEYEBSBRRRIDREED
HERL -

() HEAEMN

AEEYERSAENKNEES
# e

(H FMHAEZRRS R &ENRFERHOA
EFBHARFIBERE DRI ER Y
TR KRB 5E38(c) K240 °

AEBESEEA

AEERBLEERETHFIAREREME
(fI3E13) - BIERKN —BREDERN
MERMIEEEYE - HEMNKR—REK
AP X HRFE S RIBERIRITH IR E
eRAZE AEERFAERNBAERA
A AR%205,932,0007T (20184 : ARHE
179,491,0007T) © FHIHE B B HR R M 7t
5 o

MN2019F 128318 - NEERE A B
BT E AR R BRI M E AR P U A R B3R
HEMNZMET -

2019 2018

20195 20184

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T AREBT T

Within one year —FR 81,870 76,745
After one year but within two years —FRERMEN 44,628 55,835
After two years but within three years MEZRBER=ZFR 40,573 46,840
After three years but within four years =FREREERN 37,477 39,731
After four years but within five years MEEEBERAEFER 35,241 37,374
After five years AFi% 48,289 62,875
288,078 319,400
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31 December 2019 20194 12 A 31 H

16. GOODWILL 16. &
RMB’000
AR®T T
Cost at 1 January 2019, net of accumulated M2019F1 B1BMAA - kR REHRE
impairment -
Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 37) Wi —FEIfT B A /) (BM9#E37) 98,995
Impairment during the year FRRE -
Cost and net carrying amount at 31 December M2019F12 531 B MR A K BRI FE
2019 98,995
At 31 December 2019: 2019412 8310
Cost (%N 98,995
Accumulated impairment REHRE -
Net carrying amount BREFE 98,995

Impairment testing of goodwill

Goodwill acquired through business combinations is allocated to
the following cash-generating unit for impairment testing:

The recoverable amount of the pre-education business cash-
generating unit has been determined based on a value in use
calculation using cash flow projections based on financial budgets
covering a five-year period approved by senior management. The
discount rate applied to the cash flow projections was 13% and
cash flows beyond the five-year period were extrapolated using
a growth rate of 2.85%, which was the same as the long term
average growth rate of the pre-education industry.

Assumptions were used in the value in use calculation of the
pre-education business cash-generating unit for 31 December
2019. The following describes each key assumption on which
management has based its cash flow projections to undertake
impairment testing of goodwill:

B AR E R

BRFRBAHRBNABROEEATRS
EEEN - ETRERH

BRI E XSRS EL BN AIRBI ST
ENFAERE KARLEEASMILER
FHYKEENRESREENETE - B8R
EEAFAMEIREB13% - MBBAFH
ZHERETIIRALRIED 85%HA - HE
I B TENRIFHEREAER -

STE2019F 12 A1 AEM A B XK RS E
EBA 2 FEREBEERERRR - TXHHLE
BEHEITRERENHNR SR ETERIESAT
RS EARR

38

ZEEERAT —E—hesm 245



Notes to Financial Statements

PSRRI RE

31 December 2019 20194 12 A 31 H

16.

17.

246 Zhong An Group Limited

GOODWILL (CONTINUED)
Impairment testing of goodwill (continued)

Budgeted gross margins — The basis used to determine the value
assigned to the budgeted gross margins is the average gross
margins achieved in the year immediately before the budget year,
increased for expected efficiency improvements, and expected
market development.

Discount rates — The discount rates used are before tax and reflect
specific risks relating to the relevant unit.

The values assigned to the key assumptions on the market
development of the pre-education business and discount rates are
consistent with external information sources.

The management of the Group assessed that any reasonably
possible change in any of these assumptions would not cause the
carrying amount of the pre-education business cash-generating unit
to exceed its respective recoverable amount as at 31 December
2019.

OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

17. Hh &R

16. & (#8)

IR YR E R ()

BHENXR -AREESE TREEN T
EBEMRBNEESERFAEFEA—FN
PRERAFHEMNE - REHNREIES
BRI RRMEM o

BRI —FRARE AR AGHIA - WRIRE
BRSO E R

BHSENHEEBITENSERNTIERR
BERAEREEINFER RIRE 2L

AEEERETETMNZEBRIZAMNEE
AT SR EAHE ERRSEL
BAAEREEBBERBMN2019412 431

HEBEREE -

SRE

31 December 2019 Brandname
20194128318 e & 18
RMB’000
AR¥T T

Cost at 1 January 2019, net of accumulated R2019F1 A1 BHIRA bk RETHESH
amortisation -
Acquisition of a subsidiary (Note 37) W ig — R 8 2 \) (B 3E37) 34,690
Amortisation provided during the year FR R (433)
At 31 December 2019 R2019%F12H31H 34,257

At 31 December 2019: 20194128310

Cost B AR 34,690
Accumulated amortisation RETEE5H (433)
Net carrying amount BREFE 34,257
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31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

18. EQUITY INVESTMENTS 18. EESEBARREHEHL
DESIGNATED AT FAIR HEFH A2 EIES
VALUE THROUGH OTHER MESKRE
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TT ARETTT

Equity investments designated at fair EEAZRAABETEEHEE
value through other comprehensive st AHEM2EKFENERIRE

income
Unlisted equity investments, at fair value ~ JEEMEZRIEE @ BR A BER
Qian Ning Health Industry Co., Ltd. A IR E R REXFR AR 25,000 25,000
Anhui Five Star Food Co., Ltd. TEHAHAERBRMHER AT 3,300 3,300
Hangzhou Sui Kang Nursing Home N E R BRAR]
Co., Ltd. 4,372 4,000
Shenzhen Xin Shi City Development FEABMERIEERR AR
Investment Co., Ltd. 6,000 6,000
Zhejiang Xinnongdu Industrial Co., Ltd. AL B EEEGRAR] 336,000 336,000
Csl Csl 6,942 6,791
Maggie and Rose Limited (note 37) Maggie and Rose Limited (Ff5£37) - 42,514
Emotibot Technologies Limited RS RERI AR AR 35,115 =
Guangzhou Yuncong Information BMNEREERHRB AR
Technology Co., Ltd 60,000 —
476,729 423,605
The above equity investments were irrevocably designated at fair LRI E N B IR E AR A BE
value through other comprehensive income as the Group considers FFrERESEHG ARLMEEKENERR
these investments to be strategic in nature. (No changes in fair & FREANEERAZSREBEMEE -
value for the year ended 31 December 2019, accumulated changes (BZE2019F12A31 B ILFE A A BEL &
of RMB9,000,000 in fair value as of 31 December 2019 have been Fg) - HE2019F12A31B AR EBERG
recognized in other comprehensive income.) #E) A R#9,000,0007T 2 7 H Ath 2 H U E

TR °
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31 December 2019 20194 12 A 31 H

19. LONG TERM PREPAYMENTS

19. REATAFT#R

2019 2018

20195 20184

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT AREF T

Deposit for acquisition of a subsidiary BT B A R iRe - 60,000
Prepayments for land acquisition SEU N bz E 0] 1,009,412 458,715
Maintenance fund HEER 75,369 75,548
Deposits for construction completion BTHER 40,239 35,485
Prepaid expense SEIN 13 17,480 24,908
Others EAfth 52,273 52,273
1,194,773 706,929

As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, financial assets included R20195F K20185F 12318 » AEEEE

in long term prepayments of the Group were considered to be
low credit risk and thus the Group assessed that there was no
significant loss allowance recognised in accordance with the ECL

model under IFRS 9 as at 31 December 2019 and 2018.

20

INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES

RHBAMRFNEREERRAREER
@ Ft - AEERIEER ISR EERE
oA EMEEBERA AT EERE

REREE -

20. REELRBHIKRE

2019 2018

20194 20184

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T ARET T

Share of net assets PREERE 50,994 =
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20. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES 20. R&EZ40X¥HIBE (@)
(CONTINUED)

Particulars of the joint ventures are as follows: ABETENFBOT

Percentage attributable to the Group

Particulars AEEELEDL
of issued Place of Indirect Voting Profit Principal
Name shares held registration equity interest power sharing activities
HAECRT BERE
e R EFE iR R4 RERE BN TEEE
Hangzhou Zhongxu Real Estate Registered Zhejiang PRC 22% 24% 24% Property
Co.,Ltd.® capital of management
RMB375,000,000
MMBREXBR AR MR BT NEER
AR #375,000,0007T
Hangzhou Jieyao Investment Registered Zhejiang PRC 18% 20% 20% Investment
Management Co., Ltd. @ capital of management
RMB10,000,000
MMREEREEBERAFC LM AR FEDNT REER
AR #10,000,0007T
Hangzhou Bijin Property Registered Zhejiang PRC 18% 20% 20% Property
Co., Ltd.® capital of management
RMB20,000,000
MMNERBEEBERAR AR HEIHTT MEER
AR#20,000,0007T
Hangzhou Jiayi Property Co., Ltd® Registered Zhejiang PRC 25% 25% 25% Property
capital of management
RMB150,000,000
MMEREEBRAAY M AR FEDAT MEER
AR #150,000,0007T
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20. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES

(CONTINUED)

Particulars of the joint ventures are as follows: (continued)

20. RS ELRBKRE (R

BELRNFRET : (B

Percentage attributable to the Group

Particulars FEEELEBAL
of issued Place of Indirect Voting Profit Principal
Name shares held registration equity interest power sharing activities
HACRT BERE
e RIPRIF B Bk e REE BN TEED
Hangzhou Jinanxing Enterprise Registered Zhejiang 63% 50% 70% Enterprise
Management Consulting Partnership capital of PRC management
(Limited Partnership) © RMB490,000,000
MNBLZECEXERZAREE  FNREAARE BT hEER
(BRAR)Y 490,000,000
Taizhou Huahao Enterprise Registered Zhejiang 62% 50% 69% Enterprise
Management Consulting Co., Ltd.®  capital of PRC management
RMB210,000,000
AMESCEEREABRARO EMRAARE HETHDT hEER
210,000,0007T
Zhejiang Renhe Health Industry Registered Zhejiang 62% 50% 69% Property
Co., Ltd. @ capital of PRC management
RMB300,000,000
MWICHEREZBRARFD AMRAARE HEHTT MEER
300,000,0007C
(1) Established on 14 April 2016 (1) 201654 [14HKL
@ Established on 12 January 2018 @ 201841 A128 AL
3 Established on 13 September 2017 () 20179 A13H KL
(4)  Established on 15 May 2019 @) R2019F5A158 L
(5) Established on 20 November 2018 (5) 2018411 A20H XL
6) Established on 22 December 2015 6) MR20156F12 A22 BT
) Established on 30 June 2014 7) R201446 A30H AL
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20. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES

(CONTINUED)

The movements in the investments in joint ventures during the
reporting period are as follows:

AR AR M

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

20. RS ELRBKRE (W)

REZEENRENREPARZEINT

2019 2018

20194 20184

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT ARET T

At 1 January 1H1H - 629
New interest in a joint venture A —MA B ENER 41,044 2,000
Share of profits/(losses) SMEFIE, (E518) 9,950 (2,629)
At 31 December 12A31H 50,994 -

The 24% equity interest in Hangzhou Zhongxu Real Estate Co.,
Ltd. is held through two subsidiaries with 90% equity interests
attributable to the Company. The amounts of the Group’s
recognised share of profit of this joint venture for the current year
and cumulatively were RMB13,134,000 and RMB13,134,000,
respectively, while the amounts of the Group’s unrecognised share
of losses of this joint venture during 2018 and cumulatively were
RMB2,186,000.

The 20% equity interest in Hangzhou Jieyao Investment
Management Co., Ltd. and Hangzhou Bijin Property Co., Ltd. is
held through a subsidiary with 90% equity interests attributable
to the Company. The Group has discontinued the recognition of
its share of losses of Hangzhou Jieyao Investment Management
Co., Ltd. and Hangzhou Bijin Property Co., Ltd. when the share of
losses of the joint ventures exceeded the Group’s interest in the
joint ventures as the Group has no obligation to take up further
losses. The amounts of the Group’s unrecognised share of losses
of the joint ventures for the current year and cumulatively were
RMB28,410,000 (2018: RMB1,069,000) and RMB29,479,000
(2018: RMB1,069,000), respectively.

The 25% equity interest in Hangzhou Jiayi Property Co., Ltd. is held
through a subsidiary with 100% equity interests attributable to the
Company. The amounts of the Group’s recognised share of losses
of this joint venture for the current year and cumulatively were
RMB1,069,000 (2018: Nil).

MNP EE ZEBRAAIM24 % B A= )
7 RN E FE (5 90% IR AN A 2 ) RN R IR B
AIFEE c ARERZE ECENANFEERE
RIEME RN R B R ARE13,134,0007T
& AR®13,134,0007T © MAEERZE &
BEN2018FEREREIEERRTRA
R¥2,186,0007T °

MMNEREEEEERARRMMNERE S
BIRA RIBI20% AR A 2 o355 iR A 5= I FE A
Q0% MR Az ) —[EMT B A BIRFE - R
SEESTREE—TEE  AtEEE0
EEGBERAREERGE P ENER
K AEEERIEBAEEN/MNERIREE
BERARRMMERBEX AR ANIEN
B8 - NEERZA EREMNNFEERER
eI BB R 5T A AR %28,410,0007T (2018
F - ARME1,069,000) & A R#29,479,000
7t (20184 © AKR#1,069,0007T) °

MMBIREZEBR A AIN25% R AR TiE
AN BB 100% AR AN 2 ) — BT /8
AIFEA c AEERZEECENNFEDRE
RIE(L BB 25 A ARKE1,069,0007T(2018
F:F) o

ZEEHRNA]

38
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20. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES 20. R&EZ40X¥MIBRE (@)

(CONTINUED)

The 70% equity interest in Hangzhou Hangzhou Jinanxing Enterprise MMNBRRECEEREANERLE(BRE
Management Consulting Partnership (Limited Partnership), Taizhou %) BMNERCEERERER QG RN
Huahao Enterprise Management Consulting Co., Ltd and Zhejiang IEMBEEFXBR AT T0%R A
Renhe Health Industry Co., Ltd is held through a subsidiary with Thi BN A B FE(H 0% AR A #E 2 By — [ i B
90% equity interests attributable to the Company. The amounts of DNEFA - AEERZEEERENRFE
the Group’s recognised share of losses of the joint ventures for the EHRREEEERT R ARE2,113,0007T
current year and cumulatively were RMB2,113,000 (2018: Nil). (2018F : &)

The following table illustrates the summarised consolidated financial TEREHFHFMNBIEB L AR A TS HITEE
information of Hangzhou Zhongxu Real Estate Co., Ltd. adjusted EHEE  sMIest hEsE S BERa
for any differences in accounting policies and reconciled to the B TSR B EE R AT

carrying amount in the financial statements:

2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TT ARET T

Cash and cash equivalents ReRREFEY 536,404 566,280
Other current assets HEMREEE 1,970,527 2,013,122
Current assets mBEE 2,506,931 2,579,402
Non-current assets ERHEE 141 217
Current liabilities mEEE (2,452,349) (2,600,266)
Net assets, excluding goodwill/(net BEFETMERE (BEFH)

liabilities) 54,723 (20,647)
Proportion of the Group’s ownership KEBEHEBEA DL 24% 24%

Group’s share of net assets of the joint AEEELREEREEEFE

venture 13,134 -
Carrying amount of the investment HERAE 13,134 =
Revenue WA 260,595 =
Total expenses s 4a%E (196,766) (11,728)

Profit and total comprehensive income for  FAF)E & & E U425
the year 63,829 (11,728)
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20. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES

(CONTINUED)

The following table illustrates the summarised consolidated financial

information of Hangzhou Jieyao Investment Management Co., Ltd.

adjusted for any differences in accounting policies and reconciled

to the carrying amount in the financial statements:

PSRRI

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

20. RS ELRBKRE (W)

TREINERREEEERAANE G
MBEMRE - HEFEFTBERERELS
BN B R BRI (B F9ED

2019 2018

20194 2018%F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T AREBT T

Cash and cash equivalents ReERRSFEY 8 9

Other current assets HEmeEE 20,166 20,000

Current assets MENBE 20,174 20,009

Current liabilities mENaE (30,178) (30,012

Net liabilities BEFE (10,004) (10,003)

Proportion of the Group’s ownership AEEHEEED L 20% 20%
Group’s share of net assets of the joint AEBELELECEEETFE

venture - =

Carrying amount of the investment WEREE - =

Total expenses F 4858 (1) M

Loss after tax Briii& &R (1) (1
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20. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES
(CONTINUED)

The following table illustrates the summarised consolidated financial
information of Hangzhou Bijin Property Co., Ltd. adjusted for any
differences in accounting policies and reconciled to the carrying
amount in the financial statements:

20. RS ELRBKRE (R

TREITNEBEXRBRARNA GG
BERBE  sMEMSHAERRERELRER

BB TSR A AR EE TR ED -

2019 2018

20194 2018%F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T ARETTT

Cash and cash equivalents Re MRS EEY 411,183 289,762
Other current assets HEtREEE 1,927,993 272,311
Current assets MENVAE 2,339,176 562,073
Non-current assets EREBEAE 695 1,262,607
Current liabilities Mk =N (1,969,878) (830,639)
Non-current liabilities FERHEE (400,000) (1,000,000)
Net liabilities BEFE (30,007) (5,959)
Proportion of the Group’s ownership AEEHEEED L 20% 20%

Group’s share of net assets of the joint

venture AEEELEEEHEEEFE - -
Carrying amount of the investment WEREE - =
Revenue Wiz 777 198
Total expenses X 4a%E (142,826) (15,541)
Loss after tax Brii1& B R (142,049) (15,343)
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20. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES 20. R&EZ40X¥HIBE (@)
(CONTINUED)

The following table illustrates the summarised consolidated financial TREIMINZEEEGR ARG I
information of Hangzhou Jiayi Property Co., Ltd. adjusted for any ERE - REMEHBRERIEHARK
differences in accounting policies and reconciled to the carrying HARA 75k B0 BRI (B FAER

amount in the financial statements:

Hangzhou Jiayi

Property

2019 20195 Co., Ltd.
MMNEREE

BRAF

RMB’000

AR®T T

Cash and cash equivalents BeKREeEEY 23,510
Other current assets HEMReEE 488,872
Current assets MEEE 512,382
Non-current assets ERBEE 96
Current liabilities UEIN=NE (6,753)
Non-current liabilities ERBBE (360,000)
Net assets, excluding goodwill BE(CCTRERS) FE 145,725
Proportion of the Group’s ownership REBEERASL 25%
Group’s share of net assets of the joint venture AEERLEEDEEEFE 36,431
Carrying amount of the investment RERAEE 36,431
Total expenses M 458 (4,275)

Loss after tax brifi& & 1B (4,275)
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20. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES 20. R&EZ40X¥MIBRE (@)

(CONTINUED)
The following table illustrates the summarised consolidated financial TERHBFINMINBLECEEEBEAERLE
information of Hangzhou Jinanxing Enterprise Management (BRA%) - aMEHELCETEZRAEGRA
Consulting Partnership (Limited Partnership), Taizhou Huahao AN I CENEREF AR ARG G
Enterprise Management Consulting Co., Ltd. and Zhejiang Renhe BRSE - EMSFTERERELHAER
Health Industry Co., Ltd. adjusted for any differences in accounting BRI R R A BRI AL
policies and reconciled to the carrying amount in the financial
statements:
Hangzhou
Jinanxing
Enterprise Taizhou
Management Huahao Zhejiang
Consulting Enterprise Renhe
Partnership Management Health
(Limited Consulting Industry
2019 20194 Partnership) Co., Ltd. Co., Ltd.
MMNEBEZE
SEEEENA ERAEE AT
EBL¥E TEEE REEHXE
(BREY) EHERAF BRAF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T R AR¥TR AR¥TT
Cash and cash equivalents ReMBRLEEBY 1,999 7,806 2,656
Other current assets EMREEE - 33,362 274,335
Current assets mENE 1,999 41,168 276,991
Current liabilities mENaE (173) (41,242) (276,772)
Net assets, excluding goodwill/ (net BEMTRERS)FE/
liabilities) (BEFE) 1,826 (74) 219
Proportion of the Group’s ownership ~ ANEEHEAEA D 70% 69% 69%
Group’s share of net assets of the joint  AEEELHEEDEEETF
venture (El 1,278 - 151
Carrying amount of the investment S & REE 1,278 - 151
Total expenses F Sz %R (2,890) (43) (50)
Loss after tax Bri iz e 8 (2,890) (43) (50)
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21. LOANS TO JOINT VENTURES 21. MEELEER
2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TT ARETTT

Principal: PN

Zhejiang Renhe Health Industry Co.,

Ltd. AT @ REZEBRAR] 88,508 =
Hangzhou Bijin Property Co., Ltd. MMNBREHEBRAF 2,000 67,304
During the year, the Group’s loans to joint ventures were unsecured FA - AEEREEDENERREEIRR
and interest-free and repayable on demand. BB - WHRERER
22. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES/ 22 WHELERSE THE
LOANS TO ASSOCIATES LEER
2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT AREET T

Principal: PN
Hangzhou Yugui Industrial Co., Ltd. MNGEEEBR AR 40,522 =
Wenzhou Jinghong Real Estate Co.,
Ltd. BINFEABEEFRAT 75,662 -
Yiwu Longrui Real Estate Co., Ltd. ESENEMEREERAT - 175,300
116,184 175,300
During the year, the Group’s loans to associates were unsecured, RER » AEEMZEBECENERSE
interest-free and repayable on demand. IR REE - WHREREE -
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31 December 2019 20194 12 A 31 H

22. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES/
LOANS TO ASSOCIATES

(CONTINUED)

Particulars of the associates are as follows:

BEbEMFBNT

Percentage attributable to the Group

Particulars AEEEEEAL
of issued Place of Indirect Voting Profit Principal

Name shares held registration equity interest power sharing activities
RECRT BERE

L R R E iR R REE  BNDK TEEE

Yiwu Longrui Real Estate Co., Ltd.""  Registered Zhejiang 31% 35% 35% Property
capital of PRC management
RMB10,000,000

EEEREHEREERAR iR AR HEDINT NEER
AR#10,000,0007T

Hangzhou Yugui Industrial Co., Ltd.?  Registered Zhejiang 22% 24% 24% Investment
capital of PRC management
RMB470,000,000

MMEEEEER AR FMRAARHE BT REER
470,000,0007T

Wenzhou Jinghong Real Estate Registered Zhejiang 22% 24% 24% Property

Co., Ltd® capital of PRC management

RMB10,000,000

BMFAEEBRARY AR AR HEDINT NEER
10,000,0007T

(1) Established on 21 November 2018

) Established on 17 July 2019

) Established on 3 December 2019
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22. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES/

LOANS TO ASSOCIATES
(CONTINUED)

The 35% equity interest in Yiwu Longrui Real Estate Co., Ltd. is
held through a subsidiary with 90% equity interests attributable
to the Company. The Group has discontinued the recognition of
its share of losses of Yiwu Longrui Real Estate Co., Ltd. when the
share of losses of the associate exceeded the Group’s interest in
the associate as the Group has no obligation to take up further
losses. The amounts of the Group’s unrecognised share of
losses of the associate for the current year and cumulatively were
RMB1,362,000.

The following table illustrates the summarised consolidated financial
information of Yiwu Longrui Real Estate Co., Ltd. adjusted for any
differences in accounting policies and reconciled to the carrying
amount in the financial statements:

PSRRI

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

'

22 RBELRER THE
ERER )

& SEnEERE AR QA HIS5% R AR
Y5 B AN 5 B FE (5 Q0% A AN 25 ) — R PR
BRARHEAE - BRASEBESTREE—D
B8 A EHECENEGERRRAS
ERE S ENEDSE AEEDRIEER
HERSEREHEREERA RN ELE
1B o RNEBER T E B ENANFERERE
HEE R A AR1,362,0007T ©

TREIESRERFHERZARIAEH
MBEMRE - EFETBERERELH
BN AR A BREE AT :

2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®ETT ARET T
Cash and cash equivalents BeRREEEY 382,492 =
Other current assets HEmeEE 847,068 175,300
Current assets MENEE 1,229,560 175,300
Non-current assets EREBEE 10 =
Current liabilities mEAE (758,459) (175,301)
Non-current liabilities SEmEBAE (475,000) -
Net liabilities BEFE (3,889) O
Proportion of the Group’s ownership AEEHEEED L 35% 35%
Group’s share of net assets of the REEEREEEETE
associate - -
Carrying amount of the investment REREE - -
Revenue WA 383 =
Total expenses Fisz4aza (14,274) (1
Loss after tax BT EE (13,891) )
EREFERAF —E-hFFEHR 259




Notes to Financial Statements
b EL

31 December 2019 20194 12 A 31 H

22 INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES/ 22 RGELERET WS
LOANS TO ASSOCIATES LEERGR)
(CONTINUED)

MMNREREAERAB RN FAEEER
N EIH24% IR A 7 ThiF B AN 5L B FE (15 90%
RAE R — M B ARG - R20194F
128318 @ NG ESZEB/R D F KR M
SUBXEERATNEHERNSTHRAKR
IREE - MR EES B EEFERS G
share of net assets and share of profits of the associates. Al e

The 24% equity interests in Hangzhou Yugui Industrial Co., Ltd.
and Wenzhou Jinghong Real Estate Co., Ltd. are held through a
subsidiary with 90% equity interests attributable to the Company.
As at 31 December 2019, the paid-in capital of Hangzhou Yugui
Industrial Co., Ltd. and Wenzhou Jinghong Real Estate Co., Ltd.
were nil and they have not yet commenced operation. There are no

TREFIMMAEXEER AT FORM A
EXERAREGHUBENME - LEAE
AR E R AR KRB B RERNREE

accounting policies and reconciled to the carrying amount in the FED -

The following table illustrates the summarised consolidated financial
information of Hangzhou Yugui Industrial Co., Ltd. and Wenzhou
Jinghong Real Estate Co., Ltd. adjusted for any differences in

financial statements:

Hangzhou Wenzhou
Yugui Jinghong
Industrial Real Estate
2019 Co., Ltd. Co., Ltd.
MM E RN
2019%F KEFRAAE BEBRAF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT

Cash and cash equivalents HeMIREEEY 9 22,623
Other current assets HEMREEE - 464,143
Current assets mEEE 9 486,766
Non-current assets EMBEE - 285
Current liabilities mEAE (18) (487,401)
Net liabilities B EFE ) (350)
Proportion of the Group’s ownership AEBEEEHEE DL 24% 24%
Group’s share of net assets of the AEEELEECEREFE

associate - -
Carrying amount of the investment A RMEE - -
Total expenses FS 4 %E ) (350)
Loss after tax briRiEE TR 9) (350)
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23. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND 23. :REERAETERAR
LIABILITIES
The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities are as follows: BEHEEERELEHIEEELHIT ¢
Deferred tax assets EiEBIEEE
Impairment
of other Losses
receivables available
and properties Unrealised for offsetting Prepaid
under intragroup Lease against future corporate
development  profit or loss liabilities  taxable profits income tax Total
At ElFE e
REg AEREE HE  RRESRH Bfitg
VES =5 8 FENEE L &t

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTL  ARETR  ARETT  ARBTR ARETR ARETR

At 1 January 2018 2018F151H 15,742 17,208 - 57,836 10,276 101,062
Prepaid income tax BRFER - - - - (8,649) (8649
Deferred tax creditec/{charged) to the statement of ~ EMRMEZFENR / (315 ¢

proft or loss during the year BRLHE 7,059 (1451) - (45,276) - (39,668)
At 31 December 2018 and 1 January 2019 201812431 B 201951 A1 22,801 15,757 - 12,560 1,621 52,145
Deferred tax (charged)/credited to the statement of  ERRMEEER (k) /3 el

proftt or loss during the year ETHE (6,938) 3,330 4,632 15,649 - 16,673
At 31 December 2019 201961274318 15,863 19,087 4,632 28,209 1,627 69,418
In accordance with the PRC laws and regulations, tax losses could BIERBUAR AR RS EErEERE
be carried forward for five years to offset against its future taxable AR SHE B2 A FERBIFE o BREmRE A
profits. Deferred tax assets relating to unutilised tax losses are MBEENELHRIBEAE RgEBEEH
recognised to the extent that it is probable that sufficient taxable JERB M EAFEZSEETHIHEERSHA
profit will be available to allow such deferred tax assets to be BT SRR ©
utilised.
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31 December 2019 20194 12 A 31 H

23. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND
LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

The Group has no accumulated tax losses arising in Hong Kong
that are available indefinitely for offsetting against future taxable
profits of the companies in which the losses arose. The Group
also has accumulated tax losses arising in Mainland China of
RMB982,090,000 (2018: RMB740,289,000) that will expire in one
to five years for offsetting against future taxable profits. Deferred tax
assets have not been recognised in respect of these losses as they
have arisen in subsidiaries that have been loss-making for some
time and it is not considered probable that taxable profits will be
available against which the tax losses can be utilised.

23. BERRBEER AR ()

AEEREBRBELRN AMKHEES LEE
BRABEMNERTFHN R FIEEE o
REBRPEAMINEER RARIEBEER
A AR#982,090,0007T (20184F : AR
740,289,0007T) ' R —ZRFNEIE -
AR SR B2 R ERTIADE - BRZEHRBA
RIREAEE—REH - BR AW EATE

A EIR B S B R FER TR - B
HREEBERRLEHIBEE -

Deferred tax liabilities EEFIEA S
Fair value
adjustment
of equity
investments
designated Fair value
at fair value Fairvalue  adjustment
through other  adjustmentof arising from
comprehensive investment acquisition  Withholding
income properties  of a subsidiary tax Others* Total
BAREETE
h:t 1 E DN
At 2ERA RENE  WE-EKHE
MERRE MEE MAEER
MMEERE #E  DhEERE it R @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT AREFT AREFT ARETT  ARETR  ARETRH
At 1 January 2018 2018141 - 938,823 - 44,076 144,191 1,127,090
Realised during the year ERER - (129,399) - = (29,223 (158,616)
Deferred tax credited to the statement of ERFAZENER
compreensive income during the year MELHE 2250 - - - = 2250
Deferred tax charged to the statement of ENRNERR
proft or loss during the year NBRETHE - (965) - 3503 22,004 24,762
At 31 December 2018 and 1 January 2019 2018512A318 R
2019F1R1A 2,250 808,465 - 47,519 137,192 995,486
Realised during the year ERER - (39,446) - - (11,749) (51,195)
Acquisiion of a subsiclary W -ERELR - - 5,807 - - 5,807
Deferred tax charged to the statement
of profit or loss during the year ENRNERKMBNELHE - 10429 - 8,731 11,495 30,655
At 31 December 2019 2019124310 2,250 779,448 5897 56,310 136,938 980,843

*

Others mainly include temporary differences relating to capitalised finance
costs.

262 Zhong An Group Limited 2019 Annual Report

- Hiv T EBFERE MM E AR ER



Notes to Financial Statements

23. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND

LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law (the “New CIT
Law”), a 10% withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to
foreign investors from the foreign investment enterprises established
in the PRC. The requirement is effective from 1 January 2008 and
applies to earnings after 31 December 2007. A lower withholding
tax rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty between Mainland
China and the jurisdiction of the foreign investors. For the Group,
the applicable rate is 10%. The Group is therefore liable for
withholding taxes on dividends distributed by those subsidiaries
established in the PRC in respect of earnings generated from 1
January 2008.

Other than the above deferred tax liability in relation to the PRC
withholding income tax provided, no deferred taxation has been
provided for the distributable retained profits of approximately
RMB2,840,392,581 (2018: RMB1,423,990,000), which were
derived from the PRC subsidiaries as the Group is able to control
the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is
probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

PSRRI

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

23. BERREER AR ()

BEAPBECEMGRE((FREMER
=D BRAINE R EREFEERKRE NP EH
R S Y INE 1B 5 2 BR BB 0% TE 30
i BEMREB2008F1 A1 HBAER - I
BAMR2007F12 A31 HEFMEL Z AT -
fi R B At BRSNE 188 & B Rl AR 2
A MBEE R AHREEIE B R - A
SE 2 HEALER10% - Bt - AEBZER
ZER R B A 2 BB A B35 20084F 1
A1RREL 2B IR .2 &S MZFEI
it

R B bSO A) R BT 0TS B AR RA AR AT
MIBAEIN  BERREPEMBR RN
ANR#2,840,392,5817T (20184 : AR
1,423,990,0007T) {R B8 s FII4E i 3 A A0 T 43¢
% EAANEBERIEG TR EERERN
K[ B R R AT TR R AR R AT s T 1
@ °
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31 December 2019 2019 12 31 H

24. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARY WITH 24. B39 BEERMBEXIER

LY = )=
MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING RIESHME LT
INTERESTS
Details of the Group’s subsidiary that has material non-controlling A BRI R AN E B A R AR
interests are set out below: BYIRAT
Percentage of equity interest held by non-controlling interests: IEERERFFERER L
2019 2018
2019F 20184
China New City Commercial Development  H1 B h i 33 E B R A 7
Limited (“CNC”) (TR BT 1) 36.20% 30.79%
Accumulated balances of non-controlling interests at the reporting N4 B EAFE IR ez 254555
date:
2019 2018
2019F 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TFT AREET T

CNC AR TR T 1,600,251 1,297,112
Profit/(loss) for the year allocated to non-controlling interests: FADRETFIEERERNEF], (BB

2019 2018

2019F 20184

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TT AREET T

CNC AR BT T 13,398 (76,245)
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24. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARY WITH 24.
MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING
INTERESTS (CONTINUED)

The following tables illustrate the summarised financial information
of the above subsidiary. The amounts disclosed are before any
inter-company eliminations:

PSRRI

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

Mo EBHHBEXIFE
R4 =AY P B 22 B (§8)

TREHIALMBARNHBEREE - F7
RENSBANTAAREHHER 2 25

2019 CNC
20195 T B HT ™
RMB’000

ARBTFT

Revenue WA 1,955,853
Other income and gains E U A R e 68,460
Changes in fair value of investment properties WEMERAREBEZE (36,742)
Fair value gain upon transfer to investment properties EREREVMFENARBENT 50,642
Total expenses EEF k] (1,992,924)
Profit for the year F g A 45,289
Total comprehensive income for the year FREHEKREEEE 56,030
Current assets mENEE 4,790,274
Non-current assets EREEE 9,718,450
Current liabilities mEAE 3,016,929
Non-current liabilities ERBAE 5,350,260
Net cash flows used in operating activities EERDERBSREFE (367,446)
Net cash flows used in investing activities KEFRSHEARSRETHE (964,905)
Net cash flows generated from financing activities MERNELRS RS F5 1,190,866
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents Re RIRSZEMRAFRE (141,485)
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31 December 2019 2019 12 31 H

24. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARY WITH
MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING
INTERESTS (CONTINUED)

The amounts disclosed are before any inter-company eliminations:

24. B AR A E X

R4 2 AP B 22 B (§8)

EENSREARNEARRMYEHEAN S

(continued) (8
2018 CNC
2018%F BT T
RMB’000
ARETTT
Revenue A 1,924,619
Other income and gains HA WA Rz 53,706
Changes in fair value of investment properties REYMENRBEEZSH 22,223
Fair value loss upon transfer to investment properties EREREMERO AL BESE (25,030)
Total expenses -t (2,197,515)
Loss for the year FANEE (221,997)
Total comprehensive income for the year FREHEWELLEE (219,353)
Current assets MENEE 4,077,716
Non-current assets EMENEE 9,153,872
Current liabilities mEAE (4,335,544)
Non-current liabilities EREBEE (2,998,001)
Net cash flows used in operating activities EEETHREAREREFE (285,434)
Net cash flows generated from investing activities REETHELERSREFRE 229,730
Net cash flows generated from financing activities BMEESELERESME TR 274,821
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents e RIS EEMILINFEE 219,117
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25. COMPLETED PROPERTIES HELD
FOR SALE

PSRRI

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

25. FEHBEEERME

2019 2018
20194 20184
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Wit AR®T T ARET T
Carrying amount at 1 January 1A1RZEREE 4,231,066 3,528,806
Transfer from properties under B REPYE
development 14 1,984,683 3,911,530
Transfer to investment properties EREEYE 13 (59,541) (80,008)
Cost of properties sold B EYEK A 6 (2,988,483) (3,101,029
Carrying amount at 31 December 12 A31H Z2BREE 3,167,725 4,259,301
Write-down of completed properties  #R s 2 8K S & 1 2
held for sale to net realisable value %= A &35 %(E (571) (28,235)
Net carrying amount at 31 12831 A Z BRAFE
December 3,167,154 4,231,066

The movements in provision for write-down of completed properties
held for sale to net realisable value are as follows:

WOR AR RS E MR = AT R TFER
BEBHMT

2019 2018

20194 20184

Note RMB’000 RMB’000

et ARMF T ARETTT

At 1 January ®1A1R 28,235 =
(Reversal & realise)/Write-down of  ([E 2 B3R MUR A%

completed properties held for sale ~ EIEKIFEMES
to net realisable value A& IR R(E 6 (27,664) 28,235
At 31 December ®12HA31H 571 28,235
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31 December 2019 20194 12 A 31 H

25. COMPLETED PROPERTIES HELD
FOR SALE (CONTINUED)

Included in the above provision for write-down of completed
properties held for sale is a provision for one (2018: one) impaired
completed property held for sale with a carrying amount before
provision of RMB15,322,000 (2018: RMB93,297,000), a write-
down of completed properties held for sale of RMB571,000 (2018:
RMB28,235,000) was recognised.

There are positive cash inflows in the future forecast for the project
above. A reversal of provision of RMB6,414,000 was recognised
and a provision of RMB21,250,000 was realised in cost in 2019.

As at 31 December 2019, certain of the Group’s completed
properties held for sale of RMB942,524,000 (2018:
RMB1,889,947,000) were pledged to secure interest-bearing bank
and other borrowings granted to the Group as disclosed in note 33.

26. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

25. IFEHBECER MR ()

BRI B A AR E MR BT A —
JB(2018%F : —IH) WEMIFEARAED
e - ARREERAKK15,322,0007T
(20184 : AR¥93,297,0007T) * MU FT
RFEEKFEWHEAREKS71,0007T (2018
& AR#28,235,0007T) B EHR °

FHEEMARRBARBERERA c R
201 9F MERR B HE Bl A R66,414,0007T K&
AR AN 35 B A R 521,250,000 ©

R2019F 128318 « AEEE THEHS
BEEKME B ARBE42,524,0007T (2018
£ AR#1,889,947,0007T) © W FE33FT
W BEARTAESEG BRITERRE
fbfETREV IR o

26. LI4 S (RE A B B X8 E)
HAEBERNEMAE

2019 2018

20194 2018%F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT ARETTT

Listed equity investments at fair value ETEREE  BEAREE 57,268 76,635

The above equity investments were classified as financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss as they were held for trading.

268 Zhong An Group Limited 2019 Annual Report

LilisEREDRRUNAAEBEFEARE
Bt AZHIESNSREE



Notes to Financial Statements

27. TRADE RECEIVABLES

28

The Group’s trading terms with its customers are mainly on credit,
except for new customers, where payment in advance is normally
required. The credit period is generally one month, extending
up to three months for major customers. Each customer has a
maximum credit limit. The Group seeks to maintain strict control
over its outstanding receivables to minimise credit risk. Overdue
balances are reviewed regularly by senior management. In view of
the aforementioned and the fact that the Group’s trade receivables
relate to various diversified customers, there is no significant
concentration of credit risk. The Group does not hold any collateral
or other credit enhancements over its trade receivable balances.
The balances of trade receivables are non-interest-bearing and
unsecured.

The Group assessed that there was no significant loss allowance
recognised in accordance with the ECL model under IFRS 9 as at
31 December 2019 and 2018.

PREPAYMENTS, OTHER
RECEIVABLES AND OTHER ASSETS

PSRRI

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

27. B E 5 IR

REFEEAERPIN 2R PIERTBIMEE
RE  EREFPABEARANR - FEH
BER—ER  REERE=AAGEE
BEFME) - BEEFERSEERE - K
SEBEHHE W R EREBRE R BRRH
BT YRABRABIEEERR - B4
FEEREEEEMNERN - EN LXK
AEEE ZRKFIREZENRTF A BN
FE HUBENEAETRR - AKEY
EpLH W B B IR RT A R Mk
HitBEHEE - BRKRESRFREHR AR N
SRR o

R2019F 2 2018F12 A31H » AEBE G
1% A2 AR 4 B R B 75 R 5 XE RI BB 95 18 T TR A
EEBHEEABERAZENEEEE -

28. TSR + Hti BRI R

Hi=E

2019 2018
20195 2018%F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
HiaE AR%T R ARBFIT

Recoverable deposit for land EREE T g R AT B &

acquisition cancelled 302,798 122,500
Recoverable payments on behalf of X ZRE 4th A H)A] Uk B 708

other parties 8,127 27,000
Prepayment for equity investment*  #Ez5 R & T 7K 163,889 =
Advance to suppliers TEfS R IR 420,889 82,252
Project construction guarantee 18 B HRRFE S

deposits 98,414 105,825
Prepaid other tax TR EMBIE 580,459 508,187
Recoverable deposit for acquisition 2 18U BE Y AT @1 Uk IE 4

cancelled 60,000 -
Other receivables H fth fE M IR 309,321 167,343

1,943,897 1,013,107
Impairment RE @ (62,966) (62,966)
1,880,931 950,141
BLEMERAG —F-hEFEH 269
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PSRRI RE

31 December 2019 20194 12 A 31 H

28. PREPAYMENTS, OTHER
RECEIVABLES AND OTHER ASSETS
(CONTINUED)

(@  Included in the above provision for impairment of other
receivables was a full provision for individually impaired other
receivables of RMB62,966,200 with a carrying amount before
provision of RMB62,966,200 as at 31 December 2019 (2018:
RMB62,966,200).

The financial assets included in the above balances relate to
receivables for which there was no recent history of default and
past due amounts. As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, the loss
allowance was assessed to be minimal.

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of
prepayments, other receivables and other assets are as follows:

28. TSR « HtiEW IR
H = E ()

(@ EHlEAEYRGRIERRERBEER
BERIEREMEMERZEELNZ
HRE A AR #62,966,2007T © iAGT
BER A REER2019F12A31H
A ANR#62,966,2007T (20184 = A
R#62,966,2007T) °

BER I EHNERKFEEENSRE
BT AR B HE R AR e R Bl £ 8 - 1A2019
FR2018F 12 31  EEBETHARK -

TARTK - Ffb UG & Hofth & B A 5 R
BT

2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARBETT

At beginning of year REEA])

Impairment losses AR

At end of year RER

* On 7 January 2019, the Company allotted and issued 178,280,000 shares

to Hangzhou Oriental Culture Tourism Group Co., Ltd. (“the Seller”) with
the purpose of acquiring 22.65% of equity interests of Zhejiang Xinnongdu
Industrial Co., Ltd. (“XND”) under the equity transfer agreement announced
on 20 July 2018 (“the Transaction”). However, the Seller had filed a lawsuit
against the Company to cancel the Transaction. As at 31 December 2019,
the lawsuit is still in process
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* R2019F1 A78 + AARIEEE RBEITHE R
#%17178,280,0008% A& 1 F 1M 3 75 UL Bl ik
XEEERAR(ERS]) - IREN20185
7208 A G R IRAEE R R WUE T R
HMEZEFAR AT ([FEE])22.65% 4 ([32
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29. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

AND RESTRICTED CASH

PSRRI

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

20. e R B &SRR ZR
Bl &

2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARET T
Cash and bank balances Be MBI 4,014,351 2,091,223
Time deposits TEHER 44,513 49,558
4,058,864 2,140,781
Less: Restricted cash B XRHRE (926,287) (601,019)
Cash and cash equivalents Re MRS EEY 3,132,577 1,539,762
Current assets MENEE 881,774 551,461
Non-current assets EMBEE 44,513 49,558
Restricted cash ZRRHIRE 926,287 601,019

Cash at banks eamns interest at floating rates based on daily bank
deposit rates. Short term time deposits are made for varying
periods of between one day and three months depending on the
immediate cash requirements of the Group, and earn interest at
the respective short term time deposit rates. The bank balances
and restricted cash are deposited with creditworthy banks with no
recent history of default.

Pursuant to relevant regulations in the PRC, certain property
development companies of the Group are required to place in
designated bank accounts certain amounts of pre-sale proceeds
from properties as guarantee deposits for the construction of the
related properties. The deposits can be used for purchases of
construction materials and payments of the construction fees of
the relevant property projects when approval from the relevant local
government authorities is obtained. As at 31 December 2019, such
guarantee deposits amounted to approximately RMB867,800,000
(2018: RMB546,431,000).

RITERERRIT A BRE R AFEA R
B BRFRFERA—RE=EATEHNH
ROARAEBENARRSFLME) - RIEH
RIEVE A BB KA R © IRITHERRR T
RHIZRSHFRALHY EEOELNEE
RYEFZRIT

REFBEREEE - AEERE TR
R EIZER TR S T8 & BT S RIBF R
HERERITIRP - (ERBEYEEZRABERIZ
© o EEVSIERE IR IPI MR AR - IR
SETARNBEREMETRR NEEME
NS APEEER - N2019F12A31H » %
ERiZe A ARE-867,800,0007T (2018
F . AR#546,431,0007T) °
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PSRRI RE

31 December 2019 20194 12 A 31 H

29.

30.

272 Znhong An Group Limited

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AND RESTRICTED CASH
(CONTINUED)

As at 31 December 2019, certain of the Group’s non-current
time deposits of RMB44,513,000 (2018: RMB49,555,000) were
pledged to banks as guarantees for mortgage facilities granted to
purchasers of the Group’s properties.

As at 31 December 2019, no non-current time deposits (2018:
RMB3,000) were pledged to secure a long-term interest-bearing
bank loans and no certain of the Group’s current time deposits
(2018: Nil) were pledged to secure short-term interest-bearing bank
loans granted to the Group as disclosed in note 33.

Besides, certain of the Group’s bank accounts of approximately
RMB13,974,000 (2018: RMB5,030,000) were pledged to banks for
the timely repayment of the loans as disclosed in note 33.

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank balances of
the Group denominated in RMB amounted to RMB3,960,056,000
(2018: RMB1,833,163,000). The RMB is not freely convertible
into other currencies, however, under Mainland China’s Foreign
Exchange Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement,
Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is
permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies through banks
authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

TRADE PAYABLES

An aging analysis of the Group’s trade payables as at the end of the
reporting period, based on the payment due dates, is as follows:

20. e R B & ERYEZR

Bl B & (1)

M2019F12A31H « ANEBERE TIEAH
TEHIFRAR44,513,00070(20184F : A
K #49,555,0007T) B T R1T - (EAR
EEMEEREFIRIBERAER -

72019F12 A318 -+ HFHINHFF33ATIRE -
REEN A IERNEAE BATF R (20185 « AR
#3,0007T) 2RI - UEUSAEEER R
HiRT B ERITE R M AN BN 4E BN EATE HATE 3K
(20184 : &) BRI - DIBUSANEEER
HHIRT BERITER -

FHh  REERE TRITFEREHARKE
13,974,0007T (20184 : AER#5,030,000
TO BT IRTT - AR EEE T (KT
33 E) °

RBEHER - AEEUARBFENRS
RiR1TH % & E A AREES,960,056,0007T
(20184 : AR™1,833,163,0007T) ° A
ARBTEEEBARAHEMERE - EREF
B SNE B B2 A1) I A5 TR - BB RN TEE AR
T - AEEAE R EEITINE RS ER
TAREHAHME

30. FE{+ R A IR

AEEENE S RIN RS PARRRE B
HEtERRE TN

2019 2018

20194 20184

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T AREBT T

Within six months ~NEARW 998,760 1,579,485
Over six months but within one year BANEAE—FR 259,544 70,590
Over one year Bl —F 57,111 50,123
1,315,415 1,700,198

The above balances are unsecured and interest-free and are
normally settled based on the progress of construction.
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31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

31. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 31. HftfEfIxIEREHER

2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TT ARETTT

Deposits related to construction BRAZENLS 79,603 68,812
Payables for acquisition of subsidiaries FLULEEHT B B R RO IR 389,286 560,000
Recoverable receivables on behalf of RFTEAM 5 AT B FEUE IR
other parties 185,464 -
Interest expenses accrued FERTFI BRI 17,313 16,163
Guarantee deposits RE S 57,588 60,936
Due to a non-controlling shareholder JFEAT IR AR AR SR A 7R IE 27,897 50,550
Other payables E e TRIR 250,758 160,332
1,007,909 916,793
Other payables are unsecured, interest-free and have terms HEMEMNRAEEA £ RERAIE12
between three to twelve months. @A -
=
32. CONTRACT LIABILITIES 32. GAR
2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETTT
Advances received from customers BREFFEMNR 6,904,246 4,452 309
Contract liabilities represent sales proceeds received from buyers in SREEEREE AR AEEYEBEREY
connection with the Group’s pre-sale of properties. SHEFTISIE -
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31 December 2019 20194 12 A 31 H

33. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND

OTHER BORROWINGS

33. At BMITR A M ERR

2019 2018
20194 20184
Group AEH RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AREET T
Current: BNHR :

Bank loans — secured
Other loans —secured

Non-current:
Bank loans — secured
Other loans — secured

Repayable:
Within one year or on demand
Over one year but within two years
Over two years but within five years
Over five years

RITER—HER
Hi &R —HHEM

FERNEY -
RITER—HER
Hit &R —HEA

AR TP EEEE
—F RN EKE
SR —FEIRMEF
EYIN R RIS
HEAE

Except for certain short term bank and other borrowings amounting
to RMB2,435,500,000 (2018: RMB1,390,000,000) that bear
interest at fixed rates, all bank loans bear interest at floating rates.
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1,989,530 1,384,960

500,000 -
2,489,530 1,384,960
3,921,245 2,573,125

810,000 810,000
4,731,245 3,383,125
7,220,775 4,768,085
2,489,530 1,384,960

987,298 488,000
2,653,642 2,735,000
1,090,305 160,125
7,220,775 4,768,085

BRETEHRITREMERABRARE
2,435,500,0007C (20184 : AR¥
1,390,000,0007T) {2 EE A EFH B - FTE
IRITEFIRFEF R L -
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PSRRI

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

At 31 December 2019, the Group’s borrowings of RMB50,000,000
(2018: RMB479,000,000) were guaranteed by Mr. Shi Kancheng
(note 39(c)).

=2 P Al —
33. INTEREST-BEARING BANK 33. ;IR RITREMBER (]
AND OTHER BORROWINGS
(CONTINUED)
The Group’s bank and other borrowings bear interest at effective REBERIRTT R EAERIRA T B E R B
interest rates ranging as follows: MEEE
2019 2018
20194 2018%F
Effective interest rates YIRS 4.65% - 10% 0.90%-8.2%
The carrying amounts of all the Group’s borrowings during the year AEERFRAAERNEEEDT ¢
were as follows:
2019 2018
20195 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETTT
RMB loans and borrowings AREERRERR 7,220,775 4,768,085
At 31 December 2019, the Group’s bank and other borrowings 2019124318 - NEERIRITREA
were secured by: fERA A TS IEER
2019 2018
2019F 20184
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Kzt AR¥T T ARET T
Carrying value of the Group’s assets: ANEEEE < BREIE
Investment properties LB 13 1,317,502 1,238,247
Properties under development FEE R Y2 14 4,029,674 2,630,028
Property and equipment L EYNEY 12 624,560 498,179
Completed properties held for sale  #H{EH & E BRI E 25 942,524 1,889,947
Restricted cash SRR HI3R & 29 13,974 5,033
100% equity interest in a subsidiary AN & — I B A &
of the Group 40,000 40,000
6,968,234 6,301,434

M2019F 128318 + REEMNERA
R#¥50,000,00070 (2018%F : AR
479,000,0007T) H A AT B o5 A HE AR (Bt 5
39(c)) °

RLEEEFRAA]
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PSRRI RE

31 December 2019 20194 12 A 31 H

34. SHARE CAPITAL

34. Bz &

Shares &
2019 2018
20194 20184
*000 '000
Fx T
Authorised: JRRE
10,000,000,000 (2018: 10,000,000,0008% (20184

10,000,000,000) ordinary shares of

HK$0.10 each

Issued and fully paid:

5,718,638,800 (2018: 5,810,390,800)

ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each

A summary of movements in the Company’s issued share capital is

as follows:

10,000,000,0000%) &A% &

0.108 TR & AR

BRITAER

5,718,638,8000% (20184F :
5,810,390,8000%) A% E &

0. 1078 TTHY & AN

HK$1,000,000 HK$1,000,000

RMB506,181 RMB514,342

ARTRETRAZ BDBLAT -

Number Share Share
of shares Share premium option
in issue capital account reserve Total
BRT BRE
ROEE BE  ROREER £Ee @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARETT AREBTT ARETT ARET:T
At 31 December 2018 2018F12H31H 5,810,390,800 514,342 3,012,411 97 3,526,850
Repurchase of shares (Note (a)) BERS () (91,752,000) (8,161) (13,091) = (21,252)
At 31 December 2019 20195127318 5,718,638,800 506,181 2,999,320 97 3,505,598
Note: Bi3E

(a) The Company purchased 91,752,000 of its shares on the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange for a total consideration of RMB21,252,000 which was
paid wholly out of retained profits in accordance with section 257 of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. The purchased shares were cancelled
during the year. The share capital was written down by RMB8,161,000 at
a historical convert proportion, and the share premium was written down

by the remaining amount.
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35. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Scheme”)
for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the Group’s
operations. Eligible participants of the Scheme include the directors,
including independent non-executive directors, other employees of
the Group, suppliers of goods or services to the Group, customers
of the Group, the Company’s shareholders, third parties, and any
non-controlling shareholder in the Company’s subsidiaries. The
Scheme became effective on 15 May 2009 and, unless otherwise
cancelled or amended, will remain in force for 10 years from the
offer date.

The initial maximum number of shares which may be allotted and
issued upon exercise of all options granted (excluding options which
have lapsed in accordance with the terms of the Scheme and other
share option schemes of the Group, if any) under the Scheme and
other share option schemes of the Group (if any) must not exceed
10% of the shares of the Company in issue as at 15 May 2009,
being the date of approval of the Scheme by the shareholders
at the annual general meeting of the Company. Such maximum
number may however be refreshed at a general meeting of the
Company by shareholders. In addition, no options may be granted
under the Scheme or other share option schemes adopted by the
Group (if any) if the grant of such options will result in the maximum
number of shares which may be allotted and issued upon exercise
of all outstanding options granted but yet to be exercised under the
Scheme and other share option schemes adopted by the Group
(if any) exceeding 30% of the issued share capital of the Company
from time to time. The maximum number of shares issuable under
share options to each eligible participant in the Scheme within any
12-month period is limited to 1% of the shares of the Company in
issue at any time. Any further grant of share options in excess of
this limit is subject to shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or substantial
shareholder of the Company, or to any of their associates, are
subject to approval in advance by the independent non-executive
directors. In addition, any share options granted to a substantial
shareholder or an independent non-executive director of the
Company, or to any of their associates, in excess of 0.1% of the
shares of the Company in issue at any time or with an aggregate
value (based on the price of the Company’s shares at the date of
grant) in excess of HK$5 million, within any 12-month period, are
subject to shareholders’ approval in advance in a general meeting.
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35. SHARE OPTION SCHEME 35. iRk {ET 8 (i)

(CONTINUED)

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted by the
grantee within 21 days from the date of offer at a consideration
of HK$1.00. The exercise period of the share options granted is
determinable by the directors, and commences after a vesting
period of one to five years and ends on a date which is not later
than 10 years from the date of offer of the share options or the
expiry date of the Scheme, if earlier.

The exercise price of share options is determinable by the directors,
but may not be less than the highest of:

(i) the Stock Exchange closing price of the Company’s shares
on the date of offer of the share options;

(i) the average Stock Exchange closing price of the Company’s
shares for the five trading days immediately preceding the
date of offer; and

(i)~ the nominal value of a share of the Company.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends or to
vote at shareholders’ meetings.

The following share options were outstanding under the Scheme
during the year:

BRHBRENZOATEZNBRME21AR
HAGR AIRAB1.00B TR - AT BBAR
EZITEHRESETE  YRN—EAF 25K
BHERG - EABRRENRHENER
THEZBXZABZER B (AREEE
ERB)RILE -

BRI ITEERESERE - BTAHERINA

TR

) ARBRNRBRERL A AR
P2 W {8

(i) ANRBRMREZRZHA I REZE

EREB Pz FHRHE - &

(i)  ANRAREBERDOEE -

BREY B TRAAZEREINERA
B HIREHER -

REEIR S RITEBBRAEZTEERITE
Hin s

2019 2018
20195 20184

Weighted Weighted

average average
exercise Number exercise Number
price of options price of options
hOREF1g iR IEF 1 ERE
TEE A 111818 ]
HK$ ’000 HK$ ‘000
per share T4 per share T

BRERT BRET
At 1 January 1A1H 0.99 239,928 0.99 258,934
Forfeited during the year F LU - - 1.04 (16,006)
Exercised during the year FRITE - - 0.73 (3,000)
Expired during the year FREIE 1.29 (67,528) = =
At 31 December 12A31H 0.87 172,400 0.99 239,928
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35. SHARE OPTION SCHEME
(CONTINUED)

PSRRI

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

35. RER#ERT &I (¥8)

The exercise prices and exercise periods of the share options

outstanding as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

2019

Number of options

Exercise price*

RS HR E AR TR BB AR 2 TR B 1 T1E
B

20194

Exercise period

BREHE per share TR

’000 TEEr

T4 =734
51,000 HK$0.73 10 July 2013 to 9 July 2023
0.73%7T 201347 4108 £20234%7 A9H
121,400 HK$0.93 22 January 2014 to 21 January 2021
0.937 7T 201441 A22H 2202141 H21H

172,400

2018

Number of options

Exercise price*

20184

Exercise period

BRERE per share 1THEH

'000 THEE"

T4 =1
51,000 HK$0.73 10 July 2013 to 9 July 2023
0.73%7T 201357 A10HZ2023%7 A9H
121,400 HK$0.93 22 January 2014 to 21 January 2021
0.937 7T 201441 A22H 2202141 H21H
67,528 HK$1.29 9 July 2010 to 8 July 2019
1.297% 7T 201057 A9H #2019 7 A8H

239,928

* The exercise price of the share options is subject to adjustment in case of * BRENITEEEERKARETERA T

rights or bonus issues, or other similar changes in the Company’s share

capital.

AR AR R RANEMARERE) o
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35. SHARE OPTION SCHEME 35. iRk {ET 8 (i)

(CONTINUED)

The Group recognised no share option expense during the year
ended 31 December 2019 (2018: Nil).

The expected life of the options is the validity of the options upon
the grant date and until expiry. It is not necessarily indicative of
the exercise patterns that may occur. The suboptimal exercise
behaviour multiple is applied to the exercise price, and indicates the
stock price at which the holders of the option may exercise prior to
expiration. The expected volatility reflects the assumption that the
historical volatility is indicative of future trends, which may also not
necessarily be the actual outcome.

No other feature of the options granted was incorporated into the
measurement of fair value.

The Company had no (2018: 3,000,000) share options exercised
during the year.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had 172,400,000
share options outstanding under the Scheme. The exercise in full
of the outstanding share options would, under the present capital
structure of the Company, result in the issue of 172,400,000
additional ordinary shares of the Company and additional share
capital of RMB15,444,000 (before issue expenses).

At the date of approval of these financial statements, the Company
had 172,400,000 share options outstanding under the Scheme,
which represented approximately 3.01% of the Company’s shares
in issue as at that date.
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36. RESERVES

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Share premium

The share premium represents the excess of ordinary shares
paid by the shareholders over their nominal value.

Contributed surplus

The contributed surplus of the Group represents the
difference between the aggregate of the nominal value of
the paid-up capital of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant
to the reorganisation of the Group from 2006 to 2007 for
the purpose of preparation for the listing of the shares of
the Company on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong, and the nominal value of the Company’s shares
issued in exchange therefor. Prior to the incorporation of the
Company, the contributed surplus represented the aggregate
of the nominal values of the paid-up capital of the subsidiaries
of the Group.

Capital reserve

Capital reserve represents the additional contribution made
by the shareholders of the Company’s subsidiaries and,
in the case of acquisition of an additional non-controlling
interest of a subsidiary, the difference between the cost of
acquisition and the book value of the non-controlling interest
acquired.

Statutory surplus reserve and statutory
reserve fund

In accordance with the Company Law of the PRC and
the respective articles of association of the PRC group
companies, each of the subsidiaries of the Group that is
domiciled in Mainland China is required to allocate 10% of its
profit after tax, as determined in accordance with the PRC
Accounting Regulations, to the statutory surplus reserve
(the “SSR”) until such reserve reaches 50% of its registered
capital.

AR AR M
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36. fiti fil

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

A0 fE

B B RS 2 B B S i
BEME

BRHRR

REENEHBHRIEIRIEA20065F 2
2007 F REBARRRNEET BB
FrER Em S ARBETHEAM
WEHBARNSRRAEEAREE
RRRIFFEITE AR IE BN EED
ER o RARAREMAKLAT - BRHA
HBRRAEEMB AR H R TS E
EE

N

A IR AR RNB A RBRIEY
MESMNEE R E KRB AR M
SNIEFERRAAE - U B AR A B P UAUR 3F
PR R AR R ©

EEE%QE&%E

i

i

RIBFEARDERFEEEQAEB
AEBEIRZAA - AR BE AR A
SRS I R R A BT EL R R AE
#10% (IREBEHESFHERNETE) 2%
EEHAB(DEERHRE])  BEE
FZANTRESHAMEARRES0% °

—F-h#Fx 281



Notes to Financial Statements
b EL

31 December 2019 20194 12 A 31 H

36. RESERVES (CONTINUED) 36. fi& i (18)

(d) Statutory surplus reserve and statutory
reserve fund (continued)

In addition, certain of the PRC group companies are foreign
investment enterprises which are not subject to the SSR
allocation. According to the relevant PRC regulations
applicable to foreign investment enterprises, each of these
subsidiaries is required to allocate a certain portion (not less
than 10%) of its profit after tax, as determined in accordance
with the PRC Accounting Regulations, to the statutory
reserve fund until such reserve reaches 50% of its registered
capital.

37. BUSINESS COMBINATION

In February 2018, the Group acquired 10,391 ordinary shares and
1,017 A shares, representing approximately 19.95% equity interest
of Maggie and Rose Limited at a consideration of GBP4,848,400
in cash (equivalent to approximately RMB42,514,000), through a
subsidiary in which the Group holds 75% equity interest.

In September 2019, the Group acquired 15,638 ordinary shares
and 2,403 A shares, representing approximately 31.56% of the
equity interest of Maggie and Rose Limited at a consideration
of GBP8,840,090 in cash (equivalent to approximately
RMB76,567,000). After the acquisition, the Group totally holds
26,029 ordinary shares and 3,420 A shares, representing 51.51%
equity interest of Maggie and Rose Limited. The Group elected to
measure the non-controlling interest in Maggie and Rose Limited
at the non-controlling interest’s proportionate share of Maggie and
Rose Limited’s identifiable net assets.

Maggie and Rose Limited is mainly engaged in operating pre-
education business, and the acquisition was made as part of the
Group’s strategy to expand its diversification of business.
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37. BUSINESS COMBINATION 37. kSO (I8

(CONTINUED)

Maggie and Rose Limited 7 Ui B 27
ZAHEREERBEN AR BEN

The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of Maggie and
Rose Limited as at the date of acquisition were as follows:

T
Fair value
recognised
on acquisition
W RE B TERR Y
“REE
Notes RMB’000
HiaE ARBFIT
Property and equipment EE k& 12 12,165
Right-of-use assets FREEE 15(a) 13,851
Other intangible assets HEtmEpEE 17 34,690
Inventories FE 727
Trade receivables FEUE 5 BRX 1,172
Prepayments, other receivables and other assets TERR - Ef UG IE R H A
BE 7,620
Cash and cash equivalents ReERREEEY 10,115
Trade payables BB SRR (7,418)
Other payables and accruals Ho At A FRIE e FEE T B (9,029)
Lease liabilities HEBE 15(b) (13,851)
Deferred tax liabilities BERIBAE (5,897)
Total identifiable net assets at fair value BRARBEYIRZAIHNEE
HE R 44,145
Non-controlling interests IR (23,608)
Fair value of equity investment at fair value through EAnBEFEEEZEHFTA
other comprehensive income: HEh Mk mrERRE
Gains on fair value re-measurement of existing equity E¥FTstE W IEHRIEHI T
in business combination not under common control A HHIREREREZ AR EE
Wiz (451)
Transferred from investment in at fair value through ERARANBEAEEHES
other comprehensive income T AE HEmmRE (42,514)
Goodwill on acquisition WHEE 4 2 B8 16 98,995
Satisfied by cash LREHEE 76,567
BLEmMERAG —E-hEFEHR 283
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37. BUSINESS COMBINATION
(CONTINUED)

An analysis of the cash flows in respect of the acquisition of a
subsidiary is as follows:

37. KI5 & O (&)

BRNE—HMBARNERESRESTA

RMB’000

AREBT T

Cash consideration RERE (76,567)

Cash and cash equivalents acquired g€ RIRSEEM 10,115
Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents included in cash FFAREBEHAEReRENRS

flows generated in investing activities LREEEBYREFE (66,452)

Since the acquisition, Maggie and Rose Limited contributed
RMB9,944,000 to the Group’s revenue and caused a loss of
RMB5,483,000 to the consolidated profit of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2019.

Had the combination taken place at the beginning of the year, the
revenue of the Group and the loss of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2019 would have been RMB6,236,015,000 and
RMB994,150,000, respectively.

38. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(@) Major non-cash transactions

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group had
non-cash additions to right-of-use assets and lease liabilities
of RMB67,321,000 and RMB67,321,000 as at 31 December
2019, respectively, in respect of lease arrangements for plant
and equipment (2018: Nil).
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38. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

38. & B & B R sE (1)

(CONTINUED)
(b) Changes in financial liabilities arising (b) RETERMELEESRARE
from financing activities 228

Interest-bearing

bank
and other Lease
borrowings liabilities
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T ARET T
As 31 December 2018 M2018%F12H31H 4,768,085 -
Effect of adoption of IFRS 16 FRANBIPR B 5 s AR R 551657
k2 - 320,381
At 1 January 2019 (restated) 201991 A1 8 (&EE5) 4,768,085 320,381
Changes from financing cash flows BER S REED 2,452,690 (30,950)
New leases e - 67,321
Interest expense FERX - 16,984
Increase arising from acquisition Ui i — B Ja8 & B3
of a subsidiary - 13,851
Interest paid classified as operating cash ~ D iEAK LR ERE 2
flows EATFLE - (16,984)
At 31 December 2019 201912 A31H 7,220,775 370,603
At 1 January 2018 201841 A1H 4,559,419 -
Changes from financing cash flows BER S REED 208,666 =
At 31 December 2018 201812 A31H 4,768,085 -
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38. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

38. & & B R E (1)

(CONTINUED)
(c) Total cash outflow for leases (c) HEZHR &R HLHAEE
The total cash outflow for leases included in the statement of TARERERCHER SR LA
cash flows is as follows: T
2019
20194
RMB’000
ARET T
Within operating activities A LR FE N 16,984
Within financing activities ERELEEE 30,950
47,934

39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the transactions and balances detailed elsewhere
in these consolidated financial statements, the Group had the
following material transactions with related parties during the year:

(@  Compensation of key management personnel of the Group
which comprises the remuneration of the directors is
disclosed in note 8.

(b)  As disclosed in note 28 and note 31, the Group had no other
balance due from/to related parties at 31 December 2019
and 2018.

(c) As disclosed in note 33, the Group’s borrowings of
RMB50,000,000 (2018: RMB479,000,000) of the Group
were guaranteed by Mr. Shi Kancheng at 31 December
2019.
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40. COMMITMENTS 40. B Kk
The Group had the following commitments for property RWERR  AEEREHERZEIHNE
development expenditure at the end of the reporting period: AEPENT
2019 2018
20195 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T T ARET T
Contracted, but not provided for: DETAMER B -
Properties under development FAEE R 2 2,245,598 785,723
Financial assets at fair value through RARBEFEBEHES
profit or loss AIAEHEENSREE - 34,304
2,245,598 820,027
Operating lease commitments as at 31 December 2018 (b) 2018512 H31 A Z & & THEFHE
The Group leased certain of its office properties under REBERBREEHELHHEEREET
operating lease arrangements. Leases for office properties WA - WREMEZHE A
were with terms of 12 months or less. 121 ASLATR ©

At 31 December 2018, the Group had total future minimum

lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases

falling due as follows:

MR2018F12A31H » AEBRET
Al A S E MR T 7 BRI EA A
A& KB ERBLRELNT ¢

2018
2018%F
RMB’000
ARBFIT

Within one year
In the second to fifth years, inclusive
After five years

—FRN

F_E=hF(BREEEMS)

HFAE

31,143
151,228
258,012

440,383
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41. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES M. BRFAER

2019 2018
2019 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥F T ARETTT
Guarantees given to banks for: BLATIEB 48 TRITHVER
Mortgage facilities granted to REBYEERERRITRBER
purchasers of the Group’s properties 3,487,986 2,891,218

The Group provided guarantees in respect of the mortgage
facilities granted by certain banks to the purchasers of the Group’s
properties. Pursuant to the terms of the guarantee arrangements,
in case of default on mortgage payments by the purchasers,
the Group is responsible for repaying the outstanding mortgage
loans together with any accrued interest and penalty owed by the
defaulted purchasers to the banks. The Group is then entitled to
take over the legal titles of the related properties. The Group’s
guarantee periods commence from the dates of grant of the
relevant mortgage loans and end after the execution of individual
purchasers’ collateral agreements.

The Group did not incur any material losses during the reporting
period in respect of the guarantees provided for mortgage facilities
granted to the purchasers of the Group’s properties. The directors
consider that in case of default on payments, the net realisable
value of the related properties can cover the repayment of the
outstanding mortgage loans together with any accrued interest and
penalty, and therefore no provision has been made in connection
with the guarantees.
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42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY 42. LIFRABI S aY &M I R

CATEGORY

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial FHeMIANRSHROERARBENAT

instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

2019

Financial assets

20194
EREE

Financial assets Financial
at fair value assets
through other at fair value
comprehensive through
income profit or loss Total
BAAEEFEE UAAREEER
HEHTAHME HEHIAEHNSE
ARENEREE RNERMEE
Financial
assets Mandatorily
at amortised Equity designated
cost investments as such
RBERATIR
NHEEEREE BERE BERE st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARST 7 ARMTR ARMT R ARMT
Equity investments designated at fair #EE ARAA BEFERE
value through other comprehensive  # &zt A Kt 2E M
income B - 476,729 - 476,729
Financial assets included in long term 3t ARHIEN ZHI & R EE
prepayments 115,608 - - 115,608
Trade receivables BHRNFIR 80,065 - - 80,065
Financial assets at fair value through & A f EfE:H 2 B EE
profit or loss AABHERENSMEE - - 57,268 57,268
Loans to joint ventures MaEEEER 90,508 - - 90,508
Loans to associates A EER 116,184 - - 116,184
Financial assets included in STABRR - HhfE
prepayments, other receivables WHBREMEE
and other assets MemEE 879,583 - - 879,583
Restricted cash XEHBEE 926,287 - - 926,287
Cash and cash equivalents ReFRESEY 3,132,577 - - 3,132,577
At 31 December 2019 2019512 H31H 5,340,812 476,729 57,268 5,874,809
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42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY

CATEGORY (CONTINUED)

=
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial

instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follows: (&)
(continued)

2019 20194

Financial liabilities

EMaE

42. LFAIE ST R

EESMTANREHROEAANT -

Financial

liabilities at

amortised cost

RIEBERE AW

EA =N

RMB’000

ARET T

Trade payables BT E SERR 1,315,415

Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings FTRRIT R EMER 7,220,775
Financial liabilities included in other payables and FTARMENRIERESFERTHERAE

accruals 966,378

Lease liabilities HEAE 370,603

At 31 December 2019 201912 H31H 9,873,171
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42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY 42. IR # 2 Em IR
==
CATEGORY (CONTINUED) (#)
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial EFeMIENRERRNERENT :
instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follows: (&)
(continued)
2018 201845
Financial assets SREE
Financial assets Financial
at fair value assets
through other at fair value
comprehensive through
income profit or loss

BOAEE  MOAEE
BEARD  HEAXED
HARBRE  HAESER
WENSHAE  WEBAE

Financial
assets Mandatorily
at amortised Equity designated
cost investments as such Total
REHN AR
MEMEREE BRRE BT @5t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT ARETT ARBTT ARETTT

Equity investments designated at fair 18 ARAA BEFEEH
value through other comprehensive &zt At 2 EREH

income EER - 423,605 - 423,605
Financial assets included in long term T AREIENZNSRHEE

prepayments 171,033 = = 171,033
Trade receivables FEWE SR 56,029 - - 56,029
Financial assets at fair value through 241 BfE:HE A 2 &)

profit or loss AEBBERNEHEAE - - 76,635 76,635
Loans to a joint venture A—AELEER 67,304 - - 67,304
Loans to an associate ke A 175,300 - - 175,300
Financial assets included in STARAR - EfbEkEE

prepayments, other receivables REMEERNSRERE

and other assets 359,702 = = 359,702
Restricted cash XRHEE 601,019 - - 601,019
Cash and cash equivalents ReMReEEY 1,539,762 - - 1,539,762
At 31 December 2018 2018F12A31H 2,970,149 423,605 76,635 3,470,389
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42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY

CATEGORY (CONTINUED)

=
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial

instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follows: (&)
(continued)

2018 20184

Financial liabilities

EMaE

42. LFAIE ST R

EESMTANREHROEAANT -

Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
bizg: 3 DNz
CRAE
RMB’000
ARBFIT
Trade payables eI B BRI 1,700,198
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings FTESRIT R EAIER 4,768,085
Financial liabilities included in other payables and FTARMENRIERESFERTHERAE
accruals 880,182
Financial liabilities included in other non-current STAHMIERDAENEREE
liabilities 1,255,889
At 31 December 2018 20184 12A31H
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43. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE 43. ST RAMNAREBERL
HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL REERE
INSTRUMENTS
The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group’s and the AEERANBCHRTAMNKRABERARE
Company’s financial instruments, other than those with carrying BT - HEEERAARBESEEEER
amounts that reasonably approximate to fair values, are as follows: AN

Carrying amounts Fair values
BREE AREE
2019 2018 2019 2018
20194 20184 20194 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETR ARETT AR¥TR ARETTT

Financial assets SHREE
Equity investments designated at fair 8E ARAA BEERHE
value through other comprehensive &3t A2 EIREH

income BaRE 476,729 414,605 476,729 423,605
Financial assets at fair value through &A% BE £ B E# &
profit or loss AEHERNEREE 25,707 107,221 57,268 76,635
502,436 521,826 533,997 500,240
Financial liabilities TRAR
Interest-bearing bank and other FTEBITREMER
borrowings 7,220,775 4,768,085 7,031,611 4,563,086
Other non-current liabilities HitJERDAR - 1,255,889 - 1,002,880
7,220,775 6,023,974 7,031,611 5,565,966
Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and cash ARREeRBEEEY XRHFSHRE
equivalents, the current portion of restricted cash, trade receivables, o ERESEFRER  RKE—HEE
trade payables, financial assets included in prepayments, other TEERREWHIE ERNEBESER - 5TA
receivables and other assets, and financial liabilities included in TafIRIE - A ERIEREMEETH S
other payables and accruals approximate to their carrying amounts REEENA R AR MENRIBRETERTF
largely due to the short term maturities of these instruments. The e p A ERET TE AR EREIE
non-current portion of restricted cash, long term deposits, financial HERERAZSEILAARBEMEERAE
assets at fair value through profit or loss and financial assets at fair B - XIRHEIRSOIEREF D - REGFER
value through other comprehensive income approximate to their MHEEREHEEEmERS - EETH
carrying amounts largely due to the insignificant amount or short RZETLANSEIERRNEHAREE -

remaining maturities of these instruments.
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43. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE

HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included
at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a
current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or
liquidation sale. The following methods and assumptions were used
to estimate the fair values:

The fair values of the interest-bearing bank and other borrowings
have been calculated by discounting the expected future cash
flows using rates currently available for instruments with similar

43.

MIANARRERSD
[RiE%RE (&)

5
~

?—l‘Hb

THEERRENAABENZIARBRE
X577 (MIBREFFRHE) BRI S TH
ARZEEAR - THIDERKRRII AR
HRAEE:

FTERITER &Ef’mﬁiﬁm@ﬁfﬁﬁﬁiﬁiﬂ
W TEERBELUEHKATENFE - FER
&ﬁ%?ill,ﬁ;ﬁE%ﬁiﬁﬁ,ﬁﬁﬁiﬂfﬁimiﬁﬁﬁ

s

terms, credit risk and remaining maturities. &Le
The fair values of listed equity investments are based on quoted BEAREBEFEN LRI E HERBGR
market prices. The fair values of unlisted equity investments METE - IBAREBEFENIELETIRER

designated at fair value through other comprehensive income,
have been estimated using a market-based valuation technique
based on assumptions that are not supported by observable
market prices or rates. The valuation requires the directors to
determine comparable public companies (peers) based on industry,
size, leverage and strategy, and to calculate an appropriate price
multiple, such as enterprise value to earnings before interest,
taxes, depreciation and amortisation (“EV/EBITDA”) multiple and
price to earnings (“P/E”) multiple, for each comparable company
identified. The multiple is calculated by dividing the enterprise value
of the comparable company by an earnings measure. The trading
multiple is then discounted for considerations such as illiquidity
and size differences between the comparable companies based
on company-specific facts and circumstances. The discounted
multiple is applied to the corresponding earnings measure of the
unlisted equity investments to measure the fair value. The directors
believe that the estimated fair values resulting from the valuation
technique, which are recorded in the consolidated statement of
financial position, and the related changes in fair values, which are
recorded in other comprehensive income, are reasonable, and that
they were the most appropriate values at the end of the reporting
period.

For the fair value of the unlisted equity investments at fair value
through other comprehensive income, management has estimated
the potential effect of using reasonably possible alternatives as
inputs to the valuation model.
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43. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE 43. e T RHNARRERS
HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL REERE (8
INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Below is a summary of significant unobservable inputs to the LA 58220194 K 2018%12 A31HE &
valuation of financial instruments together with a quantitative RTAMENERTTERGASBEREE
sensitivity analysis as at 31 December 2019 and 2018: BRRED TR E
Valuation Significant Sensitivity of fair
technique unobservable inputs Range value to the input
fhERT EXTUEEZGABE &E HBAWAREESRED T
RMB’000
AERBETT
Unlisted equity investments Valuation Average P/B 2019: 1.28t0 1.36 5% (2018: 5%)
multiples multiple of peers (2018: 1.19 10 1.45) increase/decrease
(Or Average P/E in multiple would
multiple of peers) result in increase/
decrease in fair
value by 17,062
(2018: 16,577)
FEmRERRE hEREE RAETHIMIREES 2019 : 1.2821.36  FELM 5%
(FRFFHTREE (20184 : 1.19%21.45) (20184 : 5%) @ BH AR BE
=2 29) 1,/ mA17,062

(2018%F : 16,577)

Discount for lack 2019: 25% 5% (2018: 5%)

of marketability (2018: 25%) increase/decrease
in discount would
result in decrease/
increase in fair
value by 5,822
(2018: 5,384)

RZ MBS E 20195 : 25% EEIEIN,F 5%

(20184 : 25%) (2018%F : 5%) BEH AR

EERL,15105,822
(2018 : 5,384)
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296 Zhong An Group Limited

43. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE

HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

The discount for lack of marketability represents the amounts of
premiums and discounts determined by the Group that market
participants would take into account when pricing the investments.

43.

MIANARRERSD
REZRE &)

5
~

ct B

RZ IS RBIEIT R E A REEEN T 52
HERRETERMZRARERTNE
o

All financial instruments for which fair value is recognised or ARERIBEEAAEENESRIAR
disclosed are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described ARBEEBEADLE - OTErM - THERE
as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the ARBEEFEREMSEEEANRESR

fair value measurement as a whole: BAMEE :

Level 1 — Quoted market prices in an active market (that Eg—H - MHREAES B ERERT
are unadjusted) for identical assets or liabilities HETISHRE CREHAR)

Level2 — Valuation techniques (for which the lowest FZH/ — HEHEEHAI EEXE
level input that is significant to the fair value EERNAAEBEFESR
measurement is directly or indirectly observable) BEAXENHRESRE

A)
Level 3 — Valuation techniques (for which the lowest E=H - HEFEGAATEREA

level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable)

Fair value hierarchy

All the above financial assets and liabilities had Level 2 inputs
other than the financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
and equity investment designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income which had Level 1 and Level 3 inputs
respectively. The fair value hierarchy of investment properties is
disclosed in note 13 to the financial statements.

2019 Annual Report
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43. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE 43. eI ANARRERL
HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL REERE (8
INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

The following table illustrates the fair value measurement hierarchy TRIITAEBGRTAN AR BEAESE
of the Group’s financial instruments: 1 :

Fair value measurement using

AREBEFTEMAREE
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
SERT S ERTEE ERFT
®E i BEyE
F—R EIR EF=R @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTTT ARBTT ARBTT ARETT

Financial assets at fair value through &A% E{E:t A BT

profit or loss SHEE 57,268 - - 57,268
Equity investments designated at fair 18 AR A4 EE AL

value through other comprehensive 2 E I RERRE

income - - 476,729 476,729

As at 31 December 2019 20196124318 57,268 - 476,729 533,997

Financial assets at fair value through &A% B{Est ABEH)

profit or loss SREE 76,635 = = 76,635
Equity investments designated at fair 1 AR A4 BE AL

value through other comprehensive £ EMZERIERSIRE

income - - 423,605 423,605
As at 31 December 2018 R2018%12A31H 76,635 - 423,605 500,240
During the reporting period, there were no transfers of fair value REEHE - F—REE R BEWEAR
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into EE 28 A FE =R ESE ARKE -

or out of Level 3.
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44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 4. MERSGEE B RREE

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise cash and
cash equivalents, restricted cash, finance leases and interest-
bearing bank and other borrowings. The main purpose of these
financial instruments is to raise finance for the Group’s operations.
The Group has various other financial assets and liabilities such as
trade receivables and trade payables, which arise directly from its
operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are
interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.
The Group does not hold or issue derivative financial instruments
for trading purposes. The board of directors reviews and agrees
policies for managing each of these risks and they are summarised
below:

(a) Interest rate risk

The Group has no significant interest-bearing assets. The
Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest
rates relates primarily to the Group’s bank and other
borrowings with floating interest rates. The Group has not
used any interest rate swaps to hedge its interest rate risk.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to change
in interest rates, with all other variables held constant, of
the Group’s profit before tax (through the impact on floating
rate borrowings) and the Group’s equity, assuming all the
increases or decreases are dealt with in profit or loss, without
consideration of interest capitalisation.
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44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

(a) Interest rate risk (continued)

PSRRI

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

44. BERBREER B R RBE

(&

(@) F=RER ()

(Decrease)/
Increase/ increase (Decrease)/
(decrease) in in profit increase
basis points before tax in equity
B2k, R B0 R B,
(@A) (R4, 1&n &
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T AREETTT

2019

RMB

RMB

2018

RMB

RMB

20195

AR

AR

20184

AR

ARE

50 (33,604) (25,203)
(50) 33,604 25,203
50 (23,840) (17,880)
(50) 23,840 17,880
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44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(b) Foreign currency risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such
exposures arise from sales or purchases by operating units
and financing activities in currencies other than the units’
functional currencies.

In addition, the Group has currency exposures from its
interest-bearing bank borrowings.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of
the reporting period to a reasonably possible change in the
US$ and HK$ exchange rates, with all other variables hold
constant, of the Group’s profit before tax and the Group’s

44. BERBRERBRRBE

(&

(b) FMEER B

AEEARZZZEEEER - ZFRBRHA
KEREENRBEEEAEMIEEEIA
SNz EMHETER o

AN - AREE R EEA SRITERNE
ER o

TRIITRAEERHAFERAEE RSN
B HRUET BB TR A R AR BI
SRS - NEFTA ELA AT B R BRI -

equity.
Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) in (decrease) Increase/
foreign in profit (decrease)
currency rate before tax in equity
HMEER BB RIFIE M
#h0,/ (i) #i,/ (R) (RD)
% RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARETT
2019 20195
If HK$ weakens against US$ AT R E 5 4,335 3,251
If HK$ strengthens against US$ AT ETAE (5) (4,335) (3,251)
If RMB weakens against US$ HARERETHRE 5 4,255 3,191
If RMB strengthens against US$ WARBRETHE (5) (4,255) (3,191)
2018 20184
If HK$ weakens against US$ AT R (B 5 361 270
If HK$ strengthens against US$ BT EETAE ) (361) 270)
If RMB weakens against US$ HAREHETHRE 5 2,063 1,547
If RMB strengthens against US$ HWARBHETHE ) (2,083) (1,547)
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44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 44. BERBEEEBHERRKE
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (48)
(CONTINUED)

(c) Credit risk (c) EERB

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy
third parties. It is the Group’s policy that all customers who
wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification
procedures. In addition, receivable balances are monitored
on an ongoing basis and the Group’s exposure to bad debts
is not significant. For transactions that are not denominated
in the functional currency of the relevant operating unit,
the Group does not offer credit terms without the specific
approval of the Head of Credit Control.

Maximum exposure and year-end staging

The tables below shows the credit quality and the maximum
exposure to credit risk based on the Group’s credit policy,
which is mainly based on past due information unless other
information is available without undue cost or effort, and year-
end staging classification as at 31 December. The amounts
presented are gross carrying amounts for financial assets
and the exposure to credit risk for the financial guarantee
contracts.

AEBEEERTAEERIFNE=T
EITRP - AEBWEESRE - A
MAGEERRETRZNEFHAE
STEERERF o o ARERHE
EERUGRIRE S - MAKBERER
BBREBTIEK - HRIFAEMREES
U EREENR S REER
ZHIEERRERAE - AEBTEEE

HIEERRK -

ERA TR O] G AL R
TRETREBEAEEEEBRNEER
BERGAEERBRHBO  EFXEX
RBEaAER  EMER AEBE
BTN ER B AN S ) BIAT BRIG &Y
ERAIBRIN - LARI2A31 BHFLL
RS - T2 SHEASHEE
WEEmELRMEERENEERR
B E R ©
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44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(c) Credit risk (continued)

44. BERBRERBRRBE

(&

(c) EERB (&)

12-month
ECLs
As at 31 December, 2019 128 A S Lifetime ECLs
1#2019512A31A FEFR PHRSEERE
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
K8 E-RA EZRR lh (97 @it
RMB'000  RMB0O0  RMB000  RMB'O00  RMB000
AR®TR ARETR ARETR AR¥ETR ARETR
Trade receivables* EUWE Z BN - - - 80,065 80,065
Loans to joint ventures mMARLEER 90,508 - - - 90,508
Loans to associates mEECEER 116,184 - - - 116,184
Financial assets included in STAENK - AtEYGE
prepayments, other receivables R E M AEMEREE
and other assets — HARBH
— Not yet past due 879,583 - - - 879,583
Financial assets included inlong st ARBIBNZ K S RIEE
term prepayments — mAEH
— Not yet past due 115,608 - - - 115,608
Restricted cash XBHHEE
— Not yet past due — WAREH 926,287 - - - 926,287
Cash and cash equivalents ReRREEED
—Not yet past due — HAEH 3,132,577 - - - 3,132,577
5,260,747 - - 80,065 5,340,812
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44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

(c) Credit risk (continued)

PSRRI

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

44. BERBREER B R RBE

(&

(c) FERERE )

12-month
ECLs
As at 31 December, 2018 12/ a8 Lifetime ECLs
MN2018FE12A31H Egléﬂé %B}qfﬁﬁﬂﬁ‘%éﬂé
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
E—IRE E[AER E AR st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETTL AREFTL AREFTL ARETT ARBEFTL
Trade receivables* EWE SR - - - 56,029 56,029
Loan to a joint venture m—HAELEER 67,304 = = = 67,304
Loan to an associate -HEBECEER 175,300 - - - 175,300
Financial assets included in STABRR - YRR
prepayments, other receivables R EMBEN S BEE
and other assets — EREH
— Not yet past due 359,702 - - - 359,702
Financial assets included inlong st ARHIBENZ M BEE
term prepayments — MBS
— Not yet past due 171,033 - - - 171,033
Restricted cash XBHEE
— Not yet past due — HARBH 601,019 - - - 601,019
Cash and cash equivalents HeRHReEEY
— Not yet past due — WABEH 1,639,762 - - - 1,539,762
2,914,120 - - 56,029 2,970,149

*

For trade receivables to which the Group applies the simplified
approach for impairment, information based on the provision

matrix is disclosed in note 27 to the financial statements.

* RAKEERABL T EETREZEKE S
BRRME - ERBEEENERBEERIH
&R MITE2T7 ©
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44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 44. B EBEEE H IR R B %

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (#8)

(CONTINUED)

(d) Liquidity risk (d) REESRK
The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using AEEFRAREUERDERTE TAERA
a recurring liquidity planning tool. This tool considers the BoRERR ZITAEEESMTARS
maturity of both its financial instruments and financial assets BhEE (N IE 5 8RR & 2 B EE R &
(e.g., trade receivables) and projected cash flows from SRR 7 TERHIRE N o
operations.
The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between REEH B TS B ARITREAER
continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of lease HRHESTEEMHET T BT -

liabilities, bank and other borrowings.

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at RBETHARBBRA R - NEE SR A ER R
the end of the reporting period, based on the contractual HHIROBEBEBIAAT ¢
undiscounted payments, is as follows:

2019 20194
On Less than 3 to less than 1to5 Over
demand 3months 12 months years 5 years Total
MEAZE
REX DREA  PR12fER 1256 5N L @i

RMBOOO ~ RMBOO0 ~ RMBOO0  RMBOO0  RMBOO0  RMB'00O
ARBTL ARBTL ARBTL ARBTL ARBTL ARBTR

Interest-bearing bank and & BETEFHR

other borrowings Hitfax - 600415 1,889,115 3,640,940 1,090,305 7,220,775
Interest payable in relation to 8 BI$R1T R E M fEF

bank and other borrowings ~ FEfIFIE, - 112,446 297,248 564,621 148,048 1,123,263
Trade payables ENESER - 998,760 316,655 - - 1,315,415
Lease liabilties HEBE - 6,685 27,424 144,099 192,395 370,603

Financial liabilities included in 5 A& B K
other payables and accruals  FEzFEAREBERE

497,489 79,603 389,286 - 966,378

2,215,795 2,610,045 4,738,946 1,431,648 10,996,434
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44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 44. BERBEEEBHERRKE
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (48)
(CONTINUED)

(d) Liquidity risk (continued) (d) REEESRKE (&)

2018 20184
On Lessthan 3 toless than 1t05 Over
demand 3 months 12 months years 5 years Total
ERZE
BER  JRSER  SR12(ER 125% SEL L 8

RMB'000 ~ RMBO00 ~ RVMBOO0 ~ RMB(000  RMB000  RMB'000
ARBTL  ARBTR ARETT ARETT  ARETLE  ARETR

Interest-bearing bankand ~ EFERTERR

other borrowings Hitfax - 214,000 1,980,960 2,413,000 160,125 4,768,085
Interest payable in relation to A BF{TREMIER

bank and other borrowings ~ KIFEFIE, - 67,100 195,858 294,665 21,791 579,414
Trade payables EHESER = 1,579,485 120,713 = - 1,700,198
Financial liabilties included in -~ (P AH A1 FER

other payables and accruals R ERMEEER - 320,182 560,000 = = 880,182
Non-current liabilities FRPaE - - - 1,255,889 - 1,255,889

= 2,180,767 2,857,531 3,963,554 181,916 9,183,768

(e) EXEHE

(e) Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to
support its business and maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in the light of changes in economic
conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying
assets. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group
may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return
capital to shareholders or issue new shares. The Group is not
subject to any externally imposed capital requirements. No
changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes
for managing capital during the years ended 31 December
2019 and 2018.

AEBEAEENTIEENEERRE
AEBENFELCEREFEENE
AR AXFHEEBRERREER
&AL °

REETRHEEREE - WRERLH
AR5 B B A AR B B ) R R S R
HEMENRE - BERFIARERE
o AREA BN TRERR
B BERRETREIETHR
19 o NEEBAZFERIMNBHEANE
BARENR o HZE2018F K2019F 12
RAB1RIEFE NEBEMERER
ERMER  BERRFEL ERE
§ °
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44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 4. BMERSGEEBREREE
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (#8)
(CONTINUED)

(e) BEAXREE ()

(e) Capital management (continued)

306 Zhong An Group Limited

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is
net debt divided by capital plus net debt. Net debt includes
interest-bearing bank and other borrowings, trade payables,

other payables and the accruals, and lease liabilities, less

cash and cash equivalents. Capital represents equity
attributable to owners of the parent. The gearing ratio as at
the end of the reporting periods was as follows:

FEEEREEABIRERER
ZAEBBLERFEERIUEARMN
FEIE o FEERENFERITERK
HiEH  ENE SRR EAMEN
FIHEESEAREERE  BRE
RBREZEBY - ERDERARRFRIE
R -  REMEMRNEEREL
RIAR -
As at 31 December

M12831H
2019 2018
20194 2018%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T AREBTIT
Interest-bearing bank and other STESRITER R H M ER
borrowings 7,220,775 4,768,085
Trade payables BT E SRR 1,315,415 1,700,198
Other payables and accruals H b e AT ROE K ERT B 1,007,909 916,793
Lease liabilities HEaE 370,603 =
Less: Cash and cash equivalents B ReERIBCEEY (3,132,577) (1,539,762)
Net debt SFEIE 6,782,125 5,845,314
Equity attributable to owners of the B AEHA AELERE
parent 8,436,293 7,755,210
Capital and net debt AR INFEIR 15,218,418 13,600,524
Gearing ratio BEBELR 45% 43%
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45. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL
POSITION OF THE COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial position of the

AR AR M

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

45. K FIMERAE

BRARBREERMR BN ER A

Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows: N
2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARET T
Non-current assets FRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries ES 3,047,564 2,937,608
Property and equipment B E K& 337 463
Total non-current assets EMBEERE 3,047,901 2,938,071
Current assets REBEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEURBT B A RIFRIA 100,000 100,000
Prepayments, other receivables and TERE - EMFRIER
other assets HEMEE 15,473 12,924
Equity investments designated at fair BERBRARBEAEEEZEH A
value through other comprehensive Hib2mksmERIeE
income 6,942 6,791
Financial assets at fair value through profit AR A BERE B EEE AEH
or loss BalERRE 152 238
Cash and cash equivalents BeRIREEED 2,989 1,623
Total current assets MEEELRE 125,556 121,576
Current liabilities RBAE
Amounts due to subsidiaries FEASFY B A R FE 405,368 267,301
Other payables and accruals E b e RIE K ERT B A 1,086 1,063
Total current liabilities MEN B ERTE 406,454 268,364
Net current liabilities REBEEREE (280,898) (146,788)
Total assets less current liabilities HEERRBARE 2,767,003 2,791,283
Net assets BEE 2,767,003 2,791,283
Equity FEm
Share capital [N 506,181 514,342
Reserves ] 2,260,822 2,276,941
Total equity R 2,767,003 2,791,283
FrE@gERNrE —E-hEER 307
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45. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL
POSITION OF THE COMPANY

45. R FIMBIRRE (88)

(CONTINUED)
Note: FfE -
A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows: RNARIREBEHRIT
Share Exchange Share
premium fluctuation ~ Accumulated option
account reserve losses reserve Total
B3 EX BiRE
HER HEGHE 2R i @it
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT
At 1 January 2018 2018F1A1H 3,022,503 (569,933) (258,581) 118,492 2,312,481
Total comprehensive income FREEREEE
for the year - (10,710) (14,835) - (25,545)
Repurchase of shares BERH (11,523) = = = (11,529)
Exercise of share options 1TfEEERRE 1,431 = = 97 1,528
Transfer of share option reserve upon PAEERER R Unel & m e
the forfeiture of share options BRERERRE - - 8,480 (8,480) =
At 31 December 2018 2018F12A31A K
and 1 January 2019 20191 A81H 3,012,411 (580,643) (264,936) 110,109 2,276,941
Total comprehensive income ERZENREE
for the year - 13,3563 (16,381) - (3,028)
Repurchase of shares Brikin (13,091) - - - (13,001)
Transfer of share option reserve upon 78 AR 1E 1k FE B S B
the expiry of share options RiEGERE - - 50,778 (50,778) =
At 31 December 2019 2019%F12A31H 2,999,320 (567,290) (230,539) 59,331 2,260,822

The share option reserve comprises the fair value of share options
granted which are yet to be exercised, as further explained in the
accounting policy for share-based payments in note 35 to the
financial statements. The amount will either be transferred to the
share premium account when the related options are exercised, or
be transferred to retained profits should the related options expire
or be forfeited.
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46. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING

47

PERIOD

Since the outbreak of the Coronavirus Disease 2019 (“COVID-19”)
in January 2020, the prevention and control of the COVID-19
has been going on throughout China. The COVID-19 has certain
impacts on the business operation and overall economy in some
areas or industries, including in Hubei Province. This may affect
the Group to a certain extent, and the degree of impact depends
on the situation of the epidemic preventive measures, the duration
of the epidemic and the implementation of regulatory policies.
The Group will keep continuous attention on the situation of the
COVID-19, assess and react actively to its impacts on the financial
position and operating results of the Group. Up to the date of this
report, the assessment is still in progress.

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by
the board of directors on 31 March 2020.

PSRRI

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

46. MEMEFR

47

B20205F 1 A& AR AR FZ & ([
mED R BESEFEREFEREHE
e o FTE RS HE THE ST M K
EREREEERE TE - @%%ﬂib‘é‘ °
EAlREE —ERE FHAEBERTE

R BNREIVRNE BB EERNEE
e EENREREREEECROERE o A
SEEHERITTRESRERR - HER
TERGR 3 FL AN R B B TS A I A AR P

|$

EREOEE HEARETIRBE - AR
{HIEEETH -

MERROEL

ZFEN20206E3 31 HRBH BHRERNE

# R IR BETES
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Properties Held for Investment

FERERYIS

As at 31 December 2019 72019412 431 H

Percentage
of interest
Existing use at GFA  attributable to Lease term
31 December 2019 (sg. m.) the Group  of land
M2019F12H31H BEEE REMMEML  tipvdE
Address bt HWIRE AR (FFK) EalEsk QR
1. Basement 1 to Level 15, Guomao Building, Shops and portion 12,225 51.7%  Medium (Note)
No. 93 Shixin Road, Chengxiang Town, of it is vacant, and
Xiaoshan District, Hangzhou, Zhejiang serviced apartments
Province, the PRC
BT A M TR LR ARET K935 AN EE R 12,225 51.7%  HE (P
BEEANEMEIEZE15E i8NG
2. Aretail shop unit on L1, Shanghai La Vie, Shop 341 57.4%  Medium
No. 433 Chang Le Road, Xuhui District,
Shanghai, the PRC
PE EETIRER REIKA33R R ET i 341 57.4%  HH
F1EM AR
3. Portion of Level 1, the whole of Level 2 to Shops and portion of 5,913 57.4%  Medium
Level 4, Integrated Service Center, East it is vacant
Xiaoran Road and Jinjiagiao Road, Xiaoshan
District, Hangzhou, Zhejiang Province,
the PRC
s BT A N TR &R LU R B A SR S K EHMBHEE 5,913 57.4%  HH
SHRBBEARETLE1E LD
EOREAE
4.  Retail shop units of Level 1 to Level 5 Shops and portion of 60,014 57.4%  Medium
in Block 2 to Block 5 of Highlong Plaza, it is vacant
Shanyin Road and Gongren Road, Xiaoshan
District, Hangzhou, Zhejiang Province,
the PRC
HENT AN TERLRILBEMTARE AHAEHneE 60,014 57.4%  HER

EESFREFR B I EFEEHAH
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Properties Held for Investment
BERENYE

As at 31 December 2019 72019412 431 H

Percentage
of interest
Existing use at GFA  attributable to Lease term
31 December 2019 (sg. m.) the Group  of land
H2019F12H31H BEEE REMMEL  timdE
Address b3t HWIRE AR (EFK) BENEIL QR
5. Office units in Block 2 of Highlong Plaza, Office and portion of it 3,177 57.4%  Medium
Shanyin Road, Xiaoshan District, Hangzhou, is vacant
Zhejiang Province, the PRC
DT AN TR R IR B B E S MNIEFIF A 22 3,177 57.4%  HHA
FARZ W NEEAL
6.  Serviced apartment units in Block 3 and 4 of ~ Serviced apartments 1,435 57.4%  Medium

Highlong Plaza, Shanyin Road and Gongren

Road, Xiaoshan District, Hangzhou,

Zhejiang Province, the PRC

BT T N T AR LU R LR BE A AR RGN 1,435 57.4%  HHA
BIEEHEIRRBARZ REALRE

7. Retail shop units of Level 1 to Level 2 Shops and portion of 8,781 57.4%  Medium
(Phase 1) and the whole block of No. 43 it is vacant
commercial building (Phase 2), Landscape
Garden, Shushan Road and Panshui Road,
Xiaoshan District, Hangzhou,
Zhejiang Province, the PRC

AR BT T A N T AR LU [ & L BE AN Rk e 8,781 57.4%  FRHf
BKEILKIEF1HFIEE2EmE N
FOHAEEIRA3GRAE
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Properties Held for Investment

FERENYE

As at 31 December 2019 72019412 431 H

Percentage
of interest
Existing use at GFA  attributable to Lease term
31 December 2019 (sg. m.) the Group  of land
M2019F12H31H BEEE REMMEML  tipvdE
Address bt HWIRE AR (FFK) EalEsk QR
8.  Retail shop units of Hidden Dragon Bay, Shops and portion of 17,814 59.0%  Medium
Wenxing Village, Wenyan Town Xiaoshan it is vacant
District, Hangzhou, Zhejiang Province, the
PRC
FREDT A MM TR R EIEEE BN EE e 17,814 59.0%  HHA
e
9. Blocks 1, 2, 3, 4, and 6 of Hangzhou Office and shops and 84,848 63.8%  Medium
International Office Centre, Ningwei Town, portion of it is vacant
Xiaoshan District, Hangzhou,
Zhejiang Province, the PRC
A BN & A T AR LU R 2 B SR B B /NG ) 84,848 63.8%  HHA
AR -2 3 4K6IR BHEE
10. Retail shop units of Level 1 to Level 2 in Shops and portion of it 836 100%  Medium
Phase | of Vancouver City, Jinhua Yuan, is vacant*
Remin Road, Huaibei, Anhui Province,
the PRC
A LT AR KB ST — 5 M IHZEE" 836 100%  HH

WEE1EF2EEM
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Properties Held for Investment

FERENE

As at 31 December 2019 72019412 431 H

Percentage
of interest
Existing use at GFA  attributable to Lease term
31 December 2019 (sg. m.) the Group  of land
H2019F12H31H BEEE REMMEL  timdE
Address it WIRE AR (FEFK) BENEIL QR
11. Yin Tai Cheng, No. 217, Xinjian North Road,  Shops and portion of 92,489 57.4%  Medium
Urban Area, Yuyao, Zhejiang Province, it is vacant
the PRC
F BT & RPk T R eI 21 7SR IR/, e sE A SR D Z= 92,489 57.4%  HH
12. Time Square I, No. 271 Xinjian North Road, Shops and portion of 2,160 57.4%  Medium
Urban Area, Yuyao, Zhejiang Province, it is vacant
the PRC
BT A R YTk B ¥R AE B 21 75% PRI e 2,160 57.4%  HH
RS —EA
13. Time Square II, No. 181 Xinjian North Road,  Office and shops and 7,274 59.3%  Medium
Urban Area, Yuyao, Zhejiang Province, portion of it is vacant
the PRC
FHBUHNT B AP TR FT2 AL R 18157 PNERIR 4 7,274 59.3%  HH
Ry X 3% — BA HhEE
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Properties Held for Development and/or Sale

SEBRRK,SHENYE

Land Cost % of interest
per sq.m. attributable
(RMB)  Land Cost to the Group Site Area
BEME  (RMB'000) e 4] (sqm)  Project GFA
Project City/district Location Project type (AR®L/  1##RE [k wEEE  HA4EE
EAEH Wi/ B EEH DERERE 5K (AR¥TR) EpiA (FAX) i
Zhejiang Province
]
1 Landscape Bay Xiaoshan, Hangzhou ~ Centre of new district Residential 485 145,367 92.6% 215,334 300,012
S BN/ &Ll in Tier 2 city =z
i )
2 Hidden Dragon Bay Xiaoshan, Hangzhou  Centre of new district ~ Residential/retal/office 1491 360,360 59.0% 89,173 241,69
g il /&l in Tier 2 city i/ 158/ #0
il
3 White Horse Palace Xiaoshan, Hangzhou ~ Town centre of Tier 2 city  Residential 3322 280,671 90.0% 21497 84,480
R il /& ZB5RTD i
5 International Office Centre (I0C)  Xiaoshan, Hangzhou  Tier 2 city with high Commercial 269 215,246 63.8% 92,610 798,795
Phase A BNl /L growth potentia [EE
B R AL —GRER
6 International Office Centre (I0C) ~ Xiaoshan, Hangzhou ~ Tier 2 city with high Commercial 458 502,512 63.8% 207,390 1,098,065
Phase Band BN/ &Ll growth potentia ES
B AT LB CH ZGRER
7 White Horse Manor Xiaoheshan, Hangzhou  Tier 2 city with high Residential 2,259 550,000 90.0% 145,265 243,497
AL i/l growth potentia =
“BakR
8 Qiaodao Lake Hotel Qiaodao Lake, Hangzhou Tier 2 city with high Residential/hotel 4728 220,147 63.8% 119,398 46,691
TEHER i/ F5H grz;ﬁ_higgnna\ 2/ B
—K[RIE
9 |deal Bay Yuhang, Hangzhou Town centre of Tier 2 city  Residential/Retal 1,048 834,000 45.9% 158,743 538,856
B M/ ZBARAD e/ Ff
10 Chaoyang No. 8 (including Xiaoshan, Hangzhou ~ Town centre of Tier 2 ity Residential retal 3,69 736,390 90%/63.8% 46,703 199,224
Chaoyang Yinzuo) fiM /&l k71 =CN fE/mi
LG )
11 College Square Yuhang, Hangzhou Tier 2 city with high Residential retall 1328 259,380 90.0% 52,359 195,293
gz8 M/ R growth potentia /B
“BakR
12 XixiNew City West Lake District, Town centre of Tier 2 city - Commercial 331 281,100 63.8% 39,708 83,391
BEHAT Hangzhou SRR RS
i/ EHE
13 Gentle Mansion Xiaoshan, Hangzhou ~ Tier 2 city with high Residential 5,863 673,000 21.7% 57,394 114,788
Ztin /&l growth potentia =
s
14 XixiManhattan Yuhang, Hangzhou Town centre of Tier 2 city - Commercial 343 37470 29.3% 24,53 109,173
iA=L /& ZBARRD A
15 Xixi Future Square (Royal Bay)  Yuhang, Hangzhou Town centre of Tier 2 city  Residential 6,28 669,939 90.0% 65,796 109,782
EERRE(RE) i/ s ZBARRD frz
16 Bevery Qlaodo Lake, Hangzhou  Tier 2 city with high Residential 6,198 160,000 90.0% 89,991 25,816
HEF| /58 growth potentia =
ek
17 Xinnongdu Hangzhou etc. Tier 2 city with high Residential commercial 559 679,994 24.4% 991,736 121733
2% pES growth potentia /g
“GekR
18 NenHuMing Yue Yuhang, Hangzhou Tier 2 city with high Residential 984 400,000 59.9% 121,900 406,664
A M/ growth potentia =
“hRER
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Properties Held for Development and/or Sale

Address
st

Total GFA
BREER

Completed
for sale’

BIRE'

Development Phases

REER
Under
development?

GEGE

Land Bank (sq.m.)
TG (TAK

Hold for future
development?

BHARRE

FERERREENWHE

Types
REME

Facilities | Hotel Il Office Ill

Residential &

HEREEI

Commercial &

BN BERBAN

Ningwei Town, Xiaoshan District, Hangzhou, Zhejiang
Province

AIENTRLEZER

Wenxing Road, Wenyan Town, Xiaoshan District,
Hangzhou, Zhejiang Province
LN TR EEE AR

Yucai Road, Xiaoshan District, Hangzhou, Zhejiang
Province

HIERMNmELES %

Qianjiang Century Town, Xiaoshan District, Hangzhou,
Zhejiang Province

AIERATRLEZTE Y

Qianjiang Century Town, Xiaoshan District, Hangzhou,
Zhejiang Province

FIATATRLER TR

Liuhe Road, Xianiin Town, Yuhang District, Hangzhou,
Zhejiang Province

FIATNANE BIRERHR

Southwest of Qiandaohu Town, Chunan, Hangzhou,
Zhejiang Province

HTENERTERERE

Yuhang Economic Development Zone, Hangzhou, Zhejiang

Province

FLETNATEERER

Shushan Town, Xiaoshan District, Hangzhou, Zhejiang
Province

HIRNTELESLEE

Future Hi-Tech City, Yuhang District, Hangzhou, Znhejiang

Province

AN TARNER R

Xihu District, Hangzhou, Zhejiang Province
HIanMmEE

Chengxiang Unit, Xiaoshan District, Hangzhou, Zhejiang
Province

FLARNTRLERET

Intersection of Gaojiao Road and Changyu Road
EHENEREINA

Xian Lin Town, Yuhang District, Hangzhou, Zhejinag
Province

HIERMmRIE R

West of Taoyuan Island, Qiandao Lake, Chunan County,
Hangzhou, Zhejiang Province
HIamER TS HRER
Hangzhou/Quzhou/Zhuji/Changxing
i/ #E /KR

Yuhang District, Hangzhou, Zhejiang Province

HIafNmAnE

5,991

84,708

1,314

570,939

1,096,065

6,345

46,691

11,878

2,282

5,480

31,596

102,755

34012

94,622

25,816

1,211,285

406,664

5,991

84,708

6,345

35,114

11,878

2,282

5,480

31,506

102,755

34,012

1,828

1,027,907

263,956

1,577

92,994

406,664

207,244

1,098,065

25816

183,378

3,408

69,227

1,314

207,634 1

1,096,066

6,345

1,817

7516

1,331

102,755

17,067

93,189

25,816

133,670

404,607

ZEEHRNA]

38

= 2,583

= 15,481

01,500 261,906

35,114 =

= 4,363

= 2,086

= 4,868

= 30,266

= 16,945

= 1,633

68,168 1,009,447

= 2,057
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Properties Held for Development and/or Sale

BERERREENWHE

Land Cost % of interest
per sq.m. attributable
(RMB)  Land Cost to the Group Site Area
BEME  (RMB'000) 158 (sqm)  Project GFA
Project City/district Location Project type (AR®L/  1##RE [k wEEE  HA4EE
EAEH Wi/ B EEH NERIME 5K (AR¥TR) EpiA (FAX) i
19 Tuankou Fenghuangshan Lin'an, Hangzhou Tier 2 city with high Commercial 630 40,000 63.8% 37,500 63,502
Hotspring Hotel /e growth potentiel i
BRI ERER “GRER
20 Zhong An Palace Xiaoshan, Hangzhou ~ Tier 2 city with high Residential 16,460 1,641,600 90.0% 45,333 99,732
REHNT M /2L growth potentia iz
“BekR
21 Fuyang Project Fuyang, Hangzhou Tier 2 city with high Residential 7,621 997,500 90.0% 54,493 130,783
EhEE /25 growth potentia =
“GRER
22 Lingi Yunfu Lin'an, Hangzhou Tier 2 city with high Residential 8,732 464,990 22.5% 44374 53,249
EBRER /R growth potentia =z
GRER
23 Majestic Mansion Lin'an, Hangzhou Tier 2 city with high Residential 5,46 1,169,000 18.0% 59,600 210,800
HEM N/ R growth potentia =
“BRER
Subtotal for Hangzhou 1,780 11,339,266 2,786,826 6,371,623
AN
24 Dragon Bay Yuyao, Hangzhou Town centre of Tier 2 city -~ Residential 8,802 1,750,013 90.0% 330,135 196,809
i Bj/ ik SRR iz
25 Jade Mansion Yuyao, Hangzhou Town centre of Tier 2 city - Residential 3,804 1,118,754 93.0% 271,468 292,807
SERE 2 /40 ZBARRD iz
26 Zhong An Times Square Yuyao, Hangzhou Town centre of Tier 2 city - Commercialfhotel 1,154 362,640 57.4% 65,159 305473
Phasel B/ R B/ B
RERRES— 4
21 Zhong An Times Square Yuyao, Hangzhou Town centre of Tier 2 city - Residential/office/hotel 1,030 332,760 59.3% 71,519 322,912
Phase | BR/ ik ZBHERD fz/Hn/
RRBERESZH i’
28 CixiZhong An Landscape Cixi, Ningbo Tier 2 city with high Residential/office/ 467 238080 90%/63.8% 197,655 510,126
Garden/ Binhai Commercial B /£% growth potentiel Commercia
Plza ZERER Fz/878/ %
BERZIKG /B
RS
Su;ljst;l for Ningbo 2,326 3,787,248 935,926 1,628,126
S
29 Comphor Tree Bay Lishui Town centre of Tier 2 city  Residential 4756 1,364,000 90.0% 115,890 286,769
Blg Bk ZBBETD iz
Subtotal for Lishui 4,756 1,364,000 115,800 266,769
Bkt
30 TyphaLotus Garden Yiwu Town centre of Tier 3 city - Residential 4216 1,190,900 58.5% 106,757 282,506
btz £5 =BARRD =z
31 Baolong House Yiwu Town centre of Tier 3 ity Residential/ 3975 584,300 31.5% 81,671 147,007
LI 25 =BHERD Commercial
fE/mg
Subtotal for Yiwu 4,216 1,190,900 105,757 282,505
EL T
316 Zhong An Group Limited 2019 Annual Report



Properties Held for Development and/or Sale

FERERREENWHE

Land Bank (sq.m.)
TIBRE AR
Development Phases Types
R REKE
Completed Under  Hold for future Residential & Commercial &
Address Total GFA for sale’ development*  development® Facilities | Hotel Il Office Ill
it BRsmR BIRE! RER:  BHARER HEREE RN EERHAN
Lin'an District, Hangzhou, Zhejiang Province 63,502 - - 63,602 - 63,502 -
FIEnAmEZE
Kiaoshan District, Hangzhou, Znefiang Province Province 99,732 - - 99,732 99,732 - -
HIEMATRLE
Fuyang District, Hangzhou, Zhejiang Province 130,783 - - 130,783 130,783 - -
mranfmERE
Lin'an District, Hangzhou, Zhejiang Province 53,249 - 53,249 - 53,249 - -
HIENTERE
Lin'an District, Hangzhou, Zhejiang Province 210,800 = 210,800 = 210,800 = =
FIEmAmEZE
4,298,709 1,451,350 1,22.217 1,625,142 2,678,792 268,284 1,351,633
Kinjian North Rpad, Yuyao, Zhejiang Province 18411 18411 - - 15,891 - 2,520
LA AR
Kinjian North Road, Yuyao, Zhejlang Province 19,225 19,225 - - 19,225 - -
LA AR
Kinjian North Road, Yuyao, Zhejeng Province 138276 138276 - - TAT1 20,692 10113
IAARMATRLH%
Kinjian North Road, Yuyao, Zhejlang Province 115,837 115,837 - - - 82,697 33,140
LA AR
Longshan New Town, Binghai District, Cidong, Cixi, 170,445 11,047 87,398 72,000 69,762 - 100,683
Zhejiang Province
HIEEEER BRI
462,193 302,795 87,398 72,000 112,349 103,389 246,455
Luwan Vilage, Lishui, Znejiang Province 286,769 - 286,769 - 283,140 - 3629
HIREKmRER
286,769 - 266,769 - 283,140 - 3,629
Lugang Logistics Park, Yiwy, Znefiang Province 282,505 - 282,505 - 280,239 - 2,266
FLESTEBRE
Lugang Logistics Park, Yiwy, Znefiang Province 147,007 - 147,007 - 147,007 - -
FIEZETEENRE
429,512 - 429,512 - 427,246 - 2,266
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Properties Held for Development and/or Sale

BERERREENWHE

Land Cost % of interest
per sq.m. attributable
(RMB)  Land Cost to the Group Site Area
BESE  (RMB'000) e 4] (sqm)  Project GFA
Project City/district Location Project type (AR®L/  1##RE [k wEEE  HA4EE
ERER Yim/B EEH NERENLE 5K (AR¥TR) EpiA (FAX) i
32 Dragon Bay Project Wenzhou Town centre of Tier 3 cfy Besidential/commercial 8510 928,200 21.6% 43630 109,074
£ IE! it SRR /%
33 Grape Shed Project Wenzhou Town centre of Tier 3 ciy Besidential 13218 1,123,000 90.0% 30,236 84,963
B 2 =) 2
Subtotal for Wenzhou 1057 2,051,200 73,866 194,037
M
Subtotal for Zhejiang 2,252 19,732,614 4,018,265 8,763,061
E Rt
Anhui Province
E4 )
34 Green Harbour Hefei, Anhui Centre of new district Residentia 49 360,453 84.2% 1,728,376 712,218
ke 28/ i Tier 2oty fiE
AL
35 Vancouver Gty Huaioei, Anhii Centre of new district Residential 32 50,993 100.0% 1,638,768 1,609,250
RFEH /B i Tier 3oty i
B Sl
Subtotal for Anhui 173 401,446 3,367,135 2,321,468
R
Jiangsu
T
3 KuzhouNew Cty Xuzhou, Jiangsu Centre of new district ~ Gommercial 320 180,000 29.3% 154,802 562,371
i TE/ M in Ter 3 iy A%
=B
Shandong
IR
37 Qingdao New City Qingdao, Shandong~~ Centre of new district  Residentiallcommerciel 3,000 334,449 100.0% 51,736 111,483
EEim WE/%E8 i Tier 2oty /g
AL
Yunnan
g%
38 Yunxing Imperial Palace Kunming, Yunnan Towin centre of Tier 2 city - Residential/commercial 2,261 638,708 49.5% 37,020 283,785
SR 28/5H ZEERL fE/B¥
Overseas
8
39 AmberRise Vancouver, British Tier 1 New City Residential 11,206 86,497 100.0% 15,715 7,119
Columbia —i5 =z
ARARHD/ BT
Total 1,174 21,313,714 7,644,672 12,049,886
@t
* including those with land use right and contractual interests
- including contracted and not recognized completed section
i Total GFA = 1+2+3 = + Il + lll

* BEERGLIEMESARERGNER 2 T
** BRECENARERNE TS
# PREEEE=T+2+3 =1+l + I
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Properties Held for Development and/or Sale

FERERREENWHE

Land Bank (sq.m.)
TG (TAK
Development Phases Types
REER REME
Completed Under  Hold for future Residential & Commercial &
Address Total GFA for sale’ development*  development® Facilities | Hotel Il Office Ill
it BREEE RIRE' BER RHARERS EREE pil]l BERBAN
Longwan District, Wenzhou Ctty, Zhejiang Province 109,074 - - 109,074 109,074 - -
MIARNTEER
Core area of Wenzhou City, Zhejiang Province 84,963 - - 84,963 82,286 - 2,677
IR mzLRE
194,037 - - 194,037 191,360 - 2,617
5,671,220 1,754,145 2,025,896 1,891,179 3,692,887 371,673 1,606,661
Landu Road, Baohe QSmct, Hefei, Anhui Province 673,870 5310 - 668,500 669,207 = 4,663
RRESETEARHER
Renmin Road, Xiangshan District, Huaibei, Anhui Province 710,712 167,371 207,404 375,987 569,244 67,061 144,407
ZHEELTRLEARE
1,444,582 172,14 227,404 1,044,437 1,228,451 67,061 149,070
Hanfeng North Road & Xiaoxiang South Road, Xincheng 562,371 - - 562,371 500,000 - 562,371
District, Xuzhou, Jiangsu Province
TEARNTIREZRILE - BHRE
Hongdao Economic Zone, Qingdao, Shandong Province 111,483 53,300 58,183 67,330 44153
LREEETAEEER
Xishan District, Kunming, Yunnan Province 283,785 283,785 280,414 331
EHERITALR
No.2185, Union Avenue, West Vancouver, British Columbia 7,119 - 7,719 - 7,719 - -
Columbia
ABFRH FEmRTENH B85
8,081,160 1,926,886 2,314319 3,839,955 5,276,801 438,734 2,365,625
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Summary of Financial Information

B E R R

RESULTS *xi5
Year ended 31 December
HZ12A31BILEE
2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
20194 20184 20174 20164 20154

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARETT ARBTIT ARETT ARBTET

Revenue ILON 6,204,683 5,169,369 4,395,117 5,007,148 2,883,146
Profit before tax R BT A 1,920,559 883,572 1,302,039 249,212 1,008,594
Income Tax FriS®i (916,528) (520,509) (493,635) (88,250) (415,292)
Profit for the year FRFE 1,004,031 363,063 808,404 160,962 593,302
Attrtutable to :
Owners of the parent SRR A 637,144 286,881 547,435 125,272 420,608
Non-controlling interests Bl 366,887 76,182 260,969 25,690 172,694
1,004,031 363,063 808,404 150,962 593,302
E AN
ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND BE  ARKRFEERER

NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

31 December

12A31H
2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
20195 20184 20174 20164 20154

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARETT ARBTIT ARETT ARBTET

Total Assets BEE 30,172,439 25,065,934 22,597,702 20,270,441 22,089,407
Total Liabilities FES=E (19,651,753) (15,515,815) (13,538,538) (12,559,306) (14,536,641)
Non-controlling Interests FEIE R (2,084,393) (1,794,909) (1,607,806) (1,172,233)  (1,142,543)

8,436,293 7,755,210 7,451,358 6,538,902 6,410,223
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